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GROUP OVERVIEW
EBEN

4

Shoucheng Holdings Limited (the “Company”/“Shoucheng Holdings")
adhere to public offering REITs as the cornerstone of the business, relying

on two core capabilities of FIME, which refers to fundraising, investment,
management and exit and asset operation accumulated by the company over
the years, actively layout grid assets with long-term value, and aims to become
the relentless improve and service provider of infrastructure assets.

BRERARAT (M$28) / TERER) ) BRLURETSREBER BAAH

SERRENEERBRAEEEEED RBMEAARMEENERITEE
WA AERRNE EFEOUEENRTSE

Our Value Customer first Team cooperation IearTrf;Chgitir:liism
EEE =55 BB A1 e
Quality first Outcome - oriented Full of passion
mEE R SRE R FEm s
Opigl—:rw;:ieand Embracing change  Loyal dedication
T M s
A wEREME 5Pk 25 R

Our Mission To promote the cross-border integration of infrastructure
d Visi assets, to enhance the operating efficiency, to build new
an ISION  \rastructure and to provide the leading infrastructure

A = asset management SerVice
{FepfE= 9

Become the infrastructure assets service provider who
continually enhance the operating efficiency as well as
become the pioneer of REITs in China

RUBE E  RITAE  FIEMER R AXNERRET
HEEERE

BRI S E R ECUEEMARFS B » CREITSSBE
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1991

The Company is listed on the main board of the
Hong Kong Stock Exchange

AABDREBBMRZPAER LT

2016

Commenced asset restructuring, and sold
Qinhuangdao business, including steel
manufacturing, mineral mining and processing

FREESHE HEREEXED  SFHRE
RV RIN T %755

2018

Insisted firmly on the transformation strategy,
developed new main business, reduced the side
of old business, divested relevant assets, and
introduced strategic shareholders for
coordinated development

BREBUEKR ZRTTEXT BAEEESR
R KBRS E 5| ABBSRER  sRE| HE R

2020

The Company has officially changed its name

to Shoucheng Holdings Limited, the new name
reflects the Group's current strategic and business
development direction

ABEABLRERERBRAF  HAiERkR
FEERAEBREZERETN

2022

Deeply cultivating the field of infrastructure assets
represented by carparks, with stable income and good
interoperability, with the opportunity of the era of
public offering REITs in Mainland China, to realise the
integration of industry and finance in infrastructure
operation and asset securitisation

RIGEETHERKMRAEALE  2EERE
BRI ABRETSRERBEF  BERERKMEE
BENBEERSCNERES

MILESTONES
gt

1992

Shougang Group and Cheung Kong (Holdings)
Limited (now known as CK Hutchison Holdings
Limited) successfully acquired the Company in
1992

BilERMERISEE (B BARARE RBE
IMEEERRAT) IR1992F WS4 A T

2017
Completed business transformation

FTEREHEL

2019

Completed business restructuring, enhanced
capital reserves, spread out business in China,
and formed a solid foundation for business
development

TEHEBERRE BAESRAE  WREEXE
B REBERETBZENER

2021

In line with national policy opportunities, the
Company made every effort to deploy public
offering REITs in Mainland China, seize the first-
mover advantage, and cover all categories of
public offering REITs; iterated the product matrix
and improved the management efficiency, and
strengthen the leading position in the field of
parking business; divested partial equity interest
in Shougang Fushan Resources Group Limited
("Shougang Resources”) to optimise the asset
structure

B FE B 2R B R 38 > &2 0 10 3 R B P 3t B B B
TEASRETs > IR EEBD > MBI ERREAS
RETsZ2miAEE ; EmEERFEDN EEMEE
NETRT  FELITREMNBELMUSEER ;
MR LB RERERAS (HHEIR)
Lok BREERLRE
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GROUP STRUCTURE
IS

Shoucheng Holdings Limited and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) AEBMBOREATEHELNERREEE
is committed to become the infrastructure assets service JHFENEEFMRIEHE -

provider who continually enhance the operating efficiency in

China.

As at 31 December 2022
72022 F12 B31H

Shoucheng Holdings Limited
HREERARARE
(697.HK)

Infrastructure asset
management business

ERSmEEEEER

Beijing Shoucheng Jishi

Beijing West Fund

E Park Investment

Shoucheng Rongshi

Investment Co., Ltd.* Management Management (Beijing) Fund
(formerly known as Co., Ltd.* Co., Ltd. Management
Beijing Shoutong Tianhe 1o tict JE (E2f= (455) Company Limited*

Investment Co., Ltd.) }Qﬁgﬁkgﬁ\ Eﬁiﬁfiﬁﬁﬁ’&ﬁ) (BEHMa (R
= =
I REREEREERAT BIRAF) 2EEERRAR)
(ARt REERS
KERRLAE)

*  For identification purpose only
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
M5t E

For the year ended 31 December

HENANMBLEE
2022 2021
HKS$ Million HK$ Million Variance(%)
BEEET B HE T ZE) (%)
Revenue LN 1,600 1,195 33.9%
Gross profit margin ESTUES 66.5% 45.8%
Operating profit S =—brapil 1,346 569 136.6%
Earnings/(loss) per share sREHN, (BR)
(HK cents) B 12.97 (15.19)
As at 31 December
128318
2022 2021
HK$ Million HK$ Million Variance(%)
HEGET B EET EE)(%)
Total assets BE®RE 13,656 13,382 2.0%
Net assets attributable to KABHEB A
owners of the Company B FEE 9,928 10,141 2.1%
Bank balances and cash IRITHERKRIRE 3,574 2,573 38.9%
Wealth management BEMK
products and fixed income Ellveskats
financial assets BE 903 1,096 -17.6%
Debt equity ratio® BEERLEERS 10.5% 7.4%

>

report.

The definition of debt equity ratio is set out in page 37 of this o

ERARERLEENERHIINAREHITE

ZEEARLEE
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
A E5 e 2

Revenue
WA
HK$ Million
BEE®RT
2,000
1,600
1,500
compared to
2021
1,000
E20214EE
+33.9%

500

2021 2022

Operating Profit
BEET

HK$ Million

BEEET

2,000

1,500

1,000
compared to
500 2021
BR021EE
+136.6%

2021 2022

Gross profit margin
EFE

%
Bk

2021 2022
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Total Assets
BEMEE
HK$ Million
BEBEBT
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15,000 13382 ;

compared to
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3,000
compared to
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%
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Dear shareholders, investors, clients and colleagues,

As | present my sixth report as the Chairman of Shoucheng
Holdings (hereinafter referred to as the Company) Board of
Directors, | am compelled to reflect on our transformative
journey since 2017, marked by an unwavering spirit of
relentless pursuit of excellence, targeted
investment strategy that embraces the core business

steadfast

entrepreneurship,

philosophy of “precise investment + lean operation”,
commitment to internal innovation, and unyielding emphasis
on organizational efficiency. These themes have acted as
a persistent guiding force, leading us through successful
restructuring and ongoing reforms. As a result, we have
developed a business logic and model that will provide our
organization with a lasting competitive edge into the future.

The year 2022 marks a momentous juncture for China’s
infrastructure sector. The Company has embraced these
transformations with open arms and capitalized on them by
leveraging REITs to provide superior service to our esteemed
clients, thereby paving the way for a new era of deep
development and product advancement. Gazing towards the
horizon, we are filled with a palpable sense of anticipation for
the myriad of possibilities that the forthcoming decade holds
for those who dare to dream big. That makes us, a vanguard
in REITs,

unwavering force in enhancing China’s infrastructure assets.

even more confident in our ability to remain an

In 2022, thanks to the hard work of all employees, the
Company soared to new heights, as reflected by a substantial
surge in revenue and an enhancement in growth quality. Our
revenue reached HK$1.6 billion, representing a 34% year-
on-year increase. Profits attributable to shareholders reached
a ten-year high of HK$922 million. As a result of our strong
performance, the Company witnessed a surge in net assets of
HK$10.024 billion with a notable ROE of 9.2%, and a 35%
growth year-on-year in market capitalization to HK$13.8 billion.
Additionally, dividends totaling HK$900 million were distributed
to our shareholders for the year, indicating an upswing in
dividend yields.

CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
EREHRSE

EHNEMRR - REA-BRREIBMH:

SENEIFREEHEEILRTEFTEIEN
BARMEFERSE BIE2017F LR ERE
ANMBEN RV RRN BRREREEBTE

EARRGFNEBBENBERL > HM—
L/{,EZE’JIEB%E’JFJ%J%?EF%DHL%EJL%

NBEE, " UBZHNE HBERE+BFmKE
WIZOEEES; —UE ZE@J%%}L—WW&B
RIS M SR E B EAR -

Q022 F R ERERBIBEL PEERR S
WEABE 2EEBEBRETSEERBES »
FIEHMEREXMARERWEB 2 Fo i
FIRELZ BERAKR+5F > EEXM KB
AR EMENEELHAABITERFTEE
R HEERENCESNRBE AT EH
REITsEY 5| {8 & ©

FRAEEBETINENI T 2FEREEK
ABHE161E 7T IS E34%; B S EL & T
B9 2R B NETFESE NS ; ARF
EEZEIBKI0024E7T PEERREE

9.2%o° ﬁﬂEHﬁZﬁ\BS%%ﬂg’Htti%%%
EEDMBIEEDNEBE  DAXE—DIR
IEJO
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
EFREHRSE

In 2022, Beijing State-Owned Capital Operation and
Management Company Limited (hereinafter referred to as
Beijing State-Owned Capital Operation and Management)
became one of the substantial shareholders of Shoucheng
Holdings. The involvement of Beijing State-Owned Capital
Operation and Management, one of the most profitable
local state-owned capital operation institutions in China,
is poised to infuse fresh momentum into the growth of
Shoucheng Holdings. Backed by the synergistic strengths of
both companies, Shoucheng Holdings will be able to serve
over half of the infrastructure asset owners in Beijing, granting
them unobstructed access to China’s REIT market. Additionally,
Shoucheng Holdings will work more closely with Sunshine Life
Insurance Corporation Limited, a dynamic insurance company in
China who also increased their shareholdings in the secondary
market to become a major shareholder of the Company. These
collaborations will focus on areas such as REITs and industrial
funds, among others, with the goal of delivering tangible
results.

In 2022, the Company harnessed the momentum of the
thriving REITs market in China, strategically combining its
expertise in FIME, which refers to fundraising, investment,
management and exit, and asset operation to establish
an enhanced business and profit model with REITs as its
cornerstone. From incubating assets through development
funds, to skillfully operating them for increased value and
efficiency, and from providing expert consulting services for
public offering REITs to launching REIT strategic placement,
this integration has empowered us to create a closed-loop
ecosystem that is perfectly aligned with China’s current
economic development and industrial structure. The advantages
of this approach were two-fold. Firstly, we garnered the favor
of governments at all levels and prominent firms that possess
infrastructure assets. Secondly, it has been supported by first-
line investment institutions that have capital allocation needs
in related fields, and the scale of asset under management has
continued to grow rapidly. It is increasingly clear that REITs have
the potential to unlock substantial value for local governments
and asset-heavy companies by optimizing their assets and
injecting liquidity. The value they will release in the future,
therefore, may well exceed our expectations.

10 Shoucheng Holdings Limited Annual Report 2022
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In this year's report, | aim to share insights on three critical
topics: the potential opportunities that REITs present over the
next decade, the Company’s unique first-mover advantage, and
our strategies for achieving high-quality growth. | would like to
take this opportunity to express my gratitude to our investors,
business partners, and Shoucheng colleagues, who have been
steadfast and dependable allies throughout our journey.

CHAPTER ONE REITS IN CHINA UNFURL
THEIR SAILS: TOWARDS

A BOUNDLESS SEA OF
OPPORTUNITIES FOR DARING

DOERS

Successful companies are not born but rather crafted by
the prevailing times and circumstances. In the year 2021, a
momentous event transpired in China’s financial capital market
as the first cohort of REITs received official approval for public
listing, marking the birth of public offering REITs in China
and ushering in a new era for the country’s infrastructure
investment and financing.

China is a bountiful ground for public offering REITs, as it
is home to a diverse array of massive infrastructures. As
of the end of 2022, a total of 24 REITs, with a staggering
combined market value of RMB85.4 billion, have already been
in operation in China. According to our analysis, the REITs
that will be issued and enlarged in 2023 are anticipated to be
valued at over RMB300 billion. Nevertheless, China’s ratio of
REITs to GDP is expected to be at a mere 0.25%, despite the
country’s superiority in terms of both the quantity and quality
of infrastructure compared to the United States, where the
ratio is 6%. This trend foretells China’s emergence as one of
the world’s largest and most dynamic public offering REITs
markets in the coming decade — a market expected to surpass
RMBS5 trillion.

CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
EREHRSE

SEMNEIFREHNEMUREITRAR+ENE
AEB -HANCEEZNNATERSESE
FREE-E E BERRERNERGE
B RB M RIREAN BEBHME R K
AR — B LR B RS (E

R EREITSE N - BERAXR
KBRS

RARNEE RERRNEEFEE2021
FEHAEREITsE mEH » FE A FREITSIE
AEM - ERRTEERZEEERME
BN ENHER WEPEEREATHE
BB R o

BREERIEEREE HBEA ALE
REITsIRIE T EENKEEE B £20224F
> FEREITEESR24% > mEEIARKE
8541270 o IREB I D AT HI B » 2023F HE
REITsTHERERFEEZE AR 3,000 T8
RREEIE T REITsHGDPEEE (2
ERHBE025% MEHE—HFR6% ER"
FENERREEENBERREBBER
B BHEE T RE+F FEAQAZREITsH S
BERERABBARKSBERITNEATS A
AERRA-RFBITHZ—-
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
EFREHRSE

Public offering REITs in China, supported by standardized and
securitized infrastructure assets, have been shown to generate
healthy cash flows and consistent high returns. With a trading
structure blending the best of both stocks and bonds, they
have become a preferred investment option for Chinese
investors due to their asset-based and less volatile nature.
Positive prospects for structural and policy improvements in
the short-term, coupled with long-term advances in efficiency
and management, are expected to further enhance the REIT
industry’s vibrancy and diversity. Meanwhile, as existing REITs
seek post-listing equity offerings and new REIT products
emerge, those with innovative capabilities, operational
expertise, and asset integration skills are poised to thrive and
prosper.

A thriving REIT market promises significant social value and
transformation as REITs revitalize infrastructure assets previously
considered of little worth beyond collateral. Standardizing and
securitizing these dormant assets help their owners inject new
funds into fresh businesses, while post-listing equity offerings
enable the integration of diverse assets to make FIME more
effective. By using REITs as a listed company, industry pioneers
have found a useful tool to revitalize or liquidate stock assets
and acquire new ones, which has significantly contributed
to their success. Another perk of REITs is to enhance asset
operations’ efficiency and cost-effectiveness. The listing of
REITs brings about a heightened level of transparency, enabling
operating effectiveness and costs across disparate locations
and entities to be easily discernible. This affords managers the
opportunity to undertake comparisons and benchmarks, with
the objective of reducing expenses and elevating service quality.

Recently, while sustainable and healthy urban development has
been hindered by a dearth of non-standard financing options, a
significant volume of government and corporate capital remains
ensnared in traditional financing projects without a clear exit
strategy. This accentuates the potential of REITs to serve as a
primary financing instrument, synergizing firms with the capital
market to advance sustainable urban development and business
transformation, as they are capable of both revitalizing idle
assets and improving their operational efficiency.

12 Shoucheng Holdings Limited Annual Report 2022
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CHAPTER TWO  SEIZING THE OPPORTUNITIES
OF REITS: TAKING PROACTIVE
ACTIONS AND GALLOPING

TOWARDS SUCCESS

The opportunities for success are hard-earned, not mere gift of
the times. The Company’s preemptive move into consultancy
for REIT has secured our position as a first echelon REIT player.
Following the issuance of Shougang Green Energy by the
Shougang Group, the country’s first green REIT, in 2021 as
part our efforts to maintain the first-mover advantage, we are
poised to facilitate 20 additional REITs for issuance in 2022,
invigorating over RMB100 billion of assets from a trillion-yuan
reserved asset pool. Among these, BJENERGY PV — the first
public offering REIT in the new energy sector — garnered a
fervent market response and concluded its subscription period
early on 14 March 2023, marking yet another milestone in
our efforts to innovate financing for asset-heavy industries
and offer new green financial tools for the brick-and-mortar
economy. By 2023, the Company is expected to facilitate the
issuance of six REITs. Our years of experience in consultancy
for REIT equip us with unique insights into infrastructure
assets, which we use to evaluate the vitality and strengths
of underlying assets, increase the issuance success rate, and
upgrade performance in the capital market. This is what sets us
apart from other competitors.

Our advantages, however, do not end here. For local
governments and large firms with swathe of infrastructure
assets, the Company offers more than just counseling and
short-term financing. We possess expertise in determining the
genuine value of underlying assets and how to reinvigorate and
grow them. An example of this is our establishment of REIT
Development Funds, which aim to direct underlying assets to
capital market and speed up the flow of infrastructure asset
values through expert managing services. These funds not
only provide our clients with medium-to-short term capital
services to enhance their balance sheets until they meet
the qualifications for REIT issuance, but also cultivate close
relationships with the originators of infrastructure assets. Once
these "assets with potentials” have been incubated to maturity,
our team of skilled professionals will orchestrate their first entry
into the capital market to expedite value flow of infrastructure
assets and pave the way for public offering.

CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
EREHRSE
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
EFREHRSE

Fueled by our unwavering optimism in the prospects and
profitability of China’s thriving REIT market, and our steadfast
commitment to promoting sustainable urban development
and supporting asset-heavy firms, we strategically allocated a
substantial sum of RMB3 billion towards REITs in China through
funds under our management. This bold move positioned
us as the largest investor in the country’s REIT market and a
champion of strategic placement of public offering REITs. At the
same time, we also capitalized on the remarkable success of
REITs in the Chinese market to create the first dollar-based fund
solely dedicated to REITs in mainland China.

After five years of steadfast dedication to promoting REITs, we
have successfully opened up and expanded our “conception
and governor vessels”. The Company is now poised to issue
REITs, backed by our own assets, with a specific strategy to
bundle four parking lots into a parking assets quasi-REITs to
be listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange, the first of its kind
in China, while simultaneously preparing for the debut of the
country’s first bona fide parking REIT by 2023; furthermore,
we have delivered a substantial increase in the value and
operational efficiency of numerous industrial parks and
commercial properties, which come under our management
through the Development Fund. These properties will also
be REITable once the regulatory environment becomes more
relaxed. On the other hand, the REITs we have issued have
become the flagship examples of infrastructure assets, and
set a benchmark for pricing REITs in both the primary market
and infrastructure construction, unlocking possibilities for our
further expansion. In 2023, the Company will work harder
to create and integrate a network of assets with long-term
values. Our experience over the past two years is testament
to the fact that through REITs we can significantly optimize a
firm’s business and profit models by establishing a closed-loop
ecosystem that aligns well with China’s economic development
and industrial structure. This ecosystem enhances asset value
through a comprehensive four-step process: firstly, identifying
and incubating high-potential projects through self-owned
funds and development funds; secondly, enhancing asset
quality and operational efficiency through expert management;
thirdly, enabling the recycling of funds through REIT listing;
finally, reinvesting via REIT strategic placement. As we continue
to implement this innovative system, we are poised to reinforce
our strategic edge in improving China’s infrastructure assets
and cement our position as a preeminent REIT player in the
country.
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CHAPTER THREE UNLEASHING THE VALUE OF
REITS TO EMBARK ON HIGH-
QUALITY AND SUSTAINABLE
GROWTH

With REITs as the cornerstone of our business, we are
committed to unleashing the untapped potential of FIME
and operation, and intensifying our efforts to amplify the
quality and size of managed assets through acquisition and
restructuring. This will put Shoucheng Holdings on a solid
foundation for high quality and sustainable growth.

1. Corporate revenue and the size of managed
assets are both primed to scale new heights

High-quality, long-term business growth lays the
cornerstone for grappling with all other challenges.
In this vein, we can probe Shoucheng Holdings’
development from two facets: the size of the Company’s
revenue and the size of its managed assets.

First, there has been a sizable increase in corporate
revenue, with FIME and asset operation serving as the
two primary revenue sources. FIME brought about 64%
of the Company’s aggregate revenue in 2022, totaling
HK$1.017 billion, while asset operation made up the
remainder 36%, adding up to HK$583 million. To
break them down, FIME generates revenue through the
aforementioned sources, ranging from REIT counseling
and REIT development funds to strategic placement
funds. The rapid scale-ups of asset management promise
to bring a concomitant spike in FIME-generated revenue,
which typically lasts for an extended period of time. The
key components of asset operation-generated revenue
comprise yields from not just parking and industrial park
operations, which are completely in our element, but
also technology services and businesses jointly developed
with REITs" originators. Much like FIME, asset operation
results in a steady stream of revenue that, given our
current assets, lasts for an average of almost 20 years.
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Second, a marked rise has been observed in the size
of the Company’s assets, including both balance sheet
assets and off-balance sheet (OBS) assets. By managing
development funds and REITs, we have expanded OBS
assets primarily by obtaining the property rights or
long-term operating rights of underlying assets while
pursuing an asset-light strategy on the balance sheet.
In the meantime, we will ramp up strategic investments
and acquisitions on a continual basis, funneling money
into grid-based assets with long-term value as well as
technology firms that may aid in more cost-effective
asset operations. A case in point is the parking industry,
in which we have been working tirelessly on devising a
comprehensive package of REIT-centric service products
in a bid to enlarge our parking assets. In the front stage,
we make investments so that our clients benefit from
smarter means of managing parking assets together with
a more lucid picture of the return on their assets, during
which morale is ramped up and stronger ties are thus
forged between us. In the mid-stage, we partner with
our clients to set up a joint venture specializing in asset
operation and management in the hopes of rendering
their assets more profitable, streamlining overheads,
and easing cash flows around their assets; in return, we
charge management fees. In the end stage, we assist
our clients with issuing parking REITs, paving the way for
the exit of their preliminary investment while pushing
forward the FIME process.

Amplifying the combined value of FIME and
asset operation

Working on FIME alone, we risk being a financial or a
passageway company, a dire situation that rids us of
both the opportunity to grasp the inherent features
of infrastructure assets and the ability to plan asset
performance enhancement more effectively. Revolving
entirely around operational management, we gradually
loosen our grip on assets, eventually becoming incapable
of coping with more advanced client demands. Juggling
FIME and asset operation will stand us sustainably in
good stead.
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The FIME segment is set to embrace exponential
growth. It is predicted that the aggregate value of FIME
management will surge from the existing RMB60 billion
to a sheer amount of RMB100 billion as REIT issuance is
expedited and more funds are established in 2023. Asset
operation-wise, the Company has embarked on a new
phase where brand maturity is building up and business
development is picking up pace, which is evidenced in
two dimensions. One is the parking asset operation.
E-Parking, a well-established brand in our offerings, has
carved a name for itself in the parking industry, serving
a whopping volume of 500 thousand vehicles daily in
its peak times that generates daily revenue measuring
in millions of HK dollars. Meanwhile, we have made
preliminary tryouts to upgrade some of our parking
lots to comprehensive service stations where the trio
of photovoltaic power generation, energy storage, and
charging come together. In doing so, we integrate and
innovate infrastructure across various domains, uncover
whatever incremental value that infrastructure assets
serve to offer beyond their conventional purposes,
and redefine the value and pricing of traditional
infrastructure assets. Another dimension is industrial
park operation. 2018 marked the inaugural year of the
Company’s entry into industrial park refurbishment,
followed by signature project of Shoucheng Rongshi
(Beijing) Fund Management Co., Ltd. of a repurposed
industrial park that took Beijing's breath away when it
made its impressive debut at the 2022 Beijing Winter
Olympics. The industrial park has become one of the
most frequently geotagged locations across networking
platforms. Vstartup, another joint venture that the
Company has been nurturing for almost a decade, is
now operating a one million-odd square meter property
area in Beijing and serving over 18,000 firms, emerging
as a major market-driven space operator in the capital
city. Before long, Vstartup will unveil itself in China’s
capital market and bundle its projects into this year’s
REIT launches.
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Meanwhile, we endeavor to breathe fresh life
into the undervalued assets and enhance asset
operational performance, a fundamental job that
precedes everything in our investing in and managing
infrastructure assets. Additionally, an operations
system that delivers lean services, harnesses high-
tech innovation, and creates added value has been
put in place to serve the purpose of boosting asset
performance so that their value can be materialized
more effectively. In the upcoming fiscal year, we are well
poised to further develop FIME with the goal of helping
originators step up the acquisition and consolidation of
high-quality stock infrastructure assets and create long-
term benefits.

Kicking off strategic investment and
acquisition

Leveraging current assets and OBS development funds,
in 2023 we will funnel more strategic investments
across the board in companies and assets that we deem
conducive to bolstering the Company’s expertise in
running infrastructure assets of various genres, with a
particular emphasis on the triad of new energy, spatial
operation, and Saa$S technological services.

Energy-wise, the Company has made a broad-based
strategic shift to electric vehicle (EV) charging, battery
swapping, energy storage, and hydrogen energy,
amongst other new energy sources as a part of the
government's sweeping efforts to create a new power
system, a strategic move that has catalyzed significant
changes in energy mix, supply, and consumption. The
rapid growth of new energy vehicles (NEV) has added
a fresh perspective to the usage of parking lots, which,
in the current context, fit perfectly the role of a filling
station by allowing cars to be refueled right where they
are parked. Joining our efforts with top players in the
energy sector, we make a stab at building a green, low-
carbon energy supply system by erecting and running
more charging facilities at parking lots together with
an integrated energy service and management platform
tailored to EV charging and energy storage.
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Apart from our ambitions in the renewable energy
sector, we leverage our expertise in the management
of parking assets and industrial park assets, as well as
the support of our affiliates based in the Beijing-Tianjin-
Hebei Region, Yangtze River Delta, the Greater Bay Area,
and the Chengdu-Chongging area to acquire or merge
with parking and property management companies
of key cities and regions. At a further step, we make
a calculated move to standardize and restructure
management and services in the hope to nurture a
dynamic team that complies with uniform standards yet
maintains local characteristics, which will further bolster
our spatial operation and management prowess across
industries.

The last of our three-pronged strategy involves high-
tech platform companies. Via business collaboration and
equity investment in third-party technological service
companies, we engage ourselves in the system of SaaS
platforms, where we reach out directly to customers
from individual basic service nodes, thus offering
bespoke services that set us distinctively apart from our
competitors.

CHAPTER FOUR GIVING EMPLOYEES A
STRONGER SENSE OF GAIN

Employees are whom we rely upon in generating business
value. As the first red-chip company among Beijing’s state-
owned enterprises (SOE) implementing a share incentive plan,
the Company granted approximately 139 million shares option
to 50 employees on its payroll in 2021 during the initial grant
and kicked off the reserved grant of share incentive plan in
2022 and 25.8 million share options granted to 20 employees
— to attract, motivate, and retain top-performers and maximize
their potential. It is worth knowing that employees who
received the most recent bonuses have an average age of 38,
denoting a promising inflow of young talents into the middle
management with whom the Company will set up a broader
platform of personal development underpinned by more
lucrative perks. Scrutinizing the outcomes of the share incentive
plan for the first time in 2022, we are delighted to find out that
all objectives have been accomplished thanks to our concerted
efforts. In the next step, we will deliver on our promise of
generous share options for top-performers commensurate with
the fulfillment of their key performance indicators.
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Nonetheless, we still face an arduous road ahead in terms
of consolidating and bolstering the ranks. For example, the
personal growth of our employees is not fast and sufficient
enough to keep pace with the Company’s advancements, with
a dire shortfall of talents with expertise in core areas; we are
also just halfway through developing a training system, and
the training methodologies adopted thus far are grabbed
from the fruit of others’ experiences; our distribution model is
taking shape with a generally well-grounded underlying logic,
yet the distribution strategy should be tailored to different
lines of business and roles, and synchronized with the actual
market environment. Also, the organization should become
more progressive, resilient, and adept at overcoming hardships
and challenges. In particular, our middle management, the
C-suite, along with staff on the mid— and back-stages, should
pay heed to what is going on in the front line. By acting on
our mission and duties, and never shunning away from our
responsibilities, we take a proactive stance in mitigating, if not
eliminating, the formalities and red tapes of the organization.
These problems, often deemed a bout of growing pains, must
be notified and seriously dealt with before the Company can
experience its growth sprout. To address the existing problems
and navigating future challenges, we must keep abreast of the
times, consolidate and fine-tune the talent echelon, and give
top-performers a stronger sense of gain with a well-developed
system of incentives.
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CHAPTER FIVE CONCLUSION

A business is like a living organism in the way it corrals groups
of people toward fulfilling its mission by making informed
business decisions, renewing the profit model, and creating
added value. It is gratifying that all employees of the Company
have always been passionate and loyal to the Company’s
mission, which has enabled the Company to achieve the goal of
being a leading enterprise in several segments of infrastructure,
and has formed a core team with combat effectiveness at
both ends of infrastructure FIME and asset operation. All
living organisms are subject to the periodic law. Our successful
strategic transformation over the last five years have imbued
this venerable company with new life and opened up the next
phase of its journey. Recalling in the early stages of corporate
restructuring, | feel immensely indebted to the investors who
put their faith in us. Without their trust and help, the Company
would never have made it this far.

As REITs survive and thrive in China, we face a once-in-a-
lifetime opportunity that lets Shoucheng Holdings flex its
muscles on a stupendous trillion-yuan marketplace. Embracing
what may be the decade's greatest opportunity, we will press
ahead with the continual improvement of China’s infrastructure
assets and services in the hope of aligning our business goals
with social value so that our peers can follow suit, our clients
are well serviced, our employees thrive, our shareholders attain
a sustained delivery of yields, and, most importantly, all REITs in
China will prosper.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Zhao Tianyang, aged 42, was appointed an Executive
Director and the Chairman of the Board of Directors of the
Company on 6 January 2018 and is also a member and the
chairman of the Nomination Committee of the Company. He
holds a Bachelor degree in science and a Master degree in
economics from Peking University and an Executive Master of
Business Administration degree from Cheung Kong Graduate
School of Business. Mr. Zhao joined Shougang Group Co., Ltd.
(EEBAERAT > “"Shougang Group”) in December
2011. He is a deputy general manager of Shougang Group,
a director of Shougang Holding (Hong Kong) Limited
("Shougang Holding”), and the vice chairman and general
manager of Beijing Shougang Fund Co., Ltd. Gt REHES
BBRAB > “Shougang Fund”). Both Shougang Holding and
Shougang Fund are wholly-owned subsidiaries of Shougang
Group. Each of Shougang Group, Shougang Holding and
Shougang Fund is a substantial shareholder of the Company
within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance. Mr. Zhao worked in The China Securities Regulatory
Commission, Beijing Municipal Commission of Development
and Reform and Peking University. He has extensive experience
in company operation and management, investment and capital
operation.

Mr. Xu Liang, aged 57, was appointed as an Executive Director
of the Company on 21 May 2018. He graduated from Fudan
University with a Bachelor degree in Statistics and obtained
a Master degree in Business Administration from Tsinghua
University and is a senior accountant. Mr. Xu joined the group
of Shougang Group in 1988 and held various senior positions.
He is the managing director of Shougang Holding. Mr. Xu is
also an executive director and the chairman of Global Digital
Creations Holdings Limited, a company listed on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).
He was an executive director and the chairman (resigned on
5 August 2022), and the managing director (resigned on 29
March 2021) of Capital Industrial Financial Services Group
Limited (formerly known as Shougang Concord Grand (Group)
Limited), a company listed on the Stock Exchange. Mr. Xu has
extensive experience in management.
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Mr. Li Wei, aged 49, was appointed as an Executive Director
of the Company on 22 May 2020 and is also a member of
the Nomination Committee of the Company. He was also
appointed as the President of the Company on 9 July 2020.
Mr. Li obtained a Bachelor degree in Agriculture from Beijing
University of Agriculture in 1997 and a Master degree in
Management from Renmin University of China in 2008 and is
a senior political worker and an economist. He is an executive
director and the general manager of E Park (Beijing) Technology
Limited (82128 (It R) AL AR A7) and the chairman and the
general manager of E Park Investment Management Co., Ltd.
(B=E (IbR) KREEEHBIR LB, both are subsidiaries of
the Company, and was the president of regional development
and service group of Shougang Fund. Mr. Li is a director of
certain subsidiaries of the Company. Prior to joining Shougang
Fund, Mr. Li held various important positions in various
departments of Beijing Municipal Committee of the Communist
Youth League and held senior positions in Beijing International
Technical Cooperation Center. He has extensive experience in
coordinating company’s daily operation and management.

Ms. Zhang Meng, aged 41, was appointed as an Executive
Director of the Company on 22 May 2020. She obtained a
Bachelor degree in Laws from China University of Political
Science and Law in 2003 and a Master degree in Laws from
University of Tubingen in 2008. Ms. Zhang is the chairman
and the general manager of Shoucheng Rongshi (Beijing) Fund
Management Co., Ltd. (B2 A tR) ESEEAERAT
“Shoucheng Rongshi”)and was a deputy general manager
of the Company, the controller of risk control department of
Beijing Jingxi Venture Capital Fund Management Co., Ltd. (3t
RRAAREREETEE AR AT "Jingxi Venture”) and
the controller of risk management department of Shougang
Fund. Both Shoucheng Rongshi and Jingxi Venture are principal
subsidiaries of the Company engaging in management of
private fund. Ms. Zhang is a director of certain subsidiaries
of the Company. Prior to joining the Group and Shougang
Fund, Ms. Zhang was a solicitor in Beijing Jia Yuan Law Firm
where she participated in a number of mega projects involving
mergers and acquisitions, listing, financing, fund raising and
capital restructuring activities.
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Li Hao, aged 41, was appointed as a Non-executive
Director of the Company on 27 September 2018 and became
the Vice Chairman of the Board of Directors on 15 February
2022. He holds a Bachelor degree from Dalian University of
Technology and a Master of Business Administration degree in
Finance from Waseda University, Japan. Mr. Li has been with
ORIX Corporation (“ORIX"”, a substantial shareholder of the
Company) since October 2007. He is currently the executive
officer (responsible for Great China Group) and general
manager of Greater China Group at ORIX, a diversified financial
services company and whose shares are listed on both Tokyo
Stock Exchange and New York Stock Exchange. Mr. Li also
serves as the director and president of each of ORIX (China)
Investment Company Limited and ORIX Asia Capital Limited,
both of which are wholly-owned subsidiaries of ORIX. He is also
a non-executive director of each of Beijing Energy International
Holding Co., Ltd. and Haichang Ocean Park Holdings Ltd., both
are listed on the Stock Exchange.

Mr. Liu Jingwei, aged 55, was appointed as a Non-executive
Director of the Company on 6 January 2018 and is also
a member of the Audit Committee of the Company. He
graduated from the School of Economics of Beijing Forestry
University in 1989 and from Shanghai Advanced Institute of
Finance with a Master degree in 2016. Mr. Liu is a PRC Certified
Public Accountant. He currently serves as a senior partner of
Shinewing Certified Public Accountants and is an external
director of Shougang Group. Mr. Liu is also an independent
non-executive director of China Nonferrous Mining Corporation
Limited, which is listed on the Stock Exchange, an independent
director of each of Guiyang Longmaster Information &
Technology Co., Ltd. and Beiling StarNeto Technology Co.,
Ltd., both are listed on Shenzhen Stock Exchange, and an
independent director of Hubei Huagiang High-tech Co., Ltd.,
a company listed on Shanghai Stock Exchange. He was an
independent non-executive director of AVIC Joy Holdings (HK)
Limited (resigned on 31 January 2022), a company listed on
the Stock Exchange and an independent director of Shanghai
Yaohua Pilkington Glass Group Co., Ltd. (retired on 23 July
2021), a company listed on Shanghai Stock Exchange.
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Mr. Ho Gilbert Chi Hang, aged 46, was appointed as a Non-
executive Director of the Company on 21 May 2018 and is
also a member of the Audit Committee of the Company. He
holds a Bachelor of Commerce degree and a Bachelor of Laws
degree from University of Sydney, Australia and was admitted
as a solicitor in New South Wales, Australia and England and
Wales and as a solicitor and barrister in the High Court of
Australia. Mr. Ho is also a fellow member of CPA Australia.
He is a member of the General Committee of the Chamber
of Hong Kong Listed Companies, Deputy Chairperson of CPA
Australia Greater Bay Area Committee, a member of the China
Committee of Hong Kong General Chamber of Commerce, a
standing committee member of the Youth Federation of Inner
Mongolia and a vice chairman of Inner Mongolia & Hong Kong
Youth Exchange Association. He was a committee member
of the Industry Advisory Committee of Insurance Authority
from June 2020 to May 2022 and a committee member of the
Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference of Shenyang
from 2007 to 2021. Mr. Ho is the executive director and chief
operating officer of NWS Holdings Limited, a substantial
shareholder of the Company, a non-executive director of
Wai Kee Holdings Limited and an independent non-executive
director of each of Kam Hing International Holdings Limited
and Asia Allied Infrastructure Holdings Limited, all being listed
on the Stock Exchange. He was the senior investment director
of New World Development Company Limited, a substantial
shareholder of the Company and a company listed on the
Stock Exchange, and an executive director of New World
Strategic Investment Limited. Mr. Ho was also a partner of an
international law firm Fried, Frank, Harris, Shriver & Jacobson
LLP. He was an independent non-executive director of Hailiang
International Holdings Limited (resigned on 1 September 2020),
which is listed on the Stock Exchange. Mr. Ho has extensive
experience in the area of corporate management, investments,
corporate finance, merger and acquisition transactions and
international brand and retail management.
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EEBEN

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Dr. Wang Xin, aged 45, was appointed as an Independent
Non-executive Director of the Company on 18 May 2018, and
is also a member and the chairman of the Audit Committee
of the Company and a member of each of the Nomination
Committee and the Remuneration Committee of the Company.
He received his Ph.D. degree in Accounting from Duke
University in 2006 and obtained a Bachelor degree and a
Master degree in Accounting from Tsinghua University in 1999
and 2001 respectively. Dr. Wang is a CPA of CPA Australia.
He is a professor of accounting at the Faculty of Business and
Economics, The University of Hong Kong (“HKU"). Dr. Wang
joined HKU in 2011 and was awarded a tenured position by
HKU for his excellent academic performance in 2014. Before
he joined HKU, Dr. Wang worked at The Chinese University of
Hong Kong from 2006 to 2011. He has research interests in the
fields of executive compensation, financial disclosure quality,
corporate governance and insider trading. Dr. Wang's papers
were published on various world leading academic journals,
such as Journal of Accounting and Economics, The Accounting
Review, Contemporary Accounting Research and Review of
Accounting Studies. Dr. Wang has teaching experience in
several accounting courses, including Introductory Financial
Accounting, Intermediate Financial Accounting | and II, and
Management Accounting. He also teaches (as one of co-
instructors) the Ph.D. course of Research Methods for Business
Studies.
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Mr. Choi Fan Keung Vic, aged 58, was appointed as an
Independent Non-executive Director of the Company on
18 May 2018 and is also a member of each of the Audit
Committee and the Remuneration Committee of the Company.
He obtained a Bachelor degree, Postgraduate Certificate and
a Master degree in Laws from HKU in 1997, 1998 and 2001
respectively. Mr. Choi is a solicitor of the High Court of Hong
Kong. He also serves as a consultant at Howse Williams. Mr.
Choi served as deputy head of compliance, area compliance
officer in China and head of compliance with HSBC Bank
(China) Co. Ltd., where he managed over 160 compliance
officers and was responsible for regulatory compliance and
prevention and control of financial crime in over 60 cities in
China. He worked at Clifford Chance and Herbert Smith and
was specialized in compliance, anti-money laundering, anti-
fraud and corporate finance and other advisory work. Mr. Choi
served in the Hong Kong Police Force and was a senior
inspector. He has over 30 years of experience in compliance
management, prevention and control of commercial crime and
investigation, and has extensive experience in legal practice
and, crime investigation and prosecution.
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Mr. Deng Yougao, aged 56, was appointed as an Independent
Non-executive Director of the Company on 18 May 2018 and
is also a member of each of the Audit Committee and the
Nomination Committee of the Company. He obtained a Master
degree in Business Economics from Institute of Finance and
Economics of Jiangxi CIFEM LT, now known as Jiangxi
University of Finance and Economics) in 1994 and a Bachelor
degree in Shipbuilding Engineering from Harbin Shipbuilding
Engineering Institute (MGEEMM ILEL2ET > now known
as Harbin Engineering University) in 1988. Mr. Deng is the
chairman of Shenzhen Henggu Nano Technology Co. Ltd. (&
JMEE & KRB B E/AT), the executive director and the
general manager of Shengshi Henggu Holdings (Shenzhen)
Co. Ltd. (BRHIEEZER CRII) BRAB), the managing
partner of Shengshi Henggu (Shenzhen) Administrative Center
(Limited Partnership) (BRtEE CFYI) EER L (BREE)),
a director of Henggu Yuanhui (Huizhou) Nano Technology Co.,
Ltd. (IBEER (BMN) # KB BRA8)) and a supervisor
of Shanghai Tianyun Nano Technology Co., Ltd. (E/&XKZEH
KB BRAT). He is also an independent non-executive
director of Success Dragon International Holdings Limited, a
company listed on the Stock Exchange. Mr. Deng has numerous
experiences in different roles in various companies in different
industries.
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Ms. Zhang Quanling, aged 49, was appointed as an
Independent Non-executive Director of the Company on 6
January 2018 and is also a member and the chairlady of the
Remuneration Committee of the Company and a member of
each of the Audit Committee and the Nomination Committee
of the Company. She holds a Bachelor degree in Arts. Ms.
Zhang joined China Central Television in 1997 and has hosted
the famous programmes such as “Oriental Horizon” and
“Focus Interview"”. She participated in numerous news live
coverage and was awarded the “Golden Microphone Awards”,
the “Golden Eagle Awards”, the “Fan Changjiang Journalism
Award”, the most prestigious journalism award in China, and
the 19th “Top Ten Outstanding Chinese Youths”. Ms. Zhang is
the founding partner of Ziniu Fund (4 &%) and the chairlady
of Cool Youth (Tianjin) Culture Communication Co., Ltd. (13
D (R2) XIEEIBEATRAT) . She has extensive experience
in news media, brand building and strategic planning.

Ms. Zhuge Wenjing, aged 45, was appointed as an
Independent Non-executive Director of the Company on 28
May 2021 and is also a member of the Audit Committee of
the Company. She obtained a Bachelor degree from Renmin
University of China and a Master of Business Administration
degree from each of the Kellogg School of Business at
Northwestern University in the United States and the Hong
Kong University of Science and Technology School respectively.
She is currently a director of GLP China Holdings Limited
("GLP") which is a public limited company incorporated in
Hong Kong, an executive vice chairman of GLP China, the
chairman of GLP Finance, and the chairman and president
of GLP Capital, who is responsible for strategic planning,
investment and financing, legal affairs, internal audit and
human resources management in China. Ms. Zhuge is also
responsible for the business planning and overall operation
of GLP Finance and GLP Capital. She has served as the co-
president and chief financial officer of GLP China responsible
for fund management, capital allocation, mergers and
acquisitions and strategic cooperation in China, as well as
financial and human resources management. Prior to joining
GLP, Ms. Zhuge worked in Morgan Stanley Asset Management
Company and Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu.

DIRECTORS' BIOGRAPHIES
EE@{N

REREL L4958 R2018F1H6eREZRT
BAEREBUIFERITES > WA AR5 5
ZEEMERTIHE URARBDEZEZESR
RRLEEEHME BIEABXELTEURY
THR1997FMAFRRERE  BEFMELIEE
TRARZE R TERGHIZ-H2HETKRE
FEBESEERE BERTEEAR TS
ER RPEFTERANESRESEREIR &
F19ETHFE+ABHEF cRELTHRAR
G EFAREBARESVE (R8) XbE
BERLABDEER - REMBEERS REE
R BRI E I mAREERK-

HMENXFR L 455 R2021F5H28HEZ
RARARBDBUFATEST UALKQAE
ZEEEREB - FRETEARAKZS+2
i~ EFEALABYERARRERE BRI
AETHEEEZETZ2M HREAZRET
EZERBRAR (—EREBRILNARER
PNE TERY) EE - ERTTPEEEHE
EER SR EHESRAERTEAE
EEFRAH AETHEMNHRES - RER
MEEZF ABEZRANEREES 4
Bt nastiicmME R EANE
BREMERELS HYETETRTTHRE
BMEANKEEMBE aETEHENES
EE-BEARE - HERS MBS IEUREM
HEANBREES T e AL R HTAT > 3%
BATEBRERTAFNEESERIREY
GBS R -

BIRERARAE 202264 5% 29



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEERAADN

COMPANY OVERVIEW

The Group aims to improve infrastructure assets and become
the pioneer of infrastructure real estate investment trusts
("REITs”) in China. With the Group's strong FIME capabilities
and rich experience in asset operation, the Group is seizing the
opportunities in the era of Public Offering REITs in China, as
such, the Group helps to build new infrastructure for China,
and improve the efficiency for the infrastructure assets industry
in China.

The Group continues to serve the “full-cycle management”
of infrastructure assets, relying on two core capabilities of
FIME, which refers to fundraising, investment, management
and exit and asset operation. The Group aims to solve the
historical drawbacks including large initial investment, slow
payback and inefficient operation by enhancing the liquidity
and operating efficiency of the underlying assets. At the front
stage, the Group develops and cultivates projects through
the establishment and management of Public Offering REITs
industry development funds. At the middle stage, the Group
uses mature and rich capabilities of platform operation to
improve asset quality and efficiency, and receives capital returns
through the Public Offering REITs platform, and finally forms a
reinvestment through Public Offering REITs strategic placement
investment funds, and realises comprehensive enhancement in
asset value through four-point-one-line business loop.

2022 was the third year since the COVID-19 pandemic lasted,
and it was also the year that hit the industry the hardest.
The Group’s various business operations have been affected
to varying degrees. Luckily, relying on the accumulation of
business scale, operating capabilities, capital and resource
strength over the past years, the Group has built a relatively
stable business moat, which has enabled the Group to maintain
a rapid growth of business trend under the great pressure of
the pandemic.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The Group recorded revenue of HK$1,600 million in 2022,
representing an increase of 34% compared to last year. The
Group recorded a profit attributable to owners of the Company
of HK$922 million for the year ended 31 December 2022,
compared to a loss attributable to owners of the Company of
HK$1,095 million due to the asset disposal last year. The return
on equity is 9.2%, which hit a record high.

In 2022, Beijing State-owned Capital Operation and
Management Company Limited* (the “BSCOMC") (IJE5E
BEREESEIEAR/AT) has become one of the strategic
shareholders of the Group based on the approbation of the
Group's strategy and business, as well as the confidence in the
Group’s long-term and rapid development in the future. The
BSCOMC is known as “Beijing Temasek” and is also one of the
state-owned capital operation institutions with the largest asset
scale and the best profitability in China. With the resources
support in terms of infrastructure assets from BSCOMC, the
Group is potentially to provide services for more than half of
the infrastructure asset holders in Beijing to promote closer
linkage between infrastructure assets in Beijing and the Public
Offering REITs market in China.

At the same time, Sunshine Life Insurance Corporation Limited
(“Sunshine Life"),

company in China, has also become one of the strategic

which is the most dynamic insurance

shareholders of the Group. The Group is looking forward to
have much more and much effective exploration and valued
cooperation with Sunshine Life in various fields, including
Public Offering REITs and industry funds in the future.

*  for identification purpose only
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEERAADN

KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS REVIEW RSB TSI 1E L &

For the year ended
31 December

HE12B31BLEE
2022 2021
HKS$ Million HK$ Million
EBEEET B EET
Revenue WA 1,600 1,195
Including: Revenue from FIME Hrh EERBEUWA 1,017 558
Revenue from asset operating BEEZERA 583 637
Adjusted EBITDA* EBEEEBITDA* 1,466 947
Operating profit S =pingil 1,346 569
Profit/(loss) attributable to the owners of KABEB ANEL
the Company wmA (E518) 922 (1,095)
For the year ended
31 December
HENAMMBLEE
2022 2021
HK cents HK cents
23111} =3/l
Basic earnings/(loss) per share EREXARBR (FBB) 12.97 (15.19)
Diluted earnings/(loss) per share SKRHERA (BE) 12.97 (15.19)
As at 31 December
128318
2022 2021
HKS$ Million HK$ Million
EBEEET B EET
Total assets BE®RE 13,656 13,382
Net assets BEEZE 10,024 10,228
Asset — Liability ratio BEEBEX 26.6% 23.6%
Debt equity ratio” BEEARLZER 10.5% 7.4%
* The definition of Adjusted EBITDA is set out in page 36 of this  * B RSB HIEBITDARY E Z B F R KR EF
report. 365 2 A% 5H EFIEBITDA
a The definition of debt equity ratio is set out in page 37 of this 2 BHAEEER LTI TR EHREE37
report HZEEEKLE
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FINANCIAL REVIEW

The year ended 31 December 2022 compared to the year
ended 31 December 2021:

Revenue and Cost of Sales

The Group’s revenue mainly consists of revenue from FIME and
revenue from asset operation. Revenue from FIME includes
comprehensive income generated from the consultancy of
Public Offering REITs, the management and investment of
Public Offering REITs development funds, and the management
and investment of strategic placement funds. With the
rapid expansion of the Group’s asset management scale, the
revenue from FIME significantly increased in 2022. The revenue
from asset operation includes the industry-based operation
services, as well as the service income of various technologies,
consulting, research, innovation and value-adding and other
services generated surround the core infrastructure asset
services.

The Group recorded revenue of HK$1,600 million this year, up
34% from HK$1,195 million last year, including:

Revenue from FIME was HK$1,017 million, with an increase
of 82% compared to same period of last year. The substantial
increase in revenue from FIME is due to further expansion of
the Group's assets under management. The expansion of the
scale of assets under management has brought the Group
stable management fee income in long term. Meanwhile,
the mature projects and the exit of some funds continue to
contribute significant excess returns to the Group in 2022,
and strategic investments in Public Offering REITs have also
contributed significant investment income to the Group.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEERAADN

Revenue from asset operation was HK$583 million, with
a decrease of 8.5% compared to same period of last year.
Revenue from asset operation declined in 2022 is caused by
the impact of the epidemic. During the period of epidemic
control, the revenue scale especially for the parking lots in large
transportation hubs such as airports was precipitously declined.
With the overall easing of the epidemic and the recovery of
the macro economy in the new year, the operating income of
transportation hub projects is recovering at a multiplied growth
rate. The Group is confident that with the further expansion
of the operating asset scale and the recovery of the passenger
flow, the revenue from asset operation will achieve rapid
growth.

The Group recorded cost of sales of HK$535 million this
year, representing a decrease of 17.4% compared to HK$648
million last year. Gross profit margin for the year was 66.5%,
representing an increase of absolute value of 20.7% compared
to 45.8% in last year. The increase in gross profit was
attributable to the significant increase in revenue from FIME.
On the other hand, the team has worked hard to enhance the
internal operation management system, and the operation
efficiency was further enhanced, resulting in a significant cost
reduction and increase in efficiency. The overall gross profit of
the business was increased, although the revenue from asset
operation decreased.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Non-HKFRSs Measures

Profit/(loss) before income tax plus non-controlling interest,
finance costs, provision for impairment in an investment,
depreciation, and amortisation is defined as the adjusted
EBITDA (the “Adjusted EBITDA") of the Group.

The total borrowings divided by capital and reserves
attributable to owners of the Company is defined as the debt
equity ratio (the "Debt equity ratio”) of the Group.

The Adjusted EBITDA and Debt equity ratio are used as
additional financial measures to supplement the Group's
consolidated financial statements which are presented in
accordance with HKFRSs.

The Group believes that the Adjusted EBITDA and Debt
equity ratio provide meaningful supplemental information
regarding the Group's performance and the core operating
results, enhances the overall understanding of the Group’s
past performance and future prospects and allows for greater
visibility with respect to key metrics used by the Group’s
management in its financial and operational decision-making.
It would help the investors of the Company and others
understand and evaluate the Group’s consolidated results
of operations in the same manner as management and in
comparing financial results across different accounting periods.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEERAADN

Adjusted EBITDA

The Adjusted EBITDA is presented because they are used by
management to evaluate operating performance. The Adjusted
EBITDA attempts to represent cash profit generated by the core
operations by stripping out the 1) non-cash items, including
depreciation, amortisation and provision for impairment of
investment in an investment; 2) income tax expenses depending
on different tax rates in different countries; 3) finance costs
depending on the Group’s capital structure and not directly
attributable to the Group’s core operating results; 4) non-
controlling interest, which is not directly attributable to owners
of the Company.

During the year, the Adjusted EBITDA of the Group amounted
to HK$1,466 million, representing an increase of 54.8% as
compared to HK$947 million last year.

The following table reconciles the Group's profit/(loss) before
income tax to adjusted EBITDA for the years presented:

42 AEEEBITDA

KAEEBITDANZF TR AEEEFERAZSE
B IE R AR E R - KRFAEEBITDAE S
Hegg1) ERERXZ - CRERME - HHEHNEE
—IBEREREERK; 2) BUARAEERARE
MEPMEBMER; 3) AR AEBEARLE
BNV BERANMEFEErEAER ZZ
DEBEENER ; Uk4) FTEEFENA
NEVEB AN IR o

REE > REBKHEEBITDAS B 14 6612
T WL EFE 2B 47878 EFA54.8% ©

TR 2B AEBBERFTFRA &

F, (B518) BASHEREBITDARIHIER ©

For the year ended
31 December

#E=12831ALFE
2022 2021
HKS$ Million HK$ Million
BEHET B EET
Profit/(loss) before income tax BREFEMAER], (B518) 1,183 (989)
1. Non-controlling interests 1. IR ER (8) 18
2. Finance costs 2. B 102 74
3. Provision for impairment of an investment 3. & —BHREREIELK - 1,615
4. Gain on disposal of assets classified 4 EERERENEEY
as held for sale & 17) -
5. Depreciation of property, plant and 5.ME BB RREITE
equipment 12 7
6. Depreciation of right-of-use assets 6.FREEEINE 163 187
7. Amortisation of other non-current assets 7. EfhIE R 8 & E # 84 31 35
Adjusted EBITDA 4R HEEBITDA 1,466 947
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Debt equity ratio

The Debt equity ratio is presented because it is used by
management to evaluate how the Group utilise its borrowings
for financing the business and operations for growth.

In 2022, the Debt equity ratio of the Group is 10.5%,
representing an increase of absolute value of 3.1% as
compared to last year.

The following table shows the Group’s total borrowings and
capital and reserves attributable to owners of the Company for
the years presented:

EEERAEAD

BEESLEX

ITREREALEXERAERERARLR
RAGERNAANREBRAEBNEER
BEUBHREE.

2022F  REBRBEEKRLEETA105% B
BEREFELEA3.1%-e

TREIN 2B A EBBERBERE
NEER ANBERE R #E

For the year ended
31 December

H#E=12831ALFE

2022 2021
HKS$ Million HK$ Million
BEHET B EETT
Total borrowings B AR{E 1,047 753
Including: Borrowings — non-current Hr B —FERE 465 574
Borrowings — current B —ImEn 582 179

Capital and reserves attributable to TATERE NEGR AR G#E
owners of the Company 9,928 10,141
Debt Equity Ratio BEERLEE 10.5% 7.4%

Finance costs

During the year, finance costs of the Group amounted to
HK$102 million, representing an increase of 38% compared
to last year. The finance costs are mainly attributable to the
interests on lease liabilities derived from the adoption of HKFRS
16 Leases and the interest on the borrowings. The increase in
finance costs was primarily attributed to the increase in the
asset operation scale, which resulted in the increase in scale of
borrowings and finance costs correspondingly during the year.

RAFE A

FARAEEMBRAREBE2ERT  BE
FLEF38% MHBEMATESRRMNEBY
BREEAB1RBEEMELEZHEARR
BERERFB -MEREEMEBRNEE
BERBRR NEGETRREM ERHH
P A TGN

BIRERARAE 202264 5% 37



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEERAADN

Holding other business assets
Shougang Resources

Shougang Resources is a company incorporated in Hong Kong
with limited liability and the issued shares of which are listed on
the main board of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”) with stock code 639 and is a major
hard coking coal producer in China.

The carrying amount of the investments in Shougang
Resources was reclassified as assets held for sale in January
2021. In January 2022, due to the disposal of a part of the
equity interests in Shougang Resources held by the Group,
the accounting method was adjusted and it was reclassified
as financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive
income. During the year, the Group recognised a profit of
HK$17 million from the investment in Shougang Resources
due to an adjustment in the accounting method, and received
cash proceeds of HK$1,440 million from the sale. There
was a provision for impairment of the Group's holding of
shares in Shougang Resources having taken into account the
recent market price and cost to sell of Shougang Resources
last year. The total amount of provision for impairment was
approximately HK$1,615 million.

The investment return derived from Shougang Resources for the
year was HK$406 million and increased by 55.6% compared to
HK$261 million of investment return derived from Shougang
Resources last year.

Taxation

Provision for income tax expense amounting to approximately
HK$269 million was made for the year ended 31 December
2022, while provision for income tax expense of approximately
HK$124 million was made for the last year.

Income tax expenses mainly include the enterprise income tax

calculated at a tax rate mainly of 25% for the Group’s major
subsidiaries incorporated in China.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

REVIEW OF OPERATIONS

The Group adheres to the core business concept of “precision
investment + lean operation”. On the basis of focusing on
investment and operation of various infrastructure assets
with long-term value, the Group comprehensively uses Public
Offering REITs to serve customers in depth by integrating two
characteristics of Public Offering REITs including activating
assets of building new investing and financing model and
improving efficiency of asset operation. Relying on leading
operation and management experience and efficient resource
integration capabilities, the Group has gradually formed full-
chain service capabilities such as FIME and asset operation
management in the infrastructure assets field. Please refer to
note 5 to the consolidated financial statements for the segment
information.

FIME

The FIME provided by the Group, provides a full ecological
chain service of development funds with investment and
operation — Consultancy service of Public Offering REITs —
Investment of Public Offering REITs strategic placement to
achieve both of the growth in quality and return of customers’
assets through the efficient acquisition of long-term “potential
assets”.

The Group established an industrial development fund to
introduce long-cycle funds for customers. On one hand, the
Group strengthens active management, cultivating “potential
assets” to obtain stable fund management income; on the
other hand, the Group links the underlying assets with the
capital market, providing high-quality project reserves for the
Public Offering REITs platform through the fund model. Most
of the Group’s investors are long-term investors, such as first-
class domestic and foreign industrial institutions, insurance
companies, provincial and municipal government funds.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEERAADN

At the same time, relying on domestic and overseas compound
qualifications and rich experience of asset consultancy service,
the Group assists the entire process of Public Offering REITs
consultancy service and provides top financing services for
original stakeholders. The Group is the leading participant
in industry and has a relatively large advantage in the field
of Public Offering REITs consultancy service. The Group is
confident in expanding its advantages in the future. In 2021,
the Group assisted Shougang Group Company Limited in
issuing its first green and environmental protection asset Public
Offering REITs — Shougang Green Energy. In 2022, the Group
continues to assist more than 20 clients in preparing for the
issuance of Public Offering REITs, and the corresponding scale
of revitalised target asset exceeded RMB100 billion.

In addition, the Group is strongly optimistic about the prospects
and returns of Public Offering REITs market in China, and has
placed vast resources in strategic placement of Public Offering
REITs. Relying on the excellent performance of Public Offering
REITs market in China, as a Hong Kong Securities and Futures
Commission Type 9 (Asset Management) license holder, the
Group has managed the first fund in Hong Kong for strategic
investment in Public Offering REITs products in China with a
scale of US$200 million. At the same time, the Group packaged
four self-owned parking lots with property rights projects as the
underlying assets and issued the first parking assets quasi-REITs
product in Shenzhen Stock Exchange.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Asset Operation

With the
has constantly innovated the product category and expanded

“investment+operation” driving mode, the Group
the business coverage. The Group has built a whole cycle and
chain with comprehensive capacity of planning and design,
investment construction, management and operation, and
innovation and value-added. The Group has adhered to the
grid asset investment and has developed rapidly in four most
dynamic development core regions, Beijing-Tianjin-Hebei

Region, Southeast Region, Greater Bay Area Region and
Chengyu region. The regional companies have acquired various
infrastructure assets which are much efficient and with longer

operating value.

The Group revitalises the parking assets and obtains the long-
term operating value of the parking lots through precise
investment capabilities. In Chongging of Chengyu Region, the
Group has obtained the ownership of parking spaces in many
popular commercial districts, including Chongging Longfor
Times Paradise Street Project* (IEEMEMRAXEIER]),
Chongqging Yuanzhu Ill Project* ((EBMmRE=ZHER])
and Chongging Guanyin Bridge Baile Street Project* (&
THREBAEXLEHER)),

density in Chongqging core area, as well as further enhancing

increasing the Group’s parking-space

the Group’s brand influence in Chongging urban area. In the
Greater Bay Area Region, the Group seised the opportunity to
complete the acquisition of a high-quality parking asset, the
Guangzhou Foshan Vanke Golden Mile Central Project* (/&
N L ERI S A RIER ), which has become a long-term
and stable source of income. The Group continuously use “lean
operation + technological innovation” to create incremental
value and provide consumers with fast, convenient and

comfortable parking services and related derivative services.

*  fFor identification purpose only
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEERAADN

Relying on the rich project experience accumulated in airport
parking and the professional, digitalised and standardised
asset operation capabilities, the Group continually to provide
travelers with a comfortable parking experience. During the
year, the Group has successfully won the bid of one of the
top-ten annual passenger flow excessive region transportation
hub in China, the Xi'an Xianyang International Airport East
Terminal Parking Building Project* (“Xi'an Xianyang Airport
Project”) (AL M RIGEIRIKISRMILIBFEEIZIER ) in
Southeast Region, and obtained a total of 8 years of operation
rights for not less than 8,000 parking spaces. Xi‘an Xianyang
Airport Project is another project the Group participates in
the construction and operation management after the Beijing
Daxing International Airport Project in Beijing-Tianjin-Hebe
Region, which further consolidated the Group’s leading position
in the field of airport parking.

REBKITERBEEANERNEEIER
BBEUREEC - HEL - EELTHNEEEE
BN BEABALTERESTEN(EE
BoAEREFARNTEFEAFHRESH
i+ — KB & 5 18 AR B B PR 35 0 P
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BAAEREEERE IR A EBEMEE
BEEBEBE2HERTESEENFEE
IBIEE  E—FHFEQAEKIBEEEEN
BESBHNAL o

Xi’an Xianyang International Airport East Terminal Parking Building Project*
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*  For identification purpose only
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The operation system with the core of lean operations, cross-
border technology and value-added innovative business, which
helps the sustainable enhancement of the efficiency and value
realisation of infrastructure assets, is the cornerstone of the
Group's asset operation capability. The Group has accumulated
mature product models and rich operating experience in the
categories of basic assets, which focus on the overall balance
of profitability and stability. Based on the characteristics of each
type of infrastructure assets, the Group has targeted its asset
operation and efficiency to enhance the vitality of the assets,
and at the same time, technology empowerment can be used
as a bridge to continuously strengthen its ability to enhance the
added value of the assets and provide diversified services to the
asset holders by cross-border grafting of value-added services
through scenario innovation, thereby optimizing the yield
of the assets. The Group obtains high-quality infrastructure
assets through self-supporting operation, joint operation,
fund investment and so on, and it actively exports the Group’s
comprehensive management and operation services for the
asset holder and the original stakeholders of Public Offering
REITs assets.

Even though the epidemic control was the most stringent with
the largest impact and the passenger flow was greatly affected
during 2022, the Group achieved a significant enhancement
in the financial performance. Such achievements are mainly
derived from the Group’s ability in breaking through the
asset category, breaking the asset boundary, promoting the
cross-border integration of infrastructure assets, excavating
the incremental income of infrastructure assets beyond the
traditional perception, and realizing the value remodeling and
re-pricing of infrastructure assets.

*  For identification purpose only
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEERAADN

The Group has successfully completed and put of the 6-floor
parking building in Beijing Chaoyang District Anzhen Hospital
Project* (TIERm ez &2 S8 FIER]) in Beijing of Beijing-
Tianjin-Hebei Region, which is located within the Third Ring
Road of Beijing, into operation before Lunar Festival. The
project added not less than 600 parking spaces. During the
holiday period of Lunar Festival, not less than 6,000 vehicles
and not less than 9,000 patients and family members were
served, which greatly alleviated the problems of the shortage
of hospital parking resources and the difficulty of parking for
patients. The new parking spaces have also improved the office
environment of medical workers and the feeling of patients.

The parking building of Chengdu Gaoshenggiao Station Parking
Building Project in Chengyu Region* (A& & 852 ES
{SEEM8IEH ) was invested and constructed by the Group in
Wuhou District, Chengdu, which is praised as the first “five-
most” parking building in Chengdu; the project is widely
praised for having 1.) the smallest floor area (only 738 square
meters), 2.) the largest single size (not less than 300 new
parking spaces), 3.) the shortest parking time (no more than
100 seconds on average), 4.) the highest degree of intelligence
and 5.) the richest products. It became a benchmark for
solving urban traffic and travel problems, it caused far-reaching
publicity and demonstration effects in the national parking
industry and even the competent functional departments in
Chengdu.
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Chengdu Gaoshenggiao Station Parking Building Project*
R SHBIEEEIEEE

*  For identification purpose only
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The Chang’an Mills project* (XTI [&1IEH)in Beijing of
Beijing-Tianjin-Hebei Region, which is a model of industrial park
reconstruction in Beijing and in China, covers 200,000 square
meters and has 23 single buildings. The project attracted more
than 70 commercial brands and corporate customers, providing
more than 20 services formats such as office entrepreneurship,
car purchase, parent-child education, and catering services.
The parking building of Beijing Daxing International Airport in
Beijing-Tianjin-Hebei Region has reached cooperative relations
with more than 60 commercial brands, covering nearly 17
service formats, providing nearly 10,000 square meters of
supporting service area, and introducing super charging
stations of five high-end automobile brands, including Tesla,
BMW, and Cadillac, in which car owners can utilise their
spare time in the supporting service area during parking and
charging. At the same time, the Group also installs photovoltaic
panels with an annual power generation of 3 million kilowatts
on the roof of the parking lots and stations to integrate the
traditional parking buildings with clean energy.

The Chang’an Mills project in Beijing*
ERMIRTEIIEE

*  for identification purpose only
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEERAADN

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND
FINANCING ACTIVITIES

The Group aims to diversify its funding sources through

utilisation of both banking and capital markets. To the extent

possible, financing is arranged to match business characteristics

and cash flows.

46

Bank Balances, Cash and Borrowings

The bank balances and cash, borrowings and debt equity

ratio of the Group as at 31 December 2022 as compared

to 31 December 2021 are summarised below:
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Total borrowings
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Currency Risk, Interest Rate Risk and Other
Market Risk

The Group formulates financial risk policies under
the direction of the Board, managing financial risk,
foreign currency risk, interest rate risk and trading
counterparties’ credit risk. Derivative financial
instruments are mainly used to hedge the business
operation risks. The Group also targets to ensure that
adequate financial resources are available for business

growth.

The Group conducts its businesses mainly in Hong
Kong and China, it is subject to the foreign exchange
fluctuation risks of HK dollars, US dollars and Renminbi.
To minimise currency exposure, foreign currency assets
are usually financed in the same currency as the asset or
cash flow from it through borrowings.

The Group is mainly exposed to cash flow interest
rate risk in relation to variable-rate bank balances and
borrowings. As at 31 December 2022, if interest rates
on bank balance and borrowings had been 25 points
higher/lower with all other variables held constant,
pre-tax profit of the Group would have been HK$6.32
million (2021: HK$4.55 million) higher/lower.

Financing Activities

As at 31 December 2022, the balance of the Group's
term loan financing from banks was HK$1,047 million,
which was mainly for the investment in the 28 years
operation rights of the Beijing Daxing International
Airport Parking Building* (Mb R KEE R Z=EE])
and Nanjing Jianye Shoucheng Smart City Development

Fund project* (M REHEEES2RTERERESER)).

*  for identification purpose only
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEERAADN

USE OF PROCEEDS

1.

48

On 17 January 2020, the Company completed the
allotment and issuance of 18,666,666 new ordinary
shares (93,333,333 ordinary shares before the share
consolidation that took effect from 30 March 2020
(“Share Consolidation”)) (“Shougang Subscription”)
to Shougang Holding and the allotment and issuance
of the convertible bonds (“CB Subscription”) with
an aggregate principal amount of approximately
HK$1,231,685,000 to Mountain Tai Peak | Investment
Limited (“Mountain Tai Peak”), Matrix Partners China
V, L.P. ("Matrix Partners V") and Matrix Partners China
V-A, L.P. (“Matrix Partners V-A"), and received a total
net proceeds of approximately HK$1,256 million. As set
out in the Company’s annual report for the year ended
31 December 2021 (the “2021 Annual Report”), the
Company decided to reallocate the amount for the use
of net proceeds in respect of the Shougang Subscription
and the CB Subscription.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEwm

EA 73 A

As at 31 December 2022, the Group applied the F220228F 12831 H » ZE BB E i3
proceeds of the Shougang Subscription and CB BEELIERESDBEZIEMEM
Subscription in the following manner: BEERMATAXEFA
Revised
allocation of Amount of
amount of utilised Amount of
unutilised net proceeds unutilised  Expected
Amount  net proceeds during the  net proceeds  timeline for
of the net as at year ended asat  the use of the
proceeds 1January 31 December 31 December  unutilised net
Intended use of net proceeds raised 2022 2022 2022  proceeds’
120225
1B1H HE2022
el 120225/ 12A318  BEXDA
BEMT  FGREERE E¥A MARBA MEREREN
FIRRIERENEERSE HIEEH METHE  FERREE FRERERE  BOERX
HK$ Million HK$ Million HK$ Million HK$ Million
FHEaEr FHEeEr FHEEEr FEeET
Invest in the Group's parking business, 754 87 87 - Not applicable
used for the Group's existing capital
injection commitment, rental deposit
and the development of new car
parking assets
FEHTERZARHNE - HERER B
HXURMEEREENTR
Invest in the Group's infrastructure 314 - - - Not applicable
asset management business
REAEEZERFHEECEREH B
General working capital 188 42 42 - Not applicable
—hREEES TR
Total 1,256 129 129 -
fmst

The full amount of the net proceeds of the Shougang

Subscription and CB Subscription have been applied in the

revised manner disclosed in the Company’s announcements
dated 29 November 2019 and 14 February 2020 and the

2021 Annual Report.

" PEENREEER O EIRESTE
BB EFREEZ AR E 2019
FE11H529H 202025 14HHI A &R
20214 £ $5 P A 1% BB B A5 16 57 77 Tt FE

JH o
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEERAADN

50

On 21 February 2020, the Company completed the
allotment and issuance of 300,000,000 new ordinary
shares (1,500,000,000 ordinary shares before the
Share Consolidation) (“FTLife Subscription”) to FTLife
Insurance Company Limited (“FTLife Insurance”, an
indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of NWS Holdings
Limited) with net proceeds of approximately HK$450

million.

As at 31 December 2022, the Group applied the
proceeds of the FTLife Subscription in the following

F220205F28218 A AT RHAE &
REERAR (TEBERK > HAIESE
BEERABZHEEZEZENEBERR) B
2% R #£17300,000,0008% #r Z @I (AR
B & 3BT 41,500,000,00008 8 52)
(TEERKRIBEEE)  FAEREF
R BB IEASEIT

FR2022F 128318 ZEBH E FBR
MREREE B IEFEMIER T ANEA

manner:
Amount of
Amount of utilised Amount of
unutilised  net proceeds unutilised  Expected
Amount of  net proceeds during the  net proceeds  timeline for
the net as at year ended asat  the use of the
proceeds 1January 31 December 31 December  unutilised net
Intended use of net proceeds raised 2022 2022 2022  proceeds"
20225 #Z00nE
1A1H 1#2022F R 128318  #EXBAE
BEMRE HREB =5 ) WABA MEREZEN
FRRERENEERRE MERE  MERERE  MENERE RRERE  RERER
HKS$ Million HKS$ Million HKS$ Million HKS$ Million
FlEEET FlEEET FlEEET HEEET
Invest in the Group's parking business, used 270 270 270 - Not applicable
for the Group's existing capital injection
commitment, rental deposit and the
development of new car parking assets
FEHTERZAHLE HERERES ABR
UEHEBSEENR
Invest in the Group's infrastructure asset 112 15 15 - Not applicable
management business
REXEEZARIMEEEIRER ESENE
General working capital 68 68 68 - Not applicable
—hREEES T EBR
Total 450 353 353 -
fmst
A The full amount of the net proceeds of the FTLife FPHEFERRBBFEEAEHEFEE

Subscription have been applied in accordance with (i) the
indicative timetable set forth above; and (i) in the manner
disclosed in the Company’s announcement on 14 February
2020.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEERAEAD

On 10 August 2020, the Company completed 3. [220205%88 108 » &ABISE AL #iPoly
the subscription agreement (“Poly Platinum Platinum Enterprises Limited (T Poly
Subscription”) with Poly Platinum Enterprises Limited Platinum J) 5T B #E %= (T Poly
(“Poly Platinum”), pursuant to which the Company PlatinumiB2BBEIH)) > EIb A AT E
has conditionally agreed to issue, and Poly Platinum BIEHEME B3 TmPoly PlatinumBEH&
conditionally agreed to subscribe for the 1% convertible REME DB EN 1% #RE
bonds, in the aggregate principal amount of HK$300 HFoOHRNEGRERBEIRIT IER
million, with net proceeds of approximately HK$295 IBFENABIE2 95@ 7T
million.
As at 31 December 2022, the Group applied the R2022F 1283180 A&EE#Poly
proceeds of the Poly Platinum Subscription in the PlatinumsR B B IEFA B RIEZ U T A
following manner: XEA
Amount of
utilised Amount of
Amount of  net proceeds unutilised  Expected
Amount of unutilised during the  net proceeds  timeline for
the net  net proceeds year ended asat  the use of the
proceeds asat  31December 31 December unutilised net
Intended use of net proceeds raised 1 January 2022 2022 2022  proceeds*
20225 #Z00E
1818 20225 12A318  BAXDA
BEMR KRB A NEHA WABA MEREZEN
FRMERENEERR MERE  FRNERE  FMGRERE  RERERE  EHRER
HKS$ Million HKS$ Million HKS$ Million HKS$ Million
FEEET FEEET FEEET FEEET
Financing the expansion of the Group's 295 295 113 182 By the end of
business in management and operation 2023
of car parking assets in Guangdong-
Hong Kong-Macau Greater Bay Area and
technology innovation of the Group
AEEREBRAERFELTEBER 2023FE KA
RAEERAEIN
Total 295 295 113 182
s
# The Company intends to apply the remaining net proceeds # K2\ B B T B AT 12 2 1B B KR 1% (1) _F

in accordance with (i) the indicative timetable set forth
above,; and (i) in the manner disclosed in the Company’s
announcement dated 27 July 2020.

A5 BFRYFF BT 2 K 5 (i) A A 1$2020
F7527 0892 & FT#% BB HI 5 LIS
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEERAADN

52

On 27 January 2021, the Company entered into the 4. R20215F1B27H ARG BAZER R
placing agreement with Huatai Financial Holdings (Hong i (B8) BRAR & IREIFE M
Kong) Limited and BOCI Asia Limited (as placing agents) BRAD (BBEMRE) sTXREHZE
to procure placees to purchase the total number of the REARREAZRBEEDERGERAEHEZ
placing shares, being 210,000,000 shares, at a placing FeEBRBRERMH H£51210,000,000
price of HK$2.03 per placing share. On 3 February B EEBASREERM AR
2021, the Company completed the placing and the 2.0370°7220215F2838 » A F5E
subscription of 210,000,000 placing shares to not less BEAR D6 B E R RS RET
than six placees (“Placing and Subscription”) with net 210,000,000/ 2B 1H > W 2= B AR
proceeds of approximately HK$419 million. ERRDE ((RERRBEEIE) T
MIEFREN R BEA19=TT
As at 31 December 2022, the Group applied the FR2022F12B31H ZEBEBRE R
proceeds of the Placing and Subscription in the following REEBEMERBEUTAREA !
manner:
Amount of
utilised Amount of
Amount of  net proceeds unutilised  Expected
Amount of unutilised during the  net proceeds  timeline for
the net  net proceeds year ended asat  the use of
proceeds asat  31December 31 December the unutilised
Intended use of net proceeds raised 1 January 2022 2022 2022  net proceeds#
#2022 #Z00E
1B1H 120225/ 12318 BAXDA
BERE KREA =L WABA MEREZEN
FREMERENEERE MERE  FRRERE  FMERERE  FMERERE  EHRER
HK$ Million HK$ Million HK$ Million HK$ Million
FEaEr FEeET HEeET FEEET
Invest in the Group's parking business, used 168 168 98 70 By the end of
for the Group's existing capital injection 2023
commitment, rental deposit and the
development of new car parking assets
FERTES 2 EELE HERERAS 2023FF[EA
UEHEE5EENTRE
Invest in the Group's infrastructure asset 168 168 164 4 By the end of
management business 2023
REXEEVERFHEECERH 2023F F K]
General working capital 83 83 66 17 By the end of
2023
—REEES 2023F FEA]
Total 419 419 328 91
st
# The Company intends to apply the remaining net proceeds # K 2 5] #E 46 T BR T 72 7 TEF BE 12 (1)

in accordance with (i) the indicative timetable set forth
above, and (i) in the manner disclosed in the Company’s
announcement dated 3 February 2021.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENT HELD, MATERIAL
ACQUISITIONS & DISPOSALS

Save for the completion of the Proposed Disposal on 27 January
2022 as set out under the section headed "Asset classified
as held for Sale” in note 19 to the consolidated financial
statements, and the Strategic Investment (as defined below)
disclosed below, there were no other material acquisitions or

disposals by the Group during the year.

The Group’s Strategic Investment into a Real Estate
Investment Fund

On 25 May 2021, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company (the “Investor”) entered into a strategic investor
placing agreement with CICC Fund Management Co., Ltd.*
(FEEEEEARAT "CICCT),
Investor has agreed to subscribe for certain fund units (the
“Subscription Fund Units”) of & RTE#EYREIHR
HERRMESFKRERES (CICC GLP Warehousing and Logistics
Closed Infrastructure Securities Investment Fund*, the “REIT")
at the consideration of RMB583,500,000 (the "“Strategic
Investment”).

pursuant to which the

The REIT is an infrastructure fund established in the PRC which
mainly invests in projects of which warehousing and logistics
infrastructure projects are the final investment targets. Its fund
manager is CICC and its fund units are listed on the Shanghai
Stock Exchange. The Subscription Fund Units subscribed by the
Group represented 10% of all offered units (i.e. 150,000,000
fund units) of the REIT.

As at 31 December 2022, based on the quoted market
price traded in active markets, the fair value of the Strategic
Investment held by the Group amounted to approximately
HK$1,270,308,000 which represented approximately 9% of the
audited consolidated total assets of the Group.

EEERAEAD

RAEERRE -EANBERHE

MU TR ERME19 EEFEZE —@
Fraft 920221 A27B eI B HE I
ARFEE  AEFBTEHMNEARAREREE -

FEEHERZHABEREE SIS
rE
AEBMBEERLEAHEREETHHER
BER2021558250 KRB ZEEE2EH
BAE (HREE) BhSESEEERAT
(ThEEE )T UBREEERE R &
> KEEEREREPE S SNy REA
NERIMESKREES (TREITER)) ME
FEDE(RBESME) RBELEA
AR #583,500,00077 (TELBRIZEE ) o

RETESARPEMRINERSHEES 2
CERURRNYTERSEEBEEARKR
EEHEMER -HESEBAATSES &
EHBELESESR G LM AEERE
HREESHDBEERETESHNMEEREHREE
(BP150,000,0001E & 19 %8) B910% ©

BE2022F12A8318 REBEREREMIZES
NHIBHRE A EERENEREERANE
B A£1,270,308,0007T > Bl L 72 &2 @ SR 4K
BIZRGREENI%
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEERAADN

Net unrealised investment gains of approximately
HK$218,602,000 was recognised by the Group during the
year in respect of the change in fair value of the Strategic
Investment held by the Group. Dividend of approximately
HK$35,506, 000 has been received from the Strategic
Investment during the year.

In the long term, based on the stable and diversified underlying
assets portfolio of the REIT and the rental income generated by
its leases, the earnings of the REIT are expected to grow at a
relatively consistent pace over time. Therefore, looking forward,
the Board believes that the Strategic Investment will strive to
generate stable returns to the Group.

For further details of the aforesaid subscription, please refer to
the announcement of the Company dated 26 May 2021.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EVENTS OCCURRING AFTER THE REPORTING
PERIOD

Placing of existing shares

On 13 January 2023, the Company entered into a placing
agreement (the “Placing Agreement”) with Huatai Financial
Holdings (Hong Kong) Limited (as placing agent and overall
coordinator) to procure placee to purchase the total number
of the placing shares, being 252,802,246 shares, at a placing
price of HK$1.80 per placing share pursuant to the terms of the
Placing Agreement.

On 31 January 2023, the Company completed the placing and
the subscription of 252,802,246 placing shares to Sunshine
Life, all of which were subscribed by the placing shareholder,
with net proceeds of approximately HK$448 million.

For further details of the aforesaid placing, please refer to the
announcements of the Company dated 13 January 2023 and
31 January 2023.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

As at 31 December 2022, the issued share capital of
the Company was HK$12,546,847,000 (represented by
7,275,935,194 issued ordinary shares).

EEERAEAD

HEMRER

BcEIRBRM

R2023F 18130 A AR EHZSMER
(&%) BRAR FELEREREBHBAN) 5T
vhkEwmsE ((REWHE) ' RERRAER
EREGRREZREEBRBRERN L
51252,802,246 RN EEEBAEREER
78 #£1.807T °

R2023F1831H KRB SEM B SR A
Bt R 8517252,802, 2468 FLE BR {7 > I 2 B M
BoE RS FTiSTIE B RE4 A B 184 4812
7T|:o

B LM EEE  A2RARE2023F1H
13 &2023F1H31HZ AL

BRGNS

B E2022F12B31H A AaWEZTR
KAHEE12,546,847,00070 (KRB 1T
7,275,935,19488 3@ B%) ©
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEERAADN

EMPLOYEES RELATIONSHIP

The Group had a total of 515 employees as at 31 December
2022. All subsidiaries of the Company promote equal
employment opportunities. The Group strictly complies with
regulations of state and local governments and adopts a
fair, just, and open recruitment process in order to provide
employees with an equal, diverse and discrimination-free
working environment. In the process of recruitment, training
and promotion, the Group provides equal treatment to all

candidates to safeguard employees’ rights and interests.

The Group's remuneration policy is to ensure that employees
receive a fair and competitive overall remuneration package.
Based on the principle of “competitive externally, fair
internally”, the Group has established a remuneration incentive
mechanism with “fixed salary as basis and performance linked
remuneration as main component” that is based on factors
such as position value, ability, and contribution to performance
etc, in order to motivate and retain existing employees. By
making full use of a variety of long and short term incentives,
the Group seeks to attract and retain talented employees to

achieve the Group’s strategic goals together.

Remuneration package is designed based on the practices of
the locations of the Group's various businesses.

Remuneration package for Hong Kong employees includes

salary, discretionary bonus, medical allowance, hospital
insurance and share incentive plan to subscribe for the
Company'’s ordinary shares. All Hong Kong subsidiaries of the
Company provide retirement fund scheme for Hong Kong

employees as part of employee welfare.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Remuneration package for Mainland China employees includes
salary, discretionary bonus, project bonus, medical allowance
and share incentive plan to subscribe to the Company’s
ordinary shares as part of employee welfare. In order to fully
cover the needs of employees, the Group also provides social
insurance welfare (i.e. pension insurance, medical insurance,
unemployment insurance, work injury insurance, maternity
insurance and housing provident fund) as well as annual
medical check for all employees according to state regulations.

In addition, to strengthen employees’ sense of belonging,
the Group arranges a variety of recreational activities for all
employees, including a sports meeting organised by the Group
to strengthen team cohesion, and a town hall meeting to
commend excellent individual and team performances.

The Company adopted a share incentive plan in 2021.The
scope of the participants include executive directors and core
management of the Company, technical and business backbone
personnel of the Group. The purposes of the share incentive
plan are to align the interests of employees, Company and
the Shareholders for the Group’s long-term development, to
attract, motivate and retain talent, to establish and complete
the long-term incentive mechanism of the Group, with a view
to achieving the objectives of further enhancing Shareholders’
value. For further details, please refer to (i) the announcements
of the Company dated 29 July 2021, 12 October 2021, 5
November 2021 and 2 November 2022; and (ii) the circular of
the Company dated 15 October 2021.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEERAADN

PROSPECTS

The infrastructure industry in China is rich and with large-scale,
providing various basic assets. The Group is in the faith that the
Public Offering REITs will be a potential trillion— scale market
and will become one of the biggest investment opportunities
in the next decade. The Group is looking forward to develop
rapidly with the upward trend of REITs market and resource
capabilities of strategic shareholders in terms of infrastructure
assets.

With the easing of the pandemic and the recovery of the macro
economy, the development of China infrastructure businesses,
are expected to accelerate. The Group's FIME and asset
operation services in related fields will enter a new round of
development cycle.

The Group is also actively planning, by self-development,
acquisition and strategic investment, to further enhance
the development of core capacity, strategic acquisition and
integration of high-quality assets, to form a gird-based layout
of core potential assets with long-term value, and to expand
the scale and types of assets. The Group focuses on improving
operational quality and efficiency to fully excavate and release
value contributors of assets, providing asset-holders a full-
cycle one-stop solution. The Group aims in building a leading
infrastructure service company with the largest market scale,
the highest technological content, and the best return.
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The Company is committed to maintaining good corporate
governance standards and procedures to safeguard the interests
of all shareholders and to enhance shareholders value. The
Company has adopted and applied corporate governance
principles and practices that emphasise an effective Board, sound
risk management and internal control systems, transparency
and accountability as well as on-going communication and
engagement with shareholders and investors.

CORPORATE CULTURE

With the mission of promoting the cross-border integration of
infrastructure assets, enhancing the operation efficiency, building
new infrastructure and providing the leading infrastructure asset
management service, the Company has integrated its culture
so as to achieve the goal of becoming “the infrastructure
assets service provider who continually enhance the operating
efficiency as well as the pioneer of REITs in China”, and has built
a dedicated and committed team by establishing common and
positive corporate values. The Company has also developed a flat
organizational structure, efficient operating rules, a professional
talented team, a market-oriented incentive mechanism and
collective values. These have promoted the efficiency, vitality
and pioneering spirits of the organization, guaranteed strategic
implementations and attained the operational targets. The
Board and management of the Company lead and shape the
Company'’s corporate culture, which is based on the legal, ethical
and responsible approach of the Company and its subsidiaries
(the "Group”) at all levels, and have been acting in accordance
with the values of “customer first, team cooperation, teaching
and learning mutualism, quality first, outcome-orientation, full
of passion, open-mindedness and tolerance, embracing changes
and loyal dedication”. The Board leads the management to
determine the Group’s purpose, values and strategic guidelines,
as well as to foster a culture of long-term sustainable business
development, so that every customer, partner, investor, supplier
and employee can benefit from the Group's co-created values.
The corporate culture is developed and revised to reflect
and align with its operational practices, workplace policies
and practices, and relationships with shareholders and other
stakeholders (through annual staff learning from the Chairman’s
Statement on the main strategies and directions of the Group's
business, self-assessment, evaluation and appraisal during the
year, and reporting to superiors and/or management, including
key performance indicators). At the same time, the Board and
the management have created a culture of maintaining high
standards of corporate governance, as well as developed sound
and good corporate governance practices to safeguard the
interests of shareholders and other stakeholders.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EEERERS

CORPORATE STRATEGIES

With the vision of becoming “the infrastructure assets service
provider who continually enhance the operating efficiency
as well as the pioneer of REITs in China”, the Group adheres
to the core business concept of “precision investment + lean
operation” by taking advantage of the vigorous development of
Public Offering REITs market in Mainland China. On the basis of
focusing on investment and operation of various infrastructure
assets with long-term value, the Group comprehensively uses
Public Offering REITs to serve customers in depth by integrating
two characteristics of Public Offering REITs including activating
assets in building new investing and financing model and
improving efficiency of asset operation. Relying on leading
operation and management experience and efficient resource
integration capabilities, the Group has gradually formed full-
chain service capabilities of FIME, which refers to fundraising,
investment, management and exit, and asset operation
management in the infrastructure assets field. To achieve
this goal, the Group focuses on disciplined management of
revenue, profit, cost, capital, investment returns and financing
activities, achieving recurring and sustainable earnings, cash
flow and dividend growth without affecting the Group's
financial strength and stability. A discussion and analysis of the
Group's performance and a picture of the future are set out
in the “Chairman’s Statement” and “Management Discussion
and Analysis” published in the annual report. The Group has
increasingly focused on sustainable development and has
selected four of its sustainable development objectives that
align with the Group’s mission, including quality education,
sustainable town planning, climate action and gender equality
to keep in line with the Group's strategic plan for sustainable
development and corporate responsibility, details of which are
set out in the Environmental, Social and Governance Report
separately published by the Group.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company has complied with all the code provisions, and
where applicable, met the recommended best practices in the
Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”) as set out in
Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) (the "Listing Rules”) during the financial year
ended 31 December 2022.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Composition

The Board currently comprises a total of twelve Directors, being
four Executive Directors, three Non-executive Directors and
five Independent Non-executive Directors. The list of Directors
is set out in the section headed “Report of the Directors” of
this annual report. In addition, an updated list of the Directors
and their roles and functions is published on the websites of
Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and the Company
respectively.

The Board is characterised by wide diversity and has a balance
of skills and experience appropriate for the requirements of
the business of the Company. The Directors’ biographical
information is set out in the section headed "Directors’

Biographies” of this annual report.

The Directors give sufficient time and attention to the affairs
of the Group. All Directors are required to disclose to the
Company at the time of their appointments and annually the
number and the nature of offices held in public companies
or organizations and other significant commitments with an
indication of the time involved.

Save for those as disclosed in the section headed “Directors’
Biographies” as set out on pages 22 to 29 of this annual
report, there are no other financial, business, family or other
material or relevant relationships among the Board members,
or other offices held in public companies or organizations and
other significant commitments with an indication of the time
involved.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

EXEERRS

TEERER
EATREZE2022F12B31HIERBREER
EETEEBHERZMARAR (TB3ZFR)
F EmRA (TEHRA) MER14PrE A0
xERTH (ThEEARTH)) NFABETAHE
XK WER feRERERR-

-
AEAY

EFeRRAANEES HALRITES 3
BLIIFATESRSRBUFRITESTEM-E
FEREBEHRINEAFREFTERES I —H I
S BRTNESLERABGCEBEDHE
ENEBRZMEEMBERRABD RAERTH
Ik o

EXgMERAEZNSZTEREH LTAE
ARBEFABNEERENER - BEFH
BEHINAFERIEEEH NI —Ho

EFEHTHENRBARBNIREERERD
EB-FEEFRANERZERAEFRE
NEWMBER AR RAB HAABMEERUNEK
BRMEE  DUxEME AR TR HEEE
BRABFS PSR BB o

PRICAFRFE2D2EF29HZ EE/G N —H
NAIRBEREIN EFTEME BB EHM
M EB RIEHEMEBAMERERGR X
ERARABHAABMBEERML URHAMEKX
A iR EEEARMBEATS KA o

BIRERARAE 202264 5% 61



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EEERERS

The Board includes a balanced composition of Executive and
Non-executive Directors (including Independent Non-executive
Directors) so that there is sufficient independent element on the
Board, which can effectively exercise independent judgement.

The Non-executive Directors are of sufficient number and
calibre for their views to carry weight. The functions of Non-
executive Directors include:

o participating in board meetings to bring an independent
judgement at Board meetings to bear on issues of
strategy, policy, performance, accountability, resources,
key appointments and standards of conduct;

o taking the lead where potential conflicts of interests
arise;

° serving on Board committees if invited; and

° scrutinising the Company’s performance in achieving

agreed corporate goals and objectives, and monitoring
performance reporting.

The Non-executive Directors (including Independent Non-
executive Directors) have made a positive contribution to the
development of the Company’'s strategy and policies through
They
benefit the Board and the committees on which they serve with

independent, constructive and informed comments.

their skills, expertise, varied backgrounds and qualifications
through regular attendance and active participation in the
Board and committees meetings.

Composition of the Board is disclosed, and the Independent
Non-executive Directors are identified, in all corporate

communications to shareholders.
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Board diversity

The Company adopted a board diversity policy (the “Board
Diversity Policy”) on 28 August 2013 and revised on 25
August 2022, which sets out its approach to achieve diversity
on the Board with a view to achieving a sustainable and
balanced development of the Company. The Nomination
Committee reviews annually on the Board’s composition
under diversified perspectives, including but not limited to
progress on achieving any measurable objectives that are set
for implementing the Board Diversity Policy, and monitor the
implementation of the Board Diversity Policy and will make
recommendations on any proposed changes thereof, if any, to
the Board to complement the Company’s corporate strategy.

The Company seeks to achieve Board diversity through the
consideration of a number of factors, including but not limited
to gender, age, cultural and educational background, ethnicity,
professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of service.
The Company will also take into account factors based on its
own business model and specific needs from time to time. The
ultimate decision will be based on the merit and contribution
that the selected candidates will bring to the Board.

During the year, the Board Diversity Policy has been
reviewed and revised to include increasing the proportion
of female directors over time with the ultimate goal of
bringing the Board to gender parity through selecting and
making recommendation on suitable candidates for Board
appointments as its measurable objectives. The Board currently
has three female Directors (25%) out of twelve Directors,
and the Nomination Committee reviews annually the Board
Diversity Policy and the Board’s composition under diversified
perspectives to progress on achieving any measurable objectives
that are set for implementing the Board Diversity Policy and
monitoring the implementation of the Board Diversity Policy.
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The Group is committed to maintaining diversity (including
gender diversity) across all levels of the Group, ensuring
fair employment practices and offering equal employment
opportunities to recruit, promote and deploy employees based
on their skillset, abilities, compatibility with job requirements
and future development of the Group's businesses. As at 31
December 2022, approximately 39% of the total workforce
(including senior management) are female and approximately
61% are male. The overall gender diversity of the Group is
balanced.

The Board Diversity Policy is posted on the website of the
Company.

Role and function of the Board and the
management

The Board is responsible for overall strategic formulation and
It delegates day-to-
day operations of the Company to the Executive Committee

performance monitoring of the Group.

and senior management within the control and authority
framework set by the Board. In addition, the Board has also
delegated various responsibilities to the Audit Committee, the
Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee.

Further details of these committees are set out in this report.

On 25 August 2022, the Executive Committee was restructured
into an Executive Management Committee comprising members
being some of the Directors and core management of the
Company. General powers of the Board (except those matters
specifically reserved for the Board and Board committees) to
manage and oversee the operations of the Group have been
conferred on the Executive Management Committee.
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Board meetings

The Board meets regularly and endeavors to hold at least four
Board meetings a year at approximately quarterly intervals.
Additional meetings will be arranged, if and when required.
The Directors can attend meetings in person or through
electronic means of communication in accordance with the
articles of association of the Company (the “Articles”).

The Company Secretary assists the Chairman in drawing up
the agenda of each Board meeting. A draft agenda of each
regular Board meeting will be sent to all Directors for review
before the agenda is issued and all Directors may request for
inclusion of other matters in the agenda. The Chairman will
take into account the matters proposed by the Directors and
where appropriate, approve the inclusion of such matters in
the agenda of the Board meeting. Generally, at least 14 days’
notice of a regular Board meeting is given and the Company
aims at giving reasonable notice for all other Board meetings.
The Company also aims at sending the agenda and the
accompanying board papers, which are prepared in a form
and quality sufficient to enable the Board to make informed
decisions on matters placed before it to all Directors 5 days for
regular Board meetings, or not less than 3 days for other Board
meetings as possible, before the intended date of a Board
meeting. Where queries are raised by Directors, prompt and full
responses will be given as possible.

The Board has procedures in place to enable Directors to seek
independent professional advice in appropriate circumstances
at the Company's expenses. The Board shall resolve to, upon
reasonable request, provide separate independent professional
advice to Directors to assist them in performing their duties to
the Company.
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The Company Secretary is responsible for taking minutes of
Board meetings and Board committees meetings, draft and final
versions of which would be sent to Directors for comments
and records respectively, within a reasonable time after each
meeting. Minutes are recorded in sufficient detail the matters
considered and decisions reached, including any concerns
raised by Directors or dissenting views (if any) expressed.
Minutes of Board meetings and Board committees meetings are
kept by the Company Secretary and are open for inspection by
any Director/committee member.

If a substantial shareholder or a Director has a conflict of
interest in a matter (including material transaction with
connected persons) which the Board has determined to be
material, the matter will be dealt in a physical Board meeting,
rather than a written resolution. Independent Non-executive
Directors who, and whose close associates, have no material
interest in the transaction should be present at that Board
meeting.

Except for those circumstances permitted by the Articles and all
applicable laws, rules and regulations, a Director shall not vote
on any Board resolution approving any contract or arrangement
or any other proposal in which he/she or any of his/her close
associates (or associates where the transaction or arrangement
is a connected transaction under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules) has a material interest nor shall he/she be counted in the
quorum present at the relevant Board meeting.
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Attendance records

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

During the financial year ended 31 December 2022, the

Directors have made active contribution to the affairs of the
Group and 7 physical Board meetings were held to consider,
amongst other things, various projects contemplated by the

Group and to review and approve the quarterly, interim and

annual results of the Company.

The attendance records of Directors at Board meetings and

other committees meetings as well as general meeting during

the financial year ended 31 December 2022 are set out in the
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Executive Directors HiTEE
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Liu Jingwei 2R 77 - 4/5 - - 171
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Independent Non-executive BUFHTES
Directors
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Access to information

The Board and the committees are supplied with sufficient
explanation and information by the management to enable the
Board and the committees to make an informed assessment
of financial and other information put before it for approval.
The management provides and/or reports to all Board
members with monthly updates which give a balanced and
understandable assessment of the Company's performance,
position and prospects in sufficient details to enable the Board
as a whole and each Director to discharge their duties. Where
any Director requires more information than is volunteered by
the management, each Director has the right to separately and
independently access to the Company’s senior management to
make further enquiries if necessary.

Appointment and re-election of Directors

Appointment of new Directors is a matter for consideration
by the Nomination Committee. The Nomination Committee
will give adequate consideration to the Board Diversity
Policy and review the profiles of the candidates and make
recommendations to the Board on the appointment,
re-appointment and nomination of Directors.

According to the Articles, any Director so appointed by the
Board shall hold office, in the case of filling a casual vacancy,
only until the next following general meeting of the Company
or, in the case of an addition to their number, until the next
following annual general meeting of the Company who shall
then be eligible for re-election at such general meeting. Every
Director is subject to retirement by rotation at least once every
three years. The Directors who are subject to retirement and
re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the
Company are set out on page 102 of this annual report.
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All Executive Directors have entered into new service
agreements with a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company
for a term commencing from 1 January 2020 (except Mr. Li Wei
and Ms. Zhang Meng whose term of service commencing from
their appointments as Executive Directors from the conclusion
of the annual general meeting of the Company held on 22 May
2020) and continuing until terminated by either party by prior
written notice. Such service agreements set out the key terms
and conditions of their service.

All Non-executive Directors have entered into new engagement
letters with the Company for an initial term commencing
on 1 January 2020 (except Ms. Zhuge Wenjing whose term
of engagement commencing from her appointment as
Independent Non-executive Director from the conclusion of the
annual general meeting of the Company held on 28 May 2021)
and ending on 31 December 2020; with such appointment
being automatically renewed for successive 12-month periods.
Such engagement letters set out the key terms and conditions
of their service.

On 15 February 2022, Mr. Li Hao, a Non-executive Director,
entered into a supplemental letter with the Company with
regards to his appointment as the Vice Chairman of the Board.

The Company has adopted a nomination policy (the
“Nomination Policy”) effective on 1 January 2019 which sets
out the nomination procedures and criteria for the Nomination
Committee to select and recommend candidates to the
Board for consideration of appointment as Directors or for
recommendations to shareholders for election as Directors at
general meetings.
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Pursuant to the Nomination Policy, prior to a meeting of the
Nomination Committee called for considering candidates for
directorship, the Nomination Committee will invite nominations
of candidates from the Board members or put forward
candidates. The Nomination Committee will consider the
nominated candidates at such committee meeting according
to the criteria of: reputation for integrity; accomplishment and
experience; compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;
commitment in respect of available time and relevant interest;
and board diversity in all its aspects, including but not limited
to gender, age, cultural and educational background, ethnicity,
professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of
service. A selected candidate will then be recommended by
the Nomination Committee to the Board for consideration and
approval.

A shareholder of the Company may propose a person for
election as a Director in a general meeting pursuant to the
procedures set out in the Articles.

Board Independence

The Board has established mechanisms as part of the Group's
governance framework that underpin a strong independent
Board, and that independent views and input from Directors are
conveyed to the Board. The mechanisms are kept under regular
review on an annual basis to align with current or best practice
to ensure their effectiveness.

Pursuant to Rules 3.10(1) and 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules,
the Company has appointed five Independent Non-executive
Directors and one of them has appropriate professional
qualifications or accounting or related financial management
expertise.

Pursuant to Rule 3.10A of the Listing Rules, the number

of Independent Non-executive Directors of the Company
represents more than one-third of the Board.
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The Company has received from each of its Independent Non-
executive Directors an annual confirmation of independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and the Company
considers that all Independent Non-executive Directors are
independent.

The current composition of the Board committees consists
of the Audit Committee, the Nomination Committee and
the Remuneration Committee, comprising a majority of
Independent Non-Executive Directors, with the Audit
Committee and the Remuneration Committee both chaired by
an Independent Non-executive Director. The Independent Non-
executive Directors receive fixed fees for their positions on
the Board and Board committees, but they are not entitled to
the Company’s equity-based remuneration with performance-
related elements. The remuneration of the Independent
Non-executive Directors is also subject to a regular review
mechanism to maintain competitiveness and is commensurate
with their responsibilities and workload.

Nomination for re-election by shareholders of an Independent
Non-Executive Director who has served on the Board for a
consecutive term of more than 9 years is not encouraged. Any
re-election of an Independent Non-Executive Director who
has served the Board for more than 9 vyears, his/her further
appointment should be subject to a separate resolution to
be approved by shareholders accompanied by the disclosure
required under code provision B.2.3 of the CG Code. As at
the date of this annual report, none of the Independent Non-
executive Directors have served the Board for more than 9
years.
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To facilitate attendance and participation at Board and Board
committees meetings, the Company plans meeting schedules
for the year in advance, and provides remote facilities for
attendance. The Independent Non-executive Directors are
encouraged to actively participate in Board and Board
committees meetings and express their views and opinions at
such meetings. The Nomination Committee reviews annually
the time devoted by each Independent Non-executive Director
who is required to retire and be re-elected, and the time
devoted to perform his or her duties on the Board and Board
committees, for consideration of nomination for re-election.

All directors (including the Independent Non-executive
Directors) may obtain advice from external independent
professionals, at the Company’s expense, in accordance with
specified procedures as they consider necessary to assist them
in discharging their duties.

Dr. Wang Xin and Ms. Zhuge Wenjing, who are Independent
Non-executive Directors of the Company, will retire and, being
eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting of the Company. The Company will
state in a circular which will contain, amongst other things, the
notice convening the forthcoming annual general meeting of
the Company and the reasons why the Nomination Committee
and the Board consider they are independent, including their
character, integrity and experience they possess to continue
fulfilling the role of an Independent Non-executive Director
and their education background, in-depth experience and
practice which allow them to provide valuable and relevant
insights and contribute to the diversity of the Board; and the
recommendation to shareholders to vote in favor of their
re-election as Directors.
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Insurance for directors’ and officers’ liabilities

Appropriate insurance cover on directors’ and officers’ liabilities
has been in force to protect the Directors and officers of the
Group from their risk exposure arising from the businesses of
the Group.

Directors’ training and professional development

Every newly appointed Director will be given an introduction
of regulatory requirements. Directors are continually updated
on the latest development of the Listing Rules, legal and
other regulatory requirements to ensure compliance and
upkeep of good corporate governance practice. Directors are
also encouraged to participate in continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and
skills. The Company Secretary facilitates the induction and
professional development of Directors and the Company is
responsible for arranging and funding suitable training for the
Directors.

During the financial year ended 31 December 2022, the
Company provided the Directors with online trainings and/
or presentations and discussions information and/or materials
by qualified professionals, regulatory authorities and/or
management team on regulatory updates and/or the Group’s
business and operation developments.
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All Directors have provided to the Company their records of FrEEZEZCAAATIREHRENEHZE20226F
training received during the financial year ended 31 December 12B31H M BEEREZ N >
2022, a summary of which is as follows: ZUTF

Type of continuous professional
development programmes

RESEERARES

Attending
presentations and/
Participating online or discussions on
trainings and/ Group’s business
or webinars on and operation
regulatory updates  developments

Reading materials 2MAREARENMZ HEFEREZR

and updates EREIR/ EERRZER
Name of Director BF REREMER TR E R/ Rt
Executive Directors HITES
Zhao Tianyang HXB 4 4 4
Xu Liang ®e v v v
Li Wei =g v v v
Zhang Meng IR 4 4 4
Non-executive Directors FERITESR
Li Hao i v 4 4
Liu Jingwei 25’ 4 4 4
Ho Gilbert Chi Hang EE=El v v v
Independent Non-executive Directors BILFFMITES
Wang Xin T v/ v/ v/
Choi Fan Keung Vic HER 4 4 4
Deng Yougao HES v 4 4
Zhang Quanling RRE v 4 v
Zhuge Wenjing EBEXE v 4 4
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CHAIRMAN AND PRESIDENT

The roles of Chairman and President are separate and exercised
by different individuals to reinforce their independence and
accountability. Currently, Mr. Zhao Tianyang is the Chairman
and Mr. Li Wei serves as the President. The Chairman provides
leadership for the Board and ensures that the Board works
effectively and performs its responsibilities. The President has
overall chief executive responsibility for the Group's business
development and day-to-day management generally, lead
the management team to implement formulated strategies,
achieve annual target tasks, and promote rapid and healthy
development of business with “precise investment + lean
operation”, especially in the business development, parking
fund establishment and operation, cost optimization and
technology upgrade in the Company’s parking business sector.
The division of responsibilities between the Chairman and the
President is clearly established and set out in writing.

The responsibilities of the Chairman include, amongst other
things:

o taking primary responsibility for strategies formulation
and capital operation and approving the annual plan,
budget and performance management of the Group;

o taking primary responsibility for ensuring that good
corporate governance practices and procedures are
established;

o ensuring that all Directors are properly briefed on

issues arising at Board meetings, and ensuring that

the Directors receive, in a timely manner, adequate
information which must be accurate, clear, complete and

reliable;

o encouraging all Directors to make full and active
contribution to the Board’s affairs and taking the lead
to ensure that the Board acts in the best interest of the
Company;
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o encouraging Directors with different views to voice
their concerns, allowing sufficient time for discussion of
issues and ensuring that Board decisions fairly reflect the
Board's consensus;

o ensuring that appropriate steps are taken to provide
effective communications with shareholders and that
their views are communicated to the Board as a whole;
and

o promoting a culture of openness and debate by
facilitating effective contribution of Non-executive
Directors in particular and ensuring constructive relations
between Executive and Non-executive Directors.

On 15 February 2022, Mr. Li Hao, a Non-executive Director,
was appointed as Vice Chairman to assist the Chairman of the
Board to handle key issues such as formulation of strategies
and major business opportunities of the Company. During the
financial year ended 31 December 2022, the Independent Non-
executive Directors have met the Chairman of the Board at least
once in the absence of the other Directors.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established the following committees to oversee
particular aspects of the Company’s affairs and to assist in the
execution of the Board’s responsibilities. All committees have
their own terms of reference. All resolutions passed by the
committees will be reported to the Board at the next regular
Board meeting.

Executive Committee

An Executive Committee of the Board was established in
February 2005 with specific written terms of reference adopted
on 17 February 2005 and revised on 1 April 2012 which deal
clearly with its authorities and duties.
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The Executive Committee has been conferred with the general
powers of the Board (except those matters specifically reserved
for the Board) to manage and oversee the operations of the
Group and has been assigned with the responsibilities to
perform the corporate governance duties as follows:

o to develop and review the Company’s policies
and practices on corporate governance and make
recommendations to the Board;

o to review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of Directors and senior
management;

o to review and monitor the Company’s policies and

practices on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements;

o to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to the Group’s
employees and Directors;

o to review the Company’s compliance with the CG Code
and disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report; and

o to conform to any requirement, direction and regulation
that may from time to time be prescribed by the Board
or contained in the constitution of the Company or
imposed by legislation.

The Executive Committee comprises all the Executive Directors,
namely Mr. Zhao Tianyang, Mr. Xu Liang, Mr. Li Wei and Ms.
Zhang Meng.

During the financial year ended 31 December 2022, 9 physical
meetings of the Executive Committee were held. Amongst
those meetings, two meetings were held for the purpose of
performing the corporate governance duties. The attendance
of each member at these meetings is set out in the table above
under subsection “Attendance records” of the section headed
“BOARD OF DIRECTORS". The Executive Committee was
restructured into an Executive Management Committee on 25
August 2022.
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The major work in relation to the corporate governance of
the Group performed by the Executive Committee during
the financial year of 2022 (up to 25 August 2022) included,
amongst other things, reviewing the Company’'s compliance
with the CG Code, making disclosure in the corporate
governance report of the Company for the financial year
ended 31 December 2021 and proposing new and/or revised
corporate governance-related documents and the proposal
on the restructuring of the Executive Committee. Upon the
restructuring of the Executive Committee effective on 25
August 2022, the responsibilities of performing the corporate
governance duties as set out in Code Provision A.2.1 of the CG
Code have been assigned to the Nomination Committee of the
Company.

Audit Committee

An Audit Committee of the Board was established in December
1998 with specific written terms of reference adopted on 1
January 2009 and revised on 1 April 2012, 21 December 2015,
1 January 2019 and 25 August 2022 respectively, which deal
clearly with its authorities and duties. The terms of reference of
the Audit Committee are posted on the websites of Hong Kong
Exchanges and Clearing Limited and the Company respectively.

The principal duties of the Audit Committee include, amongst
other things:

o overseeing the relationship with and engagement of the
Company'’s auditor;

o reviewing the interim and annual financial statements of
the Group;
o reviewing the Group’s financial and accounting policies

and practices;

o reviewing the Company'’s financial reporting system, risk
management and internal control systems;
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o reviewing the arrangements that employees of the
Company and other parties who have dealings with
the Group (such as customers, suppliers and any
other persons with whom the Group has business
relationships) can use, in confidence, to raise concerns
about possible improprieties in financial reporting,
internal control or other matters; and

o making recommendations to the Board on the
formulation of the Company’s whistleblowing policy and
anti-corruption policy, and to review their effectiveness
on a regular basis.

The Audit Committee has explicit authority to investigate
any activity within its terms of reference and the authority to
obtain external legal or other independent professional advice,
at the Company’s expense, to perform its responsibilities if it
considers necessary. It is given access to and assistance from
the employees and reasonable resources to perform its duties

properly.

The chairman of the Audit Committee is Dr. Wang Xin, an
Independent Non-executive Director, and the members of the
Audit Committee include Mr. Liu Jingwei and Mr. Ho Gilbert Chi
Hang, who are Non-executive Directors and Mr. Choi Fan Keung
Vic, Mr. Deng Yougao, Ms. Zhang Quanling and Ms. Zhuge
Wenjing, who are Independent Non-executive Directors. None
of the members of the Audit Committee are former partners of
the auditor of the Company.

During the financial year ended 31 December 2022, 5
physical meetings of the Audit Committee were held and
the attendance of each member is set out in the table above
under subsection “Attendance records” of the section headed
“BOARD OF DIRECTORS”.
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The major work performed by the Audit Committee during the
financial year ended 31 December 2022 included, amongst
other things, the following:

o reviewed the reports on the risk management and
internal control systems of the Group for the financial
year ended 31 December 2021 prepared by an
independent advisory firm;

o reviewed and considered the audit plan and the
remuneration of the auditor of the Company for the
financial year ended 31 December 2021;

o reviewed the final results of the Group and the audit
report of the auditor of the Company for the financial
year ended 31 December 2021 and recommended the
reappointment of the auditor of the Company;

o reviewed the interim results of the Group and the review
report of the auditor of the Company for the 6 months
ended 30 June 2022;

o reviewed the quarterly results of the Group for the 3
months ended 31 March 2022 and the 9 months ended
30 September 2022; and

o reviewed the interim report on the risk management and
internal control systems of the Group for the 6 months
ended 30 June 2022 prepared by the compliance audit
department of the Company.

During the financial year ended 31 December 2022, the Board
had no disagreement with the Audit Committee’s view on the
selection, appointment, resignation or dismissal of the external
auditor.
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Nomination Committee

A Nomination Committee of the Board was established in
February 2005 with specific written terms of reference adopted
on 17 February 2005 and revised on 1 April 2012, 28 August
2013, 12 July 2018 and 25 August 2022 respectively, which
deal clearly with its authorities and duties. The terms of
reference of the Nomination Committee are posted on the
websites of Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and
the Company respectively.

The principal duties of the Nomination Committee include:

o reviewing the structure, size and composition (including
the skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board at
least annually and making recommendations on any
proposed changes to the Board to complement the
Company’s corporate strategy;

o identifying individuals suitably qualified to become Board
members and selecting or making recommendations to
the Board on the selection of individuals nominated for
directorships;

o making recommendations to the Board on the
appointment or reappointment of Directors and
succession planning for Directors;

o assessing the independence of Independent Non-
executive Directors;

o reviewing the Board Diversity Policy annually and
reviewing the measurable objectives that have been
set for implementing the Board Diversity Policy, and
reviewing the progress on achieving the objectives;

o reviewing regularly the contributions made by the
Directors in discharging their responsibilities and
whether they have devoted sufficient time accordingly;
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o evaluating and reviewing the committee candidates for
the Executive Management Committee recommended by
the chairman of the Executive Management Committee
among Directors and senior management members
of the Company, taking into account the Company’s
operational and management needs, and making
recommendations to the Board; and

o performing the corporate governance responsibilities of
the Board.

The Nomination Committee follows the nomination procedures
and criteria set out in the Nomination Policy, as disclosed
above, in selecting and recommending candidates for
directorship to the Board for consideration.

The Nomination Committee has explicit authority to seek any
necessary information from the employees within its scope
of duties and the authority to obtain external independent
professional advice, at the Company's expense, to perform its
responsibilities if it considers necessary.

The chairman of the Nomination Committee is Mr. Zhao
Tianyang who is also the Chairman of the Board. Members
of the Nomination Committee include Mr. Li Wei who is an
Executive Director, and Dr. Wang Xin, Mr. Deng Yougao and
Ms. Zhang Quanling, all of whom are Independent Non-
executive Directors.

During the financial year ended 31 December 2022, 4 physical
meetings of the Nomination Committee were held and the
attendance of each member is set out in the table above
under subsection “Attendance records” of the section headed
“"BOARD OF DIRECTORS".
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The major work performed by the Nomination Committee
during the financial year ended 31 December 2022 included,
amongst other things, the following:

. considered and made recommendations to the Board on
the reappointment of the President and the appointment
of the Vice Chairman;

o assessed the independence of the Independent Non-
executive Directors;

o considered and made recommendations to the Board
on the re-election of Directors at the annual general
meeting;

° considered, reviewed and made recommendation to the
Board on the proposed adoption of the revised Board
Diversity Policy and revised terms of reference of the
Nomination Committee;

. reviewed the structure, size and composition of the
Board and the management structure of the Company
and made recommendations on proposed changes of
Directors, committees members and management, if any,
to the Board; and

o reviewed the contributions made and time devoted by
the Directors in discharging their responsibilities.

Remuneration Committee

A Remuneration Committee of the Board was established in
February 2005 with specific written terms of reference adopted
on 17 February 2005 and revised on 1 April 2012 and 25
August 2022 respectively, which deal clearly with its authorities
and duties. The terms of reference of the Remuneration
Committee are posted on the websites of Hong Kong
Exchanges and Clearing Limited and the Company respectively.
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ncipal duties of the Remuneration Committee include:

making recommendations to the Board on the
Company’s policy and structure for all remuneration of
Directors and senior management of the Group;

reviewing and approving the management’s
remuneration proposals with reference to the Company’s
goals and objectives, including year-end bonus, project
bonus, share awards for employee, cash/stock risk
premium and employee’s co-investment with the Group
under the incentive constraint mechanism;

reviewing the ongoing appropriateness and relevance of
the Company’s remuneration policy and its structure of
directors and senior management;

determining, with delegated responsibility, the
remuneration packages of individual Executive Directors
and senior management and making recommendations
to the Board on the remuneration of Non-executive
Directors;

reviewing and approving compensation payable to
Executive Directors and senior management and
compensation arrangements relating to dismissal or
removal of Directors for misconduct;

ensuring that no Director or any of his/her associates is
involved in deciding his/her own remuneration; and

reviewing and/or approving the matters in relation to the

share schemes as described in Chapter 17 of the Listing
Rules.
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The Remuneration Committee should consult the Chairman
of the Board and/or the President of the Company about their
remuneration proposals for other Executive Directors. It has
explicit authority to seek any necessary information from the
employees within its scope of duties and the authority to obtain
external independent professional advice, at the Company's
expense, to perform its responsibilities if it considers necessary.

The Company has in place a Directors and Senior Management
Remuneration Policy for determining the remuneration of
the Directors and senior management on the basis of their
expertise and experience in the industry, the performance
and profitability of the Company and the Group, and with
reference to the remuneration benchmarks of other local and
domestic companies and the prevailing market conditions.
Executive Directors and senior management also participate in
discretionary bonus arrangements based on the performance of
the Group and individuals, as well as share incentive schemes
established by the Company from time to time; however, Non-
executive Directors (including Independent Non-executive
Directors) are not eligible to participate in the share incentive
schemes of the Company.

Non-executive Directors (including Independent Non-
executive Directors) are paid an appropriate level of fees for
their contribution to the Company in order to attract and
retain high-quality and experienced personnel to provide
independent perspectives and advice to the Board, and the
Remuneration Committee regularly conducts remuneration
reviews with reference to companies of similar business or size
and recommends appropriate remuneration adjustments to
the Board. Non-executive Directors who are invited to serve on
a committee of the Board will receive an additional standard
fee for that committee. If an individual Non-executive Director
is invited to participate in strategic formulation and business
development and other related duties of the Group, he or she
will be entitled to an annual discretionary bonus determined by
the Remuneration Committee and the Board with reference to
his or her contribution to the Company for the relevant period.
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The chairlady of the Remuneration Committee is Ms. Zhang
Quanling,
members of the Remuneration Committee include Dr. Wang

an Independent Non-executive Director, and
Xin and Mr. Choi Fan Keung Vic who are Independent Non-
executive Directors.

Details of remuneration paid to the Directors and the chief
executive of the Company for the financial year ended 31
December 2022 are set out in note 36 to the consolidated
financial statements.

During the financial year ended 31 December 2022, 6 physical
meetings of the Remuneration Committee were held and
the attendance of each member is set out in the table above
under subsection “Attendance records” of the section headed

“"BOARD OF DIRECTORS”.

The major work performed by the Remuneration Committee
during the financial year ended 31 December 2022 included,
amongst other things, the following:

° considered, reviewed and made recommendations to
the Board on the terms of the supplemental letter
and remuneration arrangement of the proposed Vice
Chairman;

o considered, confirmed and approved the remuneration
and incentive proposal of two of the Executive Directors
for the financial year ended 31 December 2021;

o considered, reviewed and approved the performance

bonus distribution plan, including the incentive
mechanism and restraint mechanism, for the financial
year ended 31 December 2021 for all staffs of the
Group;

o considered, reviewed and approved the remuneration

proposal of an Executive Director;
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° considered, reviewed and made recommendation to the
Board on the proposed adoption of the Directors and
Senior Management Remuneration Policy and the revised
terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee;

o considered, reviewed and made recommendations to the
Board on the proposed meeting allowance for the Board
and committees meetings attended by the Non-executive
Directors and Independent Non-executive Directors;

. considered, reviewed and made recommendations to the
Board on the reserved grant of the share incentive plan;
and

o considered, reviewed and approved the remuneration
of the Executive Directors and made recommendations
to the Board on the directors’ fees of the Non-executive
Directors and Independent Non-executive Directors for
the financial year ended 31 December 2022.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company Secretary supports the Board by ensuring good
information flow within the Board and that the Board policy
and procedures are followed. The Company Secretary is also
responsible for advising the Board through the Chairman and/or
the President on corporate governance and the implementation
of the CG Code. The Company Secretary is an employee of the
Company and has day-to-day knowledge of the Group’s affairs.

All Directors also have access to the advice and services of
the Company Secretary to ensure that Board procedures, and
all applicable laws, rules and regulations, are followed. The
selection, appointment and dismissal of the Company Secretary
are subject to the Board approval.

The Company Secretary has confirmed that she has taken no
less than 15 hours of relevant professional training during the
financial year ended 31 December 2022.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

Management is responsible for the design, implementation
and monitoring of the Group's risk management and internal
control systems, while the Board is responsible for overseeing
management in performing its duties on an ongoing basis. A
review of the effectiveness of risk management and internal
control system has been conducted annually by the Board to
cover all material controls, including financial, operational,
corporate culture, Board independence, Board diversity,
shareholders communication, environmental, social and
governance and compliance controls. Main features of the risk
management and internal control systems are described in the
sections below:

Risk Management System

The Group adopts a risk management system which manages
the risk associated with its business and operations. The system
comprises the following phases:

o Identification: ldentify type of significant risks, business
objectives and risks that could affect the achievement of
objectives (including but not limited to environmental,
social and governance risks).

o Evaluation: Analyze the likelihood and impact of risks
and evaluate the risk portfolio accordingly.

. Management:. Consider the risk responses, ensure
effective communication to the Board and on-going
monitor the residual risks (including but not limited to
environmental, social and governance risks).

The management of the Company identifies relevant major risks
through the above risk management process. Compared to last
year, with the continuous changes in the external environment
and the continuous expansion of the business scale and
business scope of the Company, the management believes
that relevant major risks still exist, and the risk level has not
changed significantly. Among them, “information system risk”
has increased to a certain extent, “compliance risk” has slightly
decreased, and the level of other risks is roughly the same.
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Internal Control System

The Company has in place an internal control system which is
compatible with the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations
of the Treadway Commission 2013 framework. The framework
enables the Group to achieve objectives regarding effectiveness
and efficiency of operations, reliability of financial reporting
and compliance with applicable laws and regulations. The

components of the framework are shown as follows:

o Control Environment: A set of standards, processes and
structures that provide the basis for carrying out internal
control across the Group.

o Risk Assessment: A dynamic and iterative process for
identifying and analyzing risks to achieve the Group’s
objectives, forming a basis for determining how risks
should be managed.

o Control Activities: Actions established by policies and
procedures to help ensure that management directives
to mitigate risks to the achievement of objectives are
carried out.

o Information and Communication: Internal and external

communication to provide the Group with the

information needed to carry out day-to-day controls.

o Monitoring: Ongoing and separate evaluations to
ascertain whether each component of internal control is
present and functioning.

Internal Auditor

The Group outsources its internal audit work to a globally
renowned professional internal audit services provider. Internal
audit function carries out the analysis and independent
appraisal of the adequacy and effectiveness of the Group's
risk management and internal control systems. The internal
audit function is independent of the Group’s daily operation
and carries out appraisal of the risk management and internal
control systems by conducting interviews, walkthroughs and
tests of operating effectiveness.
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An internal audit plan has been reviewed by the Board.
According to the established plan, review of the risk
management and internal control systems is conducted
annually and the results are reviewed by the Audit Committee
and reported to the Board.

Effectiveness of the Risk Management and Internal
Control Systems

The Board is responsible for the risk management and internal
control systems of the Group and ensuring review of the
effectiveness of these systems has been conducted annually
according to the requirements of the CG Code.

The Board, through its review and the review made by the
internal audit function, the management and Audit Committee,
concluded that the risk management and internal control
systems were effective and adequate. Such systems, however,
are designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure
to achieve business objectives, and can only provide reasonable
and not absolute assurance against material misstatement or
loss. It is also considered that the resources, staff qualifications
and experience of relevant staff were adequate and the training
programs and budget provided were sufficient.

INSIDE INFORMATION DISCLOSURE POLICY

The Company adopted an inside information disclosure
policy (the “Inside Information Disclosure Policy”) on
21 December 2015 which sets out the procedures for the
handling and dissemination of inside information with a view
to preventing uneven, inadvertent or selective dissemination of
inside information and ensuring shareholders and the public are
provided with full, accurate and timely information about the
activities and the financial condition of the Group. The Inside
Information Disclosure Policy covers the following:

o setting out the processes for identifying, assessing and
escalating potential inside information to the Board;
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o setting out the responsibilities of officers in preserving
the confidentiality of inside information, escalating
upwards any such potential information and cascading
down the message and responsibilities to relevant staff;
and

o identifying who the Company’s authorised spokespersons
are and their responsibilities for communications with
stakeholders of the Company.

In addition, the Company has communicated to all relevant
staff regarding the implementation of the Inside Information
Disclosure Policy.

The Board considers that the Company’s existing measures are
effective and appropriate compliance mechanisms to safeguard
the Company and its officers in discharging their disclosure
obligations in respect of inside information.

The Inside Information Disclosure Policy is posted on the
website of the Company.

WHISTLEBLOWING POLICY

The Company adopted a whistleblowing policy (the
“Whistleblowing Policy”) on 22 March 2012 and revised on
25 August 2022 which sets out the procedures for reporting
concerns about malpractice or impropriety in all matters related
to the Group by employees at all levels and other parties who
have dealings with the Group in any reporting format.

In addition, details of the reporting and investigation
procedures of the Whistleblowing Policy have been
communicated to all staffs of the Group through internal
seminars.

The Whistleblowing Policy is posted on the website of the
Company.
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ANTI-CORRUPTION POLICY

The Company adopted an anti-corruption policy (the “Anti-
corruption Policy”) on 25 August 2022 which provides
guidance to all Directors, management and employees of the
Group on how to deal with corruption, bribery and related
matters that may arise in the course of business. The Group
is committed to complying with all applicable laws and
regulations in the jurisdictions in which the Group operates in
order to prevent corruption and bribery in any of its business
transactions.

In addition, interpretation and illustration on the scope,
applicability and enforceability of relevant laws and regulations
of anti-corruption in the jurisdictions in which the Group
operates have been communicated to all staffs of the Group
through internal seminars.

The Anti-corruption Policy is posted on the website of the
Company.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the “Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers” (the “Model Code”)
as set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules as a code of
conduct regarding Directors’ securities transactions. A reminder
is served by the Company to each Director four times a year
annually of the black-out period that Directors cannot deal in
the securities and derivatives (if any) of the Company.

Directors are required to notify the chairlady of the
Remuneration Committee and to receive a dated written
acknowledgement before dealing in the securities and
derivatives (if any) of the Company. In the case of the chairlady
of the Remuneration Committee herself, she must notify the
President and receive a dated written acknowledgement before
any dealing.

Having made specific enquiry of all Directors, the Directors have

complied with the required standard set out in the Model Code
throughout the year ended 31 December 2022.
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The Company has also established a written guideline no less
exacting than the Model Code for securities transactions by
relevant employees (including any employee of the Company
or director or employee of a subsidiary who, because of his
office or employment in the Company or a subsidiary, is likely
to possess inside information in relation to the securities of the
Company). No incidence of non-compliance was noted by the
Company.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

During the financial year ended 31 December 2022, the
remuneration paid/payable to the Company’s auditor,
PricewaterhouseCoopers, is set out as follows:
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing
financial statements of the Group which give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Group on a going concern
basis and in presenting the annual and interim reports and
other financial disclosures required under the Listing Rules, the
Directors aim to present a balanced, clear and understandable
assessment of the Group's position and prospects.
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The statement of the auditor of the Company,
PricewaterhouseCoopers, about its reporting responsibilities on
the consolidated financial statements of the Group is set out in
the Independent Auditor’s Report on pages 144 to 155 of this
annual report.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Board adopted a Shareholders’ Communication Policy
on 22 March 2012 and updated on 31 March 2014, 11 July
2019 and 25 August 2022 respectively, which reflects the
current practices of the Company for communication with its
shareholders and investors. Such policy aims at ensuring the
shareholders and investors of the Company are provided with
ready, equal and timely access to balanced and understandable
information about the Company, in order to enable
shareholders to exercise their rights in an informed manner, and
to allow shareholders and investors to engage actively with the
Company.

During the year, the Shareholders” Communication Policy
has been reviewed and revised to update and increase its
communication channels through which the Investor Relations
team and management of the Company can conduct ongoing
communications with shareholders and investors on business
strategy and development of the Group. The Board will review
the implementation and effectiveness of the Shareholders’
Communication Policy on an annual basis.

The updated Shareholders’” Communication Policy is posted on
the website of the Company.

The Company has adopted a dividend policy for delivering
sustainable returns to shareholders whilst retaining adequate
reserves for the Group's future development, details of which
are disclosed under the section headed “FINAL DIVIDEND"” of
the Report of the Directors of this annual report.
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To foster effective communications with the shareholders
and investors, the Company provides extensive information
in its annual report, interim report, results announcements,
environmental, social and governance report and
announcements, and organizes various regular events, including
investor/analyst briefings and one-on-one meetings, roadshows,
media interviews and marketing activities for investors and
specialist industry forums etc. during the year. All corporate
communications are also available on the Company's website
at www.shouchengholdings.com and on the website of Hong
Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited at www.hkexnews.hk.

The annual general meeting of the Company provides a useful
forum for shareholders to exchange views with the Board. All
Directors will make an effort to attend. The external auditor
is also available at the annual general meeting to address
shareholders’ queries. In case of any general meeting to
approve a connected transaction or any other transaction that
is subject to independent shareholders’ approval, members of
the independent Board committee will also make an effort to
attend to address shareholders’ queries.

During the financial year ended 31 December 2022, 1 general
meeting, being the annual general meeting of the Company
held on 24 May 2022 (the “2022 AGM"), was held.

The auditor of the Company, PricewaterhouseCoopers,
attended the 2022 AGM. Details of the attendance of each
Director at the 2022 AGM are set out in the table above
under subsection “Attendance records” of the section headed
“BOARD OF DIRECTORS”.
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During the financial year ended 31 December 2022, the
notice of 2022 AGM despatched by the Company to its
shareholders was sent at least 21 days before the meeting.
Separate resolutions were proposed at the 2022 AGM on
each substantially separate issue, including the re-election
of individual retiring Directors, and all resolutions put to
the vote of the 2022 AGM were taken by way of a poll. At
the 2022 AGM, the chairman of the meeting explained the
procedures for conducting a poll and answered questions from
shareholders on voting by poll, if any. The results of the poll
were published on the websites of Hong Kong Exchanges and
Clearing Limited and the Company respectively.

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS
Convene a general meeting

Shareholder(s) representing at least 5% of the total voting
rights of all shareholders of the Company having a right to vote
at general meetings can request the Directors to call a general
meeting pursuant to Section 566 of the Companies Ordinance
(Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong). The request must
state the general nature of the business to be dealt with at
the meeting and may include the text of a resolution that may
properly be moved and is intended to be moved at the meeting.
Such request must be authenticated by the shareholder(s)
making it and sent to the Company in hard copy form or in
electronic form for the attention of the Company Secretary.
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Put forward proposals at shareholders’ meetings

Shareholder(s) representing at least 2.5% of the total voting
rights of all shareholders of the Company or at least 50
shareholders who have a relevant right to vote at a general
meeting can request the Company to circulate to the
shareholders of the Company a statement of not more than
1,000 words with respect to a matter mentioned in a proposed
resolution or other business to be dealt with at that meeting
pursuant to Section 580 of the Companies Ordinance (Chapter
622 of the Laws of Hong Kong). The expenses shall be borne
by the shareholder(s) making the request unless the meeting
concerned is an annual general meeting and the statement is
received by the Company in time for sending with the notice
of the meeting. The request must identify the statement to be
circulated, and must be authenticated by the shareholder(s)
making it and sent to the Company in hard copy form or in
electronic form for the attention of the Company Secretary at
least 7 days before the meeting to which it relates.

Shareholder(s) representing at least 2.5% of the total voting
rights of all shareholders of the Company or at least 50
shareholders who have a right to vote on the resolution at an
annual general meeting can request the Company to give to
the shareholders of the Company notice of a resolution that
may properly be moved and is intended to be moved at that
meeting pursuant to Section 615 of the Companies Ordinance
(Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong). The request must
identify the resolution of which notice is to be given, and must
be authenticated by the shareholder(s) making it and sent to
the Company in hard copy form or in electronic form for the
attention of the Company Secretary no later than 6 weeks
before the annual general meeting to which the requests relate,
or if later, the time at which notice of the meeting is given.
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Shareholders’ enquiries

Specific enquiries or suggestions by shareholders can be sent in
writing to the Board or the Company Secretary at our registered
office or by email to our Company. In addition, shareholders
can contact Tricor Tengis Limited, the share registrar of the
Company, if they have any enquiries about their shareholdings
and entitlement to dividend. Relevant contact details are set
out on page 3 of this annual report.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

There is no change in the Company’s constitutional documents
during the financial year ended 31 December 2022.
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The Directors present their report and the audited financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (the "Group”)
for the year ended 31 December 2022.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal business of the Group is infrastructure asset
management. The principal activity of the Company is
investment holding. The activities of its principal subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures are set out in notes 17 and 18 to
the consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2022
and the state of affairs of the Group at that date are set out in
the audited consolidated financial statements on pages 156 to
317 of this annual report.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board considers sustainable returns to shareholders of
the Company (the “Shareholders”) whilst retaining adequate
reserves for the Group’s future development to be an objective.
Under the dividend policy adopted by the Company, dividends
may be recommended, declared and paid to shareholders from
time to time. In summary, the declaration of dividend is subject
to the discretion of the Board, taking into consideration of,
among others, the following factors:

° financial results;

. shareholders’ interests;

o general business conditions and strategies;
o capital requirements;

. taxation considerations;

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EFEHREE

BEEQRELREEEEREEREINTRE
MEAS (T4&/)) HZE2022F128318 1k
FEZEEBZHRK UHEE-

FEEH

FAEBZFEXBKAERINMEEERE X
REZEFBEXEBEARBEER - FXTEWB L
B BE AR REE AR ZEBEHINNES
M ISR EE17K18°

ES

AEBBHZE2022F12831BILEEFEZX&
REAEBRZBZH BRI N EERS
156 EFIN7TBE 2R BERGEMHREK

KA S

EFgNEREAEATRRE (RFR)) BXR
FEOBRRSTEENRKERFEITRE
#E - RBAABDRMEIRBEER > FRF
EARARREZERAKERE - 4BIEM
SREEKEAKEFEEZE (HPERE) UT
HEBRHBEE :

. MFEE
. PR ;
. BEEBR KR ;
. BEEHEK;

. MBEBRARE ;

BIRERARAE 202264 5% 929



REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

= &=

EXEHRESE

o contractual, statutory and regulatory restriction, if any;
and

o any other factors that the Board may deem relevant.

Where a dividend is being declared in any particular financial
year, the total amount of payment shall not exceed 50% of the
accumulated profits available for distribution during such given
financial year.

The Board has resolved to recommend a final dividend in
the total amount of HK$400 million for the year ended
31 December 2022 (2021: HK$400 million), payable to
shareholders whose names appear on the register of members
of the Company at the close of business on Friday, 14 July
2023. Based on 7,528,737,440 ordinary shares of the Company
(the “Shares”) in issue, such a final dividend would amount to
HK5.31 cents per Share (2021: HK5.49 cents per Share).

Subject to Shareholders’ approval of the proposed final
dividend at the Company’s annual general meeting to be held
on Thursday, 25 May 2023 (the "AGM"), the final dividend
is expected to be paid on Thursday, 3 August 2023. In order
to qualify for the proposed final dividend, all transfer forms
accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be lodged
with the Company’s share registrar, Tricor Tengis Limited
at 17/F, Far East Finance Centre, 16 Harcourt Road, Hong
Kong, not later than 4:30 p.m. on Friday, 14 July 2023 for
registration.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The register of members of the Company will be closed from
Monday, 22 May 2023 to Thursday, 25 May 2023 (both days
inclusive) to determine the Shareholders’ entitlement to attend
and vote at the AGM. During such period, no transfer of shares
of the Company will be registered. In order to be eligible to
attend and vote at the AGM, all transfer forms accompanied
by the relevant share certificates must be lodged with the
Company’s share registrar, Tricor Tengis Limited at 17/F, Far East
Finance Centre, 16 Harcourt Road, Hong Kong not later than
4:30 p.m. on Friday, 19 May 2023 for registration.
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BUSINESS REVIEW

The business review of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2022 is set out in the sections headed “Chairman’s
Statement” and “Management Discussion and Analysis”
on pages 9 to 21 and pages 30 to 58 of this annual report
respectively.

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the published results and of the assets and
liabilities of the Group for the last five financial years is set out
on page 318 of this annual report.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the Company’s share capital during
the year are set out in note 23 to the consolidated financial
statements.

DONATIONS

No charitable donation was made by the Group during the year
(2021: Nil).

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year and up to the date of this report
are:

Executive Directors

Zhao Tianyang
Xu Liang

Li Wei

Zhang Meng

Non-executive Directors
Li Hao

Liu Jingwei

Ho Gilbert Chi Hang
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Independent Non-executive Directors

Wang Xin

Choi Fan Keung Vic
Deng Yougao
Zhang Quanling
Zhuge Wenjing

In accordance with article 102(A) of the articles of association
of the Company (the “Articles”), Mr. Li Wei, Ms. Zhang Meng,
Dr. Wang Xin and Ms. Zhuge Wenjing will retire and being
eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming
AGM, except for Mr. Li Wei and Ms. Zhang Meng who will not
offer themselves for re-election and will retire at the conclusion
of the AGM.

DIRECTORS OF SUBSIDIARIES

During the year and up to the date of this report, directors of
the subsidiaries of the Company include Zhao Tianyang*, Li
Wei, Zhang Meng, Bai Jie, Chan Weng Mui, Chen Hongyuan,
Chen Wenyue, Chen Zhichao, Chen Zhuolin, Di Jiaping, Dong
Ying, Du Feng, Fu Qiang, Gao Ying, Harada Masanori, Jia
Tingting, Li Na, Li Yanfeng, Lian Feng, Liang Lixia, Lin Yan, Liu
Hongxiu, Liu Hongyi, Liu Manjia, Liu Quanfeng, Lu Ping, Lu
Ting, Lv Pengji, Meng Ziyang, Ni Beibei, ONG KAH KOK, Peng
Cheng, Ren Wei, Song Chunsheng, Song Zhanghai, Sun lJia,
Tian Xiangjun, Wang Junfa, Wang Sheng, Xia Xiaohong, Xue
Jiangzhou, Yang Di, Yang Dongmei, Yang Shiying, Ye Qian,
Zhang Baogiang, Zhang Bei, Zhang Haitao, Zhang Jianxun,
Zhang Jun, Zhang Lan, Zhang Qi, Zhang Zhengzhong, Zhao
Weixu, Zhao Xiaotong, Zhao Yuntao, Zhao Yuzhen, Zheng
Yueqiang and Zhu Yu.

* Ceased to be director of relevant subsidiary of the Company as at
the date of this report.
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DIRECTORS’ INDEMNITIES AND INSURANCE

As permitted by the Articles, every Director or other officer of
the Company shall be entitled to be indemnified out of the
assets of the Company against all losses or liabilities which he
may sustain or incur in or about the execution of the duties of
his office or otherwise in relation thereto.

The Company has arranged appropriate directors’ and officers’
liability coverage for the Directors and officers of the Company.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting has a service contract with the Company
which is not determinable by the Company within one year
without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration
of the whole or any substantial part of the business of the
Company were entered into or existed during the year.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2022, the interests and short positions
of the Directors and chief executive of the Company in the
Shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company and
its associated corporation (within the meaning of Part XV of
the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO")) as recorded
in the register required to be kept by the Company pursuant
to Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the
Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
"Stock Exchange”) pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code")
as set out in Appendix 10 of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”), were
as follows:

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EFEHREE

ERNRERRE

ERMAAHFZREZTNARTDHEMS KBS
EREMBETHERENAMEBLERIERS
HEEHNFMABERAEHEARANEES

ERSBE-

ARBEREFTRERBDERBEBREEE
NEERERBESEREBIERRIE-

EEZIRFBEH

RIS RITZREBEAG LEEEF
B BEAFATTULEMAFATR—
FERRIETIAZ THEE CEEBHERIN 2R
BaEKo

EEEY
AEER KA EETNEEEEEE

FEERNF LA EESRBEF S

EFMRESTHRASRKR® 8RR
RiGHERZEm KR

R2022F 1283 1B EEREARBRBITH
AEREAREIREEH ZE (TXRE S M
BEBIEXVED) B15 ~ BRIIRGN KER#ESE %
B BEARBREES RBEBRAIHE3I52E
HEBEGEzSRMPRRzERm XA ;
RRBEEEHERZMBRAR (THB3FR)
e AR (T EHHRA) MHER108Y L
TANEZETESTZNIEESTR) (TIEESF
Bl FREEBESTTHE AR B RERF 2 #a
RSB WT

BIRERARAE 202264 5% 103



REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

EFEHREE

Long positions in the Shares and underlying shares RZAEQT RGP RIERKRGBZEFE

of the Company

% of the total
number of
Shares in issue
as at 31.12.2022

(Note 2)
Number of Shares and 7202245
underlying shares held 12831H
Capacity in which (Note 1) LB BTN
Name of Director interests were held HERMKRERKRNEE WY ZEHAL
Exiy FERGEZSH (Hizt1) (H&z2)
Zhao Tianyang Beneficial owner Shares: 2,800,000 0.0385
PN BmEBA Bin
Share options: 7,000,000 0.0962
fe 1 HAHE
Xu Liang Beneficial owner Shares: 700,000 0.0096
wE Bm#EBA fefn
Share options: 5,000,000 0.0687
fe 1 HAE
Li Wei Beneficial owner Shares: 1,020,000 0.0140
R Bm#EA A fe1m
Share options: 9,000,000 0.1237
e fn HRtE
Zhang Meng Beneficial owner Shares: 548,000 0.0075
R Bm#EA A fefp
Share options: 7,000,000 0.0962
fe fn HRfE
Liu Jingwei Beneficial owner Shares: 3,765,200 0.0517
Ep=g Bm#EAA B
Wang Xin Beneficial owner Shares: 40,000 0.0005
Tz BB A fefn
Interest of spouse Shares: 200,000 0.0027
o fn
Notes: Wizt :
1. Each share option entitles the holder thereof to purchase 1 Share 7. WRIEFR 2021115508052 (EEA#E
pursuant to the terms of the Plan (as defined and described in the B R TRR I BB 5 &) —B5) BYIRE » 1%
section headed “Share Incentive Plan” below) was granted on 5 PR BT T BN S 1 585G 15 B IR o
November 2021.
2. As at 31 December 2022, the total number of issued Shares was 2. B E2022E 12831 H  BE7TRHEE 5

7,275,935,194.
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2022, none of the
Directors or chief executive of the Company or their respective
associates had registered any interests or short positions in the
Shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or
any of its associated corporations as recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 352
of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Apart from as disclosed in the sections headed “DIRECTORS'
AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES”, “BONUS
AWARD SCHEME” and “SHARE INCENTIVE PLAN" herein,
at no time during the year was the Company or any of its
subsidiaries, its parent company or any subsidiary of its parent
company a party to any arrangement to enable the Directors
or their respective spouses or children under 18 years of age
to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in or
debentures of the Company or any other body corporate.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

No transactions, arrangements or contracts that are significant
in relation to the Group’s business to which the Company or
any of its subsidiaries, its parent company or any subsidiary of
its parent company was a party and in which a Director or his/
her connected entities had a material interest, whether directly
or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time
during the year.
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DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESSES

Pursuant to Rule 8.10 of the Listing Rules, the following
Directors have declared interests in the following businesses
(other than those businesses where the Directors were
appointed as directors to represent the interests of the
Company and/or any member of the Group) which are
considered to compete or are likely to compete, either directly
or indirectly, with the businesses of the Group during the year:

EENHRBEEH 2D

RIE EHRAESN0F U TEFEEERSE
RUT#BRFAED U EREFEERER
BERRABZESEURKRARA R/ NAEEE
ERARERADRERZET) MAFEBRE
PRAFERNEAEBERBHNERIERE
B B PIBER AR T

Description of businesses

Name of entity

whose businesses are
considered to compete
or likely to compete
with the businesses

of the entity which are
considered to compete
or likely to compete
with the businesses

of the Group

of the Group EBWEA

EBRRRAELER A M ER
Name of Director BB R F AT W% P S AT AEME B
S BRREZERBZLT]E BREZERZEN

Nature of
interest of

the Director

in the entity
EENBRER
ZHETmZHE

Zhao Tianyang

PN

Ho Gilbert Chi Hang

(EEEE

(“Shougang Fund”)*
TREHESERAT
(rEmE)"

Urban Parking Limited*
ERFEESEERRAE!

Beijing Shougang Fund Co., Ltd.

Fund management

HEeEE

Car park management

FEHEE

Vice Chairman and
General Manager

BEERFELE
Director
=

# Such businesses may be carried out through the subsidiaries or
associates of the entity concerned or by way of other forms of
investments.

The Board is independent from the boards of the above-
mentioned entities and is accountable to the Company’s
shareholders. Coupled with the diligence of its Independent
Non-executive Directors whose views carry significant weight
in the Board's decisions, the Group is capable of carrying on
its businesses independently of, and at arm’s length from, the
businesses of these entities.
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INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF
SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS UNDER THE SFO

So far as is known to the Directors and chief executive of the

Company, as at 31 December 2022, the following persons

(other than a Director or chief executive of the Company) had

or deemed to have interests or short positions in the Shares or

underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the register

required to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of

the SFO:

Long positions in the Shares
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RIBESFRIERGNEERRER K
RE

MEBERAATDESTHAEFA 72022
F128318 FAAL (BREER AR RS
THAEN RIRDEALABRERDTES
N BAEE BEESRATERESRPE
BHIE3IBCEBEBEEFE2ELMP LT

RmIKA

RAERBDRBZEE

% of the

total number of
shares in issue
as at 31.12.2022

Capacity in which Number of  #2022512H31H
Name of shareholder interests were held shares held HEEITRG Notes
[y HEEZZSR BFERHEE By ZEDL sz
Shougang Group Co., Ltd. (“Shougang Group”) Interests of controlled 1,817,411,917 24.9784 1,6
BHEEERAR (GHER)) corporations
REFE R
ORIX Corporation Interests of controlled 1,044,081,679 14.3498 2,6
BN LRMEBERAR corporations
RELEZ #R
Cheng Yu Tung Family (Holdings II) Limited Interests of controlled 835,485,105 11.4829 36
corporations
RErEz R
Cheng Yu Tung Family (Holdings) Limited Interests of controlled 835,485,105 11.4829 36
corporations
REFE R
Rocket Parade Limited Beneficial owner 535,485,105 7.3597 36
Bm#EAA
Beijing State-owned Capital Operation and Interests of controlled 728,035,520 10.0061 4,6
Management Company Limited corporations
TREEERELEEERAR RELEZ #E
HOPU Investments Co. lll Ltd Interests of controlled 507,072,891 6.9692 56
corporations
RErEz R
HOPU USD Master Fund Ill, L.P. Interests of controlled 507,072,891 6.9692 56

corporations

RHREEZ #a
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Notes:

108

Shougang Group is interested in all the shares held by its indirect
subsidiaries, namely, China Gate Investments Limited (holding
899,050,068 shares), Lyre Terrace Management Limited (holding
46,000 shares) and Jingxi Holdings Limited (holding 918,315,849
shares).

ORIX Corporation is interested in all the 300,748,346 shares and
743,333,333 shares held by its direct wholly-owned subsidiary ORIX
Asia Capital Limited and indirect wholly-owned subsidiary Mountain
Tai Peak | Investment Limited, respectively.

Rocket Parade Limited is wholly owned by NWS FM Limited which
is a wholly-owned subsidiary of NWS FM Holdings Limited. FTLife
Insurance Company Limited is wholly owned by Earning Star Limited
which is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Success Idea Global Limited.
Both NWS FM Holdings Limited and Success Idea Global Limited
are wholly-owned subsidiaries of NWS Service Management Limited
(incorporated in the British Virgin Islands) ("NWS Service”), which
was accordingly deemed to be interested in 535,485,105 shares
held by Rocket Parade Limited and 300,000,000 shares held by
FTLife Insurance Company Limited. NWS Service is a wholly-owned
subsidiary of NWS Service Management Limited (incorporated in the
Cayman Islands), which is wholly owned by NWS Holdings Limited
which is held as to 60.88% by New World Development Company
Limited, which in turn is held as to 45.20% by Chow Tai Fook
Enterprises Limited (“Chow Tai Fook Enterprises”). Chow Tai Fook
Enterprises is wholly owned by Chow Tai Fook (Holding) Limited,
which is held as to 81.03% by Chow Tai Fook Capital Limited,
which in turn is held as to 48.98% and 46.65% by Cheng Yu Tung
Family (Holdings) Limited and by Cheng Yu Tung Family (Holdings 1)
Limited respectively.

Beijing State-owned Capital Operation and Management Company
Limited is interested in 728,035,520 shares held by its indirect
wholly-owned subsidiary Beijing State-owned Capital Operation and
Management Investment and Operation Limited.

Shoucheng Holdings Limited Annual Report 2022

wis :

4.

B EBRREEERBENBAGIFEZ
HERGHHEEER B RNERESH
#%China Gate Investments Limited (7&
899,050,068 [ 17) - ELEBHRA A (¥
H46,0008% 8 17) R RAZERERAE (155
918,315,849 82 17) °

B +RGERAGHREEZFZENE NG
B+ EMELRERAGREZELENE R
EIMountain Tai Peak | Investment Limited% 5l

FFHZ 2 E300,748,346R e 17 K 743,333,333
RAGIHHHER B o

Rocket Parade Limited INWS FM Limited 2 &
R TINWS FM LimitedZZNWS FM Holdings
LimitedZ 2 BN B R E] - BB RIEERA A
HiEarning Star Limited 2 E# A > MEarning
Star Limited#Success Idea Global LimitedZ
2EMELE NWS FM Holdings Limited®
Success Idea Global Limited#ANWS Service
Management Limited (5835 /& kX B & 5}
1) (FNWS Service ) 2 2 E[1/B A A -

F #4874 F*Rocket Parade Limitedfff %5 A9
535,485,105 17 K i S8 17 & B IR 2 A A
FFEHI300,000,000/ 1R 17 F#E B 2 e NWS
Service B #TEIZRBEE G R LA (1 HES B
ERAMRI) 22 ENE LG T B ERE
EEBERANGHWNEIBEEBETRA G2 EHE
BB EEBEBRAGHNEREREEIR
REFFE60.88% R 1 - T 47 18 /R % /R B IR A
BJAIB B AR ERRAE (IEAELXE)1F
B45.20% 82 # o I A #FIEZEH B A8 (FER) B
RAE]2EHE  MREAE (R BRAEH
Chow Tai Fook Capital Limited#¥7%81.03% /%
# 5 fiChow Tai Fook Capital Limited#Cheng
Yu Tung Family (Holdings) Limited®Cheng
Yu Tung Family (Holdings II) Limiteds7 5l/#5 &
48.98% F%46.65 % fR 1 °

REEERELEEEFRAGRABES
BWE LI REEREESH IR
B 2728035 520/ R 15 HHER 1Ea o



5. HOPU Investments Co. lll Ltd ("HOPU Investments”) is interested
in 507,072,891 shares held by its indirect wholly-owned subsidiary,
Soteria Financial Investment Company Limited (“Soteria Financial
Investment”). Soteria Financial Investment is a wholly-owned
subsidiary of Soteria Financial Holding Company Limited, which in
turn is a wholly-owned subsidiary of HOPU USD Master Fund Ili, L.P,
a direct wholly-owned subsidiary of HOPU Investments.

6. As at 31 December 2022, the total number of issued Shares was
7,275,935,194.

December 2022, the
Company had not been notified of any person (other than

Save as disclosed above, as at 31

a Director or chief executive of the Company), who had any
interest or short position in the Shares or underlying shares of
the Company as recorded in the register required to be kept by
the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO.

CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDER'S INTEREST IN
CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in the section headed “CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS AND CONTINUING CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS” below, at no time during the year had
the Company or any of its subsidiaries, and the controlling
shareholder (as defined under the Listing Rules) or any of
its subsidiaries entered into any contract of significance or
any contract of significance for the provision of services to
the Company or any of its subsidiaries by the controlling
shareholder or any of their subsidiaries.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors, there
is a sufficiency of public float of the Company’s securities as
required under the Listing Rules as at the date of this annual
report.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

On 25 May 2012, the Shareholders adopted a share option
scheme (the “2012 Scheme”), which became effective on
29 May 2012.

The purpose of the 2012 Scheme is to enable the Company
to grant share options to selected participants as incentives
or rewards for their contribution or potential contribution to
the Company and/or any of its subsidiaries and/or any entity
in which any member of the Group holds any equity interest
(the “Invested Entities”). The 2012 Scheme shall be valid
and effective for the period of ten years commencing on
25 May 2012, being the date on which the 2012 Scheme was
conditionally adopted by the Shareholders, and ending on
25 May 2022 (both dates inclusive).

Under the 2012 Scheme, the Board may, at its discretion,
offer full-time or part-time employees, executives, officers or
directors (including executive and non-executive directors) of
the Company or any of its subsidiaries or any of the Invested
Entities, and any advisors, consultants, agents, suppliers,
customers and distributors, who, in the sole opinion of the
Board, will contribute or have contributed to the Company and/
or any of its subsidiaries and/or any of the Invested Entities,
share options to subscribe for shares of the Company.
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No share option has been granted under the 2012 Scheme
since its adoption. The maximum number of shares of the
Company available for issue upon exercise of all share options
which may be granted under the 2012 Scheme, and as at
1 January 2022, was 895,330,622 (being 179,066,124 shares
after the share consolidation becoming effective on 30 March
2020), representing approximately 2.38% of the issued Shares
as at the date of this annual report. The total number of Shares
issued and which may fall to be issued upon the exercise of
share options to be granted under the 2012 Scheme and
any other share option scheme(s) of the Company (including
exercised, cancelled and outstanding share options) to each
grantee in any 12-month period up to the date of offer shall
not exceed 1% of the number of Shares in issue as at the
date of grant. Any further grant of share options in excess of
this 1% limit shall be subject to the issue of a circular by the
Company and shareholders’ approval in a general meeting. In
addition, any share options granted to a substantial shareholder
or an Independent Non-executive Director of the Company,
or to any of their associates, which would result in the Shares
issued and to be issued upon exercise of all options already
granted and to be granted (including options exercised,
cancelled and outstanding) to such person in the 12-month
period up to and including the date of the offer of such grant
(a) representing in aggregate over 0.1% of the Shares in
issue on the date of the grant; and (b) having an aggregate
value of in excess of HK$5,000,000 (based on the closing
price of the Shares as stated in the daily quotations sheet of
the Stock Exchange on the date of each grant), such further
grant of options shall be subject to the issue of a circular by
the Company and shareholders’ approval in a general meeting
on a poll at which the grantee, his/her associates and all core
connected persons of the Company shall abstain from voting in
favour of the resolution concerning the grant of such options,
and/or such other requirements prescribed under the Listing
Rules from time to time. A connected person of the Company
will be permitted to vote against the grant only if his intention
to do so has been stated in the circular. Any grant of share
options to a Director, chief executive or substantial shareholder
of the Company, or to any of their associates, is required
to be approved by the Independent Non-executive Directors
(excluding the Independent Non-executive Director who is the
grantee of the options).
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The period during which a share option may be exercised will
be determined by the Board at its absolute discretion, save
that no share option may be exercised more than ten years
after it has been granted under the 2012 Scheme. There is no
requirement that a share option must be held for any minimum
period before it can be exercised but the Board is empowered
to impose at its discretion any such minimum period at the time
of offer of any share options.

The exercise price in relation to each share option will be
determined by the Board at its absolute discretion and shall not
be less than the highest of (i) the closing price of the Shares
as stated in the daily quotations sheet of the Stock Exchange
on the date of offer of share options; (ii) the average closing
price of the Shares as stated in the daily quotations sheets
of the Stock Exchange for the five business days immediately
preceding the date of offer of share options; and (iii) the
nominal value of a share of the Company on the date of
offer of share options. Each of the grantees is required to pay
HK$1.00 as a consideration for his acceptance of the grant of
share options in accordance with the 2012 Scheme. The offer
of share options must be accepted within 30 days from the
date of the offer.

Share options to be granted under the 2012 Scheme do not
confer rights on the holders to dividends or to vote at general
meetings.

No share option has been granted under the 2012 Scheme
since its adoption till its expiration on 25 May 2022.
Accordingly, as at 31 December 2022, there was no option
available for grant and no share option outstanding under the
2012 Scheme. No new share option scheme has been adopted
upon the expiry of the 2012 Scheme.
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SHARE INCENTIVE PLAN

A share incentive plan (the “Plan”) was adopted by the

Company on 3 November 2021, the purposes of which
are to align the interests of employees of the Group, the
Company and the Shareholders for the Company's long-
term development, to attract, motivate and retain talents, to
establish and improve the long-term incentive mechanism of
the Company, with a view to achieving the objectives of further

enhancing Shareholders’ value.

The selected employees under the Plan are limited to Directors
and senior management, core management, technical and
business personnel of the Company and its branches and
subsidiaries, but excluding non-executive Directors or other
personnel subject to restrictions of applicable regulations (the

"Plan Selected Employees”).

Subject to any early termination in accordance with the Plan,
the Plan shall be valid and effective for a term of 6 years from
5 November 2021,
to make the initial grant of award (the “Award”) of right to

being the date on which the Board resolved

purchase Shares at the agreed exercise price within the exercise
period, subject to fulfillment of the relevant exercise conditions,
pursuant to the Plan (the “Share Options”), and ending on 4
November 2027 (both dates inclusive).

The total number of Shares which may be awarded upon the
exercise of Share Options granted under the Plan shall be no
more than 173,139,000 Shares (the “Plan Awarded Shares”),
representing approximately 2.30% of the issued Shares as at
the date of this annual report. The maximum number of Shares
awarded and to be awarded upon the exercise of Share Options
(including exercised or unexercised) granted to any individual
Plan Selected Employee under the Plan shall be no more than
1% of the total number of issued Shares.
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Pursuant to the Plan, Shares for the Award shall be acquired
in the secondary market by the trustee utilizing the Company’s
internal resources provided to the trustee to satisfy the transfer
of Shares to the Plan Selected Employees upon the exercise of
Share Options granted under the Plan. The trustee shall hold
such Shares on trust pursuant to the trust deed entered into
with the Company and as amended from time to time until the
Shares are vested in the Plan Selected Employees in accordance
with the Plan. The trustee shall not exercise any voting rights
in respect of any Shares held under the trust (the “Shoucheng
Employee Share Award Trust”) (including but not limited to
the Shares in respect of the Award, any bonus Shares and scrip
Shares derived therefrom).

The exercise price of a Share Option under an Award shall not
be lower than any nominal value of the Shares and shall not
be lower than the higher of the following: (1) the closing price
of the Shares on the relevant grant date; and (2) the average
closing price of the Shares on the 5 trading days prior to the
relevant grant date.

The Share Options under an Award shall only be exercised
on a trading day (unless prohibited by the relevant Listing
Rules) after 24 months from the relevant grant date. The
exercise of any Share Option by a grantee shall be subject to
the satisfaction of the exercise conditions as specified in the
Plan, including, among others, the Company's performance
and the individual grantee’s performance of each year during
the grant and the exercise periods. In respect of each grant,
upon satisfaction of the exercise conditions as provided
under the Plan, the Share Options under an Award shall
become exercisable in average in three exercise periods in
the proportion of 33%, 33% and 34% respectively. The Plan
Selected Employee shall exercise all his/her Share Options by
the last trading day on the 60" month from the relevant grant
date.
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The movements in the Share Options granted during the year

are set out as follows:
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FARTFHRMPELESERNOT :

Number of Share Options
ki HE#%E
Outstanding
Outstanding as at
as at 31 December
1 January 2022
2022 Granted Lapse/ BE
BE during Cancelled 20224
Category of Plan Selected Employees/Name o7 202251818 the year Exercised %/ 12A31H
HEEEESER e 7 REARRT BT BEH KTE
Connected Plan Selected Employees:
MEEERS .
(1) Directors of the Company:
FATES:
Zhao Tianyang 7,000,000 - - - 7,000,000
b N
Xu Liang 5,000,000 - - - 5,000,000
e
Li Wei 9,000,000 - - - 9,000,000
IR
Zhang Meng 7,000,000 - - - 7,000,000
Rig
(2) Directors of significant subsidiaries 41,220,000 3,500,000 - - 51,920,000
of the Company:
FRARZEAMBRARES:
Non-connected Plan Selected Employees: 69,280,000 22,300,000 - - 84,380,000
FFREHAEERES
Total 138,500,000 M ” 25,800,000 Mere?) - - 164,300,000
&t e w2)

Further details of the Plan are set out in note 24 to the financial

statements.

Notes:

1. On 5 November 2021, 138,500,000 Share Options (each Share
Option entitling the holder thereof to purchase 1 Share) were
granted to 50 Plan Selected Employees under the initial grant of
the Plan at an exercise price of HK$1.624 per Share (subject to
adjustments pursuant to the Plan, details of such adjustments are
set out in the circular of the Company dated 18 October 2021). The
Share Options shall be valid commencing from 5 November 2021
and ending on 4 November 2026. The closing price of the Shares on

4 November 2021 was HK$1.62.
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2. On 2 November 2022, 25,800,000 Share Options were granted to
20 Plan Selected Employees under the reserved grant of the Plan
at an exercise price of HK$1.560 per Share (subject to adjustments
pursuant to the Plan, details of such adjustments are set out in the
circular of the Company dated 18 October 2021). The Share Options
shall be valid commencing from 2 November 2022 and ending on
1 November 2027. The closing price of the Shares on 1 November
2022 was HK$1.440. Due to the change of value in the grant
of Share Options upon verification, 400,000 Share Options were
deducted from the total proposed reserved grant of 26,200,000 as
stated in the announcement of the Company dated 2 November
2022. Please refer to note 24 to the consolidated financial
statements for the fair value of the Share Options at the date of
grant and the accounting standard and policy adopted.

3. The category of Plan Selected Employees in respect of the five
highest paid individuals during the year in aggregate amounted to
37,000,000 Share Options.

4. Connected Plan Selected Employee means a Plan Selected Employee
which is a connected person of the Company as at 31 December
2022 (after reclassification). Non-Connected Plan Selected Employee
means a Plan Selected Employee which is a non-connected person
of the Company as at 31 December 2022 (after reclassification).

As at 31 December 2022, a total of 173,138,000 Shares
were acquired by the trustee and held under the Shoucheng
Employee Share Award Trust and no Plan Awarded Shares have
been vested under this trust in accordance with the Plan.
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BONUS AWARD SCHEME

A bonus award scheme (the “Scheme”) was adopted by the
Company on 22 June 2020 (the “Adoption Date”) for the
purposes of providing the employees (including the Executive
“Selected
Employees”) with bonus in form of Shares in order to

Directors) of the Company or its subsidiaries (the

encourage and retain them for achieving performance goals
and to promote the pursuit of long-term interests of the Group,
while reinforcing direct alignment of the Selected Employees
with interests of Shareholders and the Company.

The Scheme shall be valid and effective for a term of 10 years
commencing on the Adoption Date, and ending on 21 June
2030 (both dates inclusive).

The Scheme shall be subject to the administration of
the Remuneration Committee of the Company and the
administration committee specifically established by the
Remuneration Committee for the Scheme (the “Administration
Committee”) and shall comply with the rules of the Scheme
(the “Scheme Rules”) and the trust deed dated 22 June 2020
entered into between the Company and the trustee (the “Trust
Deed”).

Pursuant to the Scheme Rules, the Administration Committee
may from time to time select the Selected Employee, determine
the number of Shares to be granted to a Selected Employee,
grant award(s) to the Selected Employee and determine when,
whether and how award(s) will be made. The Administration
Committee may also give instructions to the trustee to acquire
such number of Shares on the Stock Exchange for granting to
the Selected Employees pursuant to the Scheme Rules.

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EFEHREE

FERIEEHB

AATIF2020FE6822H (T4 B HA)) H 4N
TIEFAREE (TZ5t8)) r B2 E N

BANTREMBATNEE (BN %%)
(MEEEE)) URMERBRENERE

HEMEEREET ,,,\%ZEFITELﬁﬁﬁ
ERAM@NER BFMNAETREERER
RA@EMAATF mBIEZEME -

ZEtE BB EAREE2030FE6H821H LA
MBEXR (BEEEMA) A+ F

Zt B ERSANRFNEEGRFNES
THEILAEEMRIICEELZES (TE1E
ZE8Y)) WEENBETRIEZ 2 MRE]
(Fet 8RB URAABEZFEARR2020
F6H22BT U MEERA (588 4)) ©

RiBEsHEIRA  EEEZERUFAHEEETE
BE HEXTEERERENRNBE -RTE
EREHEE WREMR BEURMAERT
5RE - BIEZE G AIIETREEAFEBFR
BEZSHENRD  URESERAET
EERE

BIRERARAE 202264 5% 117



REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EFEHREE

The Administration Committee is entitled to impose any
conditions (including a period of continued service within
the Group after any award of Shares under the Scheme (the
“Awarded Shares”)) as it deems appropriate with respect
to the entitlement of the Selected Employee to the Awarded
Shares. Subject to the Scheme Rules and the fulfillment of all
vesting conditions to the vesting of the Awarded Shares on a
Selected Employee as specified in the Scheme and the letter of
award which sets out details of the award, including but not
limited to the number of Awarded Shares, the vesting schedule
and the exercise price (if applicable), the trustee shall transfer
the Awarded Shares to such Selected Employee on the date (the
"Vesting Date”) on which his/her entitlement to the Awarded
Shares is vested in such Selected Employee in accordance with
the Scheme Rules.

The trustee shall not exercise the voting rights in respect of any
Shares held by it under the trust constituted by the Trust Deed
(the "Trust”) (including but not limited to the Awarded Shares,
any bonus Shares and scrip Shares derived therefrom).

The maximum number of Shares which can be awarded
under the Scheme is 0.5% of the issued share capital of the
Company as at the Adoption Date (being 34,627,883 Shares,
representing approximately 0.46% of the issued Shares as at
the date of this annual report) and the maximum number of
Shares which can be awarded to a Selected Employee under the
Scheme is 0.1% of the issued share capital of the Company as
at the Adoption Date (being 6,925,576 Shares).

From the Adoption Date to 31 December 2022, a total of
14,760,000 Shares were purchased by the trustee and held
under the Trust and no Shares have been awarded under the
Scheme.
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SHARES ISSUED

Issued 252,802,246 ordinary shares on 31 January
2023

On 13 January 2023, the Company entered into a placing
agreement (the “Placing Agreement”) with Huatai Financial
Holdings (Hong Kong) Limited (“Huatai”) as a placing agent
and an overall coordinator for the placing of 252,802,246
Shares (the “Placing Shares”) to Sunshine Life Insurance
Corporation Limited (BB ASZSHRERMKDBRAE) (the
“Placee”) at a placing price of HK$1.80 per Placing Share
(the "Placing Price”) (the "Placing”). The Placing will help
replenish the cash flows, enhance the financial strength and
expand the shareholder base of the Company, which in turn
will help promote the business development of the Company.
The Placee is an independent third party of and not connected
with the Company and its connected persons and has not
become a substantial shareholder of the Company immediately
following completion of the Placing which took place on 31
January 2023 (the "Completion Date”). 252,802,246 Placing
Shares were allotted and issued on the Completion Date to the
Placee under the general mandate granted by the Shareholders
to the Directors at the annual general meeting of the Company
held on 24 May 2022.

The Placing Price of HK$1.80 per Placing Share represented
a discount of approximately 4.26% over the closing price of
HK$1.88 per Share as at the date of entering into the Placing
Agreement.

Details of the total funds raised from the issue of the Placing
Shares and the use of proceeds are set out under the section
headed “EVENTS OCCURRING AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD”
in the “Management Discussion and Analysis” of this annual
report and announcements of the Company dated 13 January
2023 and 31 January 2023.
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EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save as disclosed in the sections headed “SHARE OPTION
SCHEME" and "“SHARES ISSUED"” above, no equity-linked
agreements that will or may result in the Company issuing
shares or that require the Company to enter into any
agreements that will or may result in the Company issuing
shares were entered into by the Company during the year or
subsisted at the end of the year.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'’S LISTED SECURITIES

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Company
bought back a total of 15,082,000 Shares on the Stock
Exchange at an aggregate consideration (before expenses)
of HK$19,885,640. All such bought back Shares were
subsequently cancelled.

120 Shoucheng Holdings Limited Annual Report 2022

e SR 89 174 2

B Lt TRE AR HE 51 B R T2 BATRRAA) R
B RERRE A RE > A AT BET L
REEEAREHHBERSRTERER
AETRG > WRER QBT LA HHER
FRATEREATHTRG -

BE -HEBEOEQTZ EHES

REZE2022F12B31HIEEER  AATRN
B 22 Fr el B & $£15,082,000/ 2 17 » 48R 1E A
19,885,640 70 (1PRBEZ A) o 2 EPEIFE KK
(S



Particulars of the Shares bought back during the year are set
out below:
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AEEARBRMBNFENT :

Price paid per share

BREZMZES
Aggregate
Consideration
(before expenses)
Highest Lowest wmRE
Number of BE =358 (30B&BEZ A1)
Month Shares bought back (HKS$) (HKS$) (HKS$)
B BRI E CET) CET) &)
February 2022 5,900,000 1.38 1.32 7,953,380
2022%2H
April 2022 2,570,000 1.24 1.17 3,096,060
2022541
July 2022 2,192,000 1.24 1.19 2,663,320
2022978
September 2022 2,700,000 1.34 1.25 3,488,540
20225 9H
November 2022 1,720,000 1.57 1.51 2,684,340
2022118
Total 15,082,000 19,885,640
wy

The Directors considered that such Shares bought back
reflected the Company’s recognition of its own value and its
confidence in the long-term prospects of the industry and
would, ultimately, benefit the Company and create value to the
Shareholders.

Save as disclosed above, neither the Company nor any of
its subsidiaries had purchased, sold or redeemed any of the
Company’s listed securities (whether on the Stock Exchange or
otherwise) during the year.

DISTRIBUTION RESERVES

At the end of the reporting period, the Company has reserves
available for distribution as calculated in accordance with
the relevant provisions of the Companies Ordinance, details
of which are set out in note 35 to the consolidated financial
statements.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the percentage of
revenue from rendering of services of the Group attributable
to the largest customer and the five largest customers in
aggregate are approximately 20% and 41% respectively.

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the percentage of
purchases of the Group attributable to the five largest suppliers
in aggregate is less than 30%.

Shougang Group, being the substantial shareholder of the
Company, directly and/or indirectly held the following interests
in these major customers as at 31 December 2022:

(1) Shougang Group and/or through its subsidiary(ies), held
approximately 56% interest in Jilin Shougang Industry

Revitalization Fund Partnership (Limited Partnership) (&

MEREXREESSBEEX (BRER)),;

(2) Shougang Group and/or through its subsidiary(ies), held
approximately 49% interest in Beijing Shouxin Jinyuan
Management Consulting Centre (Limited Partnership) (3t
REMBETEERZARL (BRE®)),;

(3) Shougang Group and/or through its subsidiary(ies),
held approximately 40% interest in Beijing Service New
Shougang Equity Venture Capital Enterprise (Limited
Partnership) b RIRB M EHIREAIERE X (BRRE
),

(4) Shougang Group and/or through its subsidiary(ies), held
approximately 99% interest in Beijing Shougang Industry
Transformation Fund Co., Ltd. Gt REMEXEAES
BRAE); and

(5) Shougang Group and/or through its subsidiary(ies), held
approximately 50% interest in Chengdu Shougang Silk
Road Equity Investment Fund Co., Ltd. (B &R &= $H 44 28 B%
EREEESHBRAR).

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2022, none of
the Directors, their close associates or any shareholder of the
Company (which, to the knowledge of the Directors, owns
more than 5% of the issued shares of the Company) had any
beneficial interest in these major customers.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND CONTINUING
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The following connected transactions and continuing
connected transactions were recorded during the year and up
to the date of this annual report:

Connected Transactions

Renewal of Project Operation and Maintenance
Entrustment Contract dated 31 May 2022

On 31 May 2022, Beijing Shouzhong Parking Management Co.,
Ltd. GEREREEEEER AR > “Shouzhong Parking”),
a subsidiary of the Company, entered into a contract (the
“Project Operation and Maintenance Entrustment
Renewal Contract” or “Renewal Contract”) with Beijing
Shougang Automation Information Technology Co., Ltd. (3t
REMEHMLCEEFEMABRAR > “Shougang Automation
IT”, which is held as to 49% by Shougang Group and the
remaining 51% by third parties independent of the Company
and connected persons of the Company) to renew the contract
dated 27 May 2021 entered into between Shouzhong Parking
and Shougang Automation IT in respect of the entrusting of
provision of operation and maintenance services (“Operation
and Maintenance Services”) at the four floors of the parking
building in Beijing Daxing International Airport. Pursuant to the
Renewal Contract, Shouzhong Parking agreed to entrust the
provision of Operation and Maintenance Services to Shougang
Automation IT at a total contract sum of RMB2,838,736.63 for
a term of 12 months commencing from 1 June 2022 to 31 May
2023. The entering into of the Renewal Contract will help the
Company steadily improve the operation efficiency and quality
of the parking building project in Beijing Daxing International
Airport, constantly refining and optimizing the management
model of lean operation, synergistically promoting the Group's
focus on the investment management and technology services
of parking and infrastructure real estate, and continuing to
provide customers with a good parking experience.
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Given that Shougang Group is a substantial shareholder
of the Company, Shougang Automation IT is an associated
corporation of Shougang Group and is therefore a connected
person of the Company under the Listing Rules as at the date
of the Renewal Contract, the entering into of the Renewal
Contract and the transactions contemplated thereunder
constituted a connected transaction of the Company under the
Listing Rules.

Details of the Renewal Contract and the transactions
contemplated thereunder were disclosed in the announcement
of the Company dated 31 May 2022.

Continuing Connected Transactions

(a) 2020 Master Agreement dated 18 November 2019

On 18 November 2019, the Company and Shougang
Fund entered into a new private fund management
service agreement (the “2020 Master Agreement”) in
respect of the provision of private fund management
services by the Company and/or its subsidiaries to
Shougang Fund and/or its associates for a term
commencing from 1 January 2020 to 31 December
2024.

The transaction amounts under the 2020 Master
Agreement during the term of the agreement will not
exceed the following annual caps:

RENERBEH ERENERRETATZ
TERF BHEERMARSEHNERZ
BEATMBRE LHRIBERATZMEA
T UBHNERNRETRETZXZ BN
EHRABEBTARB Z —ERERS

BANERMEBETRETZXSGNEBEER
AATIHHEIA2022F 583 1B A S HINE -

HERERS
(a) HHEZ2019E11518HAI2020F45 515
%

R2019F 118180 A QBB HIHE
EHMHARAAR,/ HEWNEAT B
EMESR AHBBARELESR
SEERBIUNESESERDT B
(202047 5 WEE1) » FHABE20204F
1B1HE2024FE128318 °

RipZEERA > 2020F K5 HEET
ZRBERRIASBEUTEE LR

For the year ending 31 December

HENAMALEE
2020 2021 2022 2023 2024
RMB RMB RMB RMB RMB
AR AR ANEE AEE NEHE
Provision of private fund management services 358,000,000 551,000,000 701,000,000 851,000,000 924,000,000

REMSESERRE
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(b)

Pursuant to the 2020 Master Agreement, the
provision of private fund management services shall
be priced between either (i) 0.1% and 2% of the
capital commitment or the capital contribution of
the partnership each year (as determined under the
respective partnership agreements) for urban renewal
related funds; or (ii) 0.5% and 2% of the capital
commitment or the capital contribution of partnership
each year (as determined under the respective
partnership agreements) for any other types of funds.

Details of the continuing connected transactions
contemplated under the 2020 Master Agreement were
disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated
18 November 2019 and in the circular of the Company
dated 28 November 2019.

Carpark Operation Contractor Agreements

As stated in the announcement of the Company
dated 1 November 2018 and in the circular of the
Company dated 28 November 2018, Urban Parking
(Beijing) Limited (B3 (A R) FEEEBAFRLF >
“Urban Parking Beijing”), became a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company upon completion of the
acquisition of the entire equity interest in Urban
Parking Beijing (i.e. on 28 December 2018) by E Park
Investment Management Co., Ltd. (B2{ZE (tR) BE
BEIEAMRAT "E Park”), entered into three carpark
operation contractor agreements dated 1 April 2015
(the "Carpark Operation Contractor Agreements”)
with each of Beijing Chong Wen+New World Properties
Development Co., Ltd. GEEX e Mt R EMEERE
BBRAT > "Beijing Chongwen”), Beijing Chong Yu
Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. (It R =44 = i#th = B9 3%
BRAE > “Beijing Chongyu”) and China New World
Electronics Ltd. (FEIFMEREFHBRAE > “China
New World Electronics”), each of which is a subsidiary
of New World Development Company Limited (“New
World Development”), which in turn is a substantial
shareholder of the Company.

(b)
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Pursuant to the Carpark Operation Contractor
Agreements, the initial term is 36 months commencing
on 1 April 2015 and expiring on 31 March 2018, after
which Urban Parking Beijing may opt to (and with
respect to the year commencing 1 April 2018, has opted
to) renew the respective Carpark Operation Contractor
Agreements for a successive period of one year each,
until 10 years from the date of the agreement, subject
to any framework agreement applicable to Urban
Parking Beijing and re-compliance with the Listing Rules
at the relevant time; and Urban Parking Beijing will
provide carpark operation services to Beijing Chongwen,
Beijing Chongyu and China New World Electronics
for different sections of the carparks in Beijing New
World Department Store Phase 1 and Phase 2 (“Beijing
Carparks”) in return for income from parking, car
detailing, rental fees in the car park, advertising revenue
and other service incomes subject to the following
payments of fees (the “Carpark Operation Contractor
Fees”):

1 April 2015 to
31 March 2017
H2015F48 10 £2017%E3H31H

RIEZEEFEEZEERTEHRE Y
WGHABR 2 36M@ B > R2015F4818#E
F2018F3831HEM EREMEE
bR EE (RR2018FE48 105
PEECEE) NS MNZEFELRE
BEANEHBESTEN T EEHE
HHEE10FEAILL HEASBEARS
WiZBE IR 2 R ER B EPTRIR
THAEMEEENET MR ZR
B ElEEIEREAIIREN IR
SR EFHAEIFRZERILER
MHAEE M PRI E
B (S REERRF)) RHEHEES
EERT MamEEtREE#R
WEEGZ - AEER EEBHESZK
A BEEREREMBRBERA  ZT7]
FRENER ((FEBEEARNEE
Bl

Subsequent 2-year period
from 1 April 2017
2017F4R1BEEE B M FHA

Beijing Chongwen
IEREX

Beijing Chongyu
IEREHR

China New World Electronics

FREIHT R E T
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RMB1,166,975 per year
SEANRM1,166,9757T

RMB1,900,000 per year
FE£ AR 1,900,000

RMB733,025 per year
SF AR733,0257T

Approximately 5% increase

£FAKI5%

Approximately 5% increase

£FAKI5%

Approximately 5% increase

EFAKI5%



(c)

Pursuant to the Carpark Operation Contractor
Agreements, the Carpark Operation Contractor Fees are
subject to the following annual caps:

1 April 2015 to
31 March 2017
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RIEZSEFELSEEANBHRE FEHE
BEARBERASUTEE LRRH

1 April 2017 to
31 March 2019

1 April 2019 to
31 March 2021

1 April 2021 to
31 March 2023

1 April 2023 to
31 March 2025

015F4F1HE  2017F4B1BE  2019F4B1RE  2021F4B1HE  203F4B1AE
2017436310 2019%3A31H  202143A31H  2023%3A31H  202543A31H
RMB RMB RMB RMB RMB
AEE ANEE NEE NEE NEE
Carpark Operation Contractor Fees
FEFEEANBER 3,800,000 3,990,000 4,189,500 4,398,976 4,618,924
Details of the continuing connected transactions RS EHEFEEAMNBHEE TNITERE
contemplated under the Carpark Operation Contractor KRB ZHBEEARAT HEA2018F118
Agreements were disclosed in the announcement dated 1HMASKRHEIA2018F11H828HEKR
1 November 2018 and in the circular of the Company AREHIKE -
dated 28 November 2018.
Parking Lots Cooperation Agreement dated 28 ()  HH#i52020E10528HIEEL S 1E

October 2020

On 28 October 2020, E Park (formerly known as
Shouzhong Investment Management Co., Ltd. (B &
BEIEARATE) entered into a parking lots cooperation
agreement (the “Parking Lots Cooperation
Agreement”) with Beijing Shoushi Changtai Operation
Management Co., Ltd. SR EMEREZLEERRER
5] “Shoushi Changtai”) (formerly known as Beijing
Shoushi Changtai Trading Co., Ltd. It REME &R
BHEBRAR)Iin relation to the continuing connected
transactions involving entrusting the management and
leasing of the parking lots under the Chang’an Mills
(an urban renewal project in New Shougang High-
end Industry Comprehensive Service Park G & i = i
E¥4&5R7¥F & “Shougang Park”), the “Project”)
by Shoushi Changtai to E Park (formerly known as
Shouzhong Investment Management Co., Ltd. (B
KREEEARAT)). Pursuant to the Parking Lots
Cooperation Agreement, Shoushi Changtai will entrust
the management of the parking lots under the Project
to E Park and shall pay E Park an annual management

2
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fee (the “Annual Management Fee”) and shall be
entitled to all the revenues generated therefrom for the
first five years (the “Entrusted Management Period”)
and Shoushi Changtai shall lease the parking lots under
the Project to E Park for operation and management for
the remaining years (the “Lease Period”), during which
E Park shall be entitled to all the revenues and shall pay
to Shoushi Changtai a specified percentage of the profit
generated from operating the parking lots under the
Project (the “Annual Variable Lease Payment”). The
initial term of the Parking Lots Cooperation Agreement
shall be ten years commencing from the day after
the date of completion and successful acceptance of
construction of all parking lots under the Project, which
shall be extended automatically for another ten years
provided that E Park has not breached any specific
terms as stipulated in the Parking Lots Cooperation
Agreement.

The entering into of the Parking Lots Cooperation
Agreement is for that the industrial/office parking
is the key focus of the Company and the Company
will work with Shoushi Changtai to build parking lots
with international green standard under the guidance
of the goal of unified brand image, service model,
management standards, operation and maintenance
support, and internal control and supervision of
Shougang Park.
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The cap amounts of the Annual Management Fee during
the Entrusted Management Period and the Annual
Variable Lease Payment during the Lease Period are as
follows:
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ZAEEMNEEEEEREEHRN
FEIIFEBREEH LRIIENOT :

During the
Entrusted
Management During the
Period Lease Period
REXEERAR REEHA
RMB RMB
AR AR
Annual Management Fee payable to E Park
BNTFREENFEEEER 6,000,000 -
Annual Variable Lease Payment payable by E Park
EFERIMNFEEIFEHEES - 6,000,000

On 3 January 2023, E Park, E Park Operation
Management Co., Ltd. (BEHE (IR) BEE &8
BPRAB > “E Park Operation”, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of E Park) and Shoushi Changtai entered
into a supplemental agreement of the Parking
Lots Cooperation Agreement (the “Supplemental
Agreement”) to amend the commencement date of
the Entrusted Management Period, being 12 months
from the day after the date of completion and successful
acceptance of construction of all parking lots under the
Project, which was initially fixed on 11 March 2022 to
1 October 2022 after arm’s length negotiations between
E Park, E Park Operation and Shoushi Changtai taking
into consideration factors including the operation of the
parking lots of the Project was later than the completion
of the construction. Accordingly, the period end date
for each of the annual cap under each of the Entrusted
Management Period and the Lease Period will be by
30 September each year starting from 2023 and by
30 September each year starting from 2028. In addition,
pursuant to the Supplemental Agreement, E Park
assigned all its rights and obligations under the Parking
Lots Cooperation Agreement to E Park Operation.
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Given that Shougang Group is a connected person of
the Company and indirectly holds approximately 48.86%
interest in Shoushi Changtai, Shoushi Changtai is a
connected person of the Company by virtue of it being
an associate of the connected person of the Company as
at the date of the Parking Lots Cooperation Agreement
and hence, the transactions contemplated under the
Parking Lots Cooperation Agreement constituted
continuing connected transactions of the Company

under the Listing Rules.

Details of the continuing connected transactions
contemplated under the Parking Lots Cooperation
Agreement were disclosed in the announcements of
the Company dated 28 October 2020 and 9 November
2020.

Continuing Connected Transactions Pursuant to
Rule 14A.60(1) of the Listing Rules

As stated in the announcement of the Company dated
29 March 2021,
Carpark Management,

the Group has, through Guangzhou
Guangzhou Wanwu and
Foshan Wanwu (as defined below, collectively, the
“Partnerships”) and its wholly-owned subsidiaries,
entered into various agreements, namely Guangzhou
Carpark Sales Agreement, Foshan Carpark Sales
Agreement, Guangzhou Carpark Management
Agreement (I), Guangzhou Carpark Management
Agreement (II) and Foshan Carpark Management
Agreement (as defined below, collectively, the
“Agreements”) with subsidiaries of China Vanke Co.,
Ltd. in respect of carpark sales services and carpark

property management services in the PRC.
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(i)

Guangzhou Carpark Sales Agreement

Guangzhou Shouzhong Wanwu Corporate
Management Limited Partnership (B/MNEHE
MEEEESE L% (BRE%), "Guangzhou
Wanwu”), an indirect non-wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, Shenzhen Vanke
Gongying Investment Co., Ltd. CRIIT&EY
HBIREERAT > “Shenzhen Gongying”)
and Guangzhou Vanke Property Management
Services Co., Ltd. (BN ERMERBEER
‘A7) > "Guangzhou Vanke") entered into an
agreement (the “Guangzhou Carpark Sales
Agreement”) on 12 December 2019, pursuant
to which Guangzhou Wanwu has entrusted
Shenzhen Gongying and Guangzhou Vanke to
provide carpark sales services in respect of 7,727
carparks situated in Guangzhou City in the PRC
from 13 November 2019 to 31 December 2025,
and Guangzhou Wanwu shall pay (i) Shenzhen
Gongying and Guangzhou Vanke an annual sales
commission fee representing 3.6% to 5% of the
annual sales revenues generated from the sales
of the carparks; and (ii) Guangzhou Vanke a
monthly fee of not exceeding RMB30,000 for the
daily operational expenses relating to the services
provided thereunder;

Foshan Carpark Sales Agreement

Foshan Shouzhong Wanwu Corporate
Management Limited Partnership (L&
BYEEEESB X (BIRE&%), "Foshan
Wanwu”), an indirect non-wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, Shenzhen Gongying
and Foshan Vanke Property Management Co.,
Ltd. (BT ERYERBBERLE > “Foshan
Vanke") entered into an agreement (the “Foshan
Carpark Sales Agreement”) on 10 April
2020, pursuant to which Foshan Wanwu has
entrusted Shenzhen Gongying and Foshan Vanke
to provide carpark sales services in respect of
2,067 carparks situated in Foshan City in the
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(iii)

PRC from 1 April 2020 to 31 December 2026,
and Foshan Wanwu shall pay (i) Shenzhen
Gongying and Foshan Vanke an annual sales
commission fee representing 3.6% to 5% of the
annual sales revenues generated from the sales
of the carparks; and (ii) Foshan Vanke a monthly
fee of not exceeding RMB30,000 for the daily
operational expenses relating to the services
provided thereunder;

Guangzhou Carpark Management Agreement (1)

Guangzhou Shouzhong Easyparking Carpark
Management Co., Ltd. (BEMNEFZ HEEIS
EEHMRAT > “Guangzhou Shouzhong”),
an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company and Guangzhou Vanke entered into
an agreement (the “"Guangzhou Carpark
Management Agreement (1)) on 1 December
2020 (as amended and supplemented on
17 March 2021), pursuant to which Guangzhou
Shouzhong has entrusted Guangzhou Vanke to
provide property management services in respect
of certain underground carparks situated in
Guangzhou Vanke Cloud City phases 1 and 2 for
a monthly fixed management fee of RMB310,800
from 1 December 2020 to 30 November 2024.
On 1 September 2022, Guangzhou Shouzhong
and Guangzhou Vanke entered into a further
supplemental agreement to amend the monthly
fixed management fee from RMB310,800 to
RMB298,800 as a result of a decrease in the
carparks for the property management services
under the Guangzhou Carpark Management
Agreement (I);
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(iv)

Guangzhou Carpark Management Agreement (ll)

Guangzhou Shouzhong Wanwu Carpark
Management Co., Ltd. (BEMEHTEYEE
HEEAHBMRAT > “"Guangzhou Carpark
Management”), an indirect non-wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company and Guangzhou Vanke
entered into an agreement (the “Guangzhou
Carpark Management Agreement (I1)")
on 19 November 2019, pursuant to which
Guangzhou Carpark Management has entrusted
Guangzhou Vanke to provide property
management and pre-sale support services
in respect of 4,324 carpark spaces situated
in Guangzhou City, the PRC (“Guangzhou
Carpark Spaces”) from 19 November 2019 to
31 December 2025, and Guangzhou Carpark
Management shall pay Guangzhou Vanke (i) a
monthly property management fee of RMB120 to
RMB150 per every unsold carpark spaces of the
Guangzhou Carpark Spaces; and (i) a monthly
entrusted management service fee representing
10% of the revenue from operating the
Guangzhou Carpark Spaces; and

Foshan Carpark Management Agreement

Guangzhou Carpark Management (Foshan
Branch) and Foshan Vanke entered into an
agreement (the “Foshan Carpark Management
Agreement”) on 29 December 2020, pursuant
to which Guangzhou Carpark Management
(Foshan Branch) has entrusted Foshan Vanke
to provide property management services in
respect of 1,338 underground carpark spaces
from 1 September 2020 to 31 August 2021,
and Guangzhou Carpark Management (Foshan
Branch) shall pay a fixed monthly management
fee of RMB93,660 to Foshan Vanke for the
services provided thereunder. On 12 November
2021, Guangzhou Carpark Management
(Foshan Branch) and Foshan Vanke entered into
an agreement to renew the Foshan Carpark
Management Agreement to extend the term
thereof to 31 August 2024. As none of the
applicable percentage ratios (as defined in the
Listing Rules) in respect of the annual caps for
the renewal agreement for the three years ending
31 August 2024 exceeds 1%, the entering into
of the aforesaid renewal agreement and the
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transactions contemplated thereunder constitute
fully exempted de minimis continuing connected
transactions pursuant to Rule 14A.76 of the
Listing Rules, and therefore are fully exempted
from the independent shareholders’ approval,
annual review and all disclosure requirements
pursuant to Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

On 2 December 2022, Guangzhou Carpark
Management (Foshan Branch), Foshan Vanke
and Guangzhou Shouzhong (Foshan Branch)
entered into a Rights and Obligations Assignment
Agreement, pursuant to which, Guangzhou
Carpark Management (Foshan Branch) agreed
to assign all its rights and obligations under the
Foshan Carpark Management Agreement to
Guangzhou Shouzhong (Foshan Branch) with
effect from 1 November 2022.

Shenzhen Wanwu Growth Consultancy Services Co., Ltd. (&
NEEYREZARBERAS > “Shenzhen Wanwu”)
is a substantial shareholder of each of the Partnerships.
As the relevant percentage ratios in respect of each of the
Partnerships were less than 5% for the financial year prior
to 2020, the Partnerships were insignificant subsidiaries of
the Company under Rule 14A.09(1) of the Listing Rules and
therefore Shenzhen Wanwu was not a connected person of
the Company under the Listing Rules. Based on the annual
results announcement of the Company for the year ended 31
December 2020, which was published by the Company on 26
March 2021, the Partnerships have ceased to be insignificant
subsidiaries of the Company under Rule 14A.09(1) of the
Listing Rules and Shenzhen Wanwu has become a connected
person of the Company at the subsidiary level under the Listing
Rules.

Given that Shenzhen Gongying, Guangzhou Vanke and Foshan
Vanke are fellow subsidiaries of and therefore associates of
Shenzhen Wanwu, the continuing transactions contemplated
under the Agreements constituted continuing connected
transactions of the Company under the Listing Rules.

Details of the continuing connected transactions contemplated

under the Agreements were disclosed in the announcements of
the Company dated 29 March 2021 and 27 May 2021.
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e)

Provision of Executive Partnership Services
under the Lvhe Partnership Agreement dated 31
December 2021

As stated in the announcement of the Company
dated 31 December 2021, Beijing Heshou Investment
Management Co., Ltd. JERASKEEEBRLE
"Beijing Heshou"), a non-wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company, entered into a partnership agreement
(the “Lvhe Partnership Agreement”) with Shougang
Fund and China Life Investment Management Company
Limited (ISR ERBEEEIEBRAE "China
Life Investment”) for the establishment of a limited
partnership with proposed name of Beijing Lvhe
Equity Investment Partnership (Limited Partnership)
(R eRERESBEE (BRE&®), "Lvhe
Partnership”) to engage in investment management
services. Pursuant to the Lvhe Partnership Agreement,
Beijing Heshou shall provide executive partnership
services (“Executive Partnership Services”) to Lvhe
Partnership during the initial term of eight years of the
Lvhe Partnership commencing from the date specified
in the capital contribution payment notice on which
the second instalment of capital contribution is due to
be made by the partners pursuant to the terms of the
Lvhe Partnership Agreement (the “Initial Term"”), in
return for the executive partnership fee which shall be
calculated as 0.5% per annum of each limited partner’s
remaining paid-in capital contribution and shall be
borne by each limited partner during the term of Lvhe
Partnership.

(e)
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Pursuant to the Lvhe Partnership Agreement, the
executive partnership fee during the Initial Term of Lvhe
Partnership will not exceed the following annual caps:

For the year ending 31 December

REGEGEBHH 0B EEY
BEANATEREFRMETEE
BRI FE LR :

Annual Caps of Executive Partnership Fee

BENAMBLEE BTEaREBHERMNFE LR
(RMB'000)

ARBFT)

2022 4,375
2023 12,500
2024 22,500
2025 27,500
2026 27,500
2027 23,125
2028 20,000
2029 7,500
2030 3,125

Provision of Executive Partnership Services under the
Lvhe Partnership Agreement can synergise with the main
business sector of the Company.

Given that Shougang Fund is a substantial shareholder
and therefore a connected person of the Company, the
provision of Executive Partnership Services under the
Lvhe Partnership Agreement constituted continuing
connected transactions of the Company under the
Listing Rules.

Details of the continuing connected transactions
contemplated under the Lvhe Partnership Agreement
were disclosed in the announcement of the Company
dated 31 December 2021.
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(f)

Investment Advisory Agreement dated 29 June
2022

As stated in the announcement of the Company dated
29 June 2022, Shouhe Limited, an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, entered into an investment
advisory agreement (the “IA Agreement”) with ORIX
Asia Asset Management Limited (“OAAM"), an indirect
wholly-owned subsidiary of ORIX Corporation. Pursuant
to the IA Agreement, OAAM was appointed as the
investment advisor of Shouhe Limited for the provision
of certain investment advisory and other services (the
“IA Services”) for a term not longer than 3 years
commencing from the date of the IA Agreement in
return for an advisory fee (the "Advisory Fee”) to
be calculated and accumulated daily at the rate of
0.5% per annum of the total contributed subscription
amount of an investment fund to be formed, managed
and confirmed by Shouhe Limited with the principal
investment objective as set out in the IA Agreement.

The annual caps of the Advisory Fee payable to OAAM
by Shouhe Limited under the IA Agreement are as
follows:

()
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For the year ending 31 December

HENAMALEE
2022 2023 2024
) ) usp
=7 E E
Annual caps of Advisory Fee
BEENEELR 150,000 1,000,000 1,000,000

The entering into of the IA Agreement helps the
Group realizing a closed-loop asset management cycle,
continuously releasing its operational benefits and
bringing substantial returns to investors.
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Given that ORIX Corporation is a substantial shareholder
of the Company and OAAM is a subsidiary of ORIX
Corporation, OAAM is therefore a connected person of
the Company under the Listing Rules as at the date of
the IA Agreement. Therefore, the provision of the IA
Services under the |A Agreement constituted continuing
connected transactions of the Company under the
Listing Rules.

Details of the continuing connected transactions
contemplated under the IA Agreement were disclosed
in the announcement of the Company dated 29 June
2022.

Provision of Fund Management Services under
the Shoushi Partnership Agreement dated 20
September 2022

As stated in the announcement of the Company dated
20 September 2022, Beijing Shouyuan Investment
Co., Ltd. StREBREKEEMRAT > “Shouyuan
Investment”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, as a limited partner entered into a partnership
agreement (the “Shoushi Partnership Agreement”)
with Beijing Shougang Industrial Investment Private Fund
Management Co., Ltd. GtREHREXRELEESE
BB B “Shougang Industrial Investment”) as
the general partner and executive partner, Shougang
Fund and Beijing Shijingshan Modern Innovation
Industry Development Fund Co., Ltd. QR ASLE
HREAMEXZEEEESABMRRE), each as a limited
partner, for the establishment of a limited partnership
in the PRC with the proposed name of Beijing Shoushi
Science Fiction Industry Equity Investment Fund
(Limited Partnership) IREBARLOEEREREE
% (AR& %), “Shoushi Partnership”). Pursuant
to the Shoushi Partnership Agreement, Beijing Jingxi
Venture Capital Fund Management Co., Ltd. (bR =R
FAEREEESETIERMR AR "Jingxi Venture”), a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, shall be the
manager of the Shoushi Partnership and shall provide
the daily operation and management services (“Fund
Management Services”) to Shoushi Partnership for the
term of the Shoushi Partnership for a management fee
(the “Management Fee"”) in return by entering into
an entrusted management agreement (the "Entrusted
Management Agreement”) among the Shoushi

Shoucheng Holdings Limited Annual Report 2022

)

REBEwZEHP AR ERSE
RABARABZEEREBROAAM
BENTROBRABZH B AR
MRt EHRAIOAAMAB KA T 2 8
BEAT ALLERZE NRERE
RBEBRAABN EHRATHRFE
R 5 o

REWZETRETZHERERS
N BEER AL HIR20225F68
29BN EPIREE -

BHi 420229520 5 A S BB T
IERB T SR

MANT BHEEA2022F9820HM A
LR AATZ2EMBATIER
BRREBRAR (FABREB A
MgERE)) HIZgREEXRE
NEESEBRERAR (FAEEEE
AR TaB A TBHER) i
HEkItRAsUWEBRRAIMEXSE
BRESERLR (BEEBEAEREE
NeliiagwsE (BaaBim=))
MERGEBNERETEIZIEE D
(2 RaAtRERROEERER
EE% (BRa®) (BGEe8)) ° R
BEReEmE AR Z2ENE
NRALRRANEREESETEAIR
~E ((RAEAKR) A0 2818
M EBEAEE BNERERA
AR BN ETE B ((EFE
BigE) TEL8BNEBEREADEA
EERMOREEMEERYS (Ef
EERK) RENEEE (IEBE))
EARR BLEaBEALERER
SR AT BN HERNE L



Partnership, Shougang Industrial Investment and Jingxi
Venture. The term of the Shoushi Partnership as a private
equity fund shall be 6 years commencing on the date
specified on the capital contribution payment notice on
which the first instalment of capital contribution is due
to be made by the partners pursuant to the terms of
the Shoushi Partnership Agreement, the first 4 years of
which shall be the investment period (the “Investment
Period”) and the subsequent 2 years shall be the exit
period (the "Exit Period”). The Management Fee for
(i) the Investment Period shall be 2% per annum of the
sum of the principals actually invested by the Shoushi
Partnership; and (ii) the Exit Period shall be 1.5% per
annum of the total unexited actual invested principals of
the Shoushi Partnership’s invested projects.

Pursuant to the Shoushi Partnership Agreement, the
Management Fee during the term of Shoushi Partnership
will not exceed the following annual caps:

For the year ending 31 December
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Annual Caps of
Management Fee

HENANMBLEE EEENFEE LR
(RMB'000)

AEH (1)

2022 1,000
2023 6,000
2024 6,000
2025 6,000
2026 6,000
2027 4,500
2028 3,375

Provision of Fund Management Services under the
Shoushi Partnership Agreement can improve asset
management standards and service quality of the Group.
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Given that Shougang Industrial Investment is the general
partner of the Shoushi Partnership, Shoushi Partnership
upon established is an associate of Shougang Industrial
Investment and Shougang Group and therefore a
connected person of the Company, the provision of Fund
Management Services by Jingxi Venture to the Shoushi
Partnership under the Shoushi Partnership Agreement
constituted continuing connected transactions of the
Company under the Listing Rules.

Details of the continuing connected transactions
contemplated under the Shoushi Partnership Agreement
and the Entrusted Management Agreement were
disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated
20 September 2022.

Services Agreement dated 6 December 2022

As stated in the announcement of the Company dated
6 December 2022, Beijing Feisi Real Estate Consulting
Co., Ltd. ERIEBEHEZHERAT > “Feisi Real
Estate”), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, entered into a services agreement (the
"Services Agreement”) with Shoushi Changtai, an
associate of Shougang Fund. Pursuant to the Services
Agreement, Feisi Real Estate has agreed to provide
certain tenants referral and related consulting services
(the "Services”) to Shoushi Changtai in respect of the
leasing units of the project property of Chang'an Mills,
which is operated by Shoushi Changtai and is a fund and
the first large-scale commercial office complex project
managed by the Group, for a term commencing on 6
December 2022 and expiring on 31 December 2024 in
return for a fee (the “Service Fee”) to be calculated
at 1.5 times of the effective monthly rent of the leased
property (inclusive of VAT).
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The annual caps of the Service Fee payable to Feisi
Real Estate by Shoushi Changtai under the Services
Agreement are as follows:
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EMERRBERZHEEAIFEEEE
XU RBEFELRAT :

For the year ending 31 December

BENAMMALEE
2022 2023 2024
RMB RMB RMB
AR NE NEHE
Annual caps of Service Fee
REENEE LR 6,500,000 18,000,000 6,000,000

The provision of Services is able to further enhance the
asset value of Chang’an Mills project and provide better
returns to investors and the Group.

Given that Shougang Fund is a substantial shareholder
of the Company, Shoushi Changtai is an associate of
Shougang Fund and therefore is a connected person of
the Company under the Listing Rules as at the date of
the Services Agreement, the provision of the Services
under the Services Agreement constituted continuing
connected transactions of the Company under the
Listing Rules.

Details of the continuing connected transactions
contemplated under the Services Agreement were
disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated
6 December 2022.
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In accordance with Rule 14A.55 of the Listing Rules, the
continuing connected transactions as set out above during the
year have been reviewed by the Independent Non-executive
Directors of the Company who have confirmed that the
transactions have been entered into:

(a) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the
Group;

(b) on normal commercial terms or better; and

(0) according to the relevant agreements governing them on
terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of
the shareholders of the Company as a whole.

The Company’s auditor, PricewaterhouseCoopers (“PwC"),
was engaged to report on the Group's continuing connected
transactions in accordance with Hong Kong Standard
on Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised) "“Assurance
Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical
Financial Information” and with reference to Practice Note
740 (Revised) “Auditor's Letter on Continuing Connected
Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. PwC has
issued an unqualified letter containing findings and conclusions
in respect of the continuing connected transactions disclosed
by the Company in the paragraphs above in accordance with
Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules. A copy of the auditor’s letter
has been provided by the Company to the Stock Exchange.
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The significant related party transactions which were
undertaken in the normal course of business are set out in note
33 to the consolidated financial statements. For those related
party transactions that constituted connected transactions
or continuing connected transactions (as the case may be)
(other than those described in the section above headed
“CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND CONTINUING CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS") under the Listing Rules, such transactions
were fully exempt from shareholders’ approval, annual review
and all disclosure requirements under Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company’'s corporate governance practices are set out in
the Corporate Governance Report on pages 59 to 98 of this
annual report.

ENVIRONMENTAL AND SOCIAL MATTERS

The Company's compliance with the relevant provisions set out
in the Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide
in Appendix 27 of the Listing Rules for the financial year ended
31 December 2022 will be set out in a separate Environmental,
Social and Governance Report to be published on the websites
of the Company and Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing
Limited on the same day of publication of this annual report.

AUDITOR

PwC will retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for
reappointment at the forthcoming annual general meeting. A
resolution will be submitted to the forthcoming annual general
meeting to reappoint PwC as the auditor of the Company.

By order of the Board
Zhao Tianyang

Chairman

Hong Kong, 24 March 2023
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-
pwc B R Ak

To the Members of Shoucheng Holdings Limited BNEEERBRAGRKE
(incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability) (REEAFMRAIIBIERA E])
OPINION BER

What we have audited BHEBHNAR

The consolidated financial statements of Shoucheng Holdings BERIZERAREAT U THEBIEATI) K&
Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”), MiIBAT UT#HEEEM)) 7HNFH156E
which are set out on pages 156 to 317, comprise: BN7TENGREMBRE > 815

. the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 e R2022F12A31BNEE M BRI
December 2022; =

. the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for e HEZHILFENGFE2ERGER ;
the year then ended;

. the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the e HEZBIFENGEHDEER;
year then ended,;

. the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year e HEZOALFENFEaRERER
then ended; and 4

. the notes to the consolidated financial statements, e GEVHRERNF SFETEFHH

which include significant accounting policies and other RREMBEEES -
explanatory information.
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Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of
the Group as at 31 December 2022, and of its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs"”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") and have
been properly prepared in compliance with the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the
Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities
in accordance with the Code.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming
our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion
on these matters.

Key audit matter identified in our audit is related to revenue
recognition — construction revenue from service concession
arrangements, fund management services income and excess
return from investment funds.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
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Key Audit Matter
RREtEE

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BPNEANAEERRESFE

Revenue recognition - construction revenue from service concession arrangements, fund management
services income and excess return from investment funds

WAER -RBEFCELHZERA - ESEERFBURANKEERENBEERRK

Refer to Notes 2.25, 4.1(e), 4.2(b) and 5 to the
consolidated financial statements.

The Group recognised total revenue of
HK$1,599,809,000 for the year ended 31 December
2022, in which construction revenue from service
concession arrangements, fund management services
income and excess return from investment funds
recognised were HK$124,594,000, HK$186,833,000
and HK$515,489,000, respectively. The aggregate of
these revenue represented approximately 51.7% of the
total revenue of the Group.

S EEMHFERERDMEE2.254.1(e)~ 4.2(b)F05 °

SEEREE2022F 128310 EEFERIERAS
75 151,599,809,000 0 HFRBFHAKCES 2HEE
BA-ESEEBERBFURANRLEESNBELRRD
Al %78 15124,594,0007T ~ A #5186,833,0007 1 &1
515,489,000 B L WA AR A E BB B AD
51.7% ¢

Our audit procedures in relation to the recognition of
these revenue included:

- understanding of the management’s internal
control of revenue recognition, the basis,
calculation and timing of the recognition,
and assessed the inherent risk of material
misstatement by considering the degree of
estimation uncertainty and level of other
inherent risk factors such as subjectivity; and

- evaluating the appropriateness of the revenue
recognition policies for each revenue stream
as adopted by the management.

AR RARITHEFEFETEZERE .

— TR EIEE B W AR R B P 3 £ ) A ST OR
R IBE BT HEE MR EMNEME
ERBERERAKE  NEHMETE T ERER
BEA A ;

— FHEEERERSEBACRTRB WA RS
RHNBEENE-
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Key Audit Matter
RSB EE

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
RPN EANAEERRESFIE

Revenue recognition — construction revenue from service concession arrangements, fund management
services income and excess return from investment funds (continued)

WAHEDR -RBEFCELHBA - ESEERFUANKREERSNEERDR (&

A

Construction revenue from service
concession arrangements

The Group entered into service concession
arrangements with local governments or parties
in respect of its carpark projects in different
locations in Mainland China on a Build-
Operate-Transfer (“BOT") basis. Under the
service concession arrangements, the Group
was responsible for construction of the carpark
assets in the construction phase and operated
these carpark assets for less than 25 years. The
Group generated cash flows over the operation
phase of these arrangements.

During the construction phase of BOT projects,
the Group recognised construction service
revenue at fair value based on construction costs
plus a mark-up margin.

RS E R L HRERA

EEEHE PRI M BT URE-KE-E%(BOT)
BAREREESEERBANRBEFEER
W& - REBERFBEFECELHHR SEEE
ERCERREIERKREERS T BB25FF
BEEARKXMNKEEE . EEETEERGTH
BIEEIREZRA °

ABOTIEEWREGHIRE > BSEERMAMAE
EGEFHANEDRERA

For construction revenue from service concession
arrangements, our audit procedures also included the
following:

- evaluating the Group's process for applying
the requirements of the Hong Kong (IFRIC)
Interpretation 12 — Service Concession
Arrangements (“HK(IFRIC)-Int 12")
and inspecting associated contracts and
documents for projects which commenced
construction in the current year to assess
whether the carpark projects fell within the
scope of the HK(IFRIC)-Int 12;

- engaging our internal valuation specialists
to assists us in evaluating the assumptions
adopted by management in determining the
fair value of construction services delivered,
including the mark-up margin estimated for
the construction services by benchmarking
against other comparable companies with
similar projects;

- inspecting underlying documents, on a sample
basis, for actual costs incurred during the
construction phase of contracts;

RBHFEEZFIERBA > HARIT T UTH
B ¢

— B EEERREE ERMBRE2REZER
BE) —2RBS12RRBEAEREENRE
BE EEEXFERRRENEBESR"
Ut EameE s BRMBREEREES
g) —RRF12RMBEFEL;

— BREAMAABLEERZSEZS TE FEE
EETRISERERGHLAABERAERAN
BRESEGE SEBBAA L ARBALUIRER
BRRIRBEFETHLER ;

— MRS ARERERFTELENENIRFX
s
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Key Audit Matter
RREtEE

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BPNEANAEERRESFE

Revenue recognition - construction revenue from service concession arrangements, fund management

services income and excess return from investment funds (continued)

WARE -REBERFEELRHBEERA - EEERRFUANREESNERER (&

A

Construction revenue from service
concession arrangements (continued)

Where construction services were not completed
at the end of a reporting period, construction
service revenue was recognised using the
percentage of completion method, measured
by reference to the percentage of actual costs
incurred to date to estimated budgeted costs of
the entire construction project.

We focus on this area as the application of
the requirement of the prevailing accounting
standards could be complex and involved the
exercise of significant management judgement
and estimates which could give rise to errors in
the recognition of construction revenue.

IRBIFRERHBENRA (B
HRREPRARTINRERT > SE£EERE
TLBEDLENAE BUERESE LN AGEREE
BEEENR AN AEBLEAIRESEREWA -

PR RBHEFECERLFRABESREE
SRR AAERTEEINERNERER
LEREH ERESHRESREAREEREH &
GEthE ERASENELEW AR LIRS
e

assessing whether there is any indication of
management bias in the total contract costs
estimation by performing a retrospective
review of the historical accuracy of contract
costs for similar contracts;

re-calculating the percentage of completion
of incomplete construction contracts at the
end of the reporting period by comparing
the actual costs incurred to date with total
estimated costs on completion; and

obtaining representation from management
of the Group in the management’s judgement
applied on assessment of the recognition of
construction revenue from service concession
arrangements.

BENALUSONTES BT RERELER
FETBMMEEZ TEEEBELETREA
RAEREEFEEERRRM ;

HRNBREPRRTINEESNUBREH
ERTIETEFTER AN ERABTETTE
5

MEERBNTEESRBEFEERHES
WA FR R BY 7 BT BN R BR & o
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Key Audit Matter
RSB EE

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
RPN EANAEERRESFIE

Revenue recognition - construction revenue from service concession arrangements, fund management

services income and excess return from investment funds (continued)

WARE -RERFEELHRERA - EEERRFUANREESHNEREIR (&

Fund management services income and
excess return from investment funds

The Group generated fund management services
income and excess return from investments
funds of which the Group served as the general
partner or manager.

The Group recognised fund management
services income and excess return based on
manual calculation process and there is an
inherent risk of material misstatement due to
the following:

a) Interpretation of contractual terms
from relevant investment management
agreements;

BT EERBBVANKERSHEED R
EEERIANESEERFRANBIER R
EEFEIESEBEABANEEANR
BREHEE-

R
>

EEERFWANBELRKRNGFETIEZAA
THE AR UTRE FAEERBEHRHNES R

oo C
RA e

a) EAREEEWHZETHRIEREOEE

For revenue from fund management services income
and excess return from investment funds, our audit
procedures also included the following:

- reading management service agreements, on
a sample basis, and considering the Group’s
accounting policies for the recognition of
revenue with reference to the terms of the
agreements and the requirements of the
prevailing accounting standards;

- checking the accuracy of the records by
examining relevant third party custodian
statements;

HESEERBRAKRKREEZNBRELOR  RAR
TUTHESER

— HEREERBHE TR SSEEUAESR
B HRESTSRIGAGRRKRIBTIEL
BIEX ;

— BREEFE=ARSEANBER BETEESR
EEEREN
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Key Audit Matter
Bt EE

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
RPN EANAEERRESFE

Revenue recognition - construction revenue from service concession arrangements, fund management

services income and excess return from investment funds (continued)

WARER -RBEFEERZHBA - ESEERFUANKRERESNERLDR (&

B Fund management services income and
excess return from investment funds
(continued)

b) Manual input of key contractual terms
and fee rates in relevant spreadsheets;
and

C) Manual input of details of assets under

management obtained from the third
party administrators.

We focused on this area due to the
significance of the amount and the manual
calculation process in deriving involved in fund
management services income and excess return
from investment funds recognition involved
management judgement and estimates.

B. ETEERBUAMKREERTHNBLERIRK (@)
by HEHBEAEXRTFHEARRHEMER
MER M

0 FHIRARB=ZAZEAERNRET
RN EEEESRENFARGEE -

HREEEXR BRESFBRAR S RNAFEFH
FEEEENER - RILHFIEED REEEHH
G 2 ETEERBUARKRERESHNE
BB AHBETER

- checking the mathematical accuracy of the
calculation of management fee, performance
fee and excess return;

- checking on a sample basis, the settlement
of the fund management services income and
excess return from the investment funds; and

- obtaining representation from management
of the Group in the management’s judgement
applied on assessment of the recognition of
excess return from investment funds.

Based on our audit procedures performed, we found
that revenue recognised were supported by the
available evidence.
— R EIRER - BNERANBERRTENE
M

— MRS ABEEERBRARREEEZN
HBRERIHRNEE ;

— PREEERFLRIREESHBELR
HETEENERE -

RRFT AT 5172 /7 T P9 ¥ WA B SB A L B9 1 i
RBRESIEEI -
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises all of the
information included in the annual report other than the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information
is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we
are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in
this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THE
AUDIT COMMITTEE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give
a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the
HKICPA and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for
such internal control as the directors determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
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In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as
a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to
cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the Group's
financial reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. We
report our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with
Section 405 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and for
no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but
is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when
it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and
are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.
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As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant
to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the Group’s internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the directors.

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of
the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group's ability to continue
as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention
in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the
date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as
a going concern.
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o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in @ manner that achieves fair presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding
the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible
for the direction, supervision and performance of the
group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies
in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that
we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear
on our independence, and where applicable, actions taken to
eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe
these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.
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The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this HEXRBIZHEMBENETEEEEAR
independent auditor’s report is Ng Ka Ho. = 55 ©

PricewaterhouseCoopers BRERKEGHEMEREMR

Certified Public Accountants HEEET

Hong Kong, 24 March 2023 H#2023FE3824H
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

an (= éﬁﬂ&m%’%

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022 # E2022F12831HLEEE

2022 2021
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
23 EBEFT BEFT
Revenue WA 5 1,599,809 1,195,031
Cost of sales IHE B A (535,391) (647,828)
Gross profit EF 1,064,418 547,203
Other income H iUz A 6 480,511 307,617
Other gains, net H g w0 28 7 194,354 128,016
Provision for impairment loss FE U BR AR 2 R 1B
for trade receivables BB 21 (14,600) (70,731)
Administrative expenses EEER (378,568) (343,154)
Operating profit mEHET 8 1,346,115 568,951
Finance costs MR AR 10 (102,356) (74,343)
Provision for impairment of —IBEREREEE
an investment 19 - (1,615,179)
Share of results of associates BAOMENB ZEE 18(A) 499 16,632
Share of results of joint ventures BOSERBZEE 18(B) (60,820) 114,826
Profit/(loss) before income tax MREREMALER, (B518) 1,183,438 (989,113)
Income tax expense Fri8f sz 11 (269,091) (124,413)
Profit/(loss) for the year FEEHN (5B) 914,347 (1,113,526)
Profit/(loss) is attributable to: LT ALTESER,
(B548) -
Owners of the Company KABEB A 922,010 (1,095,327)
Non-controlling interests JEERR R (7,663) (18,199)
914,347 (1,113,526)
The notes on pages 165 to 317 are an integral part of these 1653 17E ARG EHM BRI ZE

consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FMEEREERmR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022 E(ZFE2022412831HIEEE

2022 2021
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
Vit:3 BT BIEF T
Other comprehensive (loss)/income Hth&mE (5i8) Ik
Items that have been/may be B 11 A EN S
subsequently reclassified to HERm ZHEE
profit or loss:
Exchange differences arising on TEBINEBEL ZER
translation of foreign operations ZEE (215,479) 10,098
Release of exchange reserve upon EENEARBFEN
disposal of asset classified as held BEERERIMEGRE
for sale 19 (42,618) -
Share of exchange differences of BEBHELABDREERT
associates and joint ventures arising ~ ITEIBIINEFELEZE
on translation of foreign operations RERE (71,027) 27,577
Items that will not be reclassified T EEHSFEEHEZREZ
to profit or loss: B :
Exchange differences arising on TEBINEBEL ZER
translation of foreign operations =58 (8,045) -
Fair value changes on financial BAnBES AHEMEE!
assets at fair value through other WHmZz2EMEEZARD
comprehensive income ("FVOCI") BEEE 20 76,145 (14,975)
Share of fair value changes on BE—REMERBWIET
investment in equity instruments BEANBES AHM
designated at FVOCI of an associate ~ 2EWHmZRBRATER
BZARBEES - 8,253
Other comprehensive (loss)/income FEH(th (518) 2@
for the year U = (261,024) 30,953
Total comprehensive income/(loss) F£EZ2HEULE ~ (B18)
for the year “E 653,323 (1,082,573)
Total comprehensive income/(loss) WU TATREEEEKRE
attributable to: (E548) 4848 :
Owners of the Company FiN/NETEZZE N 669,031 (1,064,630)
Non-controlling interests JEEER R (15,708) (17,943)
653,323 (1,082,573)
Earnings/(loss) per share for profit/ QT HEE AEMEEF
(loss) attributable to the owners (B5i8) 2 sREBH
of the Company: (B548) :
- Basic earnings/(loss) per share -BREARA (BB
(HK cents) (BA) 12(a) 12.97 (15.19)
— Diluted earnings/(loss) per share - BRERRA (B8
(HK cents) BAL) 12(b) 12.97 (15.19)

The notes on pages 165 to 317 are an integral part of these FBISEINTEZHNFARGREHFRKR 2T
consolidated financial statements. BB ER(D o
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

ma MBI RAR

AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2022 /220224 12H31H

2022 2021
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
ir23 BEFT BIEF T
Assets BE
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment M2~ R e 58 1 13(A) 22,939 35,663
Right-of-use assets CREEE 13(B) 2,051,682 2,204,768
Contract assets in respect of service  EARRFEIFHE S ZHEARH
concession arrangements NENEE 5 209,368 124,017
Investment properties KEME 14 615,579 257,466
Investments in associates REE AT ZRE 18(A) 163,790 173,538
Investments in joint ventures REE AT ZRE 18(B) 650,204 854,694
Investments — non-current LB —IEmE) 20 3,490,102 1,075,915
Prepayments and deposits FEBNMIEBEREE 21 167,162 132,994
Deferred income tax assets FIEFRSIRE E 28 5,291 3,304
Other non-current assets HMIERBEE 15 403,233 413,607
Total non-current assets EREIEEME 7,779,350 5,275,966
Current assets BB E
Trade receivables FE IR BR #k 21 355,961 135,144
Prepayments, deposits and other BB s R EMEU
receivables FIE 21 300,936 262,947
Investments — current KE—RH 20 1,495,605 1,523,213
Time deposits with maturity over three Z R ={EH REIEZ EH
months F® 22 150,654 100,000
Bank balances and cash IRITHE R RIRE 22 3,573,685 2,573,462
5,876,841 4,594,766
Asset classified as held for sale FERENEE 19 - 3,511,510
Total current assets REBEEEE 5,876,841 8,106,276
Total assets BELE 13,656,191 13,382,242
Equity i
Capital and reserves G 7 e (5 5
Share capital f& s 23 12,546,847 12,546,847
Reserves B (2,619,258) (2,406,210)
Capital and reserves attributable to X F]#HE AEERKRE K
owners of the Company B 9,927,589 10,140,637
Non-controlling interests JEERER 96,470 87,770
Total equity HHEE 10,024,059 10,228,407
The notes on pages 165 to 317 are an integral part of these 1653 17E ARG EHM BRI ZE

consolidated financial statements.

BEER(D o
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
EEMBIRRR

AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2022 7220224 12831H

2022 2021
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
Vi3 EBEFT BIEFT
Liabilities afE
Non-current liabilities ERHER
Borrowings — non-current B —IETE 27 465,572 573,605
Lease liabilities — non-current HEaeE-FRE 13(B) 1,448,146 1,512,358
Deferred income tax liabilities RIEPFIEREE 28 160,013 59,796
Financial liabilities at fair value through #AABEIABHZNE
profit or loss — non-current MmEeE-—JER® 26 87,461 -
Total non-current liabilities JEREIBEAE 2,161,192 2,145,759
Current liabilities mENaE
Trade payables FETER R 25 353,950 389,337
Other payables, provision and HMEARIE B E &
accrued liabilities fEst&E 25 273,174 240,159
Contract liabilities aH8E 22,517 23,822
Financial liabilities at fair value BARBESAEGRN
through profit or loss — current THEaE—NE 26 925 -
Tax payable FEIHIE 137,716 98,446
Borrowings — current B —nE 27 581,821 179,037
Lease liabilities — current iEN ==X~ Eai¥:) 13(B) 100,837 77,275
Total current liabilities mEBaERE 1,470,940 1,008,076
Total liabilities aEBEE 3,632,132 3,153,835
Total equity and liabilities EakaFERE 13,656,191 13,382,242

The notes on pages 165 to 317 are an integral part of these S165E317H ARG ESHBFREZE

consolidated financial statements.

AR EBD o

The consolidated financial statements on pages 156 to 317 &N FEI156E317B 2 S MBREIN2023E
were approved by the Board of Directors on 24 March 2023 3B24BEEEFEEH A TRESE-

and were signed on its behalf.

Zhao Tianyang

fEPN
Director

EF

Li Wei
=E
Director

EBEF
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

n‘IT A -"-E%@Ji

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022 # E2022F12831HLEEE

Note (i):

The PRC laws and regulations require companies registered in
the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”,
of this report shall exclude Hong Kong Special Administrative

for the purpose
Region of the PRC (“Hong Kong"”), the Macao Special
Administrative Region of the PRC and Taiwan, China) to provide
for certain statutory reserves, which are to be appropriated
from the net profit (after offsetting accumulated losses from
prior years) as reported in their respective statutory financial
statements, before profit distributions to equity holder.

All statutory reserves are created for specific purposes. The
PRC company is required to appropriate 10% of net profits to
statutory reserves, upon distribution of its post-tax profits of
the current year. A company may discontinue the contribution
when the aggregate sum of the statutory surplus reserve is
more than 50% of its registered capital. The statutory reserves
shall only be used to make up losses of the company, to expand
the company’s production operations, or to increase the capital
of the company.

The notes on pages 165 to 317 are an integral part of these
consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
n‘7|' = Eﬁﬁ/}lli%

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022 E(ZFE2022412831HIEEE

2022 2021
Note HK$000 HK$'000
Mzt BIEFT BIEFT
Cash flows from operating activities ZEEFHZHER=E
Net cash generated from/ EBEEMRS (FTH)

(used in) operations IRE 358 31(a) 171,361 (730,504)
Income tax paid [SENIIESE (114,877) (52,975)
Net cash generated from/(used in) &2 ;EEFF1E, (FFA)

operating activities ZIREFEE 56,484 (783,479)
Cash flows from investing activities EEEZHZIRERE
Dividends received BWKE 414,899 -
Dividends received from associates BB E AT ZIKRE 1,439 256,307
Dividends received from joint ventures BIW&EE AT ZiRE 20,360 76,829
Interest received 2FE 62,873 41,523
Proceeds from disposal of asset held for HEFEZFENEEZ

sale PRIS I8 19 1,440,000 -
Acquisition of a subsidiary, net of cash  UxEE—RIK B AT 34 (22,126) -
Withdrawal of deposits with maturity ~— IEERZHR3ES N2

over three months EHER 100,000 -
Placement of deposit with maturity over 7FMZMR3MER REIHE

three months ERRFEM (150,654) (100,000)
Withdrawal of restricted bank deposits 1Z2ENZ [RHISRTTERX - 36,890
Purchase of property, plant and BEYE- -HEMREE

equipment 13(A) (5,586) (2,155)
Capital injections into associates and FETFHEAT RS

joint ventures NCT! - (140,270)
Addition of financial assets at fair value ,/J\\ET?&@%ETE AR

through profit or loss (“FVPL") MY EREE (1,267,173) (541,013)
Proceeds from disposal of financial HERANBETT AR

assets at FVPL HEMEEZFR

RIE 1,333,150 401,446
Proceeds from disposal of financial HERBERBRAAR

assets at amortised cost THMEE - 93,671
Proceeds from disposal of other non- HEEMIERSHEE

current assets Fri8 sk ia 8,266 25,403
Proceeds from disposal of financial HERAABES AR

assets at FVOCI tEEREZSHE

=5 15,980 -
Purchase of financial assets at FVOCI RERANEBESAR

HMEERE SRE

=3 (3,464) (200,000)
Purchase of other non-current assets BEEMIERBEE (30,744) (22,499)
Purchase of investment properties BEREYE 14 (109,376) (34,130)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEME BERZEZ

plant and equipment P8R8 13(A) 575 -
Net cash generated from/(used in) REEEFIE, (FFA)

investing activities Z2HEFEE 1,808,419 (107,998)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
n‘7|' = EE@/}ILE%

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022 # E2022F12831HLEEE

2022 2021
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
Hiaz EBETFT BT
Cash flows from financing activities FBIEEHZHRER=E
Repayment of borrowings BEEN (312,593) (26,898)
Proceeds from borrowings =E Fﬁﬁ?’}i 613,893 259,753
Net proceeds from issue of ordinary BITERB ExZFﬁ’%%’XIE
shares JREA 23 = 419,300
Repayment of lease liabilities T BEHEaE (167,853) (224,178)
Step acquisition in a subsidiary DEWE—ENE AT 30(a) = (21,138)
Capital injection from non-controlling  JE¥ERRET T E
interests 30(b) 24,408 1,604
Dividends paid to the Company’s NFERBIBREZRE
shareholders 29 (877,971) (699,938)
Dividends paid to non-controlling A FHBARIEZER
interests in subsidiaries Rz RE - (12,100)
Payment for repurchase of shares AR [ ERIE (19,886) -
Net cash used in financing activities RIE;EEIFFAZ
HEFEE (740,002) (303,595)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash RERREESEEWIEM
and cash equivalents JGRL) 348 1,124,901 (1,195,072)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning F#ZREKRBEESH
of the year 1BEY 2,573,462 3,738,533
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes #MNEEREiH) » 82 (124,678) 30,001
Cash and cash equivalents at end of EXZHERIEEE
year BY 22 3,573,685 2,573,462

The notes on pages 165 to 317 are an integral part of these SF165HEF317HZMAARGESHTHFRE
consolidated financial statements. ZERERD o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mE BRI

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022 E(ZFE2022412831HIEEE

GENERAL INFORMATION

Shoucheng Holdings Limited (the “Company”) is
incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability and its
shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

The Company is an investment holding company
and together with its subsidiaries (the “Group”) are
principally engaged in infrastructure assets management.
The Company’s principal subsidiaries, associates and
joint ventures are set out in Notes 17 and 18.

The addresses of the registered office and principal
place of business of the Company are 7th Floor, Bank
of East Asia Harbour View Centre, 56 Gloucester Road,
Wanchai, Hong Kong.

The consolidated financial statements are presented
in thousands of units of Hong Kong dollars ("HK$"),
unless otherwise stated. These financial statements have
been reviewed by the audit committee of the Company
and approved for issue by the Board of Directors on 24
March 2023.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

This note provides a list of the significant accounting
policies adopted in the preparation of these consolidated
financial statements. These policies have been
consistently applied to all the years presented, unless
otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation
(a) Compliance with HKFRSs and HKCO

The consolidated financial statements of the
Company have been prepared in accordance with
all applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) and requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622).

—ARE#

BREZERARAR (FAQ8)) HRE
BEMKILZABRRAR HROES
BMAaXZRBERAE (TR L
o

ARBBEREERAE  EREKB
RE)(THRER) 2ZTEXHKAERZ
MEEER ARBITEWBAR K
ENEIREE RN EE17K18°

ARDZEMPERREBEE M
2B EAEFE LITE6RRET
BT LR LTI

BRIEBHERPA TAERGEHHRE
UAETTHEMEY ZEHHER
REKARNBIBEZLZEGEMITHE
BER2023FE38248 H AT

EESSTHREE

MUREGEVMBRRBERBZETES
STEUGREN FTX - FRIFESARE T8l
WEBREMZIZMEFERNER
FER -

21 REUEE
(@) HFE(BEYBREER)IREE
(2 E1%61)

ERBZFEEHMBRETDRE
FREERZEBMB®RS %R
(BEEMBHREERN) XEB
NERD (BEEREF6228) =~
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022 # E2022F12831HLEEE

166

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.1
(b)

2.1.1
(a)

Basis of preparation (continued)
Historical cost convention

The consolidated financial statements have
been prepared under historical cost convention,
as modified by the revaluation of investment
properties, the financial assets and liabilities
measured at fair value (including derivative
instruments) and the asset held for sale measured
at the lower of carrying amount and fair value
less cost to sell.

Changes in accounting policy and disclosures

New and amended standards adopted by the
Group

The Group has applied the following amendments
or annual improvements for the first time for their
annual reporting period commencing 1 January
2022:

o Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions
(Amendments) — Amendments to HKFRS
16

o HKFRSs Standards Annual Improvements —
HKFRSs annual improvements 2018-2020
cycle

o Reference to the Conceptual Framework —

Amendments to HKFRS 3

o Property, Plant and Equipment — Proceeds
before Intended Use — Amendments to
HKAS 16

o Cost of Fulfilling a Contract — Amendments
to HKAS 37

o Revised Accounting Guideline 5 Merger

Accounting for Common Control
Combinations — Accounting Guideline 5
(revised)

Shoucheng Holdings Limited Annual Report 2022
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mE BRI

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022 E(ZFE2022412831HIEEE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.1
2.1.1

(b)

Basis of preparation (continued)

Changes in accounting policy and disclosures
(continued)

New and amended HKFRSs issued but not yet
effective

Certain new accounting standards, amendments
to accounting standards and interpretations
have been published that are not mandatory
for 31 December 2022 financial years and have
not been early adopted by the Group. These
standards, amendments or interpretations are not
expected to have a material impact on the entity
in the current or future financial years and on
foreseeable future transactions.

2

2.1
2.1.1

(b)

EEEHERBE (@

Bt HEEBRWE (B

ENBME M R 5] B (E
SIEBUMBmEEL
BTG ERERZE
IR RIECEMEEE N E L
202212831 H IEFE 5@l #
TMAEETKRIEREHR M -ZE
MEARERESTBA G Y
ZERSRI I RRGBFEEMU
ERABRNARRRZGELEEKX

=,
FEo

Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or after
RT3 Az &M
ZEHREN

HKFRS 17
ERAMBRSERSI79

Insurance Contracts

REEE
Amendments to HKFRS 17

Contracts
SR BREEAFE17REE]T
HKFRS 17

BBMBREERB175E
A-tERER

Amendments to HKFRS 17 Insurance
BENBRSENS1TRERR SR ZEET
Initial application of HKFRS 17 and HKFRS 9 —

Comparative information

EEMBREENB1TRANBIRNIE

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKFRS Disclosure of Accounting Policies

Practice Statement 2

ERGHERBIREIREE GHBRZEKE (5]

MBRSENEBLSH2R

Amendments to HKAS 8
EB G 2ERIBE8TREET G ER

Definition of Accounting Estimates

1 January 2023
2023F1H1H

1 January 2023
2023F181H
1 January 2023

2023F181H

1 January 2023

2023F181H

1 January 2023
2023F1H1H
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR e M HRR MR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mE BRI

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022 E(ZFE2022412831HIEEE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.2

(a)

Principles of consolidation and equity
accounting

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities over which the Group
has control. The Group controls an entity where
the Group is exposed to, or has rights to, variable
returns from its involvement with the entity and
has the ability to affect those returns through
its power to direct the activities of the entity.
Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date
on which control is transferred to the Group. They
are deconsolidated from the date that control
ceases.

The acquisition method of accounting is used to
account for business combinations by the Group.

Intercompany transactions, balances and
unrealised gains on transactions between group
companies are eliminated. Unrealised losses are
also eliminated unless the transaction provides
evidence of an impairment of the transferred
asset. Accounting policies of subsidiaries have
been changed where necessary to ensure
consistency with the policies adopted by the
Group.

Non-controlling interests in the results and
equity of subsidiaries are shown separately in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income,
consolidated statement of changes in equity
and consolidated statement of financial position
respectively.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022 # E2022F12831HLEEE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.2

(b)

(c)

Principles of consolidation and equity
accounting (continued)

Associates

Associates are all entities over which the Group
has significant influence but not control or
joint control. This is generally the case where
the Group holds between 20% and 50% of
the voting rights. Investments in associates
are accounted for using the equity method of
accounting, after initially being recognised at
cost.

Joint arrangements

Under HKFRS 11
investments in joint arrangements are classified

“Joint Arrangements”

as either joint operations or joint ventures. The
classification depends on the contractual rights
and obligations of each investor, rather than the
legal structure of the joint arrangement. The
Company has joint ventures. Interests in joint
ventures are accounted for using the equity
method (see (d) below), after initially being
recognised at cost in the consolidated statement
of financial position.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mE BRI

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022 E(ZFE2022412831HIEEE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.2

(d)

Principles of consolidation and equity
accounting (continued)

Equity accounting

Under the equity method of accounting, the
investments are initially recognised at cost and
adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group’ s
share of the post-acquisition profits or losses
of the investee in consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, and the Group’s share
of movements in other comprehensive income
of the investee in other comprehensive income.
Dividends received or receivable from associates
or joint ventures are recognised as a reduction in
the carrying amount of the investment.

When the Group’s share of losses in an equity
— accounted investment equals or exceeds
its interest in the entity, including any other
unsecured long term receivables, the Group does
not recognise further losses, unless it has incurred
obligations or made payments on behalf of the
other entity.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the
Group and its associates and joint ventures
are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s
interest in these entities. Unrealised losses
are also eliminated unless the transaction
provides evidence of an impairment of the
asset transferred. Accounting policies of equity
accounted investees have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the policies
adopted by the Group.

The carrying amount of equity-accounted
investments are tested for impairment accordance
with the policy described in Note 2.10.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022 # E2022F12831HLEEE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.2

(e)

Principles of consolidation and equity
accounting (continued)

Changes in ownership interests

The Group treats transactions with non-
controlling interests that do not result in a loss
of control as transactions with equity owners
of the Group. A change in ownership interest
results in an adjustment between the carrying
amounts of the controlling and non-controlling
interests to reflect their relative interests in the
subsidiary. Any difference between the amount of
the adjustment to non-controlling interests and
any consideration paid or received is recognised
in a separate reserve within equity attributable to
owners of the Company.

When the Group ceases to consolidate or equity
account for an investment because of a loss of
control or joint control, any retained interest in
the entity is remeasured to its fair value with
the change in carrying amount recognised in
consolidated statement of comprehensive income.
This fair value becomes the initial carrying amount
for the purposes of subsequently accounting for
the retained interest as an associated company,
joint venture or financial asset. In addition,
any amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income in respect of that entity
are accounted for as if the Group had directly
disposed of the related assets or liabilities. This
may mean that amounts previously recognised in
other comprehensive income are reclassified to
profit or loss or transferred to another category
of equity as specified/permitted by applicable
HKFRSs.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mE BRI

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022 E(ZFE2022412831HIEEE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.2

(e)

2.3

Principles of consolidation and equity
accounting (continued)

Changes in ownership interests (continued)

If the ownership interest in a joint venture
or an associate is reduced but joint control
or significant influence is retained, only a
proportionate share of the amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income are
reclassified to profit or loss where appropriate.

Business combinations

The acquisition method of accounting is used to
account for all business combinations, regardless
of whether equity instruments or other assets are
acquired. The consideration transferred for the
acquisitions of subsidiaries comprises the:

° fair values of the assets transferred;

. liabilities incurred to the former owners of
the acquired business;

o equity interests issued by the Group;
o fair value of any asset or liability
resulting from a contingent consideration

arrangement; and

o fair value of any pre-existing equity interest
in the subsidiary.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022 # E2022F12831HLEEE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.3

Business combinations (continued)

Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and
contingent liabilities assumed in a business
combination are, with limited exceptions,
measured initially at their fair values at the
acquisition date. The Group recognises any non-
controlling interest in the acquired entity on an
acquisition-by-acquisition basis either at fair value
or at the non-controlling interest's proportionate
share of the acquired entity’s net identifiable
assets.

Acquisition— related costs are expensed as
incurred.

The excess of the:

° consideration transferred;

o amount of any non-controlling interest in
the acquired entity; and

o acquisition-date fair value of any previous
equity interest in the acquired entity.

over the fair value of the net identifiable assets
acquired is recorded as goodwill. If those amounts
are less than the fair value of the net identifiable
assets of the business acquired, the difference is
recognised directly in profit or loss as a gain on
bargain purchase.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022 E(ZFE2022412831HIEEE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.3

2.4

Business combinations (continued)

Where settlement of any part of cash
consideration is deferred, the amounts payable in
the future are discounted to their present value as
at the date of exchange. The discount rate used
is the entity’s incremental borrowing rate, being
the rate at which a similar borrowing could be
obtained from an independent financier under
comparable terms and conditions. Contingent
consideration is classified either as equity or a
financial liability. Amounts classified as a financial
liability are subsequently remeasured to fair value
with changes in fair value recognised in profit or
loss.

If the business combination is achieved in
stages, the acquisition date carrying value of
the acquirer’s previously held equity interest in
the acquiree is remeasured to fair value at the
acquisition date. Any gains or losses arising from
such remeasurement are recognised in profit or
loss.

Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for
at cost less impairment. Cost includes direct
attributable costs of investment. The results of
subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company on
the basis of dividend received and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in
subsidiaries is required upon receiving a dividend
from these investments if the dividend exceeds
the total comprehensive income of the subsidiary
in the period the dividend is declared or if the
carrying amount of the investment in the separate
financial statements exceeds the carrying amount
in the consolidated financial statements of the
investee's net assets including goodwill.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022 # E2022F12831HLEEE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.5

2.6
(a)

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner
consistent with the internal reporting provided to
the chief operating decision makers.

Management has determined the operating
segments based on the reports reviewed by
the chief operating decision makers, being the
Executive Directors of the Company, that are
used to make strategic decisions and resources
allocation. The Group’s businesses are managed
according to the type of products and services
they provide. No operating segments identified
by the chief operating decision makers have been
aggregated in arriving at the reportable segments
of the Group.

Foreign currency translation
Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each
of the Group’'s entities are measured using the
currency of the primary economic environment
in which the entity operates (the “functional
currency”). The consolidated financial statements
are presented in Hong Kong dollar, which is
Company'’s functional and presentation currency.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mE BRI

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022 E(ZFE2022412831HIEEE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.6
(b)

Foreign currency translation (continued)
Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into
the functional currency using the exchange rates
at the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange
gains and losses resulting from the settlement
of such transactions and from the translation of
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies at year end exchange rates
are generally recognised in profit or loss. They
are deferred in equity if they relate to qualifying
cash flow hedges and qualifying net investment
hedges or are attributable to part of the net
investment in a foreign operation.

Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate
to borrowings are presented in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, within
finance costs. All other foreign exchange gains
and losses are presented in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income on a net
basis within other gains, net.

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair
value in a foreign currency are translated using
the exchange rates at the date when the fair
value was determined. Translation differences
on assets and liabilities carried at fair value are
reported as part of the fair value gain or loss.
For example, translation differences on non-
monetary assets and liabilities such as equities
held at fair value through profit or loss are
recognised in profit or loss as part of the fair
value gain or loss and translation differences on
non-monetary assets such as equities classified as
fair value through other comprehensive income
are recognised in other comprehensive income
of consolidated statements of comprehensive
income.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022 # E2022F12831HLEEE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.6
(c)

Foreign currency translation (continued)
Group companies

The results and financial position of foreign
operations (none of which has the currency of a
hyperinflationary economy) that have a functional
currency different from the presentation currency
are translated into the presentation currency as
follows:

o assets and liabilities for each statement of
financial position presented are translated
at the closing rate at the date of that
statement of financial position;

o income and expenses for each statement
of comprehensive income are translated
at average exchange rates (unless this is
not a reasonable approximation of the
cumulative effect of the rates prevailing
on the transaction dates, in which case
income and expenses are translated at the
dates of the transactions); and

J all resulting exchange differences are
recognised in other comprehensive income.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising
from the translation of any net investment in
foreign entities, and of borrowings and other
financial instruments designated as hedges
of such investments, are recognised in other
comprehensive income. When a foreign operation
is sold or any borrowings forming part of the net
investment are repaid, the associated exchange
differences are reclassified to profit or loss, as
part of the gain or loss on sale.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mE BRI

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022 E(ZFE2022412831HIEEE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.6
(c)

(d)

Foreign currency translation (continued)
Group companies (continued)

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on
the acquisition of a foreign operation are treated
as assets and liabilities of the foreign operation
and translated at the closing rate.

Disposal of foreign operation and partial
disposal

On the disposal of a foreign operation (that
is, a disposal of the Group's entire interest in
a foreign operation, or a disposal involving
loss of control over a subsidiary that includes a
foreign operation, a disposal involving loss of
joint control over a joint venture that includes
a foreign operation, or a disposal involving loss
of significant influence over an associate that
includes a foreign operation), all of the currency
translation differences accumulated in equity
in respect of that operation attributable to the
owners of the Company are reclassified to profit
or loss.

In the case of a partial disposal that does
not result in the Group losing control over a
subsidiary that includes a foreign operation, the
proportionate share of accumulated currency
translation differences are re-attributed to non
— controlling interests and are not recognised
in profit or loss. For all other partial disposals
(that is, reductions in the Group's ownership
interest in associates or joint ventures that do not
result in the Group losing significant influence
or joint control), the proportionate share of the
accumulated exchange differences is reclassified
to profit or loss.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022 # E2022F12831HLEEE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.7

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at
historical cost less depreciation. Historical cost
includes expenditure that is directly attributable
to the acquisition of the items. Cost may also
include transfers from equity of any gains or
losses on qualifying cash flow hedges of foreign
currency purchases of property, plant and
equipment.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's
carrying amount or recognised as a separate
asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable
that future economic benefits associated with
the item will flow to the Group and the cost of
the item can be measured reliably. The carrying
amount of any component accounted for as a
separate asset is derecognised when replaced.
All other repairs and maintenance are charged to
profit or loss during the reporting period in which
they are incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022 E(ZFE2022412831HIEEE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.7

Property,
(continued)

plant and equipment

Depreciation is calculated using the straight —
line method to allocate their cost or revalued
amounts, net of their residual values, over their
estimated useful lives as follows:

Leasehold improvements  Shorter of lease term
or 4 to 10 years
Furniture, fixtures and 3 to 10 years

equipment

Motor vehicles 4 years

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end

of each reporting period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down
immediately to its recoverable amount if the
asset’s carrying amount is greater than its
estimated recoverable amount.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined
by comparing proceeds with carrying amount.
These are included in consolidated statement of
comprehensive income.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022 # E2022F12831HLEEE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.8

2.9
(a)

Investment properties

Investment properties are held for long-term
rental yields and are not occupied by the Group.
Investment property is initially measured at cost,
including related transaction costs and where
applicable borrowing costs. Subsequently, they
are carried at fair value. Changes in fair values are
presented in profit or loss as part of other gains,
net.

Intangible assets
Goodwill

Goodwill is measured as described in Note
15. Goodwill on acquisitions of subsidiaries is
in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

included in “other non-current assets”
Goodwill on acquisition of associates or joint
ventures is included in the cost of the investment
in associates or joint ventures respectively.
Goodwill is not amortised but it is tested for
impairment annually, or more frequently if
events or changes in circumstances indicate that
it might be impaired and is carried at cost less
accumulated impairment losses. Gains and losses
on the disposal of an entity include the carrying
amount of goodwill relating to the entity sold.

Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units for
the purpose of impairment testing. The allocation
is made to those cash-generating units or groups
of cash-generating units that are expected to
benefit from the business combination in which
the goodwill arose. The units or groups of
units are identified at the lowest level at which
goodwill is monitored for internal management
purposes, being the operating segments.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022 E(ZFE2022412831HIEEE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.9
(b)

Intangible assets (continued)
Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

The Group recognises an intangible asset arising
from a service concession arrangement when it
has a right to charge for usage of the concession
infrastructure. An intangible asset received as
consideration for providing construction services
in a service concession arrangement are measured
at fair value upon initial recognition by reference
to the fair value of the services provided.
Subsequent to initial recognition the intangible
asset is measured at cost less accumulated
amortisation and impairment losses.

Separately acquired intangible assets are shown
at historical cost. Intangible assets acquired in
a business combination are recognised at fair
value at the acquisition date. The useful lives
of intangible assets are assessed to be either
finite or indefinite. Intangible assets with finite
useful lives are subsequently carried at cost less
accumulated amortisation and impairment losses.
The amortisation period and amortisation method
for an intangibles asset with finite useful life are
assessed at every period end.

Intangible assets with indefinite lives are tested
for impairment annually either individually or at
the cash generating unit level. Such intangible
assets are not amortised. The useful life of an
intangible asset with an indefinite life is reviewed
annually to determine whether the indefinite
life assessment continues to be supportable, if
not, the change in the useful life assessment
from indefinite to finite is accounted for on a
prospective basis.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022 # E2022F12831HLEEE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.9
(b)

Intangible assets (continued)

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)
(continued)

Amortisation of intangible assets is calculated
using the straight-line method to allocate their
costs to their residual values over their estimated
useful lives, as follows:
Concession rights 10 to 24 years
Carpark operating rights 5 to 10 years
Funds management contracts 3 to 10 years
Software 10 years
Costs associated with maintaining software
programmes are recognised as an expense as
incurred. Development costs that are directly
attributable to the design and testing of
identifiable and unique software products
controlled by the group are recognised as

intangible assets where the following criteria are

met:

o it is technically feasible to complete the
software so that it will be available for use;

o management intends to complete the
software and use or sell it;

o there is an ability to use or sell the
software;

° it can be demonstrated how the software

will generate probable future economic
benefits;
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mE BRI

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022 E(ZFE2022412831HIEEE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 ESEES:HKENE &
POLICIES (continued)

2.9 Intangible assets (continued) 29 BWEEE @)
(b) Intangible assets (other than goodwill) b) EEEE (BERI) )
(continued)
. adequate technical, financial and other . BREANEMMBEME
resources to complete the development & JR 2K 5T AL BE A
and to use or sell the software are AREEHMN ; UKk

available; and

. the expenditure attributable to the . RUREREPELD
software during its development can be S HAES R et = o
reliably measured.

Directly attributable costs that are capitalised as EBRE—HPNEXRLCERE
part of the software include employee costs and 7 B AR A B14E B T Ak A M 48 BE
an appropriate portion of relevant overheads. BEERANEELAE D -
Capitalised development costs are recorded as EXRNHEERNERTAREE
intangible assets and amortised from the point at Eo B E e (e AR R R 8
which the asset is ready for use. 5

These intangible assets are included in “other EERTEERINRNSHME
non-current assets” in the consolidated statement RARPNTEHMIERENEE] ©

of financial position.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.10 Impairment of non-financial assets

Goodwill and intangible assets that have
an indefinite useful life are not subject to
amortisation and are tested annually for
impairment, or more frequently if events or
changes in circumstances indicate that they
might be impaired. Other assets are tested for
impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount
may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is
recognised for the amount by which the asset’s
carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount.
The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s
fair value less costs of disposal and value in use.
For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets
are grouped at the lowest levels for which there
are separately identifiable cash inflows which
are largely independent of the cash inflows from
other assets or groups of assets (cash-generating
units). Non-financial assets other than goodwill
that suffered an impairment are reviewed for
possible reversal of the impairment at the end of
each reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mE BRI

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022 E(ZFE2022412831HIEEE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.11 Non-current assets (or disposal

groups) held for sale and discontinued
operations

Non-current assets (or disposal groups) are
classified as held for sale if their carrying amount
will be recovered principally through a sale
transaction rather than through continuing use
and a sale is considered highly probable. They
are measured at the lower of their carrying
amount and fair value less costs to sell, except
for assets such as deferred tax assets, assets
arising from employee benefits, financial assets
and investment property that are carried at fair
value and contractual rights under insurance
contracts, which are specifically exempt from this
requirement.

An impairment loss is recognised for any initial or
subsequent write-down of the asset (or disposal
group) to fair value less costs to sell. A gain is
recognised for any subsequent increases in fair
value less costs to sell of an asset (or disposal
group), but not in excess of any cumulative
impairment loss previously recognised. A gain or
loss not previously recognised by the date of the
sale of the non-current asset (or disposal group) is
recognised at the date of derecognition.

Non-current assets (including those that are
part of a disposal group) are not depreciated or
amortised while they are classified as held for
sale. Interest and other expenses attributable to
the liabilities of a disposal group classified as held
for sale continue to be recognised.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.1

2.12
(a)

Non-current assets (or disposal
groups) held for sale and discontinued
operations (continued)

Non-current assets classified as held for sale is
presented separately from the other assets in the
consolidated statement of financial position. The
liabilities of a disposal group classified as held for
sale are presented separately from other liabilities
in the consolidated statement of financial
position.

Financial assets
Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets in the
following measurement categories:

o those to be measured subsequently at fair
value (either through other comprehensive
income (“OCI") or through profit or loss);
and

° those to be measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the entity's business
model for managing the financial assets and the
contractual terms of the cash flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses
will either be recorded in profit or loss or OCI.
For investments in equity instruments that are
not held for trading, this will depend on whether
the Group has made an irrevocable election at
the time of initial recognition to account for the
equity investment at FVOCI.

The Group reclassifies debt investments when and
only when its business model for managing those
assets changes.

Shoucheng Holdings Limited Annual Report 2022

2

i

2.1

2.12
(@)

B BRBRE (2

REGEERDEE (HHE
HE) RERILEEERR (&

STERTEREZIFRPEE
ROERFARBEZHEES
EENGAMBRRIERNEAHR
thEESRZI - DER/FTER
EZHEMGEEREEYH
RnEANEEMmEEIRZS -

ERMEE
b ]

FEEBHEESMEESEST
SIEt 2485 -

. BREANBESE (B
BHEHME2E WD (THA
EEWE) HEBREBEE
URBAREE 2/
BE R

. REBBEAAFEZEH

NEETFEREETMEEL
(¥GEARRBRERBZEHORK
TR TE ©

RARBESEZEEZ WG
WEBRFARGZNEMEER
Wi - AT BEKREBEUNARFEE
B HERIAEBRYT R
A & IF A AT 2 EE R
RERERANBEZBHM
E2EW TR

FERRBRREEEZFEE
ZEGRANERENDER
BRE
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022 E(ZFE2022412831HIEEE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.12 Financial assets (continued)

(b)

(c)

Recognition and derecognition

Regular way purchases and sales of financial
assets are recognised on trade-date, the date on
which the Group commits to purchase or sell the
asset. Financial assets are derecognised when the
rights to receive cash flows from the financial
assets have expired or have been transferred and
the Group has transferred substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership.

Measurement

At initial recognition, the Group measures a
financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case
of a financial asset not at FVPL, transaction costs
that are directly attributable to the acquisition of
the financial asset. Transaction costs of financial
assets carried at FVPL are expensed in profit or
loss.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are
considered in their entirety when determining
whether their cash flows are solely payment of
principal and interest.
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YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022 #ZE2022F12831HILEE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.12 Financial assets (continued)
(c) Measurement (continued)
Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments
depends on the Group's business model
for managing the asset and the cash flow
characteristics of the asset. There are three
measurement categories into which the Group
classifies its debt instruments:

o Amortised cost: Assets that are held for
collection of contractual cash flows where
those cash flows represent solely payments
of principal and interest are measured
at amortised cost. Interest income from
these financial assets is included in
finance income using the effective interest
rate method. Any gain or loss arising
on derecognition is recognised directly
in profit or loss and presented in other
gains, net together with foreign exchange
gains and losses. Impairment losses are
presented as separate line item in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive
income.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022 E(ZFE2022412831HIEEE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.12 Financial assets (continued)

(c) Measurement (continued)

Debt instruments (continued)

FVOCI: Assets that are held for collection
of contractual cash flows and for selling
the financial assets, where the assets’
cash flows represent solely payments of
principal and interest, are measured at
FVOCI. Movements in the carrying amount
are taken through OCI, except for the
recognition of impairment gains or losses,
interest income and foreign exchange
gains and losses which are recognised in
profit or loss. When the financial asset is
derecognised, the cumulative gain or loss
previously recognised in OCl is reclassified
from equity to profit or loss and recognised
in other gains, net. Interest income from
these financial assets is included in finance
income using the effective interest rate
method. Foreign exchange gains and
losses are presented in other gains, net
and impairment expenses are presented
as separate line item in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.12 Financial assets (continued)

(c)

Measurement (continued)
Debt instruments (continued)

o FVPL: Assets that do not meet the
criteria for amortised cost or FVOCI are
measured at FVPL. A gain or loss on a debt
investment that is subsequently measured
at FVPL is recognised in profit or loss and
presented net within other gains, net in
the period in which it arises.

Equity instruments

The Group subsequently measures all equity
investments at fair value. Where the Group's
management has elected to present fair value
gains and losses on equity investments in OCI,
there is no subsequent reclassification of fair
value gains and losses to profit or loss following
the derecognition of the investment. Dividends
from such investments continue to be recognised
in profit or loss as other income when the Group's
right to receive payments is established.

Changes in the fair value of financial assets at
FVPL are recognised in revenue or other gains, net
in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income as applicable. Impairment losses
(and reversal of impairment losses) on equity
investments measured at FVOCI are not reported
separately from other changes in fair value.

Shoucheng Holdings Limited Annual Report 2022

2

2.12
(©

EEEHERBE (@

THEE (B

FtE (#)

BFITE @&

. ARBEEBE@E !
AR EBEBERANER
AEEZBEMEZEU
W RREZEER
ARBEZEBEDY R
StE-BREAABEE
BEDINRZEBRE
ZWESNERIREESE
HEEEm P ERILE
Htm FERE25 %
FE

RATA

FEBBRMFAERTIRER
ARBEFE-BEAEEZEE
BEEZREMEE K@ Z5]
REREBEZ ANBEWRZ KB
B AnEEWR@EKREERZLE
BEBREBRITEENDEER
moRFREAZRENAERW
HURRIR Z HEF) R 1L BT A i R 1B
m SRR EAURA -

THEEARNBEZEHER
NEEEBETAEGSEZENR
m AR P 2 WA BE fth U 0% AR
hEES (WEA) - BAREE
BEEMEEWRGEGFEZRE
REZRHEBE RBEBERE
E) FEREMARBEZSHD
e



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022 E(ZFE2022412831HIEEE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.12
(d)

2.13

Financial assets (continued)
Impairment

The Group assesses on a forward looking basis
the expected credit losses associated with its debt
instruments carried at amortised cost, FVPL and
FVOCI. The impairment methodology applied
depends on whether there has been a significant
increase in credit risk.

For trade receivables, the Group applies the
simplified approach permitted by HKFRS 9, which
requires expected lifetime losses to be recognised
from initial recognition of the receivables, see
Note 3.1(b)(ii) for further details.

Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and
the net amount reported in the consolidated
statement of financial position where the Group
currently has a legally enforceable right to offset
the recognised amounts, and there is an intention
to settle on a net basis or realise the asset and
settle the liability simultaneously.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.14

2.15

Derivatives

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on
the date a derivative contract is entered into and
are subsequently remeasured to their fair value at
the end of each reporting period. The accounting
for subsequent changes in fair value depends on
whether the derivative is designated as a hedging
instrument, and if so, the nature of the item
being hedged.

During the year, none of the derivative
instruments has qualified for hedge accounting.
Changes in the fair value of any derivative
instrument that does not qualify for hedge
accounting are recognised immediately in profit
or loss.

Trade receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from
customers for goods sold or services performed
in the ordinary course of business. Trade
receivables are recognised initially at the amount
of consideration that is unconditional unless they
contain significant financing components, when
they are recognised at fair value. The Group
holds the trade receivables with the objective to
collect the contractual cash flows and therefore
measures them subsequently at amortised cost
using the effective interest method. See Note
21 for further information about the Group's
accounting for trade receivables and Note 2.12
for a description of the Group's impairment
policies.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022 E(ZFE2022412831HIEEE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.16

2.17

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of presentation in the
consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and
cash equivalents includes cash on hand, deposits
held at call with financial institutions, other short
— term, highly liquid investments with original
maturities of three months or less that are readily
convertible to known amounts of cash and which
are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in
value, and bank overdrafts. Bank overdrafts are
shown within borrowings in current liabilities in
the consolidated statement of financial position.

Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue
of new shares or options are shown in equity as a
deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

2.16

2.17
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.17

2.18

Share capital (continued)

Where any group company purchases the
Company's equity instruments, for example
as the result of a share buy-back or a share-
based payment plan, the consideration paid,
including any directly attributable incremental
costs (net of income taxes) is deducted from
equity attributable to the owners of the Group
as treasury shares until the shares are cancelled
or reissued. Where such ordinary shares are
subsequently reissued, any consideration received,
net of any directly attributable incremental
transaction costs and the related income tax
effects, is included in equity attributable to the
owners of the Company.

Trade and other payables

These amounts represent liabilities for goods and
services provided to the Group prior to the end
of financial year which are unpaid. Trade and
other payables are presented as current liabilities
unless payment is not due within 12 months after
the reporting period. They are recognised initially
at their fair value and subsequently measured
at amortised cost using the effective interest
method.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.19 Borrowings

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value,
net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings
are subsequently measured at amortised cost.
Any difference between the proceeds (net of
transaction costs) and the redemption amount is
recognised in profit or loss over the period of the
borrowings using the effective interest method.
Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities
are recognised as transaction costs of the loan to
the extent that it is probable that some or all of
the facility will be drawn down. In this case, the
fee is deferred until the draw down occurs. To the
extent there is no evidence that it is probable that
some or all of the facility will be drawn down,
the fee is capitalised as a prepayment for liquidity
services and amortised over the period of the
facility to which it relates.

The fair value of the liability portion of a
convertible bond is determined using a market
interest rate for an equivalent non-convertible
bond. This amount is recorded as a liability
on an amortised cost basis until extinguished
on conversion or maturity of the bonds. The
remainder of the proceeds is allocated to the
conversion option. This is recognised and included
in shareholders’ equity, net of income tax effects.

Borrowings are removed from the consolidated
statement of financial position when the
obligation specified in the contract is discharged,
cancelled or expired. The difference between the
carrying amount of a financial liability that has
been extinguished or transferred to another party
and the consideration paid, including any non-
cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed, is
recognised in profit or loss as finance costs.

2.19
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.19

2.20

Borrowings (continued)

Where the terms of a financial liability are
renegotiated and the entity issues equity
instruments to a creditor to extinguish all or part
of the liability (debt for equity swap), a gain
or loss is recognised in profit or loss, which is
measured as the difference between the carrying
amount of the financial liability and the fair value
of the equity instruments issued.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities
unless the Group has an unconditional right to
defer settlement of the liability for at least 12
months after the reporting period.

Borrowing costs

General and specific borrowing costs that
are directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of a qualifying asset
are capitalised during the period of time that is
required to complete and prepare the asset for its
intended use or sale. Qualifying assets are assets
that necessarily take a substantial period of time
to get ready for their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary
investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from
the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

Other borrowing costs are expensed in the period
in which they are incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022 E(ZFE2022412831HIEEE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 BEGHHERME &

POLICIES (continued)

2.21 Current and deferred income tax 221 BHIBJERIEFRE

The income tax expense or credit for the period
is the tax payable on the current period’s taxable
income based on the applicable income tax rate
for each jurisdiction adjusted by changes in
deferred tax assets and liabilities attributable to
temporary differences and to unused tax losses.

Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on
the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of the reporting period in the
countries where the Company and its subsidiaries
and associates operate and generate taxable
income. Management periodically evaluates
positions taken in tax returns with respect to
situations in which applicable tax regulation is
subject to interpretation and considers whether
it is probable that a taxation authority will accept
an uncertain tax treatment. The Group measures
its tax balances either based on the most likely
amount or the expected value, depending on
which method provides a better prediction of the
resolution of the uncertainty.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.21 Current and deferred

income tax
(continued)

Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the
liability method, on temporary differences arising
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities
and their carrying amounts in the consolidated
financial statements. However, deferred income
tax liabilities are not recognised if they arise
from the initial recognition of goodwill. Deferred
income tax is also not accounted for if it arises
from initial recognition of an asset or liability in
a transaction other than a business combination
that at the time of the transaction affects neither
accounting nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred
income tax is determined using tax rates (and
laws) that have been enacted or substantially
enacted by the end of the reporting period and
are expected to apply when the related deferred
income tax asset is realised or the deferred
income tax liability is settled.

The deferred income tax liability in relation to
investment properties that is measured at fair
value is determined assuming the property will be
recovered entirely through sale.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised only
if it is probable that future taxable amounts will
be available to utilise those temporary differences
and losses.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2
POLICIES (continued)

2.21 Current and deferred

EETHBREE (&

221 ERRIEEFREH (&

income tax

(continued)
Deferred income tax (continued)

Deferred income tax liabilities and assets are not
recognised for temporary differences between
the carrying amount and tax bases of investments
in foreign operations where the Company is
able to control the timing of the reversal of the
temporary differences and it is probable that the
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable
future.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are
offset when there is a legally enforceable right
to offset current income tax assets and liabilities
and where the deferred tax balances relate to
the same taxation authority. Current income tax
assets and tax liabilities are offset where the
entity has a legally enforceable right to offset and
intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise
the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Current and deferred income tax is recognised in
profit or loss, except to the extent that it relates
to items recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity. In this case, the tax is
also recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, respectively.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.22 Employee benefits

Retirement benefit obligations

The Group operates a defined contribution
Mandatory Provident Fund retirement benefits
scheme (the “Pension Scheme") set up pursuant
to the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance, for all of its employees in Hong Kong.
Contributions are made based on a percentage
of the employees’ basic salaries and are charged
to the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income as they become payable in accordance
with the rules of the Pension Scheme. The assets
of the Pension Scheme are held separately
from those of the Group in an independently
administrated fund. The Group’s employer
contributions vest fully with the employees when
contributed to the Pension Scheme, except for the
Group's employer voluntary contributions, which
are refunded to the Group when the employee
leaves employment prior to vesting fully in the
contributions, in accordance with the rules of the
Pension Scheme.

The Group has no further payment obligations
once the contributions have been paid. The
contributions are recognised as an employee
benefit expense when they are due and are
reduced by contributions forfeited by those
employees who leave the scheme prior to vesting
fully in the contributions. Prepaid contributions
are recognised as an asset to the extent that a
cash refund or a reduction in the future payments
is available.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.22

2.23

Employee benefits (continued)
Retirement benefit obligations (continued)

In addition to the Mandatory Provident Fund
Scheme for the Group's employees in Hong Kong,
the Group is required to contribute to central
pension schemes for certain Group’s employees
in the PRC based on applicable rates of monthly
salary in accordance with government regulations.
The only obligation of the Group with respect
to the retirement benefit scheme is to make the
specific contributions.

Share-based payments

Share-based compensation benefits are provided
to employees via the share incentive plan.
Information relating to the plan is set out in Note
24.

The fair value of employee options granted under
the Company’s share incentive plan is recognised
as an employee benefits expense with a
corresponding increase in equity. The total amount
to be expensed is determined by reference to the
fair value of the options granted:

o Including any market performance
conditions (e.g. the entity’s share price)

o Excluding the impact of any service and
non-market performance vesting conditions
(e.g. profitability, sales growth targets and
remaining an employee of the entity over a
specified time period); and

o including the impact of any non-vesting
conditions (e.g. the requirement for
employees to save or hold shares for a
specific period of time).
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.23 Share-based payments (continued)

The total expense is recognised over the vesting
period, which is the period over which all of the
specified vesting conditions are to be satisfied.
At the end of each period, the entity revises
its estimates of the number of options that are
expected to vest based on the non-market vesting
and service conditions. It recognises the impact of
the revision to original estimates, if any, in profit
or loss, with a corresponding adjustment to share
options under equity.

The share incentive plan is administered by a
trustee, which is consolidated in accordance with
the principles in Note 2.17. Under the shares
incentive plan, a trustee administers and holds
the Company’s shares before they are vested
and transferred to the scheme’s participants.
The trustee purchases the Company’s shares
being awarded from the open market with
funds provided by the Company. When share
options are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in share options reserve will be
transferred to share capital. When the share
options are forfeited after the vesting date or are
still not exercised at the expiry date, the amount
previously recognised in other reserve will be
transferred to accumulated losses.
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mE BRI
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 BEEGTHHEEME (&
POLICIES (continued)

2.24 Provisions 2.24 5

Provisions for legal claims, service warranties
and make good obligations are recognised when
the Group has a present legal or constructive
obligation as a result of past events, it is probable
that an outflow of resources will be required
to settle the obligation and the amount can be
reliably estimated. Provisions are not recognised
for future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations
as a whole. A provision is recognised even if the
likelihood of an outflow with respect to any one
item included in the same class of obligations may
be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of
management’s best estimate of the expenditure
required to settle the present obligation at the
end of the reporting period. The discount rate
used to determine the present value is a pre-tax
rate that reflects current market assessments of
the time value of money and the risks specific
to the liability. The increase in the provision due
to the passage of time is recognised as interest
expense.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.25 Revenue recognition

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Fund management services income

Revenue from management fees are recognised
on a time-proportion basis with reference to
the net asset value of the investment funds
and managed accounts. Performance fees are
recognised on the performance fee valuation day
of the investment funds and managed accounts
when there is a positive performance for the
relevant performance period and it is determined
that it will not result in significant reversal in a
subsequent period, taking into consideration the
relevant basis of calculation for the investment
funds and managed accounts.

Investment income

Investment income includes net gains/losses on
financial assets and liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss.

Refer to Note 2.12 for the recognition policy.

Operation service income

Operation service income is recognised when the
services is provided.

Leasing income

Refer to Note 2.28 for the recognition policy.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.25 Revenue recognition (continued)

(e)

(f)

(9)

Excess return from investment funds

Excess return from investment funds is recognised
when the contractual conditions are satisfied.

Revenue from the construction services under
a service concession agreement

The Group ‘s performance in respect of
construction services creates or enhances an asset
or work in progress that the customer controls as
the asset is created or enhanced, thus the Group
satisfies a performance obligation and recognises
revenue over time, by reference to completion of
the specific transaction assessed on the basis of
the surveyors’ assessment of work performed and
the costs incurred up to the end of the reporting
period as a percentage of total estimated costs
for each contract.

Revenue from the construction services under a
service concession arrangement is estimated on
a cost plus basis with reference to a prevailing
market rate of gross margin at the date of the
agreement applicable to similar construction
services rendered.

Financing components

The Group does not expect to have any contracts
where the period between the transfer of the
promised goods or services to the customer and
payment by the customer exceeds one year. As
a consequence, the Group does not adjust any
of the transaction prices for the time value of
money.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.26
(a)

(b)

2.27

Earnings per share
Basic earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing
the profit attributable to owners of the Company,
excluding any costs of servicing equity other
than ordinary shares by the weighted average
number of ordinary shares outstanding during
the financial year, adjusted for bonus elements
in ordinary shares issued during the year and
excluding treasury shares.

Diluted earnings per share

Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures
used in the determination of basic earnings per
share to take into account the after income
tax effect of interest and other financing costs
associated with dilutive potential ordinary shares,
and the weighted average number of additional
ordinary shares that would have been outstanding
assuming the conversion of all dilutive potential
ordinary shares.

Dividend income

Dividends are received from financial assets
measured at FVPL and at FVOCI.
recognised as other income in profit or loss when

Dividends are

the right to receive payment is established. This
applies even if they are paid out of pre-acquisition
profits, unless the dividend clearly represents a
recovery of part of the cost of an investment.
In this case, the dividend is recognised in OCI if
it relates to an investment measured at FVOCI.
However, the investment may need to be tested
for impairment as a consequence.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mE BRI

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022 E(ZFE2022412831HIEEE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 BEEGTHHEEME (&
POLICIES (continued)

2.28 Leases 228 THE

Leases are recognised as a right-of-use asset and
a corresponding liability at the date at which the
leased asset is available for use by the Group.

Contracts may contain both lease and non-
lease components. The Group allocates the
consideration in the contract to the lease and
non-lease components based on their relative
stand-alone prices. However, for leases of real
estate for which the Group is a lessee, it has
elected not to separate lease and non-lease
components and instead accounts for these as a
single lease component.

Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis
and contain a wide range of different terms and
conditions. The lease agreements do not impose
any covenants other than the security interests
in the leases assets that are held by the lessor.
Leased assets may not be used as security for
borrowing purposes.

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are
initially measured on a present value basis. Lease
liabilities include the net present value of the
following lease payments:

o fixed payments (including in-substance
fixed payments), less any lease incentives
receivable;

o variable lease payment that are based on

an index or a rate, initially measured using
the index or rate as at the commencement
date;
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.28 Leases (continued)

o amounts expected to be payable by the
Group under residual value guarantees;

o the exercise price of a purchase option if
the Group is reasonably certain to exercise
that option; and

o payments of penalties for terminating the
lease, if the lease term reflects the Group
exercising that option.

Lease payments to be made under reasonably
certain extension options are also included in the
measurement of the liability.

The lease payments are discounted using the
interest rate implicit in the lease. If that rate
cannot be readily determined, which is generally
the case for leases in the Group, the lessee’s
incremental borrowing rate is used, being the rate
that the individual lessee would have to pay to
borrow the funds necessary to obtain an asset of
similar value to the right-of-use asset in a similar
economic environment with similar terms, security
and conditions.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022 E(ZFE2022412831HIEEE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.28 Leases (continued)

To determine the incremental borrowing rate, the
Group:

o where possible, uses recent third-party
financing received by the individual lessee
as a starting point, adjusted to reflect
changes in financing conditions since third
party financing was received,

o uses a build-up approach that starts with
a risk-free interest rate adjusted for credit
risk for leases held by the Group, which
does not have recent third party financing;
and

° makes adjustments specific to the lease,
e.g. term, country, currency and security.

If a readily observable amortising loan rate is
available to the individual lessee (through recent
financing or market data) which has a similar
payment profile to the lease, then the group
entities use that rate as a starting point to
determine the incremental borrowing rate.

The Group is exposed to potential future increases
in variable lease payments based on an index or
rate, which are not included in the lease liability
until they take effect. When adjustments to lease
payments based on an index or rate take effect,
the lease liability is reassessed and adjusted
against the right-of-use asset.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.28 Leases (continued)

Lease payments are allocated between principal
and finance cost. The finance cost is charged
to profit or loss over the lease period so as to
produce a constant periodic rate of interest on
the remaining balance of the liability for each
period.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost
comprising the following:

° the amount of the initial measurement of
lease liability;
o any lease payments made at or before

the commencement date less any lease
incentives received;

° any initial direct costs; and

e restoration costs.

Right-of-use assets are generally depreciated
over the shorter of the asset’s useful life and the
lease term on a straight-line basis. If the Group is
reasonably certain to exercise a purchase option,
the right-of-use asset is depreciated over the
underlying asset’s useful life. While the Group
revalues its land and buildings that are presented
within property, plant and equipment, it has
chosen not to do so for the right-of-use buildings
held by the Group.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022 E(ZFE2022412831HIEEE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 BEEGTHHEEME (&
POLICIES (continued)

2.28 Leases (continued) 228 HE #@)

Payments associated with short-term leases of
equipment and vehicles and all leases of low—
value assets are recognised on a straight-line basis
as an expense in profit or loss. Short-term leases
are leases with a lease term of 12 months or less.
Low-value assets comprise IT equipment and small
items of office furniture.

The Group has adopted Amendment to HKFRS
16 — COVID-19-Related Rent Concessions.
The amendment provides an optional practical
expedient allowing lessees to elect not to
assess whether a rent concession related to
COVID-19 is a lease modification. Lessees
adopting this election may account for qualifying
rent concessions in the same way as they
would if they were not lease modifications.
The practical expedient only applies to rent
concessions occurring as a direct consequence
of the COVID-19 pandemic and only if all of the
following conditions are met: a. the change in
lease payments results in revised consideration for
the lease that is substantially the same as, or less
than, the consideration for the lease immediately
preceding the change; b. any reduction in lease
payments affects only payments due on or before
30 June 2022; and c. there is no substantive
change to other terms and conditions of the
lease.

The Company has applied the practical
expedient to all qualifying COVID-19-related rent
concessions.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.28

2.29

2.30

Leases (continued)

Lease income from operating leases where the
Group is a lessor is recognised in income on a
straight-line basis over the lease term.

Dividend distribution

Provision is made for the amount of any dividend
declared, being appropriately authorised and
no longer at the discretion of the entity, on or
before the end of the reporting period but not
distributed at the end of the reporting period.

Government grants

Grants from the government are recognised
at their fair value where there is a reasonable
assurance that the grant will be received and the
group will comply with all attached conditions.

Government grants relating to income are
deferred and recognised in the profit or loss over
the period necessary to match them with the
costs that they are intended to compensate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mE BRI

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022 E(ZFE2022412831HIEEE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.31

Interest income

Interest income from financial assets at FVPL
is included in the net fair value gains on these
assets, see Note 7 below.

Interest income on financial assets at amortised
cost calculated using the effective interest
method is recognised in profit or loss as part of
other income.

Interest income is presented as other income
where it is earned from financial assets that are
held for cash management purposes, see Note 6
below.

Interest income is calculated by applying the
effective interest rate to the gross carrying
amount of a financial asset except for financial
assets that subsequently become credit impaired.
For credit-impaired financial assets the effective
interest rate is applied to the net carrying amount
of the financial asset (after deduction of the loss
allowance).
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022 # E2022F12831HLEEE

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

3.1

(a)

Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of
financial risks: market risk (including currency

risk, interest rate risk and price risk), credit
risk and liquidity risk. The Group’s overall
risk management programme focuses on the
unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to
minimise potential adverse effects on the Group's
financial performance. The Company manages its
financial risks in accordance with guidelines laid
down by its Board of Directors. The Operating
Finance Department identifies and evaluates
financial risks in close co-operation within the
Group to cope with overall risk management,
as well as specific areas, such as market risk
(including currency risk, interest rate risk and

price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk.

Market risk
Currency risk

The Group operates principally in Hong Kong
and in the PRC. It is exposed to foreign exchange
risk primarily with respect to Hong Kong dollar,
United States dollar (“US$”) and Chinese
Renminbi ("RMB"”) denominated transactions.
Foreign exchange risk arises where future
commercial transactions, recognised assets and
liabilities are denominated in currency that is not
the functional currency of the subsidiaries of the

Company.

Several subsidiaries of the Company have foreign
currency transactions and recognised assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies other
than the functional currencies of the relevant
group entities, which expose the Group to foreign
currency risk.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3

3.1
(a)
(i)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mE BRI

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022 E(ZFE2022412831HIEEE

Financial risk factors (continued)
Market risk (continued)
Currency risk (continued)

As at 31 December 2022, some group entities
with functional currency of HK$ had considerable
amount of bank balances and cash denominated
in US$. Under the Linked Exchange Rate
System in Hong Kong, HK$ is pegged to US$,
management therefore considers that there is no
significant foreign exchange risk with respect to
US$ (2021: Same).

The following table indicates the approximate
change in the Group's profit/(loss) for the years
in response to reasonably possible changes in the
foreign exchange rates to which the Group has
significant exposure at the reporting date.
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Impact on post-tax profit

mHRE
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HK$000 HK$'000
BTz FEWETF T
RMB/HK$ exchange rate — increase A RIS BISER- 7
3% (2021-3%) 3% (20215-3%) 8,816 12,653
RMB/HK$ exchange rate — decrease A B & % 78 HE bE R %
3% (2021-3%) 3% (20215-3%) (8,816) (12,653)
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022 # E2022F12831HLEEE

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1
(a)
(i)

(i)

Financial risk factors (continued)
Market risk (continued)
Currency risk (continued)

The Group also entered into foreign currency
forwards in relation to projected cashflow for
the next 12 months that do not qualify as 'highly
probable’ forecast transactions and hence do not
satisfy the requirements for hedge accounting.
The foreign currency forwards are subject to
the same risk management policies are all other
derivative contracts. However, they are accounted
for as held for trading with gains (losses)
recognised in profit or loss.

Interest rate risk

The Group holds interest bearing assets and
liabilities including cash at banks and borrowings.
The Group is mainly exposed to cash flow interest
rate risk in relation to variable-rate bank balances
and borrowings.

At 31 December 2022 and 2021, if interest
rates on cash held at banks had been 25 basis
points higher/lower with all other variables
held constant, pre-tax profit for the year would
have been approximately HK$8,934,000 (2021:
HK$6,434,000) higher/lower.

As at 31 December 2022, if interest rates on
bank borrowings had been 25 basis points higher/
lower with all other variables held constant,
pre-tax profit for the year would have been
approximately HK$2,618,000 lower/higher (2021:
HK$1,882,000).
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3

3.1

(i)

(iii)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mE BRI

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022 E(ZFE2022412831HIEEE

Financial risk factors (continued)
Market risk (continued)
Interest rate risk (continued)

Other than the financial assets at FVPL held by
the Group which the underlying investments can
be affected by interest rates, the Group is not
exposed to significant fair value interest rate risk.

Price risk

The Group is exposed to price risk arises from
investments held by the Group and classified in
the consolidated statement of financial position
as investments (Note 20).

To manage its price risk arising from these
investments, the Group diversifies its portfolio.
Diversification of the portfolio is done in
accordance with the investment policy set by the
Group.

The table below summarises the impact of change
on the price of financial assets at FVPL and FVOCI
on the Group's equity and pre-tax profit/(loss) for
the year. The analysis is based on the assumption
that the price had increased/decreased by certain
percentage with all other variables held constant.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3

3.1
(a)
(iii)

(b)

MBERER (&

Financial risk factors (continued) 31 HMEBRBEZE &
Market risk (continued) (@) FHEE )
Price risk (continued) (i)  ERER @)
Impact on
Impact on other components
pre-tax profit of equity
HEZHE M
RAaFHNTE AR ANTE
2022 2021 2022 2021
HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS$'000
BT FiErr BEFrT EETT
Financial assets at FVPL BARBEFABEZEREE
Equity securities — 5% (2021: Nil) RARES — 5% (20215 : &) 2,748 - - -
Debt securities-listed — 5% (2021: 5%) ABHHEITEBEESH 5%
(20214 : 5%) 19,024 19,036 - -
Investment funds - 5% (2021: 5%)  REEE—5% (20215 : 5%) 42,462 45,812 - -
Wealth management products - 1% B ER—1% (202145 : 1%)

(2021: 1%) 675 239 - -
Other securities - 5% (2021: 5%) HAhzE%5—5% (20214 : 5%) 66,894 54,666 - -
Financial assets at FVOCI BARBESARMZEKEZ

EMEE
Other securities - 5% (2021: 5%) HAhzE%5—5% (20214 : 5%) - - 7,321 9,251
Equity securities — 5% (2021 Nil) RS —5% (20214 © &) - - 107,463 -

Pre-tax profit/(loss) for the year would increase/
decrease as a result of net fair value changes on
financial assets at FVPL. Other components of
equity would increase/decrease as a result of net
fair value changes on financial assets at FVOCI.

Credit risk

Credit risk arises from deposits with banks
and financial institutions, deposits and other
receivables, as well as credit exposures to trading

customers, including outstanding receivables.

Shoucheng Holdings Limited Annual Report 2022

BARBESABRDZZEME
ENFAABEESHEELF
EORAAE (B8 18mn,
e nBESARMER
WmZzEMEENFANEE
SEREREmEMAERED

2L

(b) FEERE

EEERBRRBRITREMER
WEER B EMEBRRIE
UkBHERZEFEERR (B
REZEUWRIR)



FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3

3.1
(b)
(i)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mE BRI

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022 E(ZFE2022412831HIEEE

Financial risk factors (continued)
Credit risk (continued)
Risk management

In order to minimise the credit risk, the
management of the Group has delegated a team
responsible for determination of credit limits,
credit approvals and other monitoring procedures
to ensure that follow-up action is taken to recover
overdue debts. In addition, the Group reviews the
recoverable amount of each individual trade debt
and other receivable at the end of the reporting
period to ensure that adequate impairment loss
is made for irrecoverable amounts. In this regard,
the directors consider that the Group's credit
risk is significantly reduced. Besides, the Group
has reduced credit risk on trade receivables by
requesting deposits to be made before service
or settlement before delivery. The Group mainly
deals with companies with a good repayment
record and reputation and also has policies
in place to assess the credit worthiness of
customers.

The Group has limited credit risk on liquid funds
as the counterparties are banks and financial
institutions which are reputable and/or with high
credit ratings assigned by international credit
rating agencies.

Credit risk mainly arises from trade and other
receivables.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022 # E2022F12831HLEEE

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1
(b)
(i)

(i)

Financial risk factors (continued)
Credit risk (continued)
Risk management (continued)

As at 31 December 2022, the top five
debtors and the largest debtor accounted for
approximately 56% (2021: 47%) and 27% (2021:
22%) of the Group’'s trade receivables balance,
respectively. The Group has policies in place
to ensure that sales of products are made to
customers with an appropriate credit history. The
Group normally conducts credit checks on new
customers and requires them to pay a deposit
of certain percentage of the sales amount, or to
provide the Group with a letter of credit when
placing orders.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified
approach to measuring expected credit losses
which uses a lifetime expected loss allowance for
all trade receivables.

The Group recognised lifetime expected credit
loss for trade receivables carried at amortised
cost based on either individually customers who
are long overdue with significant amounts or
known insolvencies or non-response to collection
activities, or collectively assessing them for
likelihood of recovery based on ageing of the
balances with similar risk characteristics taking
into account the forward-looking information.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3

3.1
(b)
(i)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mE BRI

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022 E(ZFE2022412831HIEEE

Financial risk factors (continued)
Credit risk (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Given the track record of regular repayment
of trade receivables and good credit profiles
of customers, the directors are of the opinion
that the risk of default by these customers is
not significant, taking into account forward-
looking information on macroeconomic factors.
Therefore, expected credit loss rate of trade
receivables is assessed to be insignificant
and loss allowance provided on a collective
basis was amounted to HK$1,153,000 (2021:
HK$1,718,000).

For trade receivables relating to accounts
in which objective evidence that the debtor
faces significant financial difficulties or enters
liquidation, they are assessed individually for
impairment allowance. Accordingly, specific
loss allowance of HK$14,457,000 (2021:
HK$2,290,000) were made as at 31 December
2022.

Trade receivables are written off where there is no
reasonable expectation of recovery. Indicators that
there is no reasonable expectation of recovery
include, amongst others, the failure of a debtor to
engage in a repayment plan with the Group.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022 # E2022F12831HLEEE

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1
(b)
(i)

(c)

Financial risk factors (continued)
Credit risk (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (continued)

The Group adopts general approach for expected
credit losses of financial assets at amortised
cost (other than trade receivables) based on the
Group's assessment in the risk of default of the
respective counterparties. The Group considers
these financial assets have not significantly
increased in credit risk from initial recognition.
Thus, these financial assets are classified in stage
one and only consider 12-month expected credit
losses.

Considering the history of default and forward-
looking factor, the expected credit loss is
immaterial.

Liquidity risk
The Group manages its liquidity risk by ensuring
it has sufficient liquid cash balances and credit

facilities to meet its payment obligations as they
fall due.

As at 31 December 2022, the Group held
deposits at call of HK$3,573,685,000 (2021:
HK$2,573,462,000) that are expected readily
generate cash inflows for managing liquidity risk.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3

3.1
(c)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mE BRI

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022 E(ZFE2022412831HIEEE

Financial risk factors (continued)
Liquidity risk (continued)

In the management of the liquidity risk, the
Group monitors and maintains a level of cash
and cash equivalents deemed adequate by the
management to finance the Group’s operations
and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash
flows. A monthly report on forecasted inflow
and outflow of cash is compiled for the directors’
review. The management monitors the utilisation
of bank and other borrowings.

As at 31 December 2022, the Group has
outstanding borrowings of approximately
HK$1,047,393,000 (2021: HK$752,642,000). As
at 31 December 2022, the Group has available
unutilised borrowing facilities of approximately
HK$969,580,000 (2021: HK$849,290,000).

The following table details the Group’s remaining
contractual maturity for its non-derivative
financial liabilities. The table has been drawn up
based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial
liabilities based on the earliest dates on which the
Group can be required to pay. The table includes
both interest and principal cash flows. To the
extent that interest flows are floating rate, the
undiscounted amount is derived from interest rate
at the end of the reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022 # E2022F12831HLEEE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3  BIFSEEIR (&
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued) 31 HMERBERZE &)
(c) Liquidity risk (continued) © TEELERE &
In addition, the following table details the tEoh > TREFMAEER2022
Group's liquidity analysis for its non-derivative FER2021FE12831HETES
financial liabilities as at 31 December 2022 and MEBENRBEE DM %KD
2021. The table has been drawn up based on RIBFERFREEE 2ZEZIE
the undiscounted net cash (inflows) and outflows TEERmEERWIRFERE Of
on those non-derivative financial liabilities that A) B U R EREEEE Y
require net settlement and gross (inflows) and ETEEHEBEZR (FA) &
outflows on those non-derivative financial MRS EFEMNFIEREET
liabilities that require gross settlement. When B Fri B £ AN RS
the amount payable is not fixed, the amount MR 2 MR SN EPE R -
disclosed has been derived from interest rate and
foreign currency exchange rates at the end of the
reporting period.
Repayable Carrying
on demand/ Total amount at
less than 3 months 12 25 Over5 undiscounted 31 December
3 months to 1 year years years years  cash flows 2022
HEREE/ RUR Ra0nE
=ZfEBMUA =fig% —£E MEE BemE  12831BZ
& - WE pik:3 RENE ag REG
HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS'000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000
BEFT EEFT BEFT BEFT BEFT BEFT BEFT
2022 2022
Non-derivative financial liabilities it eRmas
Trade payables EfT&ER 353,950 - - - - 353,950 353,950
Other payables EfEATE 172,371 - - - - 172371 172,371
Borrowings i 15,508 192,523 155,274 197,254 36479 1177,038 1,047,393
Financial iabilities at FVPL WAREEHEEE
EERIN]
BHERER 925 - 87,461 - - 88,386 88,386
Lease liabilities HEEE 30,679 106,479 249,082 481,550 972,097 1839887 1,548,983
Total fi 573,433 599,002 491,817 678,804 1,288,576 3,631,632 3,211,083
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mE BRI

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022 E(ZFE2022412831HIEEE

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3  HMEERER &)
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued) 31 HMBRBER @)
(c) Liquidity risk (continued) © TFEELREE &
Repayable Carrying
on demand/ Total amount at
less than 3 months 1-2 25 Over5  undiscounted 31 December
3 months to 1 year years years years cash flows 2021
BEREE/ AR
=EBNA Z[ERE —£E MEE Rerg  12B3HZ
BE -k nE bik3 RENE 28 EE
HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HK$000
Vel BT BEFT BEFT Vel s BEFT Vel s
2021 2021
Non-derivative financial liabilities it enaR
Trade payables R 389,337 - - - - 389,337 389,337
Other payables AfEGHE 161,288 - - - - 161,288 161,288
Borrowings &3 11,416 192,995 51,951 257,420 381,569 895,351 752,642
Lease liabilities g5k 32,649 112,257 264,991 521,609 1,053,959 1,985,465 1,589,633
Total EE 594,690 305,252 316,942 779,029 1,435,528 3431441 2,892,900

The amounts included above for variable interest
rate instruments for non-derivative financial
liabilities are subject to change if changes in
variable interest rates differ to those estimates
of interest rates determined at the end of the
reporting period.

HWEFBHRZEHAENREK
SHERBMEEMNRZZE
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022 # E2022F12831HLEEE

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.2

3.3

(a)

Capital risk management

The Group manages its capital to ensure that
entities in the Group will be able to continue as
a going concern while maximising the return to
shareholders through the optimisation of the debt
and equity balance. The Group's overall strategy
remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of
borrowings disclosed in Note 27 and equity
attributable to owners of the Company,
comprising issued share capital and reserves.

The directors review the capital structure on a
semi-annual basis. Based on recommendations
of the directors, the Group will balance its
overall capital structure through the payment
of dividends, new share issues and share buy -
backs as well as the issue of new debt or the

redemption of existing debts.

Fair value measurements of financial
instruments

Fair value hierarchy

This section explains the judgements and
estimates made in determining the fair values
of the financial instruments that are recognised
and measured at fair value in the consolidated
financial statements. To provide an indication
about the reliability of the inputs used in
determining fair value, the Group has classified
its financial instruments into the three levels
prescribed under the accounting standards. An
explanation of each level follows underneath the
table.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022 E(ZFE2022412831HIEEE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3 HEREEIR &
ERTREZAREEN=E @)

3.3

(a)

Fair value measurements of financial 3.3

instruments (continued)

Fair value hierarchy (continued) @ AAEEER E
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
F—RMA FZRRE  F=RERA 8%
HKS$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000
BEFT  EBEFT  EBEFT  EBEFT
Recurring fair value 120225128318 KL E
measurements as at RARBEFNE
31 December 2022
Financial assets THMEE
Financial assets at FVPL BALEEFTAERZZ
THEE
Equity securities R A58 5 54,964 - - 54,964
Debt securities EFES 380,475 - - 380,475
Investment funds REEE - - 849,234 849,234
Wealth management products 3281 E @ - - 67,465 67,465
Other securities Hi5E 5 1,156,378 - 181,511 1,337,889
Financial assets at FVOC/ BALEEHARM 2 E
W2z HEE
Other securities Hh:8 5 146,413 - - 146,413
Equity securities R A58 5 2,149,267 - - 2,149,267
Total i 3,887,497 - 1,098,210 4,985,707
Financial liabilities TRIEME
Financial liabilities designated (ST AMUAABEEZE
at fair value through profit HEHTAZHERN
or loss TREBE
- Third-party interests in fund E=AREEBMREHZ
consolidated by the Group EeRa 2R - - 87,461 87,461
- Other Hih - 925 - 925
Total 2t - 925 87,461 88,386
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YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022 #ZE2022F12831HILEE

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3

MBERER (&

3.3 Fair value measurements of financial 33 ERMIAZAAEESE @&
instruments (continued)
(a)  Fair value hierarchy (continued) (@) AAEBEER B
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
BRI BHRER EZRRE B
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BIEFT BWFT BIEFT BIEFT
Recurring fair value ®2021E 1283104
measurements as at 31 PRBEHE
December 2021
Financial assets SRHEE
Financial assets at FVPL HARBEFAEZZ
THEE
Debt securities BHES 380,721 - - 380,721
Investment funds LEES - - 916,226 916,226
Wealth management products 28 &E & - - 23,852 23,852
Other securities HthzE 5 - - 1,093,304 1,093,304
Financial assets at FVOC/ BALEEFABEMEZE
Wz EHEE
Other securities HhzE s 185,025 - - 185,025
Total =L 565,746 - 2,033,382 2,599,128

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the
other securities amounting to approximately
HK$1,093,304,000 were transferred from
measurement based on level 3 to level 1 as a
result of the end of lock-up period.

The Group's policy is to recognise transfers into
and transfers out of fair value hierarchy levels as
at the end of the year.

Level 1: The fair value of financial instruments
traded in active markets (such as publicly traded
derivatives, and equity securities) is based on
quoted market prices at the end of the reporting
period. The quoted market price used for financial
assets held by the Group is the current bid price.
These instruments are included in level 1.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3

3.3

(a)

(b)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mE BRI

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022 E(ZFE2022412831HIEEE

Fair value measurements of financial
instruments (continued)

Fair value hierarchy (continued)

Level 2: The fair value of financial instruments
that are not traded in an active market (for
example, over-the-counter derivatives) is
determined using valuation techniques which
maximise the use of observable market data
and rely as little as possible on entity-specific
estimates. If all significant inputs required to
fair value an instrument are observable, the
instrument is included in level 2.

Level 3: If one or more of the significant inputs
is not based on observable market data, the
instrument is included in level 3.

Valuation techniques used to determine level
2 and level 3 fair values

Specific valuation techniques used to value
financial instruments include:

o the use of quoted market prices or
dealer quotes for similar instruments, if
appropriate, with adjustment for discount
of lack of marketability;

o for investment funds — stated with
reference to recent transaction prices or
the net asset values of the investment
funds;

. for other financial instruments -
discounted cash flow analysis; and

o for third-party interests in fund
consolidated by the Group - net asset
values of the fund.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022 # E2022F12831HLEEE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.3 Fair value measurements of financial
instruments (continued)

(c) Reconciliation of level 3 fair value
measurements of financial assets

The following table presents the changes in level
3 items for the years ended 31 December 2021

MEERER &)

33 ERMIAZAAEBMESE
(#&)

©) ZRABFIEHEELAEE
EHR
TREYEHZE20224F12831H
K2021FE 1283 1HIEHABZ &8

and 2022: —RBIEE 2 &)
Wealth
Investment Other management
funds securities products
KREES HithiE % BRER
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000
BT BT BT
At 1 January 2021 120211818 717,663 - 134,909
Gain recognised in the consolidated  Piz&2ENEE
statement of comprehensive income  pezn - 32,789 122,272 11,399
Additions RE 259,708 965,875 179,333
Disposal HE (98,975) - (302,471)
Exchange differences BEREL 5,041 5,157 682
At 31 December 2021 and B2021%E128318 K
1 January 2022 20221818 916,226 1,093,304 23,852
Gain recognised in the consolidated P42 HNHEE
statement of comprehensive income  pezn - 60,929 24.479 7.904
Additions RE 386,942 160,638 803,365
Disposal HeE (466,148) - (706,998)
Exchange differences ERELE (48,715) (3,606) (60,658)
Transfer to level 1 BEE SRR - (1,093,304) -
At 31 December 2022 1R2022%12831H 849,234 181,511 67,465
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022 E(ZFE2022412831HIEEE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3

3.3

(d)

MBERER (&

Fair value measurements of financial 33 EMIAZAAEENE
instruments (continued) ()
Valuation inputs and relationships to fair (d) FB=RRFZTHEEIAAEE
value of level 3 fair value measurements EZIEEFEAARELLEE
BIRIE
The following table summarises the quantitative TREBIMBBEE = RKF TR
information about the significant unobservable BEZANEESEFMANIE
inputs used in recurring level 3 fair value EEEMEEZHERANTE
measurements (see (b) above for the valuation SEF o PTIRMNNE EHE M
techniques adopted): B2 EX(b)e
Fair value at Range of inputs
RTIBRHZARER YEHARR
Un-observable Relationship of unobservable inputs
Description 2022 2021 inputs* 2022 2021 to fair value
FRBEHEZY
bi:pa L N FEBRZUEZHRAARAABEZMG
HKS000  HKS'000
BlEFT EEFT
Wealth management 67,465 23,852 Expected rate of  1.65%t0 3.15%1.35%t0 2.90% Increase/decrease 10% (2021: 10%) of the
products return expected rate of return would increase/
decrease the fair value measure by
HK$67,000 (2021: HK$21,000)
BWER BIANRE 1.65%%F 135%%F FRHARIREIE M,/ 10% (20214 1 10%)
3.15% 2.90% BERAABEFEEM HEK67,000
TE(20214: 21,000
* There were no significant inter-relationships * FEBELEHEAAZE

between unobservable inputs that materially affect
fair values

TEEHAABEEREKR
FEZERBEBRIGF-
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022 # E2022F12831HLEEE

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.3

(d)

Fair value measurements of financial
instruments (continued)

Valuation inputs and relationships to fair
value of level 3 fair value measurements
(continued)

The management determined the fair value of
the investment funds with reference to recent
transaction prices or by reviewing the valuations
of the underlying investments held by respective
investment funds to assess the appropriateness of
the fair values of the investment funds.

The management determined the fair value
of the other securities classified as FVPL with
reference to market value at the end of the
reporting period. As at 31 December 2022, these
securities have restriction of trading for 1 year.
The fair value measurement reflects the effect
of such restriction. Therefore, the fair value is
determined by the market price adjusted by a
discount rate for lack of marketability of 2% to
3% (2021:10%).

Should the discount rate for lack of marketability
increase or decrease for 5%, the impact to the
fair value of these securities as at 31 December
2022 would be approximately HK$412,000 (2021:
HK$60,618,000).

As at 31 December 2022, the fair value of the
other securities is determined to be approximately
HK$1,337,889,000 (2021: HK$1,093,304,000).

The management determined the fair value of
third-party interests in fund consolidated by the
Group with reference by reviewing the valuations
of the underlying investments held by respective
consolidated funds to assess the appropriateness
of the fair values of the consolidated funds.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3

3.3

(e)

3.4

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mE BRI

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022 E(ZFE2022412831HIEEE

Fair value measurements of financial
instruments (continued)

Valuation processes

The Operating Finance Department of the
Group includes a team that performs the
valuations of financial instruments required for
financial reporting purposes, including level
3 fair values. This team reports directly to the
senior management and the audit committee.
Discussions of valuation processes and results are
held between the senior management and the
valuation team at least once every six months,
in line with the Group’'s half-yearly reporting
periods.

Changes in levels 2 and 3 fair values are analysed
at the end of each reporting period during the
half-yearly valuation discussion among the senior
management, audit committee and valuation
team. As part of this discussion, the team
presents a report that explains the reason for the
fair value movements.

Financial assets and financial liabilities
subject to offsetting, enforceable master
netting arrangements and similar
agreements

The Group has no such financial assets or
financial liabilities outstanding in the consolidated
statement of financial position which are
under master netting agreements. No material
impact on the amounts reported in the Group's
consolidated financial statements and respective
disclosures relating to the Group’s master netting
agreements as no such contracts outstanding.
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YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022 #ZE2022F12831HILEE

CRITICAL ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

The preparation of consolidated financial statements
requires the use of accounting estimates which,
by definition, will seldom equal the actual results.
Management also needs to exercise judgement in
applying the Group’s accounting policies.

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated.
They are based on historical experience and other
factors, including expectations of future events that
may have a financial impact on the entity and that are
believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

4.1 Critical accounting estimates
(a) Estimation of goodwill impairment

The Group tests whether goodwill has suffered
any impairment on an annual basis. For the 2022
and 2021 reporting periods, the recoverable
amount of cash-generating units (CGUs) was
determined based on value-in-use calculations
which require the use of assumptions. The
calculations use cash flow projections based
on financial budgets approved by management
covering a five-year period.

Cash flows beyond the five-year period are
extrapolated using the estimated growth rates
stated in Note 15. These growth rates are
consistent with forecasts included in industry
reports.

Details of impairment charge, key assumptions

and impact of possible changes in key
assumptions are disclosed in Note 15.
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mE BRI

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022 E(ZFE2022412831HIEEE

CRITICAL ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS
(continued)

4.1
(b)

(c)

Critical accounting estimates (continued)

Estimation of the fair value and impairment
of certain financial assets

The fair value of financial instruments that are
not traded in an active market is determined
using valuation techniques. The Group uses
its judgement to select a variety of methods
and make assumptions that are mainly based
on market conditions existing at the end of
each reporting period. For details of the key
assumptions used and the impact of changes to
these assumptions see Note 3.3(a).

The loss allowances for financial assets are
based on assumptions about risk of default and
expected loss rates. The Group uses judgement
in making these assumptions and selecting the
inputs to the impairment calculation, based
on the Group's past history existing market
conditions as well as forward-looking estimates at
the end of each reporting period. Details of the
key assumptions and inputs used are disclosed in
Note 3.1.

Information about the valuation of investment
property is provided in Note 14.

Recognition of deferred tax asset for carried-
forward tax losses

No deferred tax asset has been recognised
in respect of tax losses of approximately
HK$731,855,000 (2021: HK$697,781,000) due
to the unpredictability of future profit streams.
In cases where probable taxable profit will be
available against which the deductible temporary
differences can be utilised and the amounts are
confirmed by the tax authority, a deferred tax
asset may be recognised.
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CRITICAL ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS
(continued)

4.1
(d)

(e)

4.2
(a)

Critical accounting estimates (continued)

Estimation of the fair values of investment
properties

Information about the valuation of investment
property is provided in Note 14.

Recognition of revenue under service
concession agreement

Revenue under service concession agreement
acts is recognised over the period of the contract
by reference to the progress towards complete
satisfaction of that performance obligation,
depending on the nature of the contract, is
measured mainly by reference to the proportion
of contract costs incurred for work performed to
date to estimated total contract costs for each
contract. Management estimates the total contract
revenue and total contract costs at the inception
of each contract. As the contract progresses,
management regularly reviews and revises the
estimates of contract revenue and contract costs
if circumstances change, such as variations in
contract work, claims and incentive payments. The
increases or decreases in estimated total contract
revenue or total contract costs resulted in the
adjustments to the extent of progress toward
completion and revenue recognised in the period
in which the circumstances that give rise to the
revision becomes known by management.

Critical accounting judgements
Determination of the lease term

In determining the lease term, management
considers all facts and circumstances that create
an economic incentive to exercise an extension
option, or not exercise a termination option.
Extension options (or periods after termination
options) are only included in the lease term if the
lease is reasonably certain to be extended (or not
terminated).
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022 E(ZFE2022412831HIEEE

4 CRITICAL ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

(continued)
4.2 Critical accounting judgements
(continued)

(b)

For leases of car parks operating rights, the
following factors are normally the most relevant:

o If there are significant penalty payments
to terminate (or not extend), the Group is
typically reasonably certain to extend (or
not terminate).

o If any leasehold improvements are
expected to have a significant remaining
value, the Group is typically reasonably
certain to extend (or not terminate).

° Otherwise, the Group considers other
factors including historical lease durations
and the costs and business disruption
required to replace the leased asset.

Most extension options in offices and vehicles
leases have not been included in the lease liability,
because the Group could replace the assets
without significant cost or business disruption.

Recognition of revenue under service
concession agreement

Revenue related to construction services under
a service concession arrangement is recognised
based on whether the project falls within the
scope of Hong Kong (IFRIC) Interpretation 12 —
Service Concession Arrangements (“HK(IFRIC)-
Int 12”) and the stage of completion of the work
performed at the end of the reporting period.
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5  REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5 EEERIIPER
The Group has been principally engaged in infrastructure AEBRTENEERISHEEETEE
assets management business. 5o
Revenue recognised during the years are as follows: FREERZWANT !
2022 2021
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Revenue under HKFRS 15: RIBE AR ESERNFE 1558
BB Z U :
Operation service income EE R WA 386,737 436,617
Construction revenue from service R IB e E RHEE W
concession agreement 124,594 135,130
Fund management services income  E&EIBRFEUN 186,833 174,478
Excess return from investment funds & & EH S HIHBEEDIR 515,489 246,583
1,213,653 992,808
Revenue under other accounting RIEEth & sHER|
standards: R Z U :
Leasing income HEWA 71,613 64,819
Investment gain on financial assets at 2 QA AEEANERZ
FVPL THEEZKRENT 314,543 137,404
Total revenue WNHEE 1,599,809 1,195,031
2022 2021
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Timing of revenue recognition WS A B B2 Y B B
- Overtime —TE—EFRFEA 1,213,653 992,808
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022 E(ZFE2022412831HIEEE

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
(continued)

Management has determined the operating segments
based on the reports reviewed by the chief operating
decision makers that are used to make strategic
decisions and resources allocation. The Group's
businesses are managed according to the type of
products and services they provide. No operating
segment identified by the chief operating decision
makers have been aggregated in arriving at the
reportable segments of the Group.

In order to strengthen corporate governance and
enhance the interaction between the Board of directors
and the management of the Group, the Group
restructured the Executive Committee into an Executive
Management Committee with effect from 25 August
2022. The Group considered the Executive Management
Committee as the chief operating decision makers
and reorganised its internal reporting structure which
resulted in changes to the composition of its reportable
segment.

Before the change in segment reporting, the Group had
two business segments, including parking business and
fund management business. After the reorganisation,
the Group identified only one reportable segment —
infrastructure assets management business.

The Group had adopted the new segment information
as the reporting format during the year ended
31 December 2022 and the comparative segment
information had been reclassified to conform to the
reporting format under the current segment information.

The revenue, profit before tax, total assets and total
liabilities reported to the chief operating decision makers
are measured in a manner consistent with that in the
consolidated financial statements.
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YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022 #ZE2022F12831HILEE

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
(continued)

The non-current assets, operations and substantially all
of the customers are located in the China which is the
country of domicile of the relevant entities of the Group.
Accordingly, no further analysis of revenue from external
customers and non-current assets by geographical
location is presented.

Revenue of approximately HK$317,363,000 (2021:
HK$266,972,000) are derived from a single external
customer during the year ended 31 December 2022.

Contract assets

As at 31 December 2022, contract assets which
are presented as concession rights and receivables
under service concession arrangements amounted to
approximately HK$209,368,000 (2021: HK$124,017,000).

Contract assets are initially recognised for revenue
earned from the provision of construction services for
the infrastructures during the period of construction
under the service concession arrangements. Pursuant
to the service concession agreements, the Group
receives no payment from the grantors during the
construction period. The service concession arrangement
(including the contract assets therein) are not yet due
for payment and will be settled by grant of concession
rights that entitled the Group to operate the carparks
during the operating periods of the service concession
arrangements.

Contract liabilities

Contract liabilities represent advances received for the
operation service.

Revenue recognised during the year ended 31 December
2022 that was included in the contract liabilities as at 1
January 2022 is approximately HK$22,659,000 (2021:
HK$21,771,000).
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mE BRI

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022 E(ZFE2022412831HIEEE

OTHER INCOME 6  HgA
2022 2021
HK$°000 HK$'000
BT T EBET T
Dividend income =N ON 414,899 254,669
Government grant (Note) BT Bh (M7 3E) 1,649 2,099
Interest income on bank deposits IRITERF B WA 62,873 39,271
Interest income from financial assets =FEE E X B UL = 2,252
Others Hth 1,090 9,326
480,511 307,617
Note: The amount represented government grants received Wa . =RARPEMAFBRNERESNGE
from the PRC local government authorities in respect of Al 5 B B &8 2 B) I & A A B BT A
subsidising the operating costs of subsidiaries, which were B EXxEBMEMBHEMABEEE
immediately recognised as other income for the year as the B> 2 ZEmB AR A EREME
Group fulfilled all the relevant granting criteria. Ao
OTHER GAINS, NET 7 Hthkz=BEE
2022 2021
HK$000 HK$'000
BT BT T
Exchange (losses)/gains, net R (B518) /W # 58 (24,268) 38,734
Gain from changes in fair value of KREMELNNEBEREH 2
investment properties (Note 14) W (Bat14) 198,100 59,518
Fair value gain on financial assets BRARBEFNEREZ
at FVPL TREEZ ANBENRT 8,423 27,148
Fair value loss on financial liabilities & QA A EBETNEEZ
at FVPL THEBEZANEBEEE (1,293) -
Gain on disposal of assets classified BREISESEEEZIRE
as held for sale (Note 19) (Ht5£19) 16,699 -
Others Hi (3,307) 2,616
194,354 128,016
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8 OPERATING PROFIT

The Group's operating profit is stated after charging the

followings:

8 KEEmF

AEBEEDHEMNERUT -

2022 2021
HK$’000 HK$'000
EEFT BT
Employee benefit expenses EERAZH
(excluding benefits and interests of (FEEEEEN L)
directors) (Note 9) (H1a£9) 249,985 239,746
Benefits and interests of BEEEM LA
directors (Note 36) (H15%36) 13,497 8,872
263,482 248,618
Construction cost ISR A 105,905 117,992
Amortisation of other non-current HM3EREEE#H
assets (Note 15) (B15E15) 30,695 34,864
Auditor’s remuneration TZ BN &
— Audit service — =R 3,659 3,503
— Non-audit service —3IFE AR 539 1,428
Depreciation of property, plant and ME.BENEBINE
equipment (Note 13(A)) (Hta£13(A)) 12,479 7,082
Depreciation of right-of-use assets EREEERE
(Note 13(B)) (Bt5%13(8)) 162,804 186,864
Minimum lease payments under THINBFREEROET
operating leases in respect of land Z=KEE
and buildings (Note 13(B)) (H1a£13(B)) 21,109 23,213
Legal and professional expenses FENEEXER 21,631 23,392
Research and development expense i 2% & FH 24,875 12,284
Service and management fees charged A& & B2 4 2 RFE &
by Shougang Group (Note 33(a)) ERER (M533() 2,990 2,990
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022 E(ZFE2022412831HIEEE

EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES

9 (RERFXZL

(EXCLUDING BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF (FEEESEEN R
DIRECTORS)
2022 2021
HK$'000 HK$'000
EBETFT HBIETFT
Basic salaries and allowances BEARHE & RoER 194,338 192,391
Retirement benefits scheme ROKER F & HFR
contributions 42,944 45,435
Share options granted to employees & ¥ {8 8 pY i I& 1 12,703 1,920
249,985 239,746
Note: Kiat .

During the year ended 31 December 2022, no forfeited
contributions were utilised by the Group to reduce its retirement
benefits scheme contributions (2021: Nil).

(i) Five highest paid individuals

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the five
individuals whose emoluments were the highest
in the Group include two (2021: two) directors,
whose emolument is reflected in the analysis in
Note 36. The emoluments paid/payable to the
remaining three (2021: three) individuals during
the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021 are
as follows:

HE2022F12831HIEFEE > BT BRI
8 7S S B AR AR AR KRB A 5T B R B R WL =X
(20214F : #®) o

(i) HHEEEFALT

HE2022F12831HIEEE
rEEMHERENARATE
H 42021 1 Z4) =5 HE
TR EI6Z DN -BE
2022F X2021F12831H LEE
EE[ FEEHGRT=% (2021
F=Z8) ALZEISWT

2022 2021
HK$'000 HK$'000
EBETFT HBIETFT
Salaries, share options and e BREREMERN
all allowances and benefits
in kind 5,489 5,365
Contributions to retirement RIKERFHEH
benefit schemes 36 34
5,525 5,399
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EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES (EXCLUDING 9 RERGMLZH
BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS) (FEEEFEENRAE) (&
(continued)
()  Five highest paid individuals (continued) (i) "RBESHAL E
The emoluments of the highest paid individuals BEHATZHMENTKUTE®
fell within the following bands: &l :
Number of individuals
AE
2022 2021
Emolument band B <& &5 [E
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 3#1,000,0017% % &1
1,500,0007T — 1
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 &#1,500,0017CF B
2,000,0007T 2 1
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 &2 000,00170E B
2,500,0007T 1 1
3 3
FINANCE COSTS 10 BB
2022 2021
HK$°000 HK$000
B F T BT T
Interests on bank borrowings RITREMAE 33,795 23,810
Interests on lease liabilities HEaENE 68,561 50,533
102,356 74,343
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

INCOME TAX EXPENSE

mE BRI

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022 E(ZFE2022412831HIEEE

1

The amount of income tax expenses charged to the

consolidated statement of comprehensive income

FRiSIZ
REEE2EWRmRANBRZAERX
HRIER

represents:
2022 2021
HK$'000 HK$'000
EEFT BT T
Current income tax in the PRC R BPEAFR SR 167,500 74,545
Deferred income tax (Note 28) EIEPRISIR (H15£28) 105,830 37,622
Withholding tax iEiEs) - 15,507
273,330 127,674
Over-provision for prior year D EEBEEE (4,239) (3,261)
Income tax expense P8z 269,091 124,413

Hong Kong profits tax

Hong Kong profits tax is calculated at 16.5% of the
assessable profit in 2022 (2021: 16.5%).

No provision for Hong Kong profits tax has made in the

consolidated financial statements as the Group has no

Hong Kong assessable profit for both years ended 31

December 2022 and 2021.

China enterprise income tax

Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax (the

"EIT Law”) and Implementation Regulation of the EIT

Law, the tax rate of the PRC subsidiaries is mainly 25%

for 2022 (2021: 25%).

HEAFEM
EBNERIOBEERERENE
2022F M E16.5%E (20214 -
16.5%) °©

AEBREESBEIREN Rt
BEMBRRLUEREZ20226x%
2021 F12B3 " HMEFEEHE BT
BinE-

PEEEFRER
RFFREAREME (THE) BEMR
BiE (TREMEBRZE) MbEMSE
MIZBHER  TRERMZHER
BlS2022F 2 MEFEH25% (2021
F125%) o
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11 INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued) 11 FifeMx%WH (&
China enterprise income tax (continued) PETEFRER (&)
Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a 10% WRIBEBPEEREMSGIRE EREIAM
withholding tax is levied on dividends declared to foreign RUNIEBRELEEAIRIKEES
investors from foreign investment enterprises established SRR S EBMMI0% N TEINR © 3%
in Mainland China. The requirement is effective from 1 ERE2008F 1B 1HEEN BEN
January 2008 and applies to earnings after 31 December 2007F12A31HEN K@ - MREF
2007. A lower withholding tax rate may be applied if MBI EENEZEERZBEERIK
there is a tax treaty between China and the jurisdiction HE > Bl EABRMEMFENRE - RE
of the foreign investors. For the Group, the applicable HBERAREKRAES% AL KEEE
rate is 5%. The Group is therefore liable for withholding B 7S AR B A9 RR 32 B9 B BB R B R PR
taxes on any dividends distributable by its subsidiaries EENERFIT IR ERKREZMTE
established in Mainland China in respect of earnings N o
generated.
The tax expense for the year can be reconciled to the FRzZMBZHEGEE2EWEKRT
profit/(loss) before income tax per the consolidated TZBRErEREER (FF8) HERN
statement of comprehensive income as follows: e
2022 2021
HK$'000 HK$'000
ABIEFT BT T
Profit/(loss) before income tax expense FRFFISIEESZ &R (E18) 1,183,438 (989,113)
Calculated at domestic tax rates EHEBAME R ERN
applicable to profits in the B E ST ENIRIE
respective countries 268,122 (120,380)
Tax effect of amount which are not Rt BEEZRHRIRARBER
deductible/(taxable) in calculating TeJ0i, (BERR)
taxable income: EENRBEEE
Share of results of associates BMELRES (125) (3,103)
Share of results of joint ventures BLaE L RES 15,205 (29,287)
Expenses not deductible for tax ENCIE Lo e
purposes 12,901 279,477
Income not taxable for tax purposes  H AR N (90,035) (60,780)
Tax loss not recognised REERIMIFEE 67,262 46,240
Withholding tax TR = 15,507
Over-provision for prior year DFFEBLEEE (4,239) (3,261)
Income tax expense for the year FEMEBMZH 269,091 124,413
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12 EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE

(a)

(b)

Basic earnings/(loss) per share

The basic earnings/(loss) per share for the year is
calculated by dividing the profit/(loss) attributable
to the owners of the Company by the weighted
average number of ordinary shares in issue during
the year and excluding shares held for share
incentive plan (Note 24).

12 sSka#,/ (HH)

(a)

SREFRF, (E1H)

NEEERELRBA S (BE)
DERANBDIEERERIZEA
FE1E R (B518) BRIUARFE
BETZERMETSHLS
BREGE B St EIFR ISR DT 8B
(MFzE24) :

2022 2021
HK Cents HK Cents
Bl Pyl
Basic earnings/(loss) per share AATEEE AEHERER
attributable to the owners of & ]~ (E538)
the Company 12.97 (15.19)
(b) EREERERN, (EH)

Diluted earnings/(loss) per share

The diluted earnings/(loss) per share for the year
is calculated by dividing the adjusted profit/
(loss) attributable to the owners of the Company
which have been taken into account the after-
tax interest and other related after-tax financing
costs on potentially dilutive ordinary shares by the
adjusted weighted average number of ordinary
shares in issue for the year which have taken
into account the additional ordinary shares that
would have been outstanding assuming that
all potentially dilute ordinary shares have been
converted.

FRNEREBEEREN (BB
BIEHABENEARB S BRED
HEANEMN (BR) TZEE
FREMENBMABEREN
B ERNAEMBERER
BRERKGRUCHENASE
EE#TEBRMETHE £
TRERKMBAERENE
BRECEBHEMEBINETH
BE@ER

2022 2021
HK Cents HK Cents
Ml Bl
Diluted earnings/(loss) per share XA B HEE AEIHERERE
attributable to the owners of &,/ (§518)
the Company 12.97 (15.19)
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022 # E2022F12831HLEEE

12

250

EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE (continued) 12 =EREYN (BB @)

() Reconciliations of earnings/(loss) used in (0 HBRAESRKREN (582
calculating earnings/(loss) per share ¥ (§518) HiR
2022 2021
HK$'000 HK$’000
BEFT BT
Basic earnings/(loss) SRELRA (58
per share
Profit/(loss) attributable to the BARsTEERERRF]
owners of the Company used (B518) 2 AR~ Bl A A
in calculating basic earnings/ 1L EF] (B518)
(loss) per share 922,010 (1,095,327)
2022 2021
HK$'000 HK$'000
EBIETT EMFT
Diluted earnings/(loss) SRERRA (58
per share
Profit/(loss) attributable to the BRstESREERT
owners of the Company (B518) 2R ABHEB A
used in calculating diluted LR A (B518)
earnings/(loss)
per share 922,010 (1,095,327)
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12

EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE (continued) 12

(d)

(e)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mE BRI

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022 E(ZFE2022412831HIEEE

Weighted average number of shares (d)
used as the denominator

skEHN (&R @

FRoBZRHZMEFS
'

2022 2021

Number of Number of

shares shares

RiPEE RipEE

‘000 ‘000

FhiZ FR

Weighted average number of ordinary 1E&QFARTEER
shares and potential ordinary BEARERRA,
shares used as the denominator (518 2 BBER K
in calculating basic and diluted BEZIERME
earnings/(loss) per share (note) SEH (K aE) 7,108,941 7,212,673

Note:

The weighted average number of ordinary shares adopted
in the calculation of basic and diluted earnings/(loss) per
share for the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021
have been arrived at after deducting the shares held in trust
for the Group under the share incentive plan of the Group.

Effects of share options (e)

Options granted to employees under the share
incentive plan are considered to be potential
ordinary shares. These are performance-based
share options with a number of performance
goals. The 45,705,000 outstanding share options
as at 31 December 2022 are not included in the
calculation of diluted earnings per share because
they are anti-dilutive as at 31 December 2022.

Mt -

#HZE20224128318M2021412831
BEFESREARFERRT (B
B FRANEER N BEEBRME
FHH RN AERRERE ST T
REEFTEZRG -

BREZTE

RIFREREE  BFTETH
ROBEERABETER &
HEREREMNRAOEE T
BELBEBEVNER B ZE20224F
128 31H45,705,0008% k71
HNROBEFAOEESERKEE
BFWFES RzZROEEY
HZE2022F12831HEBR®
E1VER -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE BRI

g o =

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022 # E2022F12831HLEEE

13(A) PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

252

13(A) % BB Rk &

Furniture,
Leasehold fixtures and Motor
improvements equipment vehicles Total
Bif-RE
HEEEE KkfE AE A%
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETFT BEFT BEFT
At 1 January 2021 12021F1818
Cost A 14,969 40,703 2,799 58,471
Accumulated depreciation ZEHE (4,008) (11,916) (2,799) (18,723)
Net carrying amount REFE 10,961 28,787 - 39,748
Opening net carrying amount  H3#IEREF{E 10,961 28,787 - 39,748
Addition NE 14 2,141 - 2,155
Depreciation nE (1,140) (5,942) - (7,082)
Disposal HE - - - -
Exchange difference [ERELR 133 709 - 842
At 31 December 2021 12021128318 9,968 25,695 - 35,663
At 31 December 2021 120215128310
Cost A& 15,177 43,850 2,881 61,908
Accumulated depreciation REHE (5,209) (18,155) (2,881) (26,245)
Net carrying amount REFE 9,968 25,695 - 35,663
Opening net carrying amount  HA#BRE & 9,968 25,695 - 35,663
Addition NE - 5,586 - 5,586
Acquisition of a subsidiary WE—BTAR
(Note 34) (Wiz34) - 4 - 4
Depreciation neE (1,110 (11,369) - (12,479)
Disposal HE - (575) - (575)
Exchange difference ERELE (661) (4,599) - (5,260)
At 31 December 2022 122022F12831H 8,197 14,742 - 22,939
At 31 December 2022 1£2022512831H
Cost %A 14,275 33,939 2,657 50,871
Accumulated depreciation REtifE (6,078) (19,197 (2,657) (27,932)
Net carrying amount REFE 8,197 14,742 - 22,939

During the year ended 31

Shoucheng Holdings Limited Annual Report 2022

December 2022, no
impairment loss (2021: Nil) was provided for.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mE BRI

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022 E(ZFE2022412831HIEEE

13(B) LEASES

The consolidated statement of financial position shows
the following amounts relating to leases:

(i Amounts recognised in the consolidated

13(B) fHE

MBRREEI AT REERE
£5 .

VPN
(D2 =]
SN
LE

(i) REAUBERAIRERZ

statement of financial position g ]
2022 2021
HK$000 HK$'000
EBIETFT BT
Right-of-use assets FEHEEE
Office premises BFIBYE 11,146 2,540
Car parking assets FEEE 2,040,536 2,202,228
2,051,682 2,204,768
Lease liabilities HEasE
Current MEN 100,837 77,275
Non-current FERE 1,448,146 1,512,358
1,548,983 1,589,633

Additions to the right-of-use assets during
the 2022 financial year were approximately
HK$174,136,000 (2021: HK$570,716,000).

20020 EE  FRAESE
EEMABE174,136,0007T
(20214 : 15570,716,0007T) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR e M HRR MR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022 # E2022F12831HLEEE

13(B) LEASES (continued) 13(B)fE (&
(i) Amounts recognised in the consolidated (i) MNEEEZEWRETRER
statement of comprehensive income =%
The consolidated statement of comprehensive FecrmEmWmKREI AT EA
income shows the following amounts relating to BEMzE%E
leases:
2022 2021
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
iokz3 BT T BT T
Depreciation charge of FHREEEZIFEER
right-of-use assets
Office premises BFIBYE 4,275 3,721
Car parking assets FEEE 158,529 183,143
8 162,804 186,864
Interest expense (included in #] BB (Gt A
finance costs) B 75 B AR) 10 68,561 50,533
Expense relating to short-  fEHATAEAERERE X (Gt N\
term leases (included in EEER)
administrative expenses) 8 21,109 23,213
89,670 73,746
The total cash outflow for leases in 2022 was 202F FHEZIREAHLERE
HK$188,962,000 (2021: HK$247,391,000). £ 751£188,962,00075(20214F -

H£247,391,0007T) ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mE BRI

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022 E(ZFE2022412831HIEEE

13(B) LEASES (continued)

(iii)

(iv)

The Group’s leasing activities and how
these are accounted for

The Group leases various office premises and
car parking assets. Lease contracts are typically
made for periods of 1 to 20 years, but may have
extension options as described in (iv) below.
Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis
and contain a wide range of different terms and
conditions. The lease agreements do not impose
any covenants.

Extension and termination options

Extension and termination options are included
in a number of leases across the Group. These
are used to maximise operational flexibility
in terms of managing the assets used in the
Group’s operations. The majority of extension and
termination options held are exercisable only by
the Group and not by the respective lessor.

13(B)HE (&

(iii)

(iv)

FEEZHEEETHREAK
AR

AEEERZERTEMEN
FEEE-HEGNBEZRAE
12205 5] I T XX E(iv)IE
Ffr ot o] 35592 5 LAKEHF o TH E 1670
DEEHNEEGEEE R L&
REVMEFR K2 & 14 o TB & 17555 WL f
FENDAE R 3255 o

FEARRE R AR L1

AEBETHZEEEHESIE
IR LT - B R ZRIL
EREEELAEEEEMAE
ELBHERANESER I -IE
REBDIEHARE K& LR P M
AEBITHE BB LA ARETIT
e
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR e M HRR MR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022 # E2022F12831HLEEE

14 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 14 KBEWYE
2022 2021
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT EMEF T
At fair value BRAREE
Opening balance at 1 January P18 1H Z BB 48R 257,466 158,521
Addition (Note) wNE (K1) 109,376 34,130
Acquisition of a subsidiary (Note 34) UWEE—FF AT (Hf5£34) 81,813 -
Changes in fair value recognised RiFE2E W@ RPHES 2
in the consolidated statement of RABEES H77)
comprehensive income (Note 7) 198,100 59,518
Exchange differences b2 A= &B (31,176) 5,297
Closing balance at 31 December R128318 2 AR 615,579 257,466
Note: Myt
During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group has acquired EEK2022F AU EE41,412,0005TH
carpark buildings of HK$41,412,000 and HK$67,964,000 in 67,964,0007c 7L FE A L 20 B UKEE — EE (= B8
Chongging and Foshan respectively. BRI
During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group has acquired E@A2021FRLEE34,130,0007ch 3R
a carpark building of HK$34,130,000 in Beijing. W B — (R B IG K& o
Amounts recognised in the consolidated statement of MEEMEN GRS 2ERGTRAES
comprehensive income for investment properties: ZERE
2022 2021
HK$'000 HK$°000
EBETFT BT T
Rental income WA 28,375 5,212
Direct operating expenses from REELEMHEWRAZHES
properties that generated rental HEK&EIH
income (7,535) (2,762)
Gain from changes in fair value of KREMELNEBEEH 2
investment properties (Note 7) Wk (B1aE7) 198,100 59,518
As at 31 December 2022, the Group had no unprovided 72022F 128310 > AEE I £ R
contractual obligations for future repairs and KRR EREEZRBEANET
maintenance (2021: Nil). (20214F : 48) o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mE BRI

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022 E(ZFE2022412831HIEEE

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

Independent valuations of the Group’s investment
properties situated in Chongging and Foshan are
performed by the external independent valuer, Wokesen
(Beijing) International Assets Assessment Limited
Company, to determine the fair value of the investment
properties as at 31 December 2022.

Valuation of the Group’s investment properties situated
in Chengdu, Beijing are performed by the valuation
team of the Group, to determine the fair value of the
investment property as at 31 December 2022.

Independent valuations of the Group’s investment
properties situated in Chengdu and Beijing are
performed by the external independent valuer, China
United Assets Appraisal Group Co. Ltd, to determine
the fair value of the investment properties as at 31
December 2021.

Independent valuation of the Group's investment
property situated in Hong Kong is performed by the
independent external valuer, AA Property Services
Limited, to determine the fair value of the investment
property as at 31 December 2022 and 2021.

The revaluation gains or losses are included in
“other gains, net” in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income (Note 7).

14

REWME (&

FAEBMUREEMGLUNEENES
B HEMARR GER) ERE
EFEAERABETE I GE  UE
ER2022F12B31HEEYENAR
EE

AEBAURMREMIERHNEENER
FEBEGBEBEBRFETE I GE UE
ER2022F12B31HEEYENAR
EE

AEBAURAENILRNREY RS
BIUSNELE B EEFAERE
[RABETHEILMAE  UEERK2021
FNANBREYENRAEE

AEBUNESENLENENEB LG
BEhEBIIIEEEMIE Y EERN
ERAEIETUEEK20225F %2021
F12ENHEENEN LA ABE

EfRmENEELFAGEEENKT
RABTE AU P ER) (FIEE7) ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR e M HRR MR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022 # E2022F12831HLEEE

14 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued) 14

Fair value hierarchy

The following table analyses the investment properties
carried at fair value, by fair value hierarchy levels.

KREWE (&
DREERR

TREBEETZDHTRQAAEED
RZREYE-

Significant unobservable
inputs (Level 3)

JEREBEMEZ
BEEHEAA (BE=HKEKH)
2022 2021
HK$°000 HK$'000
BT BT
Recurring fair value measurements KEMAREESE
Investment properties: KEWE .
Carpark building - Beijing FBEHAE-IR 77,102 83,595
Carpark building — Chengdu (F BB ARIE— R ED 153,725 166,671
Carpark building - Chonggqing FHBAB-EE 63,537 -
Carpark building — Foshan FEBEHZHAE—FL 314,315 -
Residential building — Hong Kong FEEEB-FB 6,900 7,200
615,579 257,466

The Group's policy is to recognise transfers into and
transfers out of fair value hierarchy levels as of the date
of the event or change in circumstances that causes the
transfer. There were no transfers between levels 1, 2 and
3 during the year.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mE BRI

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022 E(ZFE2022412831HIEEE

14 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued) 14 RKREVE (E
Fair value measurements using significant RRAEEBERHEEEEHERHAN
unobservable inputs (Level 3) [REEHE (BE=ZREF)

Carpark Carpark Carpark Carpark  Residential
building - building - building - building - building -

Beijing Chengdu  Chongging Foshan  Hong Kong Total
FERAR- BERKE- GERAE- FESAE- frel-
bl A8 EE il ] 5t

HKS000  HKSO00  HKSUO0  HKSOO0  HKSUOO  HKS000
ERfr  EEfn  ERfn BB ERFn EEFn

2022 2022
Opening balance at P200E1B1R 2355

1 January 2022 83,595 166,671 - - 7,200 257,466
Acquisition HE - - 41,412 67,964 - 109,376
Acquisition of a subsidiary SN - - - 81,813 - 81,813
Gains recognised in other gains  REM N ERDZ W& - - 2,113 174,287 (300) 198,100
Exchange differences EREE (6,493) (12,946) (1,988) (9,749) - (31,176)
Closing balance RNNENRNBZEAES

at 31 December 2022 717,102 153,725 63,537 314,315 6,900 615,579

Carpark Carpark Carpark Carpark Residential
building - building - building - building - building -
Beijing Chengdu Chongging Foshan Hong Kong Total
FERAR- FBSAE- FEFLE- RBHAE- freg-
bin e E Ll &k st
HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000
BEFT BEFT BEFT BEFT BEFT BEFT
2021 2021
Opening balance at P20IE1B1R 2 5%

1 January 2021 - 151,321 - - 7,200 158,521
Acquisition AE 34,130 - - - - 34,130
Gains recognised in other gains  FRE N EED 2 WA 48303 11,215 - - - 59,518
Exchange differences EREE 1,162 4135 - - - 5,97
Closing balance at R021E12B3 B2 AL

31 December 2021 83,595 166,671 - - 7,200 257,466
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

PN
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FOR THE

14

260

R #5 ¥R R P 5

YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022 #ZE2022F12831HILEE

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)
Valuation processes of the Group

The Group’s investment properties were valued at 31
December 2022 by independent professionally qualified
valuers who hold a recognised relevant professional
qualification and have recent experience in the locations
and segments of the investment properties valued. For
all investment properties, their current use equates to
the highest and best use.

The Group’s senior management reviews the valuations
performed by the internal valuation team and
independent valuers for financial reporting purposes.

At each financial year end the senior management:

o verifies all major inputs to the valuation;

J assesses property valuations movements when
compared to the prior year valuation; and

. holds discussions with the internal valuation team
and independent valuers.

Shoucheng Holdings Limited Annual Report 2022
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mE BRI

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022 E(ZFE2022412831HIEEE

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)
Valuation techniques

The Group obtains valuations for its investment
properties at least annually.

At the end of each reporting period, the directors
update their assessment of the fair value of each
property, taking into account the most recent valuations.
The directors determine a property’s value within a range
of reasonable fair value estimates.

The best evidence of fair value is current prices in
an active market for similar properties. Where such
information is not available the directors consider
information from a variety of sources including:

o current prices in an active market for properties
of different nature or recent prices of similar
properties in less active markets, adjusted to
reflect those differences

o discounted cash flow projections based on reliable
estimates of future cash flows

o capitalised income projections based upon a
property’s estimated net market income, and a
capitalisation rate derived from an analysis of
market evidence.

There were no changes to the valuation techniques
during the year.

14

REWME (&
1 (B Fx 1

AEBEVDESF-AREKEYHER
(CAENEE

RERSHR BEEUEEBRAN
HEEFREMNEMENLABEN
AE-BERGEQAABEMAGSHE
WNEEYXEE-

AABEENRERESBEBELUNYE
HEEBRTHNERER - MRENMS
EHEN EFRHEZTEREZHE
&R 81 !

. FEMENYEIOEETHH
ERERIBLUIPEELERT
EEMHBPARER Bk
BR b3t E RAFHEE)

. RIBFARRIRERER B S (G5
MmBANITERERE

. RIBEY R G5t U AT E L
NiRBmGEEDTHNEERL
EERMRRBERLUA -

FA GEXMILEES-

BIRERARAE 2022658 261



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR e M HRR MR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022 # E2022F12831HLEEE

14 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued) 14 KREWE (&
Valuation techniques (continued) EERM (&)
The following table analyses the level 3 investment TREGEZDTE=ZRBIREYZE
properties carried at fair value, by valuation techniques. FEAABEIER) °
Relationship of
Valuation Unobservable Range of unobservable
Property Fair value at 31 December technique(s) inputs unobservable inputs inputs to fair value
FRBENEEZ FRBREEZHE
L R12ANBZAREE 3 HEEA FRBREEZHERARE BARRAREE AR
2022 2021 2022 2021
HKS 000 HKS 000
EETr Vel 2
Carpark building - Beijing 77,102 83,595 Market approach Comparable's unit RMB258,000 RMB258,000  The higher the unit
EEFAE-IR kot selling price Per parking Per parking selling price, the
itEzEMEE space space higher the space fair
SEEEN SEFS( value
ARES8000  AEE258000m  EfiEEHE ARE
R
Carpark building - Chengdu 153,725 166,671 Income approach (discounted Comparable's unit RMB120,000 - RMB120,000-  The higher the unit
BERAE-RH cash flow) and selling price RMB150,000 per  RMB150,000 per selling price, the
market approach TiLEZEMEE  parking space parking space higher the space fair
WAk BRRSRE) kA SEFSEf SERS(L value
ARE120000%  ARE120000r  EMEEEE AAE
3 E R
AEB150,000T  AEH150,0007
Rental growth rate 3% over 3% over  The higher the growth
REEXHRE 3 years 3 years the first rate, the
IENEA3%  ENLA3% higher the fair value
BEZHE DAEE
#s
Discounted rate 6.21% 6.21% The higher the discount
ik rate, the lower the
fair value
EREES DAEE
i
Capitalisation rate 3.21% 327%  The higher the
BRIEX capitalisation rate,
the lower the fair
value
EXfibEdE A%
BEHEE
Carpark building - Chongging 63,537 - Market approach Comparable's unit RMB70,000 - NA~ The higher the unit
BESAE-BE M selling price RMB160,000 per selling price, the
MENEZBUEE  parking space higher the space fair
SAREARY value
70,0005 % EXfibEHR AR
AE¥160,0007 BEHEE
Carpark building - Foshan 216,780 - Market approach Comparable's unit RMBS0,000 - NA~ The higher the unit
BERAE-HL LA selling price RMB160,000 per selling price, the
MENEZBUEE  parking space higher the space fair
SEGEMARYK value
80,0005 % EXfhiEdE A%
AE#160,0007 BEHEE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mE BRI

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022 E(ZFE2022412831HIEEE

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

Valuation techniques (continued)

14 KEYE(E
fHERM (&)

Relationship of
Valuation Unobservable Range of unobservable
Property Fair value at 31 December technique(s) inputs unobservable inputs inputs to fair value
FnBElEZ FnBREEZHE
t/H R12A31AZ AR EE B HEEA FRBREEZHEEARE BARRAREZEMRE
2022 2021 2022 2021
HKS 000 HKS 000
BT b
Carpark building - Foshan 97,535 - Income approach (discounted cash ~ Comparable's unit RMB80,000 - N/A~ The higher the unit
BERLE-HL flow) and market approach selling price RMB160,000 per selling price, the
WAk BRRERE) kG TWEZBMEE  parking space higher the space fair
SEEEMARY value
80,0007 % BR(bEZER A2
AE#160,0007 BELE
Rental growth rate 3% over N/A~ The higher the growth
ALERERX 3 years the first rate, the
IENEA3% higher the fair value
BEEHUE AnBE
s
Discounted rate 7.00% NA~ The higher the discount
HEx rate, the lower the
fair value
MRZEdR AREE
#i
(apitalisation rate 3.7% NA~ The higher the
BAREE capitalisation rate,
the lower the fair
value
ERGEEER AR
BEHE
Residential building - Hong 6,900 7,200 Income approach (term and Term rate 2% 2% The higher the term
Kong reversionary method) il rate, the lower the
ftER-5% WA BERESE) fair value
RELEEs AnE
EEEG
Reversionary rate 2.5% 25%  The higher the
HILE reversionary rate, the
lower the fair value

ISR
B8
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR e M HRR MR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022 # E2022F12831HLEEE

15 OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS 15 HERBEE
2022 2021
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT EMEF T
Intangible assets (Note a) EEE (H13ta) 166,974 145,899
Goodwill 5k 136,725 142,737
Others (Note b) HAth (KfaEb) 99,534 124,971
403,233 413,607
Note: Kat .
(a) The carrying amounts of intangible assets as at 31 (a) B EEZREREENFK2022F128
December 2022 and 2021 are as follows: 31H#M2021F12831HWMF -
Carpark Funds
operating Concession management
rights rights contracts
(Note (i) (Note (i) (Note (i) Total
EHIGREE i EEEEAN
(Hrz#) (Brz(i) izt i) 4t
HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETFT BT BIETT BEFT
At 1 January 2021 202151818
Cost B A 70,433 - 28,384 98,817
Accumulated amortisation REt# (27,677) - (13,700) (41,377)
Net carrying amount IREFRE 42,756 - 14,684 57,440
Opening net carrying amount ¥ BR & & 42,756 - 14,684 57,440
Transfer 8 - 105,420 - 105,420
Amortisation charged HiHE A (9,070) (6,393) (4,827) (20,290)
Exchange differences EERE 582 1,396 1,351 3,329
At 31 December 2021 R2021E12831H 34,268 100,423 11,208 145,899
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mE BRI

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022 E(ZFE2022412831HIEEE

OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS (continued) 15

Note: (continued)

(a)

The carrying amounts of intangible assets as at 31
December 2022 and 2021 are as follows: (continued)

HERSEE (@)
HizE - (@)

(a) EREEZREIREEN2022FE128
31HM2021E128318W0F & (&

Carpark Funds
operating Concession  management
rights rights contracts Software
(Note (1)) (Note (i) (Note (ii)) (Note (i) Total
FEGEEE BEE  HEEEAY g
W) (i) (i) (W) it
HKS000 HKS000 HKS000 HKS000 HKS'000
BEFT BEFT BEFT BEFT BEFT

At 31 December 2021 1#2021%128318
Cost A 72,302 106,906 30,167 - 209,375
Accumulated amortisation Ritdn (38,034) (6,483) (18,959) - (63,476)
Net carrying amount RASE 34,268 100,423 11,208 - 145,899
Opening net carrying amount ENEEAE 34,268 100,423 11,208 - 145,899
Addition HE N - 1,158 23,123 24,281
Transfer = - 26,348 - - 26,348
Amortisation charged BRER (@121 (6,652) (3,480) (1,327) (15,580)
Exchange differences EQEE (4,115) (8,398) (800) (661) (13,974)
At 31 December 2022 R202£128318 26,032 111,721 8,086 21135 166,974
At 31 December 2022 12025128318
Cost A 66,685 124,151 28,947 2,422 242,205
Accumulated amortisation Zitdn (40,653) (12,430) (20,861) (1,287) (75,231)
Net carrying amount REFE 26,032 11,721 8,086 21,135 166,974
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

PN
g o =

15

266

R #5 ¥R R P 5

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022 # E2022F12831HLEEE

OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS (continued)

Note: (continued)

(i)

(iii)

Carpark operating rights represent the carpark operating
rights held by E Park Investment Management Co., Ltd. (“E
Park”), Urban Parking Beijing Limited (“Urban Parking”)
and their subsidiaries. The rights entitled the Group to
operate a number of carparks in the PRC for 3 years to 10
years over which the cost will be amortised.

Concession rights represents right to operate a number
of carparks in the PRC for 10 to 24 years over which the
cost will be amortised pursuant to the service concession
agreements.

Funds management contracts represent the contracts
entered by a subsidiary of the Group, Shoucheng Rongshi
(Beijing) Fund Management Company Limited and its
subsidiaries with other parties. The contracts granted
the Group to manage the funds held on behalf of other
contracting parties and receive management income as
return for 1 year to 10 years over which the cost will be
amortised.

Software consists of capitalised development costs being an
internally generated intangible asset.

The balance mainly represents prepayment of expenditures
in related to certain carpark operating projects.

Shoucheng Holdings Limited Annual Report 2022
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mE BRI

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022 E(ZFE2022412831HIEEE

15 OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS (continued)

Note: (continued)

(0

Goodwill impairment assessment

For the purpose of impairment test of goodwill, goodwill
is allocated to groups of CGUs. Such groups of CGUs
represent the lowest level within the Group for which the
goodwill is monitored for internal management purpose.
The Group has only one CGU according to its business
operation during the year ended 31 December 2022. As
at 31 December 2022, the Group completed goodwill
impairment test on its CGU. The recoverable amount
of the goodwill was determined based on value-in-
use calculations. The value-in-use calculations used cash
flow projection based on financial budgets approved by
management covering a five-year period and a pre-tax
discount rate of 12%. Cash flows beyond the 5-year period
are extrapolated using a steady 5% growth rate of this
CGU.

As at 31 December 2021, the goodwill with carrying
amount of approximately HK$87,631,000 and
HK$55,106,000 have been allocated to CGU in carpark
operation segment and CGU in fund management segment
respectively.

The recoverable amounts of the CGUs arising from carpark
operation segment and fund management segment as
at 31 December 2021 were determined based on value-
in-use calculations. The value-in-use calculations used
cash flow projection based on financial budgets approved
by management covering a five-year period. The pretax
discount rates of 12% and 15% are applied to the financial
budgets for the CGUs arising from carpark operation
segment and fund management segment respectively. Cash
flows beyond the 5-year period are extrapolated using a
steady 5% growth rate for the CGU in carpark operation
segment, and a steady 3% growth rate for the CGU in fund
management segment.

15 EHthIER#EE (&
HizE - (@)

(0

2R E TS
PMESRIEEREELETLUENT
BENS LEREELBULRA
HEEENMAREREENEZ /N
BB E2022F12A31HIEEE
RIBFXEBESER AEERE—@E
HNEEEBM 20226128318 >
EEBECHASERBET T RER
%o 20226128318 REBEMN
TREELBETHEERENR &
2 REEEREEREESE S
BE - FHEEAERFENEER
HENAFRMBEER12%NRE]
MBXAERERE-BAAFHEN
ReneRAZREELBTEEN
AT RESRHER

72021128318 lREBEAOEE
87,631,000t K & #55,106,0007T 89
FMEENNNBEFEREESHEIR
SEEBANESEESTREESE
Bire

FHBEENESEERELEZREE
F B IREEEENR2021F12831
HiREEREBETEMET - FEHE
BESEAAEREEBIENAEH
BB -FANEREENESE
EBESZREEFBETZHMBEEEN
MBlBEIRED B A12% M 15% © B8
AFANRERERBEEHEER
SEEBITREENMGEHERES% UK
RS EBERSELBTBEENMIG
EE3%HEH-

BIRERARAE 2022658 267



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022 # E2022F12831HLEEE

15

16

OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS (continued) 15

Note: (continued)

HERSEE (@)

Miat : (#8)

(c) Goodwill impairment assessment (continued) ()

The key assumptions are budgeted revenue, discount rate

and growth rate determined based on the management's

expectations for the market development.

No impairment on this CGU was made for the years ended

31 December 2022 and 2021 as the recoverable amounts,

which were the value-in-use, exceeded the carrying

amount. The management believed that any reasonably

possible change in any of these assumptions would not

cause the aggregate carrying amount of the CGU to exceed

the recoverable amount of the CGU.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 16

B BT ()
TERRARBEEEETHERN
895 7 7 0 0 B MG O T T 8
E%o

HZE20224128318M2021F12831
HIEFE ZBeELBMLIBRE
RE A UEl <28 (BME A EE) BiAR
e SEERGEEAZEREN
EREEEEHIEERREESE
BAUNKREAEBRBESELEMN
BLEEREE

BRENE N ZERMIA

2022 2021
HK$°000 HK$'000
BT B FT
Financial assets EMEE
Financial assets at FVOCI BAnBESFANEMEE
Wz cmMEE 2,295,680 185,025
Financial assets at FVPL BARBESFANERZ
TREE 2,690,027 2,414,103
Financial assets at amortised cost RERANREZ SHEE
(including cash and cash equivalents) (BIEFIRENIRESEEY) 4,460,240 3,108,717
Financial liabilities Ed =N
Financial liabilities at amortised cost IR ANRZ SR EE 3,122,697 2,871,817
Financial liabilities at FVPL BRANBEFNEREZ
i B=R 88,386 -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4 A
17 g = |

RA#5 ¥R R Y 51

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022 E(ZFE2022412831HIEEE

PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries at 31

December 2022 and 31 December 2021:

Place of incorporation

or registration/ Issued and

17

FEMBAE

TNERESH2022F12831HM2021%F
12B31HZFEWBE AT :

Proportion of issued share/

Name of subsidiary operations fully paid share registered capital held by the Company Principal activities
WEARAHE RUMEM/ LEE BETRERRRS FAAREEETRA/ERERLH TEEH
Directly Indirectly
Ef# A%
2022 2021 2022 2021
% % % %

Shoucheng Management Hong Kong HK$100,000 100 100 - - Provision of
Company Limited N Ordinary shares management services

BRERERAH 7 1100,000 5 &R REEERS

Shoucheng Services Limited Hong Kong HK$2 Ordinary shares 100 100 - - Provision of

BRRBEERAD B BETEER management services

RESERE
Shouhe Limited Hong Kong HK$5,000,000 - - 100 100 Provision of asset
BAERAR B Ordinary shares management services
715,000,0007 RUEBEEERY
LER

Shoucheng Rongshi (Beijing) Fund The PRC RMB303,000,000 - - 100 100 Provision of private fund
Management Company Limited* FE AE%303,000,0007C management services
(Note (1)) REDEELERRE

BEMA (IR ESERERAR

()

Beijing West Fund Management Co., Ltd. ~ The PRC RMB90,000,000 - - 100 100 Provision of equity
("Beijing West")* (Note (})) e AR 90,000,000 investment

FTRREAEREESERRRAT RtRELE

(&)

Beijing Shoucheng Jishi Investment Co., The PRC RMB105,049,935 - - 100 100 Provision of investment
Ltd. (formerly know as Beijing Shoutong [z AR #105,049,9357 management services
Tianhe Investment Limited)* (Vote () RUREEERY

TREBERREEARAS MBALR
BRRARERRRT) (W)

E Park Investment Management The PRC RMB1,182,155,326 - - 100 100 Carpark operation
Co., Ltd. (Note (i) HE NG BERLE

B (IR REEERRAR 1,182,155,3267C

()

Beijing Shouzhong Car Parking The PRC RMB220,000,000 = - 99 99 Carpark operation

Management Company Limited ol AE%220,000,0007 FHIFTE

("Shouzhong Parking")*

(Note (i)
TREREEERERAF

(=L =N N 20))
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR e M HRR MR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022 # E2022F12831HLEEE

17 PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 17 TEWEAT &

Place of incorporation

or registration/ Issued and Proportion of issued share/

270

Name of subsidiary operations fully paid share registered capital held by the Company Principal activities
WEARAHE RUEM/ CEhE BRTRERRRR FAAREEETRA/ERERLA TEEH
Directly Indirectly
BE 353
2022 2021 2022 2021
% % % %
Beijing Lu Tong Shun Jie Car Parking The PRC RMB20,851,500 - - 80 80  Carpark operation
Management Company Limited* HE AR 20,851,507 FEBLE
(Note ()
FTRRBEREERERERAT
W)
E Park (Chengdu) Car Park Management ~ The PRC RMB33,000,000 - - 100 100 Carpark operation
Company Limited* (Note () FE AE%33,000,0007 BHEBLE
B (%) fEHEERRAR
g0
Nanjing Qinhuaizhuyi Car Parking The PRC RMB4,000,000 - - 100 100 Carpark operation
Management Company Limited* e AE#4,000,0007 FERRE
(Note (1)
BREAEREFEEERRAT
(Hz)
Nanjing Shouginzhuyi Car Parking The PRC RMB33,000,000 - - 98 92 Carpark operation
Management Company Limited* ol AR %33,000,0007 BEBLE
(Note ()
HREZAREEEEARAT
g0
Beijing Shouyuan Xinneng Investment The PRC RMB30,000,000 - - 100 100 Provision of equity
Management Company Limited* e AR #30,000,0007T investment
(Note (i) RELE
FTRETHEREERERAR W)
Beijing Shouzhong Jingtai Transportation ~ The PRC RMB200,000,000 - - 80 80 Carpark operation
Car Parking Management Company ol AE%200,000,0007 BEBLE
Limited* (Note (1)
TRETBEEFEEEERAT
g0
Yibo (Beijing) Private Equity Fund The PRC RMB50,000,000 - - 100 100 Provision of private fund
Management Co., Limited* (formerly e AR 50,000,000 management services
known as Yibo (Hainan) Private Equity RUEMZESEERY
Fund Management Co., Ltd.) (Note (j))
Bh0R AEESEREBRAR
GiBARA (B MEELER
BIRAE) (Hz)
Chengdu Shougang Silk Road Equity The PRC RMB10,000,000 - - 70 70 Provision of private fund
Investment Fund Management Co., Ltd. ~ HE] AE10,000,0007T management services

(Note (i)
RAEHH R R EESERERAT
H0)

Shoucheng Holdings Limited Annual Report 2022
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18(A)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mE BRI

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022 E(ZFE2022412831HIEEE

PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Notes:
(i) Limited company established in the PRC

*  For identification purposes only

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company
which, in the opinion of the directors, principally affect
the results or assets of the Group. To give details of
other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors,
result in particulars of excessive length.

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at
the end of the year.

None of the subsidiaries have non-controlling interests
that are material to the Group.

INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES

Set out below are the associates of the Group as at 31
December 2022 which, in the opinion of the directors,
are material to the Group. The entities listed below
have share capital consisting solely of ordinary shares,
which are held directly by the Group. The country of
incorporation or registration is also their principal place
of business, and the proportion of ownership interest is
the same as the proportion of voting rights held.

All of these associates are accounted for using the equity
method in these consolidated financial statements.

17

TEWBAR &

Hrst -

i) HRERTZERECAT

" B
ERINHEERARETERELERE
BHAEBEZEARNTWB AT - BEFR

B R E AT 2 B ER
SEIBBITE -

ZEMBRAENEFERMERTHE
MIEFE 5 o

ZEMBRAENEFERMERSIF
EREn T EEMSBEKX

18(A) IR ERB) 28 &

DUFEHAEREP2022F128318H2
MERNF BEEDVAZERIHAE
EMEBEKR NIRAZKRAER
ZERAR BRAEEEZITE &
ENTZ ML HFEMEKRINA R
Lo TBEEMYL BFfEEERY
ELf B2 Fr 31 S A 2 EEBUAR R ©

RiEaMBREDPHRBELFHRER
B RRRHER @AY R
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR e M HRR MR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022 # E2022F12831HLEEE

18(A) INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)

The carrying amounts of investments in associates as at
31 December 2022 and 2021 are as follows:

18(A) X E AT ZIRE (&
BE B2 RERBEER20225128
31HM2021E12A31BF :

Proportion of
issued shares/

Place of Principal place Measurement registered capital held
Name of entity incorporation of operation  method by the Group Carrying amount Principal activities
FEARARETRY/
GRS ARMBIEE TELEME HERE ERERZLLA REE TBEH
2022 2021 2022 2021
HKS'000 HKS 000
BT EETT
Immaterial associates below
NTAREAHERT
Beijing Vstartup Investment and ~ The PRC The PRC Equity method 22.57% 22.57% 136,624 138,774 Leasing of shared
Development Co., Ltd.* FE HE s workplace for startups
TRAEAHREERBRBRAT AEIEABRMUAELR
RSB
Beijing West Business Factoring  Hong Kong The PRC Equity method 11.68% 11.68% 20,736 20,106 Provision of trade
Company Limited* &% FE ik financing
REBEREFRAR REUBHHE
Other immaterial associates 6,430 14,658
HiFEAKE AR
163,790 173,538
*  for identification purposes only * (EHER
(i) Commitments and contingent liabilities (i) BRABEATINHAEGE

in respect of associates

(i)

272

As at 31 December 2022, the Group did not have any
material commitments and contingent liabilities in respect
of associates (2021: Nil).

Summarised financial information of
material associates

Individually immaterial associates

In addition to the interests in associate disclosed above,
the Group also has interests in a number of individually
immaterial associates that are accounted for using the
equity method.

Shoucheng Holdings Limited Annual Report 2022
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

18(A) INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)

mE BRI

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022 E(ZFE2022412831HIEEE

(ii) Summarised financial information of
material associates (continued)

Individually immaterial associates (continued)

18(A) MEHEQRZIRE (&
(i) FEBMEQDMBERRE

(#)

EFIFFEAXBELE] ()

2022 2021
HK$000 HK$'000
EEFT BT T
Aggregate carrying amount BRI IEEAREEE AT
of individually immaterial REEERE
associates 163,790 173,538
Aggregate amounts of the REBEBGUTEEN
Group's share of 4E%E -
Profit for the year FEHA 499 4,222
Other comprehensive loss Hihir 518K (8,808) -
Total comprehensive (loss)/ el ok
income (8,309) 4,222
18(B) INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES 188) MEERBZIRE
2022 2021
HKS$’000 HK$'000
ABEFiT BT
Opening balance at 1 January 1B 1BV HAYIERER 854,694 656,143
Incorporation of and capital injection &&E XML TE
into a joint venture - 134,239
Share of profits and other AR E MRS W E D EE
comprehensive income (60,820) 114,826
Dividend received RN E (20,360) (76,829)
Derecognition of interest in a joint BIFEDEEREN
venture (Note 34) Wm (K15£34) (61,063) -
Exchange differences bE D Z=&E (62,247) 26,315
Closing balance as 31 December HE12A31BNEFREREE 650,204 854,694
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE BRI

)02 O = |
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022 # E2022F12831HLEEE

18(B) INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES

(continued)

Set out below are the joint ventures of the Group as at
31 December 2022 and 31 December 2021. The country
of incorporation or registration is also their principal
place of business, and the proportion of ownership
interest is the same as the proportion of voting rights

held.

188) HAEQRZIRE (&

DUF &5 AR ERBAT2022F128318 %
2021F12A31HZBERB cZE R
BT HEMERTAREZFES
EME BPFE D 2 LE B B i
BE#ZLHAERE -

Proportion of
issued shares/

274

Place of Principal place  Measurement registered capital held
Name of entity incorporation  of operation  method by the Group Carrying amount Principal activities
FEABBERTRY/
GES AMmIME FELERE  HENE iR TEEH
2021 2022 2021
HK$'000 HK$000
BT BN
Guangzhou Shouzhong Wanwu The PRC The PRC Equity method 70.07% 70.07% 429,928 541,932 Carpark management services
Corporate Management Limited ~ HE] HE 3 FERBERE
Partnership*® (Note (3))
BENETENLFEREB LR
(i)
Other immaterial joint ventures 220,276 312,762
(Note (b))
EthFERAEAAM D)
650,204 854,694
4 Limited company established in the PRC 4 AT 2 BREFLE

*

Note (a):

For identification purposes only

On 13 November 2019, E Park Investment Management
Co., Ltd.("E Park”) ({3 (JtR) REEERIRQAE),
a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, Guangzhou
Shouzhong Wanwu Carpark Management Co., Ltd.* (&
MEREYIFHEIBERFERAF)and Shenzhen Wanwu
Chengchang Consultancy Service Ltd.* CRYITE B Y B EE
s8R #58 BR /A B) entered into the Partnership Agreement in
relation to the formation of Guangzhou Shouzhong Wanwu
Corporate Management Limited Partnership* (EM & HE
MEXEREEREE (BREE).

As at 31 December 2022, the Group indirectly owns
approximately 70.07% (2021: 70.07%) equity interest in
Guangzhou Shouzhong Wanwu Corporate Management
Limited Partnership* (“Guangzhou Shouzhong Wanwu").
Pursuant to certain terms and conditions given in the equity
owners' agreement, the financial and operating policies of
Guangzhou Shouzhong Wanwu require approval from all
equity owners. Guangzhou Shouzhong Wanwu is jointly
controlled by the Group and another equity owner and, as
such, it is accounted for as a joint venture of the Group as
at 31 December 2022 and 31 December 2021.

For identification purposes only
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mE BRI

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022 E(ZFE2022412831HIEEE

18(B) INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES
(continued)

Note (b):On 28 November 2022, E Park entered into a sale and

()

(i)

purchase agreement with Shouzhong Wanwu Carpark
Management Co., Ltd.* (BMNEREWEEHEERRA
7)) and Shenzhen Wanwu Chengchang Consultancy Service
Ltd.* CRINIT B M RAHIRFBERAE)in relation to
acquisition of 30% of equity interests of Foshan Shouzhong
Vanke Gongying Enterprise Management Limited
Partnership* (“Foshan Shouzhong Vanke") (5 lLE &
MERTGEXERAREE (BIRERH)),
of RMB22,518,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$26,198,000). Details of the acquisition are disclosed in
Note 34.

at a consideration

Commitments and contingent liabilities
in respect of joint ventures

As at 31 December 2022, the Group did not have
any material commitments or contingent liabilities
in respect of joint ventures (2021: Nil).

Summarised financial information of
material joint venture

This table below provide summarised financial
information for these joint venture that is
material to the Group. The information disclosed
reflects the amount presented in the financial
statements of the relevant joint venture and
the Group’s share of those amounts. They have
been amended to reflect adjustments made by
the Company when using the equity method,
including fair value adjustments and modifications
in accordance with HKFRSs.

188) HAEQRZIRE (&

Mtazb):

0]

(i)

2022F 118280 BEEEBEMNE
TEYEEREEERAE RF
TEYVREZARBERIB MK
BRLUEPEYERCEXEES
BiE (FRE®) BLEPERD
30%RIET U EE R KEBAAR
#%22,518,0007T (497&126,198,000
7C) o sHIBE MY EE34 0

ERESEATINEERIA
af&
HIEE2022F12831HIEE
E AEETEREEANEKE
ENBRBEANEKENARE R
(20214 : 4#) o
FESENTUBEREE
FEAE RN ZHBENBE
AWM T FTHENIRET & E
1 22 B ¥ 3R 2% AP B9 B B KR L
MEBLBENMDE BT RER
Bl RER ARG
o MEMERBRET TR,
BIEAAEBRABNREBE(EE
MR ERE AR ) EITH B -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022 # E2022F12831HLEEE

18(B) INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES

276

188 MA&

BREZKRE (&

(continued)
(ii) Summarised financial information of (i) FESELTHEERNHME
material joint venture (continued) (&
Guangzhou Shouzhong Wanwu Corporate EMNEPEYLEXEESELE
Management Limited Partnership* (BIRE#)
2022 2021
HK$°000 HK$'000
BT BT
Current assets MENEE 18,190 122,183
Non-current assets EmnEHEE 668,326 847,497
Current liabilities mEasd 72,947 196,265
Revenue /ON 56,928 188,878
(Loss)/profit for the year FE (B8 &5 (73,691) 166,546
Other comprehensive (loss)/ FEHMe2E@E BB WE
income for the year (57,171) 18,651
Total comprehensive (loss)/ FE2@ (BB Wa
income for the year (130,862) 185,197
Dividend paid BURE 29,085 109,645
The above amounts of assets FREBEENBESESIFLUT
and liabilities include the NE
following:
Cash and cash equivalents REMREEFEY 18,084 8,175
Current financial liabilities nEEMEeE (REERMER
(excluding trade and other Rz B b FE A R I8 Kz 5 )
payables and provisions) 656 2,636

*  For identification purposes only
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mE BRI

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022 E(ZFE2022412831HIEEE

18(B) INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES
(continued)

(iii)

Individually immaterial joint ventures

Reconciliation of the above summarised financial
information to the carrying amount of the interest
in the joint venture recognised in the consolidated
financial statements:

18(B) REE QR ZIKE (&

(iii)

BRIFEREEQT
LAMBERNRBRGE ST
BEARIBREERD ZED
BREEZHIR:

\

2022 2021
HK$'000 HK$'000
ABEFT HBET T
Net assets of Guangzhou ENEFREMEEE
Shouzhong Wanwu 613,569 773,415
Proportion of the Group's AEBREMNETEYZ
ownership interest in EERELLG
Guangzhou Shouzhong
Wanwu 70.07 % 70.07%
Carrying amount of the Group's Z&EBREMNE T B #E TR
interest in Guangzhou ZERHEE
Shouzhong Wanwu 429,928 541,932
In addition to the interest in joint venture R EXEENGE R B EmIN

disclosed above, the Group also has interests in a
number of individually immaterial joint ventures

AEBTEREETERIFEKR
BERABNED  UHEDEA

that are accounted for using the equity method. fRe
2022 2021
HK$000 HK$'000
AEEFT BT T
Aggregate carrying amount of {ERJIEEAREGEABMNIREE
individually immaterial joint e
ventures 220,276 312,762
Aggregate amounts of the REBBEUTEZIENAELE
Group’s share of
Loss for the year FEEE (9,236) (1,917)
Other comprehensive loss Hihiz a1k (22,159) -
Total comprehensive loss PHEEIEEEE (31,395) (1,917)

The amount due from a joint venture is
unsecured, interest-free and repayable on
demand.

BFEEQRBZRNELSSER
R ERARRSAEREE

St—FREE-

BIRERARAE 202264 5% 277



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

PN
g o =

FOR THE

19

278

R #5 ¥R R P 5

YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022 #ZE2022F12831HILEE

ASSET CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALE

On 15 January 2021, Shoujing Yifei Holdings Limited
(“Shoujing Yifei”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, entered into the sale and purchase agreement
(the “Sale and Purchase Agreement”) with King Rich
Group Limited (“King Rich”), a wholly-owned subsidiary
of Shougang Holding (Hong Kong) Limited (“Shougang
Holding"”), one of the substantial shareholders of the
Group, pursuant to which Shoujing Yifei conditionally
agreed to sell, and King Rich has conditionally agreed
to purchase the sale shares (“Sale Shares”) which
represent the entire issued share capital of each of
Excel Bond Investments Limited (“Excel Bond”), Fine
Power Group Limited and Fair Gain Investments Limited
(collectively the "“Subject Companies”). The Subject
Companies directly and indirectly held 1,463,962,490
shares of Shougang Resources which represents 28.98%
of all issued shares of Shougang Resources and all
interests of Shougang Resources held by the Group,
at a consideration of HK$3,513,509,976 (“Proposed
Disposal”). For further details, please refer to the
announcement of the Company dated 15 January 2021.

The management of the Group expected the Proposed
Disposal to be completed within one year. As a result,
the entire equity interest in Shougang Resources held by
the Group was reclassified as held for sale on 15 January
2021.

Shoucheng Holdings Limited Annual Report 2022
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R2021F1B15H ARB 22 &M
B /A& Shoujing Yifei Holdings Limited
(TShoujing Yifei)) @ARER H
-2 FERREHER (BB
RAE] (TEHER) NE2ERB AR
REEEERLE (RENIIUEE
& (TE&WE)) > 1tk Shoujing
YifeiBBHEMEBEIREHE R RSB BKRMG
MESWESERSN (RFERMGBL -
BlExcel Bond Investments Limited (£
EREGRLE) (TExcel Bond)) »
Fine Power Group Limited®Fair Gain
Investments Limited (if8 & TBIZEA
) NEHEETREA BIERREA
ELEEFEEHEIR, 463,962,490
K BEIAEEFEEHERZZH
BETRODEMBEERZ aHA
28.98% > U 1B 4 #13,513,509,9767C
(TEEHE)) - BRE—THBE F
BREART2021F1815BZ A E-

EEEHEHRERLESE—FASE
eoEHI AEBBEREMER2
ERGHER2021FE1BISHEH D ES
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022 E(ZFE2022412831HIEEE

ASSET CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALE
(continued)

On 18 February 2021, the Company published a
supplemental announcement that the Company has
been informed that King Rich and Shougang Holding did
not successfully obtain a waiver from the Securities and
Futures Commission in respect of the obligation to make a
mandatory general offer under Rule 26.1 under the Code
on Takeovers and Mergers. In response to such condition,
on the same date, Shoujing Yifei and King Rich entered
into a supplemental agreement to amend and restate
the Sale and Purchase Agreement (the “Amended and
Restated Sale and Purchase Agreement”) such that
the Sale Shares under the Sale and Purchase Agreement
was amended as relating to the entire issued share capital
of Excel Bond (the “Revised Sale Share”) and the
consideration was revised as HK$1,440,000,000. It was
expected that at completion, Excel Bond will indirectly
hold 600,000,000 shares of Shougang Resources.

On 28 May 2021, the Amended and Restated Sale
and Purchase Agreement and other transactions
contemplated thereunder was approved in a general
meeting of the Company. Despite of the amendment and
restatement of the Sale and Purchase Agreement above,
there was no change in overall business plan of disposal
of all interests of Shougang Resources held by the Group.

The equity interest in Shougang Resources classified
as held for sale during the year was measured at the
lower of carrying amount or fair value less cost to sell
at the time of the reclassification and re-measured at
each period end. It was reclassified from investment in
associate to asset classified as held for sale and measured
at fair value less cost to sell on 15 January 2021. It was
subsequently re-measured at its fair value less cost to
sell as at 31 December 2021. The total impairment loss
recognised during the year ended 31 December 2021
was HK$1,615,179,000. The fair values of the equity
interest of Shougang Resources were determined with
reference to the market price of Shougang Resources as
at 15 January 2021 and 31 December 2021 respectively.

19

REREERE (2

K2021F2818H A AFEEHEBHN
MREMEMIERARENINESEE
FRE(RABIWE & 0 & B (o Dl BT
BIYFRRI26 1 T RABIM2EBE ST
N RE BHEHERAS HEZER
> Shoujing Yifeif 2 R EFE H BT
THE UEINETEEHE (T
EBIRETEEWZE)  BEEHETH
HERMIEST AExcel BondMI 2 S8 E 2%
TRRA (TRESTHERMY) KEBEST
% 78#1,440,000,0007T © FA 5t 58 AL BF
Excel Bondid fE###:%HE600,000,0008%
ERERRK M

12021458280 EEFTMETNE
EW@MAERTRETZHMRZE
ARABREAG LRSS E-BEL
MEBHZET 7B AEELE
HENERERE2NETNEREXH

GE hied

BRNERENRERESBEARERE
NEERSREAEXL AEERE
ERAFHIREESZ > TREZHE
B2 H2021F1B15HAR B E
REIZBREBENHDEAREFENE
E UMUAABEREHEEREATE.
BERTE2021F12A31BUEAAE
BERBEERAENSTE B E20214F
12A31BRBNRBERIBEERBE
1,615,179,0007c c H & R A A
ABESN2EGHERNK2021F18
158 %2021 12831 AT IBERE
F o
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19  ASSET CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALE 19 HAREEE &

(continued)

On 27 January 2022, all the conditions precedent of the K2022F 18278 REFINREFTESE
Amended and Restated Sale and Purchase Agreement HENT B RAEHFHEEER B
have been satisfied and the sale of the entire issued EMERSMPEEITRMNI1.88%H
share capital of Excel Bond, which represented 11.88% Excel Bondz 2B ETRABTMN
of all issued shares of Shougang Resources, took place. HE -BRE—THE FH2REALQHT
For further details, please refer to the announcement of 2022F1B27HZz R

the Company dated 27 January 2022.

Disposal of assets classified as held for sale EEREREEEZRE
As at
27 January
2022
20224
1H27H
HK$'000
BETFT
Proceeds from disposal of 11.88% equity HE11.88%HMEREE ZINE
interests in Shougang Resources 1,440,000
Disposal of carrying amount of 28.98% equity R E28.98% =l BBV IREE
interests in Shougang Resources (3,511,510)
Recognition of financial assets at FVOCI A BEBAEMEE KW EST
of 17.10% equity interests in B 4MEETI17.10%EHE R
Shougang Resources PG 2,045,591
Release of exchange reserve PE R AR 42,618
Gain on disposal of assets classified REESETEESE NG
as held for sale 16,699

280 Shoucheng Holdings Limited Annual Report 2022
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mE BRI

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022 E(ZFE2022412831HIEEE

ASSET CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALE
(continued)

Security investment reserve of HK$566,314,000 was
released upon the disposal of Revised Sale Share
completed.

Since the disposal of Revised Sale Share completed, the
management considered the Group has no significant
influence to Shougang Resources. As a result, the
remaining equity interest in Shougang Resources held
by the Group was reclassified and measured as financial
assets through FVOCI.

On 31 December 2022, after considering the latest
market condition and communications with regulatory
bodies, the management assessed there was no change
to the overall plan of disposal of the remaining interests
in Shougang Resources but it is not highly probable that
the disposal will be completed within twelve months
after 31 December 2022. Therefore, the balance of the
remaining interests of Shougang Resources is presented
as "Investments — non-current” within non-current
assets of the consolidated statement of financial position
at 31 December 2022.

19

RHAREEE (2

B 566,314,000t HKRERED
REEITFERMDIEERER

REREETFERNHER B
BERERBFTEETEBHEHER
FHEXRFE N EHIt B TEHER
REBREDEABANBEBBHLM
EHBmAEZSMEE-

7R20225F 12831 > SR BERR T B 10
BREENEBErEEE B4
B ENBREBENTNENESHEN
BERNEHATERERZSERS A
ZEotbsN > BIEERABEN20225F12
B31HE—FAMNHENTESET
RoRFLEFHFTERERREREE
2022F 12BN BAZEEMBIR TS
EAERBEEZRE-IERB o
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INVESTMENTS 20 KE
2022 2021

HK$'000 HK$000

BEFT BT T
Financial assets at FVPL BARBEFAERZZ

EREE

Debt securities (Note (a)) BB H (Wata) 380,475 380,721
Investment funds (Note (b)) "EEE (Watb)) 849,234 916,226
Other securities (Note (c)) HMzg s (Watc) 1,337,889 1,093,304
Wealth management products B E S (Wit (d)

(Note (d)) 67,465 23,852
Equity securities (Note (e)) e AEE S (B2 (e) 54,964 -
Financial assets at FVOCI BAREBESAHEMEZEIKE

ZEMEBE
Other securities (Note (f) HAheg 5 (B2 146,413 185,025
Equity securities (Note (g)) ARG S (Matg) 2,149,267 -
4,985,707 2,599,128
Less: non-current portion B IETRENES (3,490,102) (1,075,915)
1,495,605 1,523,213

The Group classifies the following financial assets at

financial assets at FVPL:

FEERUTEREEDEREAD

BEESFABDZEREE

o debt investments that do not qualify for o

measurement at either amortised cost or FVOCI;

o equity investments that are held for trading, and o

o equity investments for which the entity has not o

elected to recognise fair value gains and losses

through OCI.

Note (a): It represents investment in debt securities in Hong Kong

of HK$380,475,000 (2021:HK$380,721,000) as at 31
December 2022. The fair value gain relating to the

investments are included in “other gains, net” in the

consolidated statement of comprehensive income (Note 7).

Shoucheng Holdings Limited Annual Report 2022
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mE BRI

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022 E(ZFE2022412831HIEEE

20 INVESTMENTS (continued)

Note (b). It represents unlisted investment funds. The Group has
interests in investment funds which are also under the
Group's management or advisory services. The Group earns
fees and investment returns from investment management
or advisory activities and fund distribution activities.

Note (¢): t represents investment in listed securities in the PRC
of HK$1,337,889,000 (2021: HK$1,093,304,000) as at
31 December 2022. The fair value gain relating to the
investments are included in “revenue” in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income (Note 5). The purchase
of HK$78,988,000 (2021: HK$965,875,000) of these
investments are included in “Cash flows from operating
activities” in the consolidated statement of cash flows.

Note (d): 1t represents the wealth management products issued by
banks with interests at floating rates ranging from 1.65%
to 3.15% (2021: 1.35% to 2.90%) per annum and will
mature within one year.

Note (e): It represents investment in listed equity investments in Hong
Kong of HK$54,964,000 as at 31 December 2022. The
fair value gain relating to the investments are included in
“revenue” in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income (Note 5).

The Group classifies the following financial assets at financial assets
at FVOCl:

3 equity investments which are not held for trading
and which the group has irrevocably elected at initial
recognition to recognise in this category. These are strategic
investments and the group considers this classification to be
more relevant; and

. debt investments where the contractual cash flows are
solely principal and interest and the objective of the group’s
business model is achieved both by collecting contractual
cash flows and selling financial assets.

On disposal of these investments, any related balance within the
FVOCI reserve is reclassified to accumulated losses.

20 ®’E #@)

W) BEiEELmREREES - AEBRZSE
CEESTHEED MZEESTN
BAEENESENER BNREE
ERER TS RES DR EHTER
==

Hat): HIeER MR 2022E 12831381
1,337,889,00070(20214F © B
1,093,304,0007t) W E A RS
BETZHMEBS BZBREARN
ARBEBERESAGEEZEWERF
B9 M) (MI5E5) © 7A578,988,0007T
(20214 : #%965,875,0007T) Z &
EERSTEARERENERNMIMTEET
EEZRE -

Hiata): HIER N F1.65%ZF3.15% (20214 ¢
1.35%%2.90%) Z ¥ B E M K EHE 5
FZEVREES BN —FRE
HBo

Mite). H I35 20221283180 B
54,964,000cIA & A E YRR
oML EEBNANEER S
ANREWRE RN AL (HFEE5) °

FEBRZUTEMEENES AAEBES
AHMEEWGE 2 SREE -

. ERRSMEFREBEAEBENERER
By 7~ B 4R B 3 258 122 TE 4 4R ) R B SR Y
ABH SERHRKRE  AEERT
REMBEESZDEE LA

. GRRERERESHIENEBR
B LB ERREABNLESE
EERERNEZEN

EREEELERERER  BARBEES AHM
2EWEZFEFERPOTAEMBRERED R
ER5tEE-
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INVESTMENTS (continued)

Note (1):

Note (g):

Note (h):

Note ()):

As at 31 December 2022, these investments comprise listed
securities in Hong Kong and Singapore of HK$70,871,000
and HK$75,542,000 respectively (2021: HK$85,626,000
and HK$99,399,000 respectively).

During the year, the following losses were recognised in
other comprehensive income and profit or loss:

20

®wE (@

LED)

HE2022F12831H  ZEREGE
7B170,871,00070 K B 175,542,000
TTRRRERBRMME EHNES-
(20214 : BB AE185,626,0007T
74 199,399,0007T) ©

FRo UTBEES AR M2 E WM
B

2022 2021
HK$'000 HK$000
EBIEFT BT T
Loss recognised in other comprehensive PR HEMEEWRERERZE5E
income (27,530) (14,975)
Dividends from the financial assets at FFABEPEMBAZREEA
FVOCI recognised in profit or loss in ABESAHEMEZEREZE
other income (Note 6) MEEZRE B:t6)
Related to investments held at the end ~BRIREHRITENREEA
of the reporting period 8,755 5,795

As at 31 December 2022, these investments comprise listed
equity investments in Hong Kong of HK$2,149,267,000
(2021: HKS$NIl).

During the year, the following gain were recognised in

Hét):

HZE2022F12831H 2 XREEHE
7B1£2,149,267,0007c A & B _ EHRIE
Fo (20214F : )

FRo UTWESTAEth2E YR

other comprehensive income and profit or loss: 185 -
2022 2021
HK$'000 HK$'000
EIEFT B F T
Gain recognised in other comprehensive 7 E fth & H U & FE 58 2 Wk &
income 103,675 -
Dividends from the financial assets at FFABmPEMBAZREEA
FVOCI recognised in profit or loss in AEEFAEMZENRGEZ
other income (Note 6) TMEBEZRE (Wate)
Related to investments held at the end of EA¥R & HAKIF AWK B HER
the reporting period 406,143 -

Information about the methods and assumption used in
determining fair values of the financial assets at FVPL and

FVOCI are provided in note 3.3.

The investments above are dominated in HK$, RMB and
Singapore dollar.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mE BRI

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022 E(ZFE2022412831HIEEE

TRADE RECEIVABLES AND PREPAYMENTS, 21

FEWARR R TR RRIE R E R H

DEPOSITS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES Y TR IE
2022 2021
HK$'000 HK$'000
B FT BHEF T
Trade receivables FE U BR 3R
— Third parties —-%=h 105,698 84,949
— Related parties — Bl AL 265,873 51,846
Trade receivables & U AR R 371,571 136,795
Less: Provision for impairment losses B OREEREE (15,610) (1,651)
355,961 135,144
Prepayments, deposits and other FEARE-HERK
receivables H g sh1E
Prepayments and deposits FENRIERESE 256,430 196,267
Value added tax recoverable AU EIEER 77,676 84,786
Other receivables H g Wzk1a 92,640 82,863
Amounts due from related companies BT R B 2 I8 12,190 32,025
Amounts due from a joint venture BT EERBIZMIE 29,162 -
468,098 395,941
Less: Non-current portion B IEREE D
Prepayments and deposits FETRIE K% & (167,162) (132,994)
Current portion RENEE 300,936 262,947

The credit terms of trade receivables are normally 30
to 180 days as at 31 December 2022 (2021: 30 to
180 days). The following is an aging analysis of trade
receivables net of provision for impairment losses based

on the invoice date at the end of the year, which were

similar to the respective revenue recognition dates:

2022128318 EWERFHZEE
H—MRA30E180H (20214 : 30F
180H) ° FEUWLER R (FORRIBEEH) I°
FREREEZON BEEEHREER
ZHEFBAHESR) 25 2 RE DU

Lk
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YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022 #ZE2022F12831HILEE

TRADE RECEIVABLES AND PREPAYMENTS,
DEPOSITS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

FEWARAR R FE I R E R H

fthFEWRRIR (42)

(continued)
2022 2021
HK$°000 HK$°000
BT BEFT
Within 60 days 608 I 167,420 32,898
61-90 days 61Z90H 8,793 9,405
91-180 days 91E180H 22,088 22,416
Over 180 days #BiB180H 157,660 70,425
355,961 135,144

Due to the short-term nature of the trade receivables,
their carrying amounts are considered to be the same as
their fair value.

The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified approach to
measure expected credit losses which uses a lifetime
expected loss allowance for all trade receivables.
Movement in the provision for impairment losses for
trade receivables is as follow:

AREWERRBIREATE ) HIRE
BERRAEEAAEERR-

AEHEAEBYBREENFIREG
EHnEstERMEEBRE RATARE
WARRE AR E TR REE - B
RRMZREBRER ZEFHHFIWT

2022 2021

HK$'000 HK$000

BMEFT EMEF T

At 1 January R1B1H 1,651 2,223
Written-off b 6! (641) (2,290)
Provision of impairment loss TEEEEEG 14,600 1,718
At 31 December R12831H 15,610 1,651

The entire balance of the provision for impairment losses
for trade receivables with an aggregate amount of
HK$15,610,000 (2021: HK$1,651,000) are individually
impaired trade receivables. Note 3.1(b) provides for
details about the calculation of the allowance.

Shoucheng Holdings Limited Annual Report 2022
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mE BRI

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022 E(ZFE2022412831HIEEE

TRADE RECEIVABLES AND PREPAYMENTS,
DEPOSITS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
(continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2021, a subsidiary
of the Group, which is a general partner of an
investment fund, has entered into revised limited
partnership agreements with a limited partners
pursuant to which the limited partners withdrew their
partnerships and corresponding investment stakes within
the investment fund. The subsidiary of the Group has
recognised a management fee income amounted to
approximately HK$69,013,000 and the management fee
income remained receivable from the limited partners up
to the revised agreement date. These trade receivables
were assessed to be uncollectible and were written off
during the year ended 31 December 2021. For details of
the above limited partnership agreement, please refer to
the Company’s voluntary announcement published on 30
May 2019.

Other receivables are unsecured, interest-free and
repayable within one year from the end of the reporting
period.

21

FEWARR R TR I R E R H
fthFE IR (#2)

HZE2021F 128310 ZEBNKNE
REMEARERECEREARACSH —
HEREGB AT URBIINERSE
HEROBLEERGBEABEDESE X
HENEEESANTRERE K&
EME AR ERIDEEEHEWRALBIE
69,013,0007c EEE:ImEHEA
I ZEBBERABREREGEE AMNRG
EFEWBRER E- & ZE2021F12831H
EEE ZLERNERSHTEAT
B U [B] A i 88 - B Z=2020%F12831H
IEFE > EUWEARR L i - BRI L
MEREEHEFE F2HEAAE
201955 830H BEA S °

HMBWRESHERER  REREA
REBSHERFES —FEREE-

BIRERARAE 202264 5% 287



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

PN
g o =

R #5 ¥R R P 5

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022 # E2022F12831HLEEE

22

288

BANK BALANCES AND CASH AND TIME

DEPOSITS AT BANKS

IRITAE R RIRE UK IRITEHATF

2022 2021
HK$000 HK$000
BEFT BT T
Cash at bank and in hand RTEIKRIEE 1,796,883 1,549,872
Time deposits at banks RITERER 1,927,456 1,123,590
3,724,339 2,673,462
Less: time deposits with maturity over & | 2R =@ 2 RN ZE
three months ZEHER (150,654) (100,000)
3,573,685 2,573,462
2022 2021
HK$'000 HK$000
BT BT
Bank balances and cash and time RITHEBRRIRE MUK
deposits at banks are denominated in IR1TEHB R
the following currencies: THEBHE
RMB AR 1,602,889 1,837,664
HK$ A 1,290,553 331,415
us$ ETT 830,897 504,383
3,724,339 2,673,462

The time deposits at banks carry interest at market rates
which range from 0.8% to 5.92% (2021: 0.35% to

2.90%) per annum.

Shoucheng Holdings Limited Annual Report 2022
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SHARE CAPITAL

mE BRI

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022 E(ZFE2022412831HIEEE

23 g7

Number of share

Share capital

RiZ&E (TN
‘000 HK$'000
Fie EBEFT
Ordinary shares issued and fully paid: B R{TREMARZERR :
At 1 January 2021 20211 B1H 7,081,017 12,127,547
Issue of new shares on 3 February FR2021F283HETHRMD
2021 (Note a) (Htata) 210,000 426,300
Transaction costs attributable to BITHRDELRZZ KA
issue of new shares - (7,000)
At 31 December 2021 and 1 72021 12831HM
January 2022 2022F181H 7,291,017 12,546,847
Share repurchase (Note b) inEfE (Watb) (15,082) -
At 31 December 2022 120221283 1H 7,275,935 12,546,847

Note (a): On 3 February 2021, the Company allotted and issued

Mtata:

210,000,000 shares at a subscription price of HK$2.03 per
share to Jingxi Holding Limited, an indirect wholly-owned

subsidiary of Shougang Group Co., Limited. The total
proceeds of HK$426,300,000 has resulted an increase in

share capital.

Note (b): During the year ended 31 December 2022, 15,082,000

Bfatb:

ordinary shares of the Company were repurchased at a

price ranging from HK$1.17 to HK$1.57 per share. The

total amount paid for the repurchase was approximately
HK$19,886,000. All shares repurchased have been
cancelled during the year ended 31 December 2022.

2021 2A3B A RARER
B2 03wz RBEERAER
BRAG  2EHEEEERAA
Z2EREBERBARRKLENET
210,000,00008 f& 7 © PTG RIB4R %R
#7516426,300,0007T B B E AL 4538
e

HE20225128318L+Z2@EA >
ARBUBEBEGREE1.17
JTTEAWE1.57CEI#15,082,000/
AT EBRE M CIEFAES
B 4B 1519,886,000 0 c EE E
2022F12B3MHIEFEE FREE[E
AR M E -
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24 SHARES HELD FOR SHARE INCENTIVE PLAN 24

ARt st BIFRFF AR

2022 2022
Number of
Shares
1R 8 E
‘000 HK$°000
FhR BT T
Shares held for share incentive plan IR EN T BIFRIFAR % 173,138 298,433

These shares are shares in Shoucheng Holdings Limited

that are held by the Company’s trustee for the purpose

of granting shares under the Company’s share incentive

plan. Shares issued to employees are recognised on a

first-in-first-out basis.

RIESBSHFMFHNEREREBRA
ARNBERDRZFARFTEZR
7> BIIRIR R B IR 1 BB 5t 8 3%
FZzkin-mREFITHRMDULE
Fo By 75 TURERE o

Number of
shares
ghE 4=
‘000 HK$'000
Details FhR BT T
At 1 January 2021 R2021FE1B1H &
20215%12831H - -
Acquisition of shares UBE R 157 173,138 298,433
At 31 December 2021, 1 January 20214128310 220224
2022 and 31 December 2022 1B1H#2022%FE12831H 173,138 298,433
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mE BRI

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022 E(ZFE2022412831HIEEE

SHARES HELD FOR SHARE INCENTIVE PLAN
(continued)

Share incentive plan

The adoption of the share incentive plan (the “Plan”)
was approved by shareholders at the general meeting
on 3 November 2021. The Plan is designed to provide
long-term incentives for senior managers and above
(including executive directors) to deliver long-term
shareholder returns. Under the Plan, participants are
granted options which only vest if certain performance
standards are met. Participation in the plan is at the
board’s discretion and no individual has a contractual
right to participate in the plan or to receive any
guaranteed benefits. The amount of options that will
vest depends on the Group's performance and the
individual grantee’s performance of each year during
the grant and exercise periods. Once vested, the options
remain exercisable for a period of 60 months. Options
are granted under the Plan for no consideration and
carry no dividend or voting rights.

Set out below are summaries of the options granted
under the plan:

24

Average exercise

RRIEMB S EIFTRD (&

BB a2

KRB ZREHE TS (T8 2
FR2021FE 11 B3HZRBEATRKKRE
HAERM RSB EEAETLRTNE
REEAE (BEHTES) EEHEH
BHE MIRERAKREDLOIIR - AET
EHNEREESEMEREZES
AER - BEFENERET2HAAE
FWERERARENZNER - HTF 2
BEREBUARANB M SEHREA
ERFMITREBASENEERR
ERENENFABEE FTHIEOEA -
EREDNREASSEERY BF
W75 S R o

UTRRBEARGEFARENEREDN

B2
2022 2021
Average exercise

price per share Number of price per share Number of
option options option options

SihEREZ EhEREZ
TR BREHE THARE EREYE
HKS 000 HKS 000
Details i AE 4 P4 7K
As at 1 January R1A1E 1.624 138,500 - -
Granted during the year RERRH 1,560 25,800 1624 138,500
As at 31 December ™M2B31H 1.614 164,300 1624 138,500

Vested and exercisable at 31 R12B3HERBRATH

December
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR e M HRR MR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022 # E2022F12831HLEEE

24 SHARES HELD FOR SHARE INCENTIVE PLAN
(continued)

Share incentive plan (continued)

No options were expired, exercised and forfeited during
the periods covered by the above tables.

Share options outstanding at the end of the year have
the following expiry dates and exercise prices:

24

RRIEHB St EIFTE RN (&

BRtERR 58 (&)

EXRAABRENFEANTLEERESL

THRERR I

UTRRERERITENBERENE

wm BN ATEE

Grant Date Expiry date Exercise price Share options

31 December

2022

EHBAE J& W B HA TGRS g

20224

12A31H

‘000

FhR

5 November 2021 5 November 2024 1.624 45,572
202111 85H 202411 85H

5 November 2021 5 November 2025 1.624 45,572
202111 85H 202411 85H

5 November 2021 5 November 2026 1.624 46,956
202111 85H 202411 85H

2 November 2022 2 November 2025 1.560 8,646
202211 82H 2025%F1182H

2 November 2022 2 November 2026 1.560 8,646
202211 82H 20265 1182H

2 November 2022 2 November 2027 1.560 8,908
202211 82H 202711 82H

164,300

Weighted average remaining contractual life of options 3.01 yearsfE

outstanding at end of period

FAREARTEBRERMEFI9ER T SHFH

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group has
recognised an equity-settled share-based expense of
approximately HK$15,778,000 (2021: HK$2,387,000)
for the share options under the plan in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR e M ERR Y 5L

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022 E(ZFE2022412831HIEEE

SHARES HELD FOR SHARE INCENTIVE PLAN 24

(continued)
Fair value of options granted

The assessed weighted average fair value at grant date
of options granted during the year ended 31 December
2022 was HK$0.34 (2021: HK$0.31) per option. The fair
value at grant date is independently determined using an
adjusted form of the Binomial Tree Approach that takes
into account the exercise price, remaining life of the
option, number of intervals, the share price at grant date
and expected price volatility of the underlying share, the
expected dividend yield and the risk free interest rate for
the term of the option.

The model inputs for options granted during the year
ended 31 December 2022 included:

RRIER Rt EIFRS IR (B)

REBREZAREE
HE2022F12831HLEEE NEH
ERELRATEHNERENKTEM
BEHRABEASRERBE0.34T
(20214 : BA¥0.317) ~FEHAH
HNAARBELEBKSHAE _XFEER
BRIEE  BHs RERENITHEE
FIpEH - HENEE WBEX) 1K
HEBHENKRE -BARGONTERE
HigtE - TR B RE U B EE
HE PN 4 B B ) 2K o

REE2022F12831HEFEREN
BN ER & A BIEEE

(a) Grant date 2 November 2022 2 November 2022 2 November 2022
EE B 20225 1182H 20221182H 20225 1182H
(b) Expiry date 2 November 2025 2 November 2026 2 November 2027
=y =R 2025F1182H 2026%11H2H 2027511828
(c) Share price at grant date HK$1.560 HK$1.560 HK$1.560
EEBBNKRE A 1&1.5607T B #1.5607T B 181.5607T
(d) Exercise price HK$1.560 HK$1.560 HK$1.560
T8 75 181.5607T 15607 A1 .5607T
(e) Expected price volatility 39.51% 39.51% 39.51%
TARAE IR IE 39.51% 39.51% 39.51%
(f) Risk-free interest rate 4.37% 4.25% 417%
= A g ) = 4.37% 4.25% 4.17%
(9) Expected dividend yield 7.64% 7.64% 7.64%
TARAR B 7.64% 7.64% 7.64%
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR e M HRR MR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022 # E2022F12831HLEEE

24 SHARES HELD FOR SHARE INCENTIVE PLAN
(continued)

Fair value of options granted (continued)

The model inputs for options granted during the year
ended 31 December 2021 included:

(a) Grant date 5 November 2021
B HE 2021511858

(b) Expiry date 5 November 2024
& v B HA 2024F1185H

() Share price at grant date HK$1.620
R BHBENKRE B #1.6207T

(d) Exercise price HK$1.624
17168 ABE1.6247T

(e) Expected price volatility 37.75%
FRHABHIKIE 37.75%

(f) Risk-free interest rate 0.70%
mEREAE 0.70%

(9) Expected dividend yield 6.00%
TRk B 6.00%
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24 [RIEHMBEEIFTERG (B

REBREZQREE @)

REE2021FE12B31HIEEEREN
FBRENELE A SIREIE .

5 November 2021 5 November 2021

2021%1185H 202141185H
5 November 2025 5 November 2026
2025F1185H 20265F1185H
HK$1.620 HK$1.620

B H#1.6207T 51,6207
HK$1.624 HK$1.624

B .6247T BN .6247T
37.75% 37.75%
37.75% 37.75%
0.91% 1.11%

0.91% 1.11%

6.00% 6.00%

6.00% 6.00%
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mE BRI

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022 E(ZFE2022412831HIEEE

TRADE PAYABLES, OTHER PAYABLES,
PROVISION AND ACCRUED LIABILITIES

25

FEISARR ~ Eth (I 7RIE ~ BB R
afiE

As at 31 December

BHE12A3MHLEE
2022 2021
HK$°000 HK$000
EEFT BT T
Trade payables FETER X 353,950 389,337
Accruals Est&E A 100,803 78,871
Other payables H 1t fE (I ZIE 172,371 161,288
273,174 240,159

The following is an aging analysis of trade payables
presented based on the invoice dates at the end of the

year:

REXRE REZZAME7ZEN

R ZBREC D ATINE ¢

As at 31 December

HENAMMBLEE
2022 2021
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETFT HBIEFT
Within 90 days 90H ™ 94,223 89,633
91-180 days 91&180H 67,894 64,845
181-365 days 181&E365H 90,652 82,096
Over 365 days 365H L E 101,181 152,763
353,950 389,337

The average credit period on purchase of goods is 90
days. The Group has financial risk management policies
in place to ensure that most of the payables are within
the credit timeframe.

REEMZFHEEHRRI0H K&
B 5% W75 R e B IR B IR AR KB
DB RIBERIEERRA
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR e M HRR MR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022 # E2022F12831HLEEE

26 FINANCIAL LIABILITIES AT FAIR VALUE 26
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

UARBESEBHEEHFIAE
HEmIERMan

2022 2021
HK$'000 HK$°000
BEFT BT
Financial liabilities designated at fair value ~ IEEAUAABEFEEEEH
through profit or loss SINEBERNERERE
— Third-party interests in fund — E-FRAKEmEHZ
consolidated by the Group (Note) HeRBBEzEn Wit 87,461 -
- Others — Hfty 925 -
88,386 -
Less: non-current portion B AEREE D (87,461) -
925 -
Note: gz

As at 31 December 2022, the financial liabilities arising from fund
consolidated by the Group was designated as at fair value through
profit or loss by the Group, as the Group has the obligation to pay
other investor based on the net asset value and related terms of
these consolidated investment fund.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mE BRI

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022 E(ZFE2022412831HIEEE

BORROWINGS

ok
2

Bank borrowings

RITRER

2022 2021
HK$'000 HK$°000
BT EET T
Repayable within one year and AR—FENEERRRS
shown under current liabilities BEETIR
Unsecured B 581,821 179,037
Non-current liabilities ERHBEE
Unsecured B 465,572 573,605
Total borrowings ER/$CEE] 1,047,393 752,642
At the end of the reporting period, the Group's RER AEB ZEHREFEBUT -
borrowings were repayable as follows:
2022 2021
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BET T
Within 1 year or repayable on demand — 4 pyof ZEiR B R E 1S 581,821 179,037
Between 1 and 2 years 1E2F 28,682 29,981
Between 2 and 5 years 2FE5F 148,656 203,166
Over 5 years 5FE E 288,234 340,458
1,047,393 752,642
Unsecured B 1,047,393 752,642

As at 31 December 2022, the Company's weighted
average interest rate per annum of bank borrowings was

2.80% (2021: 3.25%).

The carrying amounts of borrowings are approximately

to their fair values.

The carrying amounts of the borrowings are
denominated in RMB approximately HK$493,592,000 as
at 31 December 2022 (2021: HK$510,142,000).

3.25%) o

720224 12831H 1
ANREHEHEHE493,592,0007T
(20214 : #1#510,142,0007T) °

752022F 128310 AR BIRITER
RN EREA2.80% (20214 :

EHB R E AR A A EEEE -

RYBRmE B MU
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

PN
g o =

FOR THE

28

298

R #5 ¥R R P 5

YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022 #ZE2022F12831HILEE

DEFERRED INCOME TAX 28 IRIEFRIGIR
For the purpose of presentation in the consolidated MEEMBRAXRZEIME & T
statement of financial position, certain deferred tax FILMBEENBEDZLEE  UT
assets and liabilities have been offset. The following is BIRIER I BR 2 DA MUER B 3R
the analysis of the deferred tax balances for financial ER®
reporting purposes:
As at 31 December
HE12B31BLEE
2022 2021
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Deferred income tax assets RIERIEE E (5,291) (3,304)
Deferred income tax liabilities RIERIEEaE 160,013 59,796
154,722 56,492
(i) Deferred income tax assets (i) ERERIBEEE
The following are the major deferred income tax UFBRFEFRUAFTFEEER
assets and liabilities recognised and movements ZFEREREBEEERBENR
thereon during the current and prior year: Higg) !
Lease Tax losses Total
HE MIEksiE st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000
EEFT EEFT EEFT
At 1 January 2021 202151 81H 16 - 16
Charged to consolidated  Riza2EUWETRETA
statement of
comprehensive income - 3,258 3,258
Exchange differences P& &2 & 28 - 30 30
At 31 December 2021 and /22021128318
1 January 2022 2022%1H81H 16 3,288 3,304
Charged to consolidated  Réza2mEUWE TR
statement of
comprehensive income - 2,313 2,313
Exchange differences PE R EZE - (326) (326)
At 31 December 2022 720225 12831H 16 5,275 5,291
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mE BRI

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022 E(ZFE2022412831HIEEE

DEFERRED INCOME TAX (continued) 28 RIEFRISIR ()
Deferred income tax liabilities (i) REREBEEE
Fair value
adjustment Fair value Fair value
and  adjustment  adjustment
Concession  revaluation of other non- of
rights ~ of properties current assets investments  Tax losses Leases Total
NERL  EftFERB
EERZ BEAR REAR
it REf (R BESHE HEss ik )
HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000
EHTr EHTr ViAo E¥Tr Vil Ao EETr ViAo
At 1 January 2021 R201F1818 - 2,615 14,018 1,985 (664) 109 18,063
(Credited)icharged to consolidated ~ REAZERER GTA) /1k
statement of comprehensive income 5,187 14,919 (3,088) 27,869 - (4,007) 40,880
Exchange differences ERER 73 12 328 493 - (53) 853
At 31 December 2021 R2021£128310 5,260 17,546 11,258 30,347 (664) (3,951) 59,796
Charged to consolidated statement of  PMEA2EREXI
comprehensive income 3,248 49,525 - 54,328 - 1,042 108,143
Exchange differences ERER (506) (2,865) (875) (4,007) 51 276 (7,926)
At 31 December 2022 R2022%128318 8,002 64,206 10,383 80,668 (613) (2,633) 160,013

As at 31 December 2022, the Group has unused
tax losses of approximately HK$731,855,000
(2021: HK$697,781,000). A deferred tax asset
has been recognised in respect of approximately
HK$4,000,000 of such losses for the year ended
31 December 2022 and 2021.
asset has been recognised in respect of the
HK$510,000,000 (2021: HK$510,000,000) tax
losses due to the unpredictability of future profit
streams. Except for tax losses of HK$19,000,000
(2021: HK$19,000,000) will be expired in 5 years,
such tax losses do not have expiry date.

No deferred tax

$K2022F 128310 & H
FERMEBEBRBAOSEE
731,855,0007% (20214 : Bk
697,781,0007T) ° B E20224F
T2021F12B31HIEFE B
PEZER B4 E 14,000,000
TURERIREIRIEE & o RN E A
TERI 2R 2R s R o B0 R R R
510,000,0007¢ (20214 : Bk
510,000,0007T) # 18 k5 18 7 52
RIETRIEE E - BRI IBE BB
19,000,0007c (20214 : B
19,000,0007T) #&15 A F A EIHA
Sh MIBEIEN A EIEAA o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR e M HRR MR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022 # E2022F12831HLEEE

28 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (continued) 28
(ii) Deferred income tax liabilities
(continued)

At 31 December 2022, there were no significant
unrecognised deferred income tax liabilities for
the tax that would be payable on the unremitted
earnings of certain Group’s PRC subsidiaries as
the Group is able to control the timing of the
reversal of the temporary differences and it is
probable that the temporary differences will not
reverse in the foreseeable future.

29 DIVIDENDS 29

IBIEFR1SIR (&

(ii)

[:35)

IEERIERRE (@)

L2022 128310 RIBEH I
EAASEZFERBEASZ
FAEFERASI R ERKRE
RIRERIBEE RAEEATY
PRI R E 2 (0] W B Al BETE
AIFERARK A E Do

Year ended 31 December

H#E=12831ALFE

2022 2021

HK$’000 HK$'000

BT T BT T
Final dividend for the year ended 31 & ZE2021F12831HIEEE
December 2021 of HK5.49 cents HNEBREBESRBER
(2020: HK5.49 cents) per fully paid 135.497% 1l (20204 : 5.49

share FEAL) 390,307 400,276
Special dividend for the year ended ~ #HE2022F12831HLLEE
31 December 2022 of HK2.74 AR E RS REER
cents (2021: Nil) per fully paid 1£2.747%4 (20214 :© )

share 194,847 -
Interim dividend for the year ended  #ZE2022F12831HILEE
31 December 2022 of HK4.12 R AR B R SR EUE KR
cents (2021: HK4.11 cents) per 34127384l (20214 : 4.11

fully paid share L) 292,817 299,662

877,971 699,938
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mE BRI

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022 E(ZFE2022412831HIEEE

DIVIDENDS (continued)

In a board resolution dated 15 February 2022, the
Board declared a special dividend with total amount of
HK$200 million, comprising the first tranche of special
dividend of HK$100 million was paid on 14 March 2022
to shareholders whose names appear on the register
of members of the Company on 3 March 2022 and the
second tranche of special dividend of HK$100 million
was paid on 31 October 2022 to the shareholders
whose names appear on the register of members of the
Company on 20 October 2022.

In a board resolution dated 25 August 2022, the Board
declared an interim dividend in the total amount of
HK$300 million (equivalent to HK4.12 cents per share,
based on the number of issued shares on 25 August
2022, i.e 7,282,547,194 ordinary shares) for the six
months ended 30 June 2022 (2021: HK$300 million).

In a board resolution dated 24 March 2023, the Board
has recommended a final dividend in the total amount
of HK$400 million for the year ended 31 December
2022 (2021: HK$400 million) payable to shareholders
whose names appear on the register of members of
the Company at the close of business on Friday, 14 July
2023. Based on the 7,528,737,440 ordinary shares in
issue, such a final dividend would amount to HK$5.31
cents per share (2021: HK5.49 cents per ordinary share).

The final dividend is subject to the shareholders’
approval at the forthcoming annual general meeting.
The final dividend proposed after 31 December 2022
has not been recognised as a liability as at 31 December
2022.

The dividend distribution excludes approximately HK$21
million which are received by the treasury shares held by
the Company for share incentive plan during the year
ended 31 December 2022.

29

KRE #)

20222815 HZEEGREF &
EEERENBRESLBIE2ET-$
—RARFRIIR BB 1B T ERN202243
B14B 5 12022E3838 &% 7
NEVRELMAZIE 55 ZHARFFRY
& BB IETENR2022F10831H
S FH20225 108208 &5 AR AT
RERMRZERE-

£2022FE8H25H 2B g RE B
EEEEIREE2022F6830H BN
BREZHHEREGHEBEIGT HE
KREREERA 2B EHK202248
B25HZBEBRITRMNDHBE BIEER
7,282,547,1948%) (20214 : B3
JT) °

£2023FE3824A 2 EE G RED
EEGREBERIKEEHET2022F128
BTHIEFEZRPREGHBIEAMET
(20214 : BlE4ETT) FH2023F74
148 (B85 BEBBERBRLIE
NERBLMAZRE-HEARTBE
BT @A7,528,737,44008 K
HARG B A SR @RS 3181 (2021
£ ERZERS.4981) o

ZARPREBASFHRIBERTZRER
FAE LIREREMIEJK20225F12
B31B®&#IK KRR ENK2022512
BB RXER ARG

CENDENEIEEZE20226E12831H
IFFEEAREERESESE TAE
BEXE WD EA AT EFERNERMD
FrUR BB A B 1802 18T
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022 # E2022F12831HLEEE

TRANSACTIONS WITH NON-CONTROLLING
INTERESTS

Step acquisition in subsidiary

(a)

During the year ended 31 December 2021,
the Group completed several transactions
with non-controlling interests. The Group
recognised decrease in non-controlling interest
of HK$30,799,000 and increase in equity of
HK$9,661,000 attributable to the owners of the
Company.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the
non-controlling interests of certain non-wholly
owned subsidiaries and the Group completed
several rounds of capital injections into those
subsidiaries without changing the equity interests
of the subsidiaries held by the non-controlling
interests and the Group. As a result of the
capital injections, the balance of non-controlling
interests increased by HK$24,408,000 (2021:
HK$1,604,000).

Shoucheng Holdings Limited Annual Report 2022
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BRI IET R 5

7B W — R B Q)

(a)

HE2021F12B31HIEEE
AEBECTEMLIEEI TR E
m IR 5 o AN EE B D IR 1
@) B 130,799,000 M A
NEEB ANEBILRERIE A
9,661,0007 ©

HE2022F128310IEEE
REFE2ET R ZIFERE
m A AL EZRBREFR LG T
T ZETRANKEHITE
ME2BENEHANERRIFER
ERFEZE T AENEGR JF
ERERGREEZEMGMSE
#524,408,00075(20214F @ B
1,604,0007T) ©



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mE BRI

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022 E(ZFE2022412831HIEEE

31 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED 31 GZARTHERMEE
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
(a) Cash generated from operations () REXBELEZRE
2022 2021
Note HKS$'000 HK$'000
Myt BEFT BEFT
Cash flows from operating REELBMELZRERE
activities
Profit/(loss) before income tax BRETEREIET, (58) 1,183,438 (989,113)
Adjustments for: HRTFFEEELAR:
Interest income FIEWAN 6 (62,873) (41,523)
Interest expenses FEXH 10 102,356 74,343
Dividend income BREKA 6 (414,899) (254,669)
Exchange differences ERER 7 24,268 (38,734)
Share of results of associates BUEHEREZEE (499) (16,632)
Share of results of joint ventures BUEEERBEZER 60,820 (114,826)
Gain from changes in fair value of RENERNEELEE
investment properties Z W 7 (198,100) (59,518)
Depreciation of property, plant and ME BENREBEZINE
equipment 13(4) 12,479 7,082
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEEZINE 13(B) 162,804 186,864
Amortisation of other non-current HithEmeEEH s
assets 30,695 34,864
Written-off of trade receivables I EH PR WAR R - 69,013
Fair value change of financial assets at AR BE NEFZZ &5
fair value through profit or loss BEZNABEES (301,975) (164,552)
Fair value change of financial liabilites AR BEGNERZ &5
at fair value through profit or loss BEZANBEED 1,293 -
Non-cash employee benefits expenses -  FIR £ 18 8 BH & A -7
share based payment 2 h) 15,778 2,387
Provision for impairment losses for FEWERFURIER R
trade receivables 14,600 1,718
Provision for impairment of an —BREZRERBRERE
investment 19 - 1,615,179
Gain on disposal of asset held for sale  REREFEEEZ WG 19 (16,699) -
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022 # E2022F12831HLEEE

31

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED 31
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (continued)

Cash generated from operations

HEHERERME &

() KEEBELEZRE (B

(continued)
2022 2021
Note HKS$000 HK$'000
vt BEFT BEFT
Operating cash flows before CELSEHHI LERE
movements in working capital mE 613,486 311,883
Trade receivables FEW IR (246,576) (10,986)
Contract assets in respect of service REREBEHTCERHEHN
concession arrangements BHEE (124,594) (138,358)
Prepayments, deposits and other BRTMIE. BeRHAM
receivables BRI (87,321) (47,072)
Trade payables FE{TER SR (10,027) 176,852
Amounts due from related companies & ¥ BB A T 2 A 18,742 (5,768)
Amounts due from a joint venture BY—BEERBZME (26,805) =
Other payables, provision, accrued HtiERE. BE. EHE
liabilities and contract liabilities BRENER 54,666 (51,180)
Financial liabilities at FVPL BRABEHANERZ
THaR 87,093 -
Other securities Hiz8 5 (107,303) (965,875)
Cash generated from/(used in) KExBESL/ FH)
operations Z2R/E 171,361 (730,504)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mE BRI

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022 E(ZFE2022412831HIEEE

31 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED 31 GERERERME @)
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (continued)
Reconciliation of liabilities arising from (b) RETENZEEHIR
financing activities
This section sets out an analysis of liabilities KEDMBEMENEFERE
arising from financing activities and the ERELACZEBENEEEDE
movements in liabilities arising from financing o
activities for each of the years presented.
Lease
Borrowings liabilities Total
EEN HEAR Mat
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT BT
At 1 January 2021 $2021F181H 482,932 1,134,412 1,617,344
Financing cash flows MERENE 232,855 (224,178) 8,677
Acquisition — leases WHE—-HE - 570,716 570,716
Interest expenses HMEEH 23,810 50,533 74,343
Exchange differences ERE 13,045 58,150 71,195
At 31 December 2021 120214128 31H 752,642 1,589,633 2,342,275
At 1 January 2022 120221 81H 752,642 1,589,633 2,342,275
Financing cash flows MERERE 301,300 (167,853) 133,447
Acquisition — leases WiE—HEE - 174,136 174,136
Interest expenses FMEER 33,795 68,561 102,356
Exchange differences bE 2 E 58 (40,344) (115,494) (155,838)
At 31 December 2022 $12022F12831H 1,047,393 1,548,983 2,596,376

(c)

Major non-cash transactions

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the

acquisition of right-of-use assets amounting to
HK$174,136,000 (2021: HK$570,716,000) (Note

13(B)).

() FEFREXS

REZE2022F128318 1k
FE - WEBERAEEEBK
174,136,00075(20214F © Hi#E
570,716,0007c) (FF5E13(B)) ©
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YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022 #ZE2022F12831HILEE

COMMITMENTS
Non-cancellable operating leases

The investment properties are leased to tenants under
operating leases with rentals payable monthly. For details
of the leasing arrangements, refer to Note 13(B).

The Group leases various office premises and car parking
assets under non-cancellable operating leases expiring
within 1 to 20 years. The leases have varying terms,
escalation clauses and renewal rights. On renewal, the
terms of the leases are renegotiated.

From 1 January 2019, the Group has recognised right-
of-use assets for these leases, except for short-term
and low-value leases, see Note 2.28 and Note 13(B) for
further information.

No minimum lease payments under non-cancellable
operating leases of investment properties not recognised
in the financial statements as at 31 December 2022 and
2021.

RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES

The Company’s substantial shareholder with significant
influence is Shougang Holding, which is a wholly-
owned subsidiary of Shougang Group Co., Ltd., a
state-owned enterprise under the direct supervision
of the Beijing State-owned Assets Supervision and
Administration Commission. Shougang Group Co., Ltd.,
together with its associates (as defined in the Listing
Rules) other than the Group, will hereinafter be referred
to as the “Shougang Group”. Accordingly, the Group
is significantly influenced by Shougang Group. The
transactions and those balances with Shougang Group
are disclosed below:

Shoucheng Holdings Limited Annual Report 2022
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mE BRI

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022 E(ZFE2022412831HIEEE

RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES (continued) 33 FRABtALTIRE 2
Transactions with related parties (a) FAEALINE

(a)

Year ended 31 December

BE12R3MHLEE
2022 2021
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT
Shougang Group HiER
~ Advisory fee expenses (Note (}) —shAERS (50) = 425
- Management fee expenses (Note (i}) —SBERSZ H20) 2,990 2,990
- Other income by the Group —REBEMRA
(Note (})) (Ht32()) 2,035 5,053
— Purchases by the Group —REBRKE
(Note (i) and (ii)) () %) 6,322 6,751
— Rental expenses (Note (i) —MAeRx Wi20) 5,069 5,046
- Rental income (Note (i) —HE WA HE) 132 132
- Promotion and advertisement -EENESEER
expense (Note (i) (W5£0)) - 1,856
- Services provided by the Group —REEHEE
(Note (i) and (i) (A () R(i) 748,563 421,372
Associate of the Group FEEZHERT
- Other income by the Group (Note (i) REEEMBN BFE2() 1,145 -
Notes: st
(i) The terms of the transactions are mutually agreed (i) RPZERTBEAEEES
between the Group and the counter parties. FHEEWE
(ii) Shougang Group provides materials, leasing and (ii) SifEmMEAEEREYE
management services to the Group. AENREERE-
(iii) The Group provides fund management services to (iii) rEBHERERNR HE
its Shougang Group and/or its associates. MENRREESEERE
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022 # E2022F12831HLEEE

RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES (continued)

(b)

(c)

Balances with Shougang Group

Details of balances with the Group's related
companies are set out in Note 21 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Compensation of key management
personnel

The remuneration of key management personnel,
which represents the Directors of the Company
during the year was as follows:

33

RAEEA LIREE (&

(b)

(c)

B1E & B 2 A BR

ERAAEERB AR 2GR
EACE PRI

FEEBASZHM

RERAEREIRTEEHNEE
EEABZFHNNOT

Year ended 31 December

H#=12A31MALEE
2022 2021
HK$'000 HK$'000
AEFT BT
Short-term employee benefits fEHIRE=F) 7,022 8,872
Post-employment benefits RIRAEF] 44 -
7,066 8,872
The remuneration of key management personnel FTEEEBAEZHEHRESTE

is determined by the Remuneration Committee
of the Board of Directors having regard to the
market practice, competitive market position and
individual performance.

Shoucheng Holdings Limited Annual Report 2022
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mE BRI

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022 E(ZFE2022412831HIEEE

RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES (continued)

(d) Transactions with other PRC
government-related entities

The Group has entered into various bank
transactions, including deposits placements,
borrowings and other general banking facilities,
with certain banks and financial institutions and
use of public utilities which are state-controlled
entities in its ordinary course of business. In view
of the nature of those banking transactions, the
directors of the Company are of the opinion that
separate disclosure would not be meaningful.

ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARY

On 28 September 2022, E Park entered into a sale
and purchase agreement with Guangzhou Shouzhong
Wanwu Carpark Management Co., Ltd.* and
Shenzhen Wanwu Chengchang Consultancy Service
Ltd * (together, “the Sellers”),
the Group conditionally agreed to purchase, and

pursuant to which

the Sellers conditionally agreed to sell, 30% of the
equity interests of Foshan Shouzhong Vanke Gongying
Enterprise Management Limited Partnership* (“Foshan
Shouzhong Vanke”) LB EMHEERXEIES
B (BRAEE), a joint venture which the Group
held 70% equity interests before this acquisition, at
a consideration of RMB22,518,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$26,198,000). Upon the date of
completion of acquisition, the Foshan Shouzhong Vanke
became a wholly owned subsidiary of the Group and
reclassified the interest in Foshan Shouzhong Vanke from
interest in a joint venture to investment in a subsidiary.
The major asset of Foshan Shouzhong Vanke is an
investment property. Accordingly, the transaction has
been accounted for as an acquisition of assets.

33

34

R LIREE (&

(d) SHMPERFERAER
2

FAEERTHEEXRBBREUK
ANHEREHERAFEELERR
Bl RZERIBRAVIRITAN /R
RBEETZHERTRS 87
FBEMEM—ARIRITRE -
BERZFROTXZHME &
AEERREBRERRER

o

7

Y BB Ff B A E

20229 9H28 BIEHHEENTE
FEYEEBEERTR QM EI
MEMHRELARBERRE (518
'EF)) ] TEEWME  REZH
T EREBERAHEBEREE BEHFEK
HREHE BLUETBYEREE
BIEGELX (BReR) ((BLES
B 30%MERE AEBITARIUK
BiFE70%RENEGE R X HE
A ANRM22,518,0007T (FBERLH
#%26,198,0007T) ~ EWERH 2 H
BLUEFEYRATEENEZETA
B UTEHBLUERFEENERAREE
TPENERIENHEAHTATINE
dollETPENNZIEEER &
KEMEME At ZX5EFEAE
EUWE AR -
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34 ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARY (continued)

310

R #5 ¥R R P 5

3 WHEMEAR &

HK$'000
BT T
Consideration in cash e HE 26,198
Interests in joint venture disposed of BETERE 61,091
Total consideration ST EE 87,289
Recognised amounts of identifiable assets AIMREEREBEZ
acquired and liabilities assumed WL
Property, plant and equipment EN NN 4
Investment property KREWME 81,813
Trade receivables JE W BR =X 6,799
Other receivables H b fE W I 48
Bank balances and cash RITEGR MRS 4,072
Trade payables FE T BR X (4,719)
Other payables HMEIE (728)
Total identifiable net assets AR BEES 87,289
Net cash outflows arising from acquisition WENBABELANREF
of subsidiary pipiss!
Cash paid REZM (26,198)
Bank balances and cash acquired RITEREEFIRE 4,072
Net cash outflow BE& R $EE (22,126)

* For identification purpose only
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mE BRI

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022 E(ZFE2022412831HIEEE

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND 35

FABRZHBRARREFEES

RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY
As at 31 December
128318
2022 2021
HK$°000 HK$'000
BEFT HBIETFT
Non-current assets ERENEE
Investments in subsidiaries RB AT ZRE 284,924 284,924
Prepayments and deposits AN RENRES 28,044 6,600
Investments — non-current KE—IERE 559,505 565,746
872,473 857,270
Current assets MEEE
Prepayments, deposits and other FBRIE. s M HM
receivables A ESeE] 64,819 19,602
Amounts due from subsidiaries BB AR 2B 11,919,732 13,260,065
Investments — current KE—-RE 157,833 406,058
Time deposits with maturity over three BiB31E 3 5 > EHIER
months 150,653 100,000
Bank balances and cash IRITERNIRE 2,082,186 1,328,256
14,375,223 15,113,981
Total assets BEHE 15,247,696 15,971,251
Liabilities afi
Non-current liabilities ERHEE
Borrowings — non-current B —IEmEN - 90,900
Current liabilities mENaRE
Borrowings — current B —mah 553,800 151,600
Other payables and accrued liabilities EMEFIA. BERETEE 11,227 3,466
565,027 155,066
Total liabilities BEHEE 565,027 245,966
Capital and reserves B A R (i
Share capital [N 12,546,847 12,546,847
Reserves (Note) 15 (B52) 2,135,822 3,178,438
14,682,669 15,725,285
Total liabilities and equity EmNhaERE 15,247,696 15,971,251

The statement of financial position of the Company was
approved by the Board of Directors on 24 March 2023
and were signed on its behalf by:

KRB 2 HHBRTFKEF2023F38
AR EEFEEH A TAHTIESN
REE

Zhao Tianyang Li Wei
X B =&

Director Director
EF EFE
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND

35 ARBZMBRRARKRFEFEEE

RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY (4&)
(continued)
Note: Wist -
Shares
held under
share Security
incentive investment Other Retained
plan reserve reserve earnings Total
R HE R B 3t 81
THEZRSN HHFREHE Hithf# RERF ai
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BEFT EBFT BT BEFT BEFT
Balance at 1 January 2021 20211 A1H 2 &8 - - - 3,287,320 3,287,320
Profit for the year FERR - - - 356,266 356,266
Fair value changes on financial BAABEFANEMEENR
asset at FVOC| Bl ERMEEZNARB
EE-E - (14,975) - - (14,975)
Total comprehensive income SEWEER - (14,975) - 356,266 341,291
Repurchase of shares under share RSB B TR M I
incentive plan (298,433) - - - (298,433)
Wavier of amount due from subsidiaries B EFHB AT 2 5B - - 545,811 - 545,811
Recognition of equity-settled R UG EENR DS A
share-based payments &M - - 2,387 - 2,387
Dividends BE - - - (699,938) (699,938)
Balance at 31 December 2021 R2021E12A318 248 (298,433) (14,975) 548,198 2,943,648 3,178,438
Balance at 1 January 2022 #2022 1818 2 &8 (298,433) (14,975) 548,198 2,943,648 3,178,438
Loss for the year FEHR - - - (133,007) (133,007)
Fair value changes on financial BRARBEFAEMEEK
asset at FVOCI BZEMBEZNARB
HZE - (27,530) - - (27,530)
Total comprehensive losses SERGEEEE = (27,530) = (133,007) (160,537)
Share repurchase & 12 [21 88 - - - (19,886) (19,886)
Recognition of equity-settled HERIAME R S F R D
share-based payments ZHER - - 15,778 - 15,778
Dividends 3] = - - (877,971) (877,971)
Balance at 31 December 2022 #2022FE 128318 2 8% (298,433) (42,505) 563,976 1,912,784 2,135,822
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022 E(ZFE2022412831HIEEE

BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS 36 EREAKRFZE (REBARF
(DISCLOSURES REQUIRED BY SECTION 55622 5538315 ~ 55622GE A
383 OF THE HONG KONG COMPANIES g (AR ESEFERHRE) R
ORDINANCE (CAP. 622), COMPANIES REHR EHRNEKRIKE)
(DISCLOSURE OF INFORMATION ABOUT
BENEFITS OF DIRECTORS) REGULATION
(CAP. 622G) AND HK LISTING RULES)
Directors’ and Chief Executive’s (A) EERITHEZME
emoluments
The emoluments paid or payable to each of the BENHENM+Z% (20214
12 (2021: 16) directors were as follows: +8) ESZEAZMEUNT
Contributions
to retirement
Fees Salaries  Share options  benefit scheme Total 2022
BICER
ik fig Bhe BENGE ait
HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000
BT BT BT AT BT
2022 2022
Executive directors of FRARAES
the Company
ZHAQ Tianyang #XE - - 769 - 769
XU Liang HE - 1,355 549 8 1912
LI Wei = - 3,001 988 18 4,007
Zhang Meng Kz - 2,667 769 18 3,454
Non-executive directors of the  FAFFHTES
Company
LU Jingwei HzR n - - - 3N
HO Gilbert Chi Hang f8E 362 - - - 362
LI Hao 3 515 - - - 515
Independent non-executive ~ AAFBEUFHITES
directors of the Company
WANG Xin Iz 454 - - - 454
CHOI Fan Keung Vic ZgR 446 - - - 446
DENG Yougao G 388 - - - 388
ZHANG Quanling KRE 451 - - - 451
Thuge Wenjing EEXE W) 362 - - - 362
Total emoluments ikt 3,355 7,023 3,075 4 13497
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022 # E2022F12831HLEEE

36 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS

(DISCLOSURES REQUIRED BY SECTION
383 OF THE HONG KONG COMPANIES
ORDINANCE (CAP. 622), COMPANIES

(DISCLOSURE OF INFORMATION ABOUT
BENEFITS OF DIRECTORS) REGULATION

(CAP. 622G) AND HK LISTING RULES)

(continued)

(A)

Directors’ and Chief Executive’s
emoluments (continued)

SEERAEAGE BEBQTE
55622 553831%  £622GELR
7 AN EEEMNERHEERG
REBLTHRAUNEKREE) @)

(A) EEEXTHHREME E

Contributions
to retirement
Share benefit
Fees Salaries options scheme Total 2021
BARER
fig i Bie FE I A3r2021
HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000
BEFT BEFT BT BEFT BT
2021 2021
Executive directors of the AAFMITES
Company
ZHAO Tianyang PN - - 117 - 17
XU Liang #E - - 83 - 83
LI Wei Tk - 2,536 150 9 2,695
Zhang Meng RE - 2,091 117 9 2,217
LIANG Hengyi (Note (c)) 2% (W) - 605 - 5 610
Non-executive directors of ARTFFHRTES
the Company
LIU Jingwei =k 350 - - - 350
HO Gilbert Chi Hang e 350 - - - 350
LI Hao 8 250 - - - 250
Zhao Xianming (Note (e)) HER (W5 e) 184 - - _ 184
LI Yinhui (Note (/) THE W) 168 - - - 168
Independent Non-executive ZARBIEHITES
directors of the Company
WANG Xin : 430 - - - 430
CHOI Fan Keung Vic ZE®R 410 - - - 410
DENG Yougao #EB 370 - - - 370
ZHANG Quanling KRR 430 - - - 430
Zhuge Wenjing (Note (e)  EBXE (11 () 208 - - - 208
QIAQ Yongyuan (Note (&) BXiE (W) - - - - -
Total emoluments Ak 3,150 5,232 467 23 8,872
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022 E(ZFE2022412831HIEEE

BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS
(DISCLOSURES REQUIRED BY SECTION
383 OF THE HONG KONG COMPANIES
ORDINANCE (CAP. 622), COMPANIES
(DISCLOSURE OF INFORMATION ABOUT
BENEFITS OF DIRECTORS) REGULATION
(CAP. 622G) AND HK LISTING RULES)

(continued)

(A)

Directors’ and Chief Executive’s
emoluments (continued)

Notes:

The executive directors’ emoluments shown above
were mainly for their services in connection with
the management of the affairs of the Company
and the Group. The non-executive directors’
emoluments shown above were mainly for
their services as directors of the Company or
its subsidiaries. The independent non-executive
directors’ emoluments shown above were mainly
for their services as directors of the Company.

No emoluments were paid by the Group to any of
the directors or the five highest paid individuals as
an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or
as compensation for loss of office during the years
ended 31 December 2022 and 2021.

Allowance and benefits in kind include share
options.

Mr. Liang Hengyi resigned with effect from 28
March 2021.

Dr. Li Yinhui and Dr. Qiao Yongyuan resigned as a
director with effect from 28 May 2021.

Dr. Zhao Xianming and Ms. Zhuge Weijing were
appointed as a director with effect from 28 May
2021. Dr. Zhao Xianming resigned as a director
with effect from 31 December 2021.
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il 55622E 553831% « £622GELR
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REALTHRAUNEREE) (&
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022 # E2022F12831HLEEE

EEEN MG REBLATK
55622 5538315  £622GE LR
7 AN ESENBERHEERG
REBLETHRUNERKEE) &

36 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS 36
(DISCLOSURES REQUIRED BY SECTION
383 OF THE HONG KONG COMPANIES
ORDINANCE (CAP. 622), COMPANIES
(DISCLOSURE OF INFORMATION ABOUT
BENEFITS OF DIRECTORS) REGULATION
(CAP. 622G) AND HK LISTING RULES)

316

transactions, arrangements or contracts

Save as disclosed in Note 33 and Note 36, no
significant transactions, arrangements and
contracts in relation to the Group’s business to
which the Group was a party and in which a
director of the Company had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end
of the year ended 31 December 2022 or at any
time during the year (2021: Nil).

Shoucheng Holdings Limited Annual Report 2022

(continued)

(B) Directors’ retirement benefits and (B) ZEFMRAKERFNMEFEEF
termination benefits
During the year ended 31 December 2022, no REE2022F12831H L&
emoluments, retirement benefits, payments or B EMKRIIESREMERE
benefits in respect of termination of Directors’ FEERAEEZ MR ELHEM
services were paid or made, directly or indirectly, =~ RGBT EF
to the Directors; nor are any payable (2021: Nil). TR B RIB (202146 ¢

) o

(C) Consideration provided to third parties (O MESESREMRAE=H
for making available directors’ services RIHKE
During the year ended 31 December 2022, no REZE2022F12831HIEF
consideration was provided to third parties for E ElEfEERERTME
making available directors’ services (2021: Nil). HAIBERENRE (20214F ¢

) o

(D) Information about loans, quasi-loans and (D) BRAUEZR -ZEFNZEHE
other dealings in favour of directors, BERZEHERARHEAZ
controlled bodies corporate by and B -EERMHEMNRZZE
connected entities with such directors ¥
As at 31 December 2022, there are no loans, 7520228128310 HEUE
quasi-loans or other dealings in favour of the EHEREGEE N EGIE R
Directors, their controlled bodies corporate and AZBAZET EER R EM
connected entities (2021: Nil). X5 (20214 @ 4E) o

(E) Directors’ material interests in (E) ZEFENXZ THHEHNHH

EXED

PrMIE32 MM sE34FN IR EE &
oo ARNBEERENEE
2022F12A31HIEFERERN
FRRBFEENUNERES
SN ERAREEERER
BEARG THNEHNTHEEER
BoEEsEAER (2021F

—
4iE) o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022 E(ZFE2022412831HIEEE

EVENTS OCCURRING AFTER THE
REPORTING PERIOD

Placing of existing shares

On 13 January 2023, the Company entered into a
placing agreement (the “Placing Agreement”) with
Huatai Financial Holdings (Hong Kong) Limited (as
placing agent and overall coordinator) to procure placee
to purchase the total number of the placing shares,
being 252,802,246 shares, at a placing price of HK$1.80
per placing share pursuant to the terms of the Placing

Agreement.

On 31 January 2023, the Company completed the
placing and the subscription of 252,802,246 placing
shares to Sunshine Life, all of which were subscribed
by the placing shareholder, with net proceeds of
approximately HK$448 million.

Details of above are set out in the Company’s
announcements dated 13 January 2023 and 31 January
2023.

37

HEMRER

RERERH

752023F 1B 130 AN Bl ELR SR
TR (BB BRAR ELEREMES
BN T E = (FEEEWEJ) )
REAMLAZBREE R RERTEZ
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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

=]
LFEMBFEE
RESULTS E 4
Year ended 31 December
HEN2AMBLEE
2018 2019 2020 2021 2022
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000
BT EEFT FEFT FETFT BT
Revenue LN 176,504 396,091 705,854 1,195,031 1,599,809
Profit/(loss) for the year from BELEERERE
continuing operations wHl/ (B8 312,501 441,161 635,470 (1,113,526) 914,347
Profit for the year from BRIEEEER
discontinued operations FEEGH 44,270 904 - - =
Profit/(loss) for the year FEHF/ (BB 356,771 442,065 635,470 (1,113,526) 914,347
Attributable to: DU A LR
Owners of the Company N/NEIETZ= DN 353,097 443,003 658,613 (1,095,327) 922,010
Non-controlling interests FERER 3,674 (938) (23,143) (18,199) (7,663)
356,771 442,065 635,470 (1,113,526) 914,347
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BEHAR
At 31 December
®12831H
2018 2019 2020 2021 2022
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000
BWFT EWFT EWEFT EEFT ABFT
Total assets EEBE 9,430,385 10,997,024 14,125,632 13,382,242 13,656,191
Total liabilities BEAE (434,929)  (1,174,400)  (2,206,334) (3,153,835  (3,632,132)
8,995,456 9,822,624 11,919,298 10,228,407 10,024,059
Equity attributable to owners NUNCIEZ 2SI
of the Company FEfh s 8,966,257 9,684,305 11,772,290 10,140,637 9,927,589
Non-controlling interests FERER 29,199 138,319 147,008 87,770 96,470
8,995,456 9,822,624 11,919,298 10,228,407 10,024,059
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Particulars of major investment properties held by the Group as

SUMMARY OF INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

REVERE

AEEFK2022F12A31HEEZETEEREY

at 31 December 2022 are as follows: EFBUT
Group Category of
Property Use interest  the lease
EEFEE

ES & Z2¥EE  TLER
1 residential unit R Residential 100%  Long-term lease
Pearl City Mansion, 558 TE EHMEL
Nos. 22-36 Paterson Street ik 9
Causeway Bay, BEM#E22-365%
Hong Kong 1MEFEEEA
L1-L3 Floor, I Operation of car 100%  Self-owned property
222 Jirui Five Road, PUFIIES parking lot BEE®E
Chengdu High-tech Zone, R &R T FHIGKE
Sichuan Province =&
China = I IR 2225%

HTH1-38
Underground, A Operation of car 100%  Self-owned property
136 Logu Road, JERm™ parking lot BEER
Shijingshan Zone, a=lE FHIGKE
Beijing, BAK1365%
China R
No. 1, Hr ] Operation of car 100%  Self-owned property
Foping 3rd Road, ERE parking lot BEERE
Guicheng Street, BT FHIGKE
Nanhai District, maEE
Foshan City, ES R
Guangdong Province, B = B8 15%
China
The southeast side of the F ] Operation of car 100%  Self-owned property
Interchange of Xihai 8th Road, E&EZ parking lot BEE®
Longxi Avenue, BLUTT FHIGKE
Nanhai District, [Eahi=]
Foshan City, BERE KB
Guangdong Province, (RS PANES
China I R m A
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SUMMARY OF INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

REVMERE

Group Category of

Property Use interest  the lease

&EFA
ES R& Z2Wem  FLER
Vanke Shanghui Building, R Operation of car 100%  Self-owned property
No. 18 Guilan South Road, EEE parking lot BEE®E
Guicheng Street, BRI EEIGKE
Nanhai District, mEE
Foshan City = B PR 185
Guangdong Province, BREEXE
China
No. 174, H [ Operation of car 100%  Self-owned property
Changjiang 2nd Road, ra)l& parking lot BREER
Yuzhong District, EE™ FHIGKE
Chongging, A&
Sichuan Province, RITIZER1745R%
China
No. 420, R Operation of car 100%  Self-owned property
Panxi Road, PUPIIES parking lot BEE®E
Jiangbei District, B5EM EEIGKE
Chonggqing, JLib&
Sichuan Province, AR ZER 42057

China
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